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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON SCHOOL-TO-WORK
TRANSITION PROGRAMS

WEDNESDAY, MAY 6, 1992

Houst oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SuBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES,
COMMITTEE ON EpuUcATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., Room 2261,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Carl C. Perkins, Chairman,
presiding.

Members present: Representatives Perkins, Kildee, Olver, Gun-
derson, and Goodling.

Staff present: Omer Waddles, staff director; and Mary Gardner,
minority professional staff member,

Chairman PerkiNs. We will call this meeting of the Subcommit-
tee on Employment Opportunities to order and welcome everyone
here today. We are very pleased to have our guests with us, and 1
would like to say a few opening words about what we are going to
be talking about and trying to get some answers to today.

The question of how to serve best the 50 to 75 percent of our
youth who do not attend or complete college has become a national
concern, and as the global economy becomes increasingly competi-
tive, the U.S. must produce a better educated and higher skilled
workforce. The concept of incorporating workplace learning, ap-
plied education, and traditional academics is not a new idea. Tradi-
tional apprenticeship programs have utilized this framework in the
skilled trades for generations. Doctors serve time as residents, and
educators often begin as student teachers.

Every major industrial nation but one has a structured system t»
help youths make the transition from school into the world of
work. The U.S. does not. Youths are left alone, relying on an ad
hoc network of parents, relatives, school counselors, and the want-
ads to find a job. There is no existing structure to bring young
people into the workforce and prepare them to spend the rest of
their lives working. For most students, there is little apparent con-
nection between what they learn in school and what they will need
in the real world. Students can graduate from high school without
the necessary skills and training to be effective members of the
workforce. The racent SCANS report, “Learning a Living: A Blue-
print for High Performance,” documents the need for U.S. indus-
try, labor, schools, and communities to rethink the way they look
at education and the workplace.

(1)




2

The events of the past week in Los Angeles and other cities
around the country give us dramatic evidence of the sense of de-
spair and rage many of our young people are experiencing. Too
many of our youths have dropped out of school, opting out of a
system they view as useless and of no help to them on the streets.
For many of these disaffected vouths, as for many young people,
college may not be a realistic alternative. We need to offer young
people hope for the future and the possibility of a good job or a
career in a growth field.

Many people, including myself, are talking about creating a na-
tional system of school-to-work transition. As the debate takes
place at the national level, I feel it is important to examine what is
being done locally before enacting Federal legislation. These local
programs have been developed by organizations and concerned in-
dividuals trying to make a difference in their own community.
Today, we will look at four successful local programs where cooper-
ative efforts between industry, labor, schools, and the local commu-
nity have produced programs to help young people bridge the gap
between school and work. We need to hear about the problems that
each program faced and what the solutions were.

In order to create these local programs, everyone involved had to
take risks. Business and labor had to set aside traditional appre-
hensions about working together and, in a sense, go back to school
themselves. Educators, parents, and students had to change their
mindsets about what constitutes a “school” and opt into a new pro-
gram developed in conjunction with industry and labor that is radi-
cally different from most traditional academic paths.

School-to-work transition comes in many forms. These are just
four of the thousands of local programs already in place which try
to prepare young people for the workplace. Even here in Washing-
ton, we have seen a variety of legislative proposals to address the
school-to-work challenge. As I prepare to put together a legislative
vehicle for the subcommittee, I will draw from some of these exist-
ing proposals, but the in-the-%eld programs such as these here
today are the best examples of what works.

We look forward to hearing from our witnesses this morning,
and we are eager to learn how to develop and operate a successful
school-to-work transition program. With this, we would like to turn
to our distinguished colleague from Flint, Michigan, Dale Kildee,
who is going to take this opportunity—because he has to go some-
where else and if it is all right with Mr. Goodling—to introduce
two of the distinguished guests that we have here today.

Mr. KiLpeg. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, very much. It is good to
see on the podium two great advocates of bringing together the
school and the world of work. I do not think we could have two
greater friends of education. You and your credentials are well
known, as were those of your father. Mr. Goodling, as far as I am
concerned, is Mr. Education in this Congress, and we are glad to
have him here this morning.

You mentioned Los Angeles, Mr. Chairman. Certainly, I have
always found that the lack of hope can lead to despair, and despair
unfortunately can lead to senseless violence. I think we have to
give people hope in this country.
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I thank you, Mr. Chairman, for inviting me to introduce two wit-
nesses from my district and home town of Flint, Michigan. I am
pleased that you are holding a hearing on youth apprenticeship as
part of the school-to-work transition. As you know, I share your
concern that we provide students with the education necessary to
enter the workforce ready to perform. As a Member of Congress, it
is always a pleasure to see organizations from the district you rep-
resent receive recognition for quality work, especially if it has a
pos::ive effect upon our young people.

The GM-UAW Quality Education Program is an exciting part-
nership, designed to bring female and minority high-school stu-
dents into the skilled trades. The program is quite simply about op-
portunity, an opportunity for students to become full participants
in society and an opportunity for business to gain a good employee.
It is my pleasure to introduce Mr. Robert Morrish of UAW Local
659 and Mr. Gerald Butler, Personnel Director of GM Truck and
Bus Metal Fabricating Plant in Flint to speak more about this im-
portant initiative. I am sure, Mr. Chairman, that their testimony
will help educators, business, and labor to work together to address
the needs of our students. I am personally very proud of what they
are doing. They are reaching out to some of the people in greatest
need and people who, without hope, can go through that chain we
mentioned before.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman PerkiNs. We would also like to welcome, so that they
do not feel completely left out, Mr. Rob Ryan, President of CWA
Local 3105 in Gainesville, Florida, and Judy Boles, Regional Man-
ager, Corporate and External Affairs, of Southern Bell in Gaines-
ville, Florida. We welcome all of our distinguished guests today and
thank them very much for taking the time to appear with us.

Mr. Goodling, we have second bells. Would you like to make a
statement before we go over to vote?

Mr. GoopLING. Second bells for the Democrats, not for the Re-
publicans?

Chairman Perkins. We can adjourn until afterwards. Would you
like to wait until then?

Mr. GooprinNG. No. I just meant, we are not in session, are we, at
this time?

Chairman PerkiNs. Yes. We are in session. We are going to have
a vote.

Mr. GoopLiNG. There is no red light on. I will make a quick
statement. I thought it was your own private call.

Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for holding this hearing on
the school-to-work transition. I am pleased that you have chosen to
draw attention to those American secondary students who do not
necessarily plan to continue their eu.cation into the postsecondary
level. As you know, at least 50 percent of American students do not
go on to a college or university after graduating from high school.
We must ensure that we prepare these students for entering the
workforce.

This is why my colleague, Mr. Gunderson, and I have introduced
HR. 4976, the School-to-Work Transition and Youth Apprentice-
ship Act, a bill designed to address the problem of providing sup-
port for American youth who do not currently intend to seek a
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postsecondary education. The bill will help these students make a
successful transition directly into the workforce or into further
education and training which is directly related to the occupation
of the student’s choice. :

The demands of the American workplace have increased in the
competency, educational literacy, and technical expertise needed to
fill American industry’s jobs. If America hopes to remain a com-
petitive leader in a global marketplace, we must ensure that
today’s youth will be ready to meet industry’s needs. I guess I
should say on panel two, we are happy to see that there are two
people from Pennsylvania, not my district but at least we have two
people from Pennsylvania represented on the second panel. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman PerkiNS. Thank you, Mr. Goodling, distin; .ished
ranking member on the full committee. With this, we are going to
take a break. I am sorry, but we have to go vote. There will be an-
other vote directly after this journal vote or suspension, and we
will be back as quickly as we can. With that, the committee is in
recess.

[Recess.]

Chairman PEerkiNs. We are pleased to have you all here. As I
said earlier, I am sorry for the delay, but we cannot really do too
much about it. We will turn to the first panel. Going left te right,
we will start with Mr. Robert Morrish of the UAW who, as Mr.
Kildee has indicated, is from the UAW Local 659 in Flint, Michi-
gan. Mr. Morrish, please go ahead.

STATEMENTS OF ROBERT MORRISH, UAW JOINT ACTIVITIES
REPRESENTATIVE, UAW LOCAL 659, FLINT, MICHIGAN; GERALD
BUTLER, PERSONNEL DIRECTOR, GM TRUCK AND BUS FLINT
METAL FABRICATING PLANT, FLINT, MICHIGAN; BOB RYAN,
PRESIDENT, CWA LOCAL 3105, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA; AND
JUDY BOLES, REGIONAL MANAGER, CORPORATE AND EXTER-
NAL AFFAIRS, SOUTHERN BELL, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA

Mr. MorrisH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. On behalf of the UAW,
I would like to thank you for the opportunity to come before you to
express our opinions about school-to-work linkage.

In Flint, Michigan, our facility is a manufacturing facility of
about 3,700 employees, 1,200 of which are skilled trades people,
with an average seniority or average age of about 43 years. The
program that we have is based purely on need, and that need is to
replace retiring skilled trades workers as we see them going out
into the future. We have a locally developed attrition prediction
program that allows us to reasonably determine the number of
people who will be retiring from any trade at any given time, so we
have a pretty good idea of how many people we need to replace
over the next few years.

The system, as we know it in the past, has always been able to
provide us with a good number of replacement candidates for the
apprentice program, until recently, when we started to see stu-
dents who are graduating not being able to pass the GM-UAW ap-
ﬁrenticeship test. We recognized that as being a problem, and we

now that something has to change within the system to allow us
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to be able to replace those people in order to maintain our competi-
tiveness in the industry, as well as being able to maintain jobs in
the United States.

Our program was developed jointly with the UAW and General
Motors. It deals with 11th and 12th grade students. The students
will be taking a curriculum that was developed with the help of
five schoolteachers who came into our facility, looked at our needs,
as far as what these students had to know. They developed a cur-
riculum in conjunction with us and two local colleges. The reason
for that was, we wanted the colleges to accept those students that
took that curriculum at face value, with no remediation in the
event they were faced with going to college.

So through the partnership and the curriculum development, we
developed a program whereby the students went through an assess-
ment process. They were selected based on 100-point criteria. We
hav%e 50 students identified to start our program beginning in Sep-
tember.

The students will spend their academic curriculum at a local
high school, Beecher High School, which is a relatively small
school district just outside the city of Flint. They will spend their
academic time there. They will be transported by bus to the local
vocational training center, where they will have vocational train-
ing that is in conjunction with their academic training. After they
are finished with that, they will come into our workplace for 2
hours a day, work with skilled trades mentors while they are in
the plant, doing work-related-type training and work-related activi-
ties to develop their skills, not only the motor skills necessary to
become competent skilled tradesmen but develop an understanding
of what skilled tradesmen actually are responsible for in the indus-
try. With the combination of the academic, the vocational, and the
workplace training that they are going to receive, we feel that they
will develop the necessary employability skills to be future skilled
tradesmen of the 1990’s.

Some of the strengths of our program, as we view them, are the
curriculum, because it matched the vocational and the academic
curriculum to the workplace requirements; and the mentorship
program. We have some of our best journeymen who are coming
forward and volunteering to be mentors, to help these students get
through the program. They are always going to be with someone.
The students will never be standing alone. So there is a real sup-
port mechanism that is built into our process that allows these stu-
dents to function at the top of their capacity.

After 2 years, in the event we cannot hire these students as ap-
prentices into our program, we are guaranteeing tuition and books
for these students to enter into an associate degree program at one
of the local colleges. We have developed our curriculum, as I said,
in conjunction with two local colleges so that they could enter into
an associate degree program in applied technology in either of the
colleges with no remediation. We feel that is a very important ele-
ment, because one of our major expenses in the organization today
in the training arena is remediation, trying to pick up skills that
the students may be deficient in or our active employees may be
deficient in as they try to move forward into the skilled trades or-
ganization,




6

As we started planning this, we began approximately a year and
a half ago, back in 1990, looking at what we needed to do. The
basic outline was developed in conjunction with our local appren-
tice committee. Jim Jarman and Bill Dodge, two members of our
committee who have almost 30 years of apprentice committee activ-
ity under their belts, were the ones who helped us develop the
guidelines in trying to pull this thing together. It was approved
through our shop committee, through our union organization, our
local organization.

We started meeting with the partners because we knew we had
to bring partnership into this with the local school districts, with
the vocational education provider in our area, as well as the col-
leges. We had to bring that partnership together. So we started
meeting with the partners, trying to work that out. We finally
worked that out and brought all the partners together, and every-
one bought into the concept.

We met with some other people around the State who had vari-
ous vocationa: training programs in place. We looked at bits and
pieces of those and pulled out what we thought we could use for
ours. Then we moved forward with our process, after we had a
bigger outline put together, through the international union of the
UAW. Reuben Burks, our regional director, as well as Bill Brooks,
the group personnel director for Truck and Bus, both bought into
our program and supported it 100 percent. I think that was a key
element in moving forward with this program because we had that
kind of support from that level of both organizations.

We had one other hurdle to go over, and that was the National
UAW-GM Apprentice Committee. We met with them, and we
knew that if we could not get beyond that hurdle, then our pro-
gram was probably going to die. We went to Detroit, made that
presentation, and they supported our proposal. So we went forward
with that.

We have brought all the partners back together. All the partners
came to a breakfast and reconfirmed their commitment to the pro-
gram at that breakfast back in October of 1991. Then we began to
enter the implementation stage. Beecher High School, our high-
school partner, hosted a meeting for the parents of the interested
students because we knew we had to have enccuragement from the
parent groups in order to make this program work because our
work piece of the business is after school. They come into our plant
2 hours a day after school, and we pay the students $6.25 an hour
while they are in the plant. They come in 5 days a week. So we
knew we had to have the support of the parent group because this
conflicts with extracurricular activities. The students would not be
able to participate in football, baseball, or basketball. So they had
to make a pretty significant commitment to the program in order
to continue through with this process.

What we have developed specifically is a career path for students
to follow from the 10th grade into a skilled trades position within
General Motors and the UAW. We feel pretty pleased that we have
put this together very well. We have put a lot of time and planning
into this with the curriculum. We have tested the curriculum, we
have tested the statistics, we have tested the people who are
coming into the program, and we have tested some of our current

I1
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apprentices so that we know what skill level we have to raise these
students to. We have done a lot of activity in preparation for this
program up te this point.

The students themselves, we have 50 students that will be enter-
ing the program in September. They have all been identified. We
have brought them all back together, after identification, with
their parents to a little recognition dinner that we had, hosted by
the Genesee Area Skill Center, technology center. At that point, we
reconfirmed our commitment from all the partners, not only the
UAW but General Motors, the community colleges, and all the
school system. The students and the parents were very pleased at
that point with the program. Sc we are moving forward with this
program. As I said, in September, the first group of 50 students
will be coming into the plant, and they are already signed up for
the curriculum that we have developed in conjunction with that
school district.

Some of the problems that we encountered along the way were
mostly due to change. Resistance to change is institutionalized in
both our organizations. This idea came from the ground up. We de-
veloped this program on the basis of need and not on the basis of
anything other than that. The need to replace our retiring skilled
tradespeople was where we brought this program from.

it was developed jointly with a lot of cooperation between the
UAW and General Motors, but it was established more or less out-
side the normal collective bargaining arena and given a certain
amount of political immunity so that when they were having prob-
lems in other areas, which we do sometimes, this program was not
affected by that. So we had to give that little bit of life in the
corner in order to get to the point where we are at today, and we
feel pretty pleased with that. Both sides recognized the need for
this program. It was not a secret. All the facts and figures were
there, and it was very easy to identify what the need was.

There are some linkages that we have here to our apprentice
program. Upon completion of this program in 2 years, our students
will immediately take the GM-UAW apprentice test, be placed on
the list for a selection into the apprentice program. Qur ideals are
that they will score very well. In the past, graduating seniors have
fared about an 8 to 10 percent passing rate on the apprentice test.
We have experimented with some of our in-plant people with the
same curriculum that we are going to be using for these students.
We raised our in-plant people up to about 84 percent completion or
passing of the apprentice test. So we feel confident that the cur-
riculum we have established will prepare these students to enter
into the workplace and give them the employability skills neces-
sary to pass the skilled-trades apprentice test and, hopefully, some
day become apprentices.

We will develop a pool of qualified and interested candidates out
of this, and that is something that is very necessary at the time.
Not hiring new students into the organization like we used to 20
years ago, the availability of qualified applicants is becoming mini-
mized. So we have to go back to the schools and look to the schools
to provide us with those students that have the employability skills

and have the skills to pass those stringent requirements on the
test.
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Some of the things that we dealt with when we went through
this program, we held it at a very high level in relationship to
what it was going to do. We always functioned on the aspect that if
I would not put my son or daughter into that program, and Mr.
Butler would not hire them after they finished the program, then
it was not good enough. So we kept it at a real personal level, and
we looked at it from the standpoint that it had to be good enough
for our children or we were not going to put it out there for the
rest of the kids. We feel that we have that, and I would not have a
problem with my son or daughter entering into a program like
this. I think he feels confident that once they go through this pro-
gram, they will be someone who has the employability skills that
he could feel confident in hiring.

Some of the other comments, the tech prep program, as we know
it today, does a very fine job of integrating the vocational and the
academic learning, but we feel there iz a missing element there.
That missing element is the sanction by business that allows the
input from the business organization to define what their needs are
and define what those employability skills of students coming out
of that program. I think that is an area that we could definitely
take a real strong look at, trying to develop some help in that area
for the employers and allow the funding that comes out of the na-
tional prcgrams goes to the schools, but there is a big piece that is
there for the employer getting involved in this. Business has to be
involved in the educsation and in these programs, or else it will
never work.

That is where we really are. Our program has that linkage of

labor, industry, and education. We feel that students going through
this program will develop the employability skills necessary to be
employed in the future. Thank you very much.

[Additional material supplied by Mr. Morrish is on file with the
subcommittee.]

[The prepared statement of Robert Morrish follews:]
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TRUCK & BUS FLINT METAL FABRICATING
GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION
FLINT, MICHIGAN

LOCAL #659
UNITED AUTOMOBILE, AEROSPACE & AGRICULTURAL
IMPLEMENT WORXERS OF AMERICA ~-=- UAW
FLINT, MICHIGAN

BRZCHER HIGH SCHOOL
PLINT, MICHIGAN

G.A.S.C. TECHNOLOGY CENTER
FLINT, MICHIGAN

MOTT COMMUNITY COLLEGE
FLINT, MICHIGAN

BAKER COLLEGE
FLINT, MICETGAN

Text of presentaticn by Robert J. Morrish, to the
Subcommittee on Employment Opportunities’ "ovaersight Hearing
on School-To-Work —ransition”. Haeld on Wadnesday, May &th
1992, at the Rayburn House Office Bullding, vashington, D.C.

Respeactfully submit-ed:

Rebert J. Morrish
UAW Joint Activities Representative
Local 659
r1int, Michigan

La Vonda Wilkerson
UAW Manufacturing Technology Partnership Coordinator
Local 659
Flint, Michigan
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As e union represented, industrial manufacturing organization

we have become Very sensitive to the predictions that denote
the projected shortage of skilled wcrkers in the United
states. We clearly recognize many deficient elements of the
current system, some of which we have attempted to impact
from a local stsndpoint and others that are far removed from

our raalm, but have national implications.

We found a system unable to produce the necessary skilled
workforce. The eystem, without change, will no longer
provide candidates with the necesaary employablility skills
required to meat the needs of the manufacturing industry of
the nineties. Among other things, we must stop recruiting
skilled workers from our suppliers cecause many are fuced

with the same challenges we are.

without change in the system the United States could
conceivably be importing skilled workers or continue to locse
the manufacturing base to foreign countries. Our ilnability
to satisfy the requirements for skilled workers, while
attaining Equal Employmant Opportunity objectives, can be
corrected only through immediate action.

Truek and Bus ¥lint Metal Fabricating and U.A.W. Local 659
jointly developed the "Manufacturing Technology Partnership"
based on an identified need for qualified and interested

minority and female apprentice candidates., We became aware
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of our cmin;nt problem by experimenting with a locally
developed attrition prediction program. Our attrition
prediction program allows us to reasonably predict the number
of employes that will retire from any classification ir any
given peried of time. The data base we use is developed on
the pravious ten years history. "The Manufacturing Technology
Partrership”, is a pro-active approach tc problem solving fox
the 1994-95 time pericd. The main objective of our program
is to provide a pool of interestad and qualified mincrity and
female candidates for the UAW/GM apprentice program. The
time and costs of training skilled workers is on the rise.
“MTP" allows 8 portion of the training to be completed while
the students sre still in high school, and provides part time
employment for the participants. The development &nd linksge
of the academic and vocational curriculum, tied Fo the
workplace experience will provide significant opportunities

for the students over an extended pericd of time.

In conjunction with & new "MTP" academic curriculum the
students participate in dsily vocational training that begins
to develop the basic motor skills required of skilled
tradesman. After leaving the scsdemic and vocationsl
trsining, the students report to the plant for two hours each
day and while in the plant, work with highly txained skilled
trades mentors. The mentors and students develop xtrong
bonds thst lesd to improved understanding ©of the regquirsments

of skilled workers. After completing two Years in "NTP" we

1%

P03




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

34-29-G2  31:43PM FROM FNF SAL. PERSONNEL

ace contidoht the students will have the desire and ability
to meet the requirements of bacoming skilled workers. 1In the
event, we are unable to hire the students as apprentices ac
the end of the second vear, tuition and books will be
guaranteed up to and including an assoclate's degree in
Industrial Technology. All roada of our program lead to
apprenticeship and if an opening occurs it is expscted, che

students will purzue an apprenticeship.

Although our commitmant of resources has been significant,
our program will only minutely address the situation facead by
the industrial nation. At best, programs like ours will be
significantly limited without the availability of wonetary
regources. With funding and governmental eupport these

efforts can continue to grow.

our “MTP" program was developed prior to the drafting of tre
Department of Education‘'s Tech Prep guidelines. You should
be commended for your efforte in developing Tech Frep as
authorized by Section 420 of the Perkins Act. Tech Prep
thoroughly addresses the necessary elements for integrating
vooational and acadsmic learning, however, we uUrge you
consider adding to Tech Prep guidelines to allow for mare
involvement through partnership with labor and manufacturing
faoflities. Funding should be available through Tech Prep to
support industrial employers. Partnersnip with industry ie
the key slsment that can provide employment and true life
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experience for students participating in Tech Prep. Our
organization is focused on the apprenticeship process which
requires a long term commitment to education. currently we
are allocating $700,000 in an effort to prove the
effectiveness of our "MTP" program. This money is in lieu of
a functioning Tech Prep program in Flint, ¥ichigan with the
flexibility to provide funding for support of the
manufacturing process.

Planaing of our program began in the fall of 1930 when the
basic outline was developed with input from Jim Jarman snd
Bill Dodge our local apprentice committes, Gerald Butler,
personnel director, and myself., This outline was shared with
the U.A.W. shop comhittee, which is composed of seven elected
U.A.W., officials from within our plant. The shop committee
chairman, Jim Stavens and plant maniger, Frank Palopoli
signed a letter of commitment, giving us the opportunity to

move forward with our plan.

We visited two sites in Michigan, one a factory, the othex

a vocational school. Each had a portion of a pragram that we
felt could possibly be incorporated into our prodcess.
Regearch was conducted into program attempts similar to ours
but which had failed. From this we developed an avoidance
1ist of problams that plagued other attempts at school-to-

work programs.

15
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At this point we brought in a school district to become .our

Pilot. BReecher High School was selected based on its
minority population, high academic standarde, and the size of
the district. The fact that Baecher is a small school
district gave us the opportunity to deal directly with the
school administrators and the schocl board. Beecher was a

very receptive partner, willing to participate in curriculum
davalopment and administration.

The second phase of our plan included bringing in the
G.A.S.C. Technology Center. Thig is a vocational gchool that
maintains working relationships with all twenty saven achool
districts within Genesee County, We fclt the G.A.S.C.
Technolegy Center could play an intricate role in the

hecessary vocational training that would be required of the
"M.T.R.Y

After many meetings with Beecher and G.A.S8.C. Technalogy
Center, we focused on the need to seek guidance from poxt
secondary educational providers. Mott Community College and
Baker College were invited to become partners. Their
function was to provide guidanca in curriculum development
that would insure students completing the "Manufacturing
Technology Partnership" would be prepared to enter into

college without rasmeadiation.

The summer of 1391 was spent on curriculum Jdevelopment by &

ERIC
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team of teachers working at our faciiity. The teachers came

to us under a national UAW/GM Human Reaource Center program,
"The Quality Education Program''. The teachers helped
incorporate the detall of our plan, as well as matching the

academic and the vocational curriculuma.

In an effort to promote our plan we recrultad the support of
Ruben Burks, Director U.A.W. 1/C and william Brooks, Truck &
Bus Group Director Personnel. This proved to be an essential
alement in establishing this process as hoth parties bo;tmc

ardent gsupporters.

The next step in the approval process was the National UAW/GM
apprentice comnittee. Some Of our proposals ralsed
oonsiderable questions from this group, and without their
approval our program would have been stymied. After much

discussion we were given the approval to proceed.

In Qctober 1991 all the partners were brought together for a
breakfast and a ceremonial signing of the official

partnership agreement. At thiz point we £inally felt the
"MTP" had been given life.

The niext, and most cruclial step was gaining the confidence of
the parents to allow their children to participate in the
"MTP", Beecher High Schocl hosted &« meeting for interested

students and their parents in November of 1991,
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Approximately three hundred students and parents attsnded.
All partners of the "MTP" oonfirmed their commitment to the
program. The media release from thim event created interest

from other G.M. pi.nts and oth.r.conmunity schools.,

Our selection process was completed in March of 1832 and in
April we hosted a recognition dinner for all the salectad

students and their parents.

Throughout the planning and development of the "MTP", we
maintained a high level of commitment to the quality and
strength of our process. We operated under the premise, “If
you wouldn't put your son or daughter in "MTP", or if you
wouldn’t hire the student whan he/she completed the “MTP",

then the program isn't good enough and must be changed".

Another significant outcome of the process we used for
planning and development was the strengthening of our
relationship with the schools and G.A.S.c. Technology Center.
Wwith the strong sanction from business, we have effectively
impacted the ourrioculum in the schools to reflect the
necessary requirements of manufmcturing. We are confident
that our program will produce students with the math and
science background as well as the teohnical skills that will
render our students employable and credible whan they £1ill

out job applications.

Q
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Cur perspective of the G.A.$.C. Technology Center has

improved to the point that many of their teache~s have been
involved in our in-plant training programe. We have hosted
many tours for teachers and students, We have sent some of
our skilled trades workers to G.A.S.C. Technology Center to
move a fifty foot wall inside their facility. This was
conducted as a dwmcnstration project to show the students the

proper safety techniques required to perform a job of this
magnitude.

Oour process of implementation was not always smooth sailing.
Our proposal was developed from the ground up and required
approval at every step of the process throughout both the
U.A.W. and General Motors Corporation. Understanding that
resistance to change ig institutionalized in most
organizations made our process very challenging at many

intervals.

Our program is being considered by other U.A.W. Locals and GM
facilities in our immediate area. We feel this program could
be used as a model for any manufacturing process with the
proper union management relationship. Locally our U.A.W.

and management teame have recognized the need for such a
program and allowed the "MIP" tO be established outside the
normal collective bargaining arena, therefore providing for

political immunity.
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In conjunction with "MNTP" and in an effort to bolster our
apprentice recruitment efforts, an in-house training program
was designed to provide our current employes with the
necessary skills to meet apprenticeship requirements. This
program included the same principle curriculum as the “MTP".
We provided 606 employees with approximately 79,496 hours

of remedial training in 199). This links the "MTP" to our
apprenticeship program by providing us with a 1isxt of
qualifiaed in-plant applicants as well as 2 list of intereated
and qualified minority and female candidates for our out-
plant list. without the combination of the two, our UAW/GM
apprenticeship program would effectively becoma nonaxigtent.
we are confident the work exparience provided to "MTP"
students will develop the necessary employability skills to
bacoma competent skilled trades workers and the program will
generate sufficient numbers to meet our hiring goale of the

future.

We would 1like to thank you for the opportunity to present our
views and wish to extend an invitation for you to visit our
program &t your convenience. Beginning September 1932, we
will have fifty students participating in our program. Our
curriculum is designed in & manner that can be used by any
manufactiring organization. We are willing ¢o share ouxr
program, as wall as participate with other organizations, in

davelopment of programs to promote school-to-work linkages.

4
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In closing ve encourage your consideration and support of

additional prugrams and resources which foster development

and implementation of school-to-work programs which prepare

students for workplace technologias,
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Chairman PgrkINS. Thank you, Mr. Morrish. We will turn to the
other side of the coin here for this particular program and ask Mr.
Gerald Butler for his comments.

Mr. BuTtLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the com-
mittee. I think in the interest of brevity and the spirit of jointness,
Bob pretty well summed up what our program is.

Chairman PerkiNS. We believe in brevity here. There is no prob-
lem there.

Mr. BUTLER. Mr. Morrish has explained the program very well,
and we will let that stand.

[The prepared statement of Gerald Butler follows:]

STATEMENT OF GERALD BUTLER, PLANT PERSONNEL DIRECTOR, FLINT METAL
FABRICATING, NORTH AMERICAN TRUCK PLATFORMS

I am Gerald Butler, Plant Personnel Director for General Motors Flint Metal Fab-
ricating Plant, formerly operated by the Truck and Bus Group, now called North
American Truck Platforms. Our facility, located in Flint, Michigan, employs ap-
proximately 3,600 hourly and salaried employees. Qur hourly employees are repre-
sented by the United Auto Workers union. We produce sheet metal parts and
engine cradles for 24 GM assembly plants in North America.

I appreciate the opportunity to provide ycu with comments on the Flint Metal
Fabricating “Manufacturing Technology Partnership.” The Partnership is designed
to assist high school student: seeking careers in the skilled trades. It was developed
by our facility (the Flint Metal Fabricating plant), United Auto Workers’ Local 659,
Be%ci)}iliar High School, GASC Technology Center, Baker College, and Mott Communi-
ty ege.

The primary objectives of the Partnership are:

1. To give students the educational opportunities necessary to prepare for careers
as skilled trades journeypersons, and

2.To provide the » ipport services that are essential for students to successfully
complete the program.

The Partnership will provide technical workplace opportunities that help high
school students:

1. Develop the necessary skills and knowledge in applied academics,

2. Obtain vocational training related to the automobile industry,

3. Meet graduation requirements and receive a high school diploma, and

4. Become qualified to enter a skilled trades program or a community college As-
sociate’s degree program.

As part of the program, our plant and UAW Local £59 will provide student par-
ticipants in the program with part-time and summer employment, hands-on experi-
ence, financial aid for college, an introduction to skilled trades, work with skilled
trades mentors, and apprenticeship test preparation. The Partnership schools offer
various activities and support services to program participants, such as academic in-
struction and vocational training, tutoring, apprenticeship test preparation, student
support, supervised group activities, transportation, social events, and field trips.
The college partners will assist program participants with various support services
including mentors, financial aid for a 2-year Associate’s degree, and tutoring.

Students in the program must also meet specified requireinents. They must be 16
years old or more, maintain a 1.9 grade poin. average and good attendance, follow
the required curricula, work 2 hours each day after schoof and 24 hours a week
during the summer, participate in the mentor program in the GM pls t, be ‘“drug-
free,” and follow the plant and school health and safety code and  @ss require-
ments. They are alao required to take the apprenticeship test and re¢ ‘red college
courses.

The Partnership resulted from joint efforts and cooperation of the UAW and GM,
from the local plant level through national headquarters level. Cooperative work be-
tween union and management from the conception of the program to the present is
one of the primary reasons for the Partnership’s successful development.

In the fall of 1990, while evaluating retirement forecasts, we recognized that the
plant would need new skilled trades employees to replace journeypeople expected to
retire within the decade. We were concerned with the pool of potential candidates
insidde and outside the plant who were interested in and qualified for the skilled
trades.
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Initially, my predecessor in plant personnel and his UAW colleagues reviewed the
issue with the plant manager and with the Chairman of the Shop Committee (the
senior UAW representatives at the plant). Jointly, the top plant staff personnel and
top UAW representatives from the Local Joint Skilled Trades Apprentice Commit-
tee agreed to develop initiatives to address the issue. Those recommendations were
reviewed with William C. Brooks, Truck and Bus Group Director of Personnel and
former Assistant Secretary of Labor for the Employment Standards Administration.
Within days, the plant and local UAW representatives had signed an agreement to
proceed with the development of an “industrial cooperative” program.

In order to proceed, we needed to address issues associated with the national col-
lective bargaining agreement. Again, jointly the GM North American Truck Plat-
forms management and the regional UAW representatives resolved issues associat-
ed with recruitment, hiring, seniority, and unrepresented employee participants.

Coincidentally, at the local level, we initiated discussions with the community
academic partners to define and clarify roles and responsibilities. The UAW/GM
Human Resource Center regional office in Flint agreed to fund five teacher posi-
tions for the summer of 1991. Working with Local Joint Training Committee, pri-
marily with the UAW skilled trades representative, the teacher program developers
reviewed other apprenticeship, mentoring, and school-to-work programs. Many of
the concepts and models which they reviewed resulted in the Manufacturing Tech-
nology Partnership.

The final step in developing the program involved gaining the confidence of par-
ents and recruiting students. The academic participants hosted a meeting for inter-
ested students and their parents in November 1991. In addition, the Partnership co-
ordinators conducted meetings to explain the program to high school students.

In March 1992, 50 students were selected from Beecher High School and other
member schools of the GASC Technology Center. Their average grade point is 3.0
and out of our selection matrix or a potential 100 points, each student accumulated
96 points or better.

In the process of developing the Partnership, we resolved several potential obsta-
cles. First, joint cooperative efforts between GM and the UAW at the local, regional,
and national level permitted us to agsess the future needs and develop what we be-
lieve is a successful program. Second, working at the local, regional, and national
level, we were able to address potential limitations with the national collective bar-
gaining agreement. Third, open communication permitted us to overcome stereo-
typed perceptions among manufacturing and academic participants early in the de-
velopment of the program. Fourth, we have worked to involve parents and students
in the program with all of the partners.

We believe that linking academic and vocatioral curricula and workplace experi-
ence should provide significant opportunities for the high school students over an
extended period of time. The daily vocation training in the program will help the
students develop the basic motor skills required of skilled tradespeople. During their
in-plant work, the students’ work with highly trained skilled trades mentors will
help them develop a strong bond that leads to improved understanding of the re-
quirements of skilled workers. We expect that the students will have the desire and
ability to meet the requirements of becoming skilled trades workers after 2 years in
the program.

1 think Dr. Ira A. Rutherford, Superintendent of Beecher High School, best sum-
marized the essence of the program and the total community commitment. He
quoted an African proverb in his comments to the students, their parents, and aca-
demic participants in a recent dinner: ‘It takes the whole village to raise a child.”

I would be pleased to answer your questions.

Chairman Perxins. Thank you very much, Mr. Butler. Then we
will turn to Mr. Bob Ryan, who is the President of CWA Local 3105
in Gainesville, Florida.

Mr. RyaN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the com-
mittee. I do not think sudy will pass the buck when I finish my
presentation.

Local 8105 of the Communications Workers of America appreci-
ates your efforts to improve the employment opportunities for the
people of this country. We also thank you for this chance to tell
you what we and others are doing to improve employment opportu-
nities for the young people in the Gainesville area. CWA Local
8105 has always worked with our schools for some time but mostly

2
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on projects that did not focus on academics, for example, building
school playgrounds.

Over the past few years, thanks to our local education chair,
Paul Otradovec, we have become involved in the real meat of edu-
cation. We have helped young people learn what it takes to earn a
living. Mr. Otradovec saw that while we were involved in worth-
while projects with schools, there was a gap we could fill. We
weren’t really doing anything about our country’s high dropout
rate. We were not working to help those children from broken
homes or from those families that just did not have enough money
to make ends meet, even for the basics—kids whom educators and
social workers would call “at risk.”

This led to our efforts in the BOSS program, which is Business as
On-Site Schools, a cooperative effort with Southern Bell and the
Alachua County School Board. In this program, youngsters who are
likely dropouts come to work at one of our Southern Bell facilities
for 20 hours a week under the direction of a mentor. They are paid,
and they take on responsibilities. We move them through a
number of jobs so they learn what work is like. In the process, they
learn why math, English, spelling, and science are not only more
relevant than they might have seemed in the classroom, but they
are absolutely essential for anyone who wants to make a good
living today.

I cannot stress enough what a cooperative effort this has been. It
has been labor, management, and the public sector, the schools,
working hand-in-hand. Not one of us could have done it alone, but
together we are making a real difference to the kids in Gainesville.

This is how it really came about. After Mr. Otradovec pointed
out the education gap in the community, the Local 3105 president
at the time allowed him to ask the members and the company if
they would be interested in a program to help young people who
appeared likely to drop out. The members of CWA 3105 gave their
enthusiastic support.

Why? As parents, our members know how hard it is to find good
jobs, even if you have had some breaks in life. It is just hard to
imagine what it would be like if you had all those other obstacles
in the way. As employees, we have seen firsthand how our work
has changed. Years ago, pliers and screwdrivers could take care of
a lot of the work that we do for the telephone company, but that is
not the case any more. Now, we have to work with computers all
the time. We repair computers; we diagnose computer problems;
and, with fiber optic cable, we are on the leading edge of today’s
technology. So we could see something of what these kids were up
against. Since we have always been a community-minded union, we
wanted to help.

When Mr. Otradovec approached Southern Bell’s community re-
lations team, he found that the company was also looking for ways
to help them. Then when our local and company people got in
touch with the school board, we discovered that the board was de-
veloping a program along the line we had in mind. Young people
would go to school in the morning, then go to the workplace in the
afternoon and work with mentors who would teach students about
their jobs. CWA and Southern Bell were definitely interested.
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Once the details were put togetfr, the school board identified
students who might be candidates for the program. The students
and their parents were interviewed. The parents were very sup-
portive. In fact, many of them pleaded that their kids be taken into
this program so they could really have a chance.

We asked for employees to volunteer to serve as mentors, and
they went through a process of interviewing, too. We got empioyees
who were excited about the idea of lending a hand to a young
person.

We have really been pleased with the results. Once the students
became familiar with the work and learned the skills they needed,
there was no holding them back. They wanted to do more. These
kids shows us that with guidance and encouragement, they are
more than a match for the work we asked them to do. This has
been good, not oniy for the young people but for the mentors, too.
They have become close to the students, more like friends than
anything as formal-sounding as a mentor in some program. As the
mentors became friends to these youngsters, they gave them advice
on everything from how they should dress on the job, how to com-
municate with the men and women working around them. Best of
all, our mentors give these young people someone who will listen to
their personal and family problems. All this does something for
youngsters that just cannot be done in the classroom.

Just as Southern Bell and CWA share the work and enthusiasm
for this program, we also shared the cost. Southern Bell funded the
first year. The second year, the CWA Joseph A. Beirne Foundation
made a grant which was matched, dollar for dollar, by the State of
Florida. The program has spread in the Gainesville community
with many other businesses taking part in it.

I would like to thank CWA President Morty Bahr for his enthu-
siastic support for this program, and I would also like to thank
Southern Bell and the Alachua County School Board and this com-
mittee. We think this is an excellent program, one that could be
used in many communities. The CWA has learned from it, so has
Southern BeI}i, and so has our school system. We have helped some
kids learn the skills they need to find real employment opportuni-
ties, and I think that is the bottom line of why we developed the
program. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Bob Ryan follows:]

STATEMENT OF BoB RYAN, PRESIDENT, COMMUNICATIONS WORKERS OF AMERICA,
Locav 8105, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee.

Local 3105 of the Communications Workers of America appreciates your efforts to
improve employment opportunities for the people of this country. We also thank
you for this chance to tell you what we ang others are doing to improve employ-
ment opportunities for young people in the Gainesville area.

CWA Local 3105 has worked with our schools for some time, but mostly on
projects that didn’t focus on academics, for example, building playgrounds at
schools. Over the past few years, though, thanks to our local education chair, Paul
Otradovec, we have become involved in the real meat of education; we have helped
young people learn what it takes to earn a living.

Mr. Otradovec saw that while we were involved in worthwhile projects with the
schools, there was a gap we could fill. We weren't doing anything about our coun-
try's high drop-out rate. We weren't working to help children from broken homes or
those whose families just didn’t have enough money to inake ends meet, even for
the basics, kids who educators and social workers would call “at risk.”




[€)

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

25

This led to our efforts in the BOSS program-—Business as On-Site Schools, a coop-
erative effort with Southern Bzll and the Alachua County School Board. In this pro-
gram, youngsters who are likely drop-outs come to work at one of our Southern Bell
facilities for 20 hours a week under the direction of a “mentor.” They are paid.
They take on responsibility.

We move them through a number of jobs so they can learn what the work is like.
In the process they learn why Math, English, Spelling, and Science are not only a
lot more relevant than they might have seemed in the classroom, but that they are
absolutely essential for anyone who wants to make a good living today.

1 cannot stress enough what a cooperative effort this has been. It has been labor,
management and the public sector-—the schools—working hand-in-hand. Not one of
us could have done it alone; together, we're making a real difference to kids in
Gainesville.

Here is how it came about.

After Mr. Otradovec pointed out the education gap in the community, the Local
3105 President at the time allowed him to ask the members and the company if
they would be interested in a program to help young people who appeared likely to
drop out. The members of CWA 8105 gave their enthusiastic support.

As parents, our members know how hard it is to find good jobs even if you have
had some breaks in life. It is hard to imagine what it would be like if you had all
these other obstacles in the way.

As employees, we have seen firsthand how work has changed. Years ago, pliers
and screwdrivers could take care of a lot of the work we did for the telephone com-
pany. That’s not the case anymore. Now, we have to work with computers all the
time; we repair computers; we diagnose computer problems; with fiber optic cable,
we work with today’s leading-edge technology.

So we could see something of what these kids are up against. And since we have
always been a community-minded union, we wanted to help.

When Mr. Otradovec approached Southern Bell’s community relations team, he
found out that the company was also looking for ways to help them.

Then, when our local and company people got in touch with the school board, we
discovered that the board was developing a program along the line we had in mind.
Young people would go to school in the morning then go to the workplace in the
afternoon and work with mentors who would teach the students about their jobs.

The CWA and Southern Bell were definitely interested.

Once the details were put together, the school board identified gtudents who
might be candidates for the program. The students and their parenis were inter-
viewed. The parents were very supportive. In fact, many of them pleaded that their
kids be taken into the program so they would have a real chance.

We asked for employees to volunteer to serve as mentors. They, too, were inter-
viewed. We got employees who were excited about the idea of lending a hand to a
young person.

We have really been pleased with the results. Once the students became familiar
with the work, and learned the skills they needed, there was no holding them back.
They wanted to do more; they were always asking the mentor for more work. These
kids showed us that with guidance and encouragement, they were more than a
match for the work we asked them to do.

This has been good not only for the young people, but for the mentors, too. They
have become close to the students, more like friends than anything as formal-sound-
ing as a “mentor” in some program.

As the mentors became friends to these youngsters, they gave them advice on ev-
erything from how they should dress on the job, to how to communicate with the
men and women working around them. Best of all, our mentors gave these young
people someone who would listen to their personal and family problems.

All this does something for youngsters that just can’t be done in a classroom.

Just as Southern Bell and the CWA shared the work and enthusiasm for this pro-
gram, we shared the cost. Southern Bell funded the first year; the CWA Joseph A.
Beirne Foundation made a grant for the second year that was matched dollar for
dollar by a grant from the State of Florida.

The program has spread in the Gainesville community. Many other businesses
take part in it.

1 would like to thank CWA President Morty Bahr for his enthusiastic support of
this program; and I would also like to thank Southern Bell, the Alachua gounty
School Board and this committee.

We think this is an excellent program, one that could be used in many communi-
ties. The CWA has learned from it, so has Southern Bell and so has our school
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system. We have helped some kids learn the skills they need to find real employ-
ment opportunities. I will answer any questions you might have.
Thank you.

Chairman PErxkiNs. Thank you very much for your insightful
comments, Mr. Ryan. Now, we would like to turn to Judy Boles,
who is the regional manager of corporate and external affairs,
Southern Bell, in Gainesville, Florida.

Ms. Borgs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the com-
mittee. I also join CWA Local 3105 and president Bob Ryan in
thanking you for the opportunity to tell you about this cooperative
gf;fort for the CWA, Southern Bell, and the schools of Alachua

unty.

Southern Bell could not ask for better partners. We are united in
what we aim to do, and we are getting it done. As you recall from
Mr. Ryan’s testimony, our program aims to reduce the dropout rate
and teach young people the skills they need to make a living. We
put potential dropouts to work at one of our Southern Bell facili-
ties or other businesses for 20 hours a week. As he said, a mentor
works with them. The students work in a series of jobs and not
only learn the skills it takes to do the jobs, but they get a good idea
of why schoolwork really matters.

The street talk might be that schoolwork does not count for
much in the real world, but the youngsters in our program find out
that they need what they are supposed to learn in the classroom to
put bread on the table: math, English, science, and the rest. While
we have them on the job, school remains a focus. They have to
attend classes, and they have to keep their grades up to stay in our
program.

To give you a better idea of the kind of youngsters we work with
and really tell you what the program can accomplish, I would just
like to tell you about one young woman that I am familiar with.
She came to us as a high school sophomore. She was shy, she
lacked self-confidence in almost everything. She did not know
much about dealing with people and the things we take for grant-
ed, like general conversation at work and routine business deal-
ings.

Her first day on the job, her mentor saw that she got instruc-
tions on how to answer the telephone. To you and me, that might
sound simple enough, but this young woman was so overwhelmed
and nervous that she actually became sick. Her mentor took her
for a walk and found out that she had never had a phone in her
home. In this day and time, that might be hard for you and me to
imagine. She just did not know the telephone basics, especially the
basicls for an office where you have to direct calls to a number of
people.

So we worked with her on how to talk to the people on the phone
and how to find out who the caller needed to talk to and taught
her how to transfer the call properly. We talked with her about
how to dress and how she might want to wear her hair and
makeup. In all of this, in her jobs around the office and in her con-
versations with the men and women working with her, she began
to develop social skills that we expect of anyone who works. She
also learned the importance of schoolwork. Before she got into the
program, she went to school only off and on. Once she was in the
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program, she went regularly. She was on time at school, and she
was on time at work.

Today, she is much more outgoing and confident than when she
came to us. She is not timid about asking questions or for instruc-
tions, and she is not afraid to ask what to do next. She gets the jcb
done, too. She does ask for more waork. She handles directions, and
she takes constructive criticism well. She has learned to get her
own views across to others. We are very pleased with her progress,
as you can tell. Remember, she was a potential dropout. She has
not dropped out. She is in school. Her chances of getting a decent
job have skyrocketed since she got into the program, and she is
more positive about herself and her future. In fact, she is going to
graduate 6 months ahead of her class.

This is what we are trying to do for all the kids. One other im-
portant bit of assistance we give them, other than the testing—
they do not get tested with us—they actually go through most of
the steps of applying for a job. That gives them some experience in
what they will face when they might be looking for a job. After
they have been through the program, they can apply with us, just
like they can anyone else. We do not automatically hire them.

In the case of CWA Local 3105 and Southern Bell, we began this
pilot program with two students a year to be paid with money we
provided in grants to the school board. Our employees are enthusi-
astic about it, and we have some outstanding mentors who will tell
you that the kids have really been an inspiration to them and that
the experience has been very rewarding.

For its part, the school system has put together the Vocationally
Integrated Program, which became our Business as On-Site Schools.
program. The school board also helped train our mentors to rein-
force the value of academic study along with on-the-job training
and assigned special school coordinators for each student.

We have been impressed with the students that we have worked
with. They really do want to learn the skills the job takes, and
they really do learn fast. Somehow, this program seems to motivate
them, it excites them, and it makes them effective learners.

We could not do the same things by taking our mentors into the
schools. As a practical matter, we could not afford to do that. If we
could afford it, our experience tells us that it would not be a really
effective way. The workplace gets through to kids in ways the
classroom alone cannot do. When they see the numbers that they
have to deal with on the job, the problems that come up day to day,
how important it is to think clearly and communicate clearly,
when they see these things, then school begins to look different. It
begins to make a genuine difference in their lives. We have also
had other businesses take on student workers in the same way. It
is working out as well for them as it is for us,

I again want to thank Bob Ryan and CWA for their support of
our program and these youngsters. As you know, the CWA is a nec-
essary part of this successful formula, so is the Alachua County
School Board, and so are the kids who are willing to take the initi-
ative. I thank them so much for giving us the chance to work with
them. I thank them for all the hard work they are doing, and I
hope a lot more youngsters across America get this same kind of
opportunity to make a real difference in their lives. Thank you for
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what you are doing, and thank you for letting us tell you a little
bit about our Business as On-Site Schools. We appreciate it.

[Additional material supplied by Ms. Boles is on file with the
subcommittee.]

[The prepared statement of Judy Boles follows:]

STATEMENT OF JUDY BOLES, REGIONAL MANAGER, CORPORATE AND EXTERNAL AFFAIRS,
SOUTHERN BELL, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Judy Boles. I am re-
gional manager for corporate and external affairs for Southern Bell in Gainesville,
Florida. Southern Bell is part of BellScuth Telecommunications with headquarters
in Atlanta, Georgia, and Birmingham, Alabama. BellSouth Telecommunications pro-
vides unified direction and support for the local telecommunications operations of
BellSouth in the southeastern United States.

BellSouth Telecommunications does business as Southern Bell in North Carolina,
South Carolina, Georgia, and Florida and as South Central Bell in Kentucky, Ten-
nessee, Alabama, Mississippi, and Louisiana. These companies serve more than 18
million local telephone lines and provide local exchange and intralLATA long dis-
tancle(zi service over one of the most modern telecommunications networks in the
world.

I join with CWA Local 3105 President Bob Ryan in thanking you for the opportu-
nity to tell you about this cooperative effort of the CWA, Southern Bell and the
schools of Alachua County. It took all of us to make this program work for the bene-
fit of youngsters in our area, and as Bob told you this morning, we have worked
together. We could not have asked for better partners. We are united in what we
aim to do and we are getting it done.

As you recall from Bob's testimony, our program aims to reduce the drop-out rate
and teach young people the sgkills they need to make a living. We put potential drop-
outs to work at one of our Southern Bell facilities or other businesses for 20 hours a
week. A mentor works with them. The students work in a series of jobs and not oan
learn the skills it takes to do these jobs, but they get a good idea of why school wor
really matters.

The street talk might be that school work doesn’t count for much in the “real
world.” But youngsters in our program find out that in the real world, they need
what they are supposed to learn in the classroom in order to put bread on the
table—Math, English, Science and the rest. While we have them on the job, school
remains a focus. They have to attend classes and keep their grades up to stay in the
program.

To give you a better idea of the kinds of youngsters we work with and what the
px:o%ram can accomplish, let me tell you about one young woman I am familiar
with.

When she came to us as a high school sophomore, she was shy, lacked self-confi-
dence in almost everything and didn’t know much about dealing with people in the
things we take for granted, general conversation at work, for instance, and routine
business dealings. The first day on the job her mentor saw that she got instructions
on how to answer the telephone. To you and me, that might sound simple enough.
B_u}t{ this young woman was so overwhelmed and nervous that she actually became
sick.

Her mentor took her for a walk and found that she had never had a phone in her
home. In this day and time that is hard for me to imagine. But she simply did not
know the telephone basics, especially the basics for an office where you have to
direct calls to a number of people and occasionally have to put someone on hold
when another call comes in. All these things that are a routine part of daily life in
every office were {:151: beyond her at that time.

We worked with her on how to talk with people on the phone, how to find out
who the caller needed to taik to, and taught her how to transfer the call properly.
We talked with her about how to dress, how she might want to wear her hair and
make-up. In all this, in her jobs around the office, in her conversations with the
men and women working around her, she began to develop the basic social skills we
expect of anyone who works.

he learned the importance of her school work. Before she got in the program,
she went to school only off and on. Once she was in the program, she went regular-
ly. She was on time there; she was on time at work.

Today, she is much more outgoing and confident than when she came to us. She is
not timid about asking for instructions or asking what she should do next. And she
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is aggressive about asking for more work. She handles directions and constructive
criticism well, and she has learned to get her own views across, to talk effectively
with others in the office.

We are very pleased with her progress. Remember, she was a potential drop-out.
She has not dropped out. She is in school. Her chances of getting a decent job have
absolutely skyrocketed since she got in the program. She is more positive about her-
self and her future.

That is what we are trying to do for all these kids.

One other important bit of assistance we give them is that, other than the testing,
they actually go through most of the steps of applying for a job with us. This gives
them some experience in what they will face when they might be looking for a job.

In the case of CWA Local 3105 and Southern Bell, we began a pilot program with
two students a year to be paid with money we provided in grants to the school
board. Our employees were enthusiastic about it; we have some outstanding mentors
who will tell you the kids have been an inspiration to them, and that the experience
has been a rewarding one.

For its part, the school system put together the Vocationally Integrated Program,
which became our Business as On-Site Schools Program. The school board also
trained our mentors to reinforce the value of academic study along with on-the-job
training, and assigned special school coordinators for each student.

We have been impressed with the students we worked with. They really want to
learn the skills the job takes; they learn fast. Somehow, this program motivates
them, it excites, it makes them effective learners.

We do not believe we could do the same thing by taking our mentors into schools.
As a practical matter, we could not afford to do that. But if we could afford it, our
experience tells us it wouldn't be effective that way. The workplace gets through to
kids in ways the classroom alone cannot; when they see the numbers they have to
deal with on the job, the problems that come up day-to-day, how important it is to
be able to think and communicate clearly—when they see these things, then school
work begins to look like work that makes a genuine difference in how you're going
to be able to live your life.

Gither businesses have begun taking on student-workers in this way. It is working
ouc as well for them as it is for us.

I again want to thank Bob Ryan and the CWA for their support of this program
and these youngsters. The CWA is a necessary part of this successful formula. So is
the Alachua County School Board. And so are the kids who are willing to take the
initiative.

I thank them so much for giving us this chance to work with them; I thank them
for all the hard work they're doing. And I hope a lot more youngsters across Amer-
ica get this same kind of opportunity to make a real difference in their lives.

Thank you for what you are doing. Thank you for letting us tell you a little of the
story of Business as On-Site Schools. I will now answer any questions you might

have.

Chairman Perkins. Thank you very much for your testimony
and your words of education to all of us today, Ms. Boles.

At this time, I would like to turn to our member from Massachu-
setts, a distinguished gentleman who has been involved in educa-
tion a good deal of his life and my good friend, Mr. John Olver.
John, do you have any questions for the panel today?

Mr. OLvER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have just a couple of
things to raise here. Who exactly is paying for the programs in the
two cases? It is a combination of moneys coming in? In the case of
the UAW program at GM, that one has not actually gotten up and
running, but it sounds as if it is going to be. What will it be? $60
per week, per person, for 60 people: Exactly who is paying for the
program?

Mr. BuTLEr. Basically, the plant budget is handling that. We are
looking at in-kind expenses and salaries for the youngsters. As Mr.
Morrish mentioned, at $6.25 an hour, it would be about $700,000
over 4 years. Ideally, we would like to offset that cost against possi-
ble grants and community kinds of opportunities that are available
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out there. I will say, although that sounds expensive, it is better

than ignorance, and we tried that for 20 years.

Fer;’ OLver. What is your dropout rate in the Beecher schooi in
int!

Mr. BuTLer. I do not have that information available.

Mr. OLvERr. Is it perceived to be high?

Mr. BUTLER. Yes.

Mr. OLvERr. This is one of the public high schools in the city?

Mr. MorrisH. Beecher is a public high school in the city, but it is
a relatively small district. It is located just outside the city limits of
Flint proper. It is a relatively small school district. I am not really
sure of the population, but it is more or less of a socially depressed
area with a high dropout rate. There is a high poverty rate in the
area. That was some of the reasoning that we selected that school.
It was based on the fact that a number of the students that we
were really looking at were students that probably would never
have an opportunity to have a shot at a reasonable paying job and
possibly never have an opportunity to go to college.

Mr. OLVER. My reason for asking that is, what number of kids
have already been lost before you get to the juniors that you are
starting with? As important as this program may be, what can we
do, if you have any sense of it, to even get down earlier in business
partnerships in a school system like this?

Mr. MorrisH. There are a number of programs that are function-
ing in our local area that are joint programs of the UAW and Gen-
eral Motors, through the UAW-GM Human Resource Center. One
is called Project Aware. It is a speaker’s group of employees from
throughout General Motors, in different facets of the organization,
who go around to schools and talk to different groups of students in
varying stages of their education. So they start to prepare them in
the sixth, seventh, and eighth grade. They start talking to different
groups about some of the opportunities that are still in existence
within General Motors and some of the things that they need to
start focusing on in the sixth, seventh and ninth grade to get there.

Mr. OLveR. But there is no guarantee of a job in this program,
not planned at least. In this program, starting the first class will be
this fall; is that right?

Mr. ButLer. Yes. There are no guarantees, but then who does
have a guarantee.

Mr. OLvER. That is true. There are lots of people who are already
in jobs that do not have any guarantees either.

What about the CWA group with Southern Bell? Your program
has been operating for how long?

Ms. Bores. Since January 1990. That is when we started our pro-
gram.

Mr;) OLVER. So you have had a year and a half or so of program-
ming?

Ms. Bores. Right.

Mr. OLvER. So you have a history with this. Along the lines of
the question of dropout rates, have you been able to assess whether
this is really getting at the dropouts? The one example that you
give certainly is very promising?

Ms. Bowes. That is really just one example. I could tell you about
15 probably. We have had 15 people involved in the BOSS program
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since January 1990. Not all of them were just with Southern Bell
because of some grant funding. As he said, Southern Bell took the
bill for the first year in a grant form. CWA picked up funding, and
we were able to get matching State grants. That allowed us to
expand to some other businesses, other than just Southern Bell. We
started the program with just two students, but we have had 18
students involved in the BOSS program since January 1990. Quite
frankly, we have only had one person drop from our program, but
she is still in school. One of the things is, she got married and was
not able to work the hours and things like that. She is still in
school. We have not lost any out of school right now.

We had parents who begged us. When we interviewed the par-
ents of our first two students for the pilot program to find out—
This is an alternative type school where they do not normally fit
into the regular school. It’s a pregnant teens school, and it’s for po-
tential at-risk, when they do not fit into the normal school system.
Parents quite frankly said, “If you don’t help us, we don’t know
what else to do. We are at the end of our rope, trying to keep our
kids interested in school.”” We were able to do that.

Mr. OLvEr. Is there anything specifically tailored about the
actual school program for those who are in this work transition
program? Are they in the regular educational program in the
school while dving the extra time with you?

Ms. Bores. Yes, it is. They have a self-paced study. They do get
the basics of math, English, the sciences, and things, but also we
can work with the teacher to tailor make an English or writing as-
signment for the work assignment. So they could actually be doing
some research for work and have that count as a school paper. So
we do work in conjunction with the teacher.

Mr. OLvER. Is there tailoring also in the UAW program of the
educational piece to meet the work piece?

Mr. BuTLER. Absolutely. In fact, that is probably the single thing
that employers and businesses can be encouraged to get involved
with the school system. In the debate, the spirited conversations,
that we had in developing our partnership, one of the things that
concerned us as a business community is what the focus of the edu-
cational process was. I do not know that this answer has been
clearly articulated in the educational community. Who is the cus-
tomer: the student, business, the employer who is looking for stu-
dents with employability skills?

We believe it is in our view. We think that the end of whatever
the educational process is, we ought to be producing a young man
or woman who can come into the workplace and begin to contrib-
ute.

Mr. OLvER. That presumes that what you would do, since you are
not guaranteeing the job, that what would be the tailoring of the
educational pattern for use by GM would be very close to, if not
typical of, what would be needed in a lot of other workplaces.

Mr. BuTLER. Again, there is a give-and-take to that. Certainly it
is not a process where we would want to say, “Give us a student
that only General Motors can use, or let us dictate to you what the
educational process is.” We are not talking about students who are
employees in the partnership that we developed here. We are talk-
ing wLout our children. Once you take the position that these are
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our children we are talking about, the decibel level gets lowered
considerably as to what the partners are willing to listen to, in
terms of input to develop curriculum and workplace activities for
these young men and women.

Mr. OLvER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. RyanN. Mr. Olver, I would like to make a comment. This al-
ternative school we have in Alachua County is really our largest
high school, although it is not recognized as such. There are some
positive things that have spilled over from our students that have
been involved in the program.

One student went back and reorganized the school stores. For the
first time, it made a profit in running the store. Another student
put together a yearbook for the school, the first time it had ever
been done. Also, one of the students was involved in planning a
prom for the school as well. So it has not only been focused on ob-
taining skills for jobs. It has also done a lot for their social activi-
ties. We are talking about low-income students whose lives may be
in projects or hanging around the corners. This is another positive
step that we feel is not focused so much on education; it is really
developing their personalities and taking charge in their environ-
ment around them.

The funding portion of it has been totally private, between
Southern Bell and CWA. With these moneys and the grant from
the State of Florida, we are funding the entire program in Alachua
County right now with just these grants. We hope to be able to get
some more grants from Bell South Communications and also
through CWA and, if possible, through the Beirne Memorial Foun-
dation, which in the past only focused on college education for the
members. This is the first time we have taken it, I believe, a step
further. They are very thrilled and we are very thrilled that we
can use this money for other students, not necessarily members of
the CWA family.

Mr. OLVER. How many total students have come through in that
year and a half in your program?

Ms. Bores. We have had about eight that have come through in
our program. Out of those eight, only one has not completed the
program but is still in school.

Mr. Ryan. There are 15 total.

Ms. BoLgs. There are 15 total. That means we have put them in
other businesses.

Mr. Ryan. If we had more money, we would be able to have more
students. With limited funding, just starting, this has been our lim-
itation. We have a dropout rate in Alachua County of somewhere
in the neighborhood of 39 percent.

Mr. OLVER. Really?

Mr. Ryan. We have a lot of rural poverty, and this has a great
effect on the schools.

Mr. OLvER. This is Gainesville. This is the capital of Florida?

Ms. BoLgs. No, sir. Tallahassee is the capital.

Mr. RvaN. We are the home of the University of Florida Gators.

Chairman PerkiINs. That’s the capital to you, isn't it?

Mr. OLVER. Sorry. It's terrible. Thank you.

Chairman PERKINS. Well, you were a chemistry professor
anyway.
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Mr. Morrisd. Mr. Chairman, could I have one more comment
about the curriculum itself. As it relates to our program, the Man-
ufacturing and Technology Partnership, the academic curriculum
that the students will be studying at the school is linked to the vo-
cational training that they would get at the skills center. At the
same time, when they come into our plant in the afternoon, we will
be giving them practical application of the things that they actual-
ly learned at the same time in the school and in the vocaticnal
center.

So our learning is in three phases: the academic piece, the veca-
tional piece, and then how it actually relates to the business orga-
nization when they get into the plant. We will have our in-plant
training programs that are tied directly to the vocational training
they are receiving in the schools, and it will show practical applice-
tion in the industry of what they are actually learning in school on
a continuing basis.

Chairman PerxkinNs. Thank you very much for your questions,
Mr. Olver. I have a few questions I would like to ask to both
groups. How did you handle the question of increased insurance
and workers’ compensation costs that come with bringing minors
onto the job site?

Ms. Borgs. That is why the school board was such an integral
part of this. We were able to give them the grants, which they
were able to take and assume the liability insurance. They actually
paid the students the stipend. So the paycheck actually comes from
the Alachua County School Board.

Chairman PerkiNs. What kind of stipend, out of curiosity, do you
pay them?

Ms. Borgs. 1 think it is around $3.25 an hour. There is a built-in
raise for them as they progress through the program.

Chairman PERkINs. So there is an increased pay scale as they
continue to go through the program, an incentive sort of thing?

Ms. Borgs. Right.

Chairman PerkiNs. How do you handle transportation?

Ms. Borgs. We did not provide transportation for them. There is
a really good public transportation system. The teachers were able
to work that out. Either they were able to get rides with their par-
ents, or they had some public transportation. They did not even use
the school bus. It was public transportation or private transporta-
tion.

Chairman Perkins. What sort of formula did you use to avoid
the workmen'’s compensation insurance problems?

Mr. ButLeERr. Because General Motors is a self-insured company,
that really did not present the same problems it might to smaller
companies or other kinds of companies. We just absorbed that with
taking the student on. Incidentally, across General Motors and in
my own plant, we do use coop students, so that was not a big leap
for us. It did not present any obstacle that we otherwise would
have had.

I would not, as far as the transportation issue, say that the
schools are absolutely responsible for transporting students to the
worksite during the school year. Because we will be employing
these youngsters 24 hours a week during the summer months, they
will also do that as part of their partnership commitment.
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Chairman Perxins. When we talk about the fact that there are
no jobs guaranteed at the completion of this program, it is well
known that there have been tremendous cutbacks in the automo-
bile industry, as far as the number of workers that are being em-
ployed. What sort of incentives or expectations are given to the stu-
dents that they are going to have a job or a reasonable chance at a
job at the completion of this program versus a dislocated worker
who would go through this same in-house type program?

Mr. BUuTLER. Again to speak from a General Motors perspective,
when we talk about dislocated workers or laid-off workers, we have
provisions in the national agreement that apply. Inasmuch as we
are talking about skilled trades, there is a greater flexibility there,
in terms of bringing on apprentices, even with folks that are laid
off. Interestingly enough, when you have tradesmen laid off in var-
ious parts of the country, because they have a skill and because the
national agreement allows them to turn down opportunities for
transfer to other cities and other parts of the country, more often
than not many tradesmen elect not to take those transfers. The
needs are still with us.

The educational system and what we have attempted to do in
Flint, Michigan, is to assure that there is a pool of qualified candi-
dates that we can draw on, irrespective of what the economic cli-
mate may be. There will always be job opportunities at General
Motors; we believe that. We see that with our white collar force.
That has not stopped our recruitment efforts to bring on technical-
ly-oriented and qualified individuals, and there is no reason to see
that it would not continue in the hourly workforce, particularly
when we are talking about skilled trades.

Chairman Perkins. I think that is a very good answer. What do
you all have to comment on that?

Mr. RyaN. As technology improves, we also have seen losses of
jobs in the telecommunications business as well. I think the most
important underlying idea for these students, particularly when
they first started at Southern Bell, they may not necessarily be
guaranteed the job with Southern Bell. However, we have plenty of
opportunities in the community for employment. However, they re-
quire skills. We have a lot of secretarial opportunities. We have the
University of Florida, the medical schools, the education school and
whatnot. These students, if they have the skills, will be able to get
a job. It will not be a job like working for a lawn company or work-
ing in a grocery store, if they really want to do something.

We are also lucky that we have a community college that offers
a vocational program. If the students graduate and they already
have these basic skills, they could integrate into the vocational
schools. If they do have an interest in some sort of business, such
as if they want to get into medical or if they want to get into edu-
cation or any other field that we may have in Gainesville, they
have a solid background now that they can go through the voca-
tional school and they will be ready to be employed. The employers
in the community look upon our community college system to be
providers of candidates for good employment.

Chairman PEerkins. It sounds like you have a dropout prevention
program that is very effective that you are utilizing.
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Mr. RyaN. They do have DCT programs in Alachua County, but
that is aimed at students that are A students. They are not going
to drop out; there is no risk. What we are looking at is that seg-
ment that is not in that range. They still go to school, just like a
DCT student, but they have obstacles that they face. What we are
trying to do is, we are trying to make it so that the obstacles are
not like a brick wall. They will have the same opportunity as their
fellow students. Although they may be in this alternative schocl,
they still have the same opportunity to learn skills for permanent
employment, not just a semi-skilled job as a laborer.

Ms. BoLes. We felt very strongly that these students would not
be able to get a goud paying job because of their low self-esteem,
because of their lack of self confidence, and their lack of education.
We addressed these problems. We have not guaranteed them a job
either, but we have had some success in getting permanent jobs.
We have had two students that have been guaranteed permanent
jobs for other businesses, and we have also had one now that is
going on to junior college when she graduates. She has an academ-
ic scholarship, and she started out with something like a one point
something grade average in the 10th grade. She can now qualify
for an academic scholarship at the junior college. Without this pro-
gram to help them build their self confidence and bceing able to
know that if they get a good education and they continue to work,
they do have a chance at a better paying job, then we do not feel
that they would have stayed in school and graduated and go on
and be a productive member of society.

Chairman PEerkINs. You have been running the program since
1990. What sort of problems have you experienced with the pro-
gram during that time?

Mr. Ryan. I will be quite honest. Because it is a labor and man-
agement situation, we have had some individuals who really did
not like the idea of a student coming in, under their perception
that they might take their job away. Other than that, on the labor
side, that has been the only problem.

Chairman PerxiNs. There has been some tension between the
students and employees?

Mr. Ryan. They did not really take it out on the students them-
selves. They supported the program in all of its worthiness. They
felt that maybe the company could take advantage of the downsiz-
ing that telecommunications has been going through and eliminate
a full-time worker and replace them with these part-time students.
That has not been the case. We are still working on those situa-
tions. It is going to take some cooperation between our internation-
al CWA and management to overcome these minor ruffles. By and
large, 95 percent of our members have accepted these students and
are working with them day-to-day. So that has been really the only
problem I have had on my side. Judy can address some situations.

Ms. Bores. Actually, that is the only problem we have had in the
whole program, and it has been so minor that we do not really con-
sider it a problem. It was just a kind of challenge that Bob and I
had to work on and address. Like he said, there have been just a
few isolated employees in our particular area that may not want to
change. But we have not had any problems with the mentors and
the student relationships at all. We have been quite pleased. I

Eqv.
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might add that most of our mentors are our non-management em-
ployees, and we alsc have a management mentor that works with
the team and helps evaluate the students.

These students were treated just like employees. If they got into
problems with their attendance, they were disciplined just like an
employee would be. If they were not progressing on the job, they
were treated just like an employee would be. So we were able to
change some attendance and productivity habits that they might
ﬁa;e picked up somewhere else and changed those into productive

abits.

Mr. Rvan. I might say, we are not able to represent them yet,
but we are still working on that.

Chairman Perkins. Since we are talking about collective bar-
gaining issues, was the loss of production time by workers instruct-
ing students a difficult issue for GM and the UAW to resolve?

Mr. BrrLER. It will be significant for us once the program is up
and run .ag. In 1991, for our remedial training for 606 employees
ot of approximately 3,600 hourly employees, our plant spent $1.2
-..i1lion. Clearly, it is our intent to be more proactive with how we
educate these folks who are, hopefully, coming into the plant and
we will offset the costs down the road. This is not a short-term pro-
gram. We are in it for the long haul.

One of the iss ~s for employers is, when you are talking about a
mentorship pro. ‘m, you are taking the best. It is not just 2 ques-
tion of the lost :...ars of the tradesperson that we would hr .e work-
ing on other assignments in the plant. We are also taking our best
emple ves. We have been very gratified and edified with the num-
bers . aentors that are stepping forward, folks who are parents
basically saying, “For my children and my grandchildren, I want to
lea»~ something behind.” It has been a remarkable experience, the
kiu. . of folks that have asked to be involved in the program.

Mr. MorrisH. The training aspect of that, that is not uncommon
in the General Motors and UAW organizations, to use hourly rated
skilled tradespeople to be instructors. That is pretty commonplace.
We have approximately 15 to 20 instructors in our facility that we
use on an as-needed basis to train other individuals. That is some-
thing that we do on a normal day-to-day operation.

Mr. Ryan. We have not had any problems with lost production
because generally if a mentored student is outside, he works side
by side with the outside technician. On the inside, once the student
has received the skills to operate the job, then the mentor backs
away and the student does their assigned function. The mentor is
there if there are any problems. By and large, what we are giving
the students is independence, as well as learning the skills. Nobody
is looking over their shoulder. We think that is very positive in the
program as well. It is something that we do not have to stand back
and watch them. Believe me, we have scme individuals, like the
one Judy discussed earlier, who are very independent. She could be
left in the office by herself, and we would not have any concerns
about any situation that might arise with her in the workforce.
That has been very positive.

Chairman PEerkins. I realize this is a little bit premature, consid-
ering your program has not really begun yet. Yours has been going
on awhile. What sort of plans do you all have for the future of
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these programs? Are you going to continue to expand, or are you
looking at other skilled positions that perhaps they could be
trained for? What are the present options?

Mr. Burrzr. In our particular instance, we certainly would hope
that the program would expand. We had a very keen interest ex-
pressed by General Motors facilities in Saginaw, Michigan, and
some of the Flint plants are very much looking at this as a pilot
program to see what kind of involvement and support they want to
give, both to this program and then going forward.

1 would note that the kind of skills that we are talking about
here are transferable within the whole auto supplier network. We
are hopeful that even if a youngster does not get placed through
us, we have a 4-year rope on the student from the time he is a
junior in high school until he or she gets an applied science tech-
nology degree from a community college. At any time during that
period, if the opening presents itself and they are eligible, we can
pull them into our workforce. Even if that does not come into
being, we have given them a significant start on their apprentice-
ship program, as well as a 2-year degree in applied science, and
hopefully they will be able to find employment within an automo-
bile-related sector in our community.

Mr. MorrisH. In relationship to that, our students, from the time
that they enter into the program, will start to develop a personal
portfolio that they will carry on throughout the program. At some
point of time, if they do seek employment with a provider or sup-
plier in the automobile industry or wherever it may be, they will
have some documentation that proves firsthand what some of the
skills are that they have learned throughout this program. So we
think that even if we cannot hire these students at the end of this
program, they are going to have the skills to be employed some-
v‘}rlhere. We are trying to give them all the tools necessary to do
that.

Some of the things that we have experienced out of this, as far as
going down the road and expanding, some of the support that we
receivea from our upper management and union, particularly the
plant manager, Frank Fallopele, and the chairman of the shop
committee, Jim Stevens, now have the basis to go out and talk to
other people about what education can do for industry. They have
made those kind of comments to us that they used to be talking to
educators and they say, “How can we help industry?”’ and they
never really knew how to address that. Today, they know how to
address that. They know specifically now what educators can do to
help industry.

I think that is a pretty important tool because there are more
and more people now talking about that partnership between edu-
cation and industry and the labor organizations. I think everyone
is starting to realize that these kinds of partnerships have to take
place in order to remain competitive in the world market and the
situation that is out there. So I think that some of the tools we are
building into our program, even though we are not going to guar-
antee them a job, are going to prepare them to enter into a well-
pagiing job somewhere.

r. BurLEr. We are really geared toward systemic change in the

educational system in the plant. We are not trying to necessarily
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target that to the youngster who is going on to college or even the
disadvantaged youngster. We want that forgotten middle, young-
sters who, for whatever reason, have decided that college is not for
them, or at least they have not made a commitment to a college
career, and they may want to consider a well-paying job in the pri-
vate sector with a skilled trade.

Ms. Bores. Mr. Chairman, may I add that our plans are to
expand our program. That depends on funding, and we are going to
be seeking funds, hopefully some more grants. Certainly, Southern
Bell and CWA want to be involved in that also. In order to expand
the program, we will need some further grants.

Chairman Perkins. You are going to work with at-risk students?
That is your continuing goal?

Ms. Bores. Yes. Until we address the dropout program in our
community, we will continue to expand that program and, again,
get other businesses involved. We already have some technical and
dental labs involved. The police department has a student. So we
are expanding already, but we just need funds to be able to pay
that student.

Chairman Perxins. I want to thank you all very much for taking
your time to come. I again apologize for the delay we had earlier,
but I think your comments have been very elucidating. We have
enjoyed having you, and thank you very much.

Our next panel consists of Paul Batkowski, Manager of Labor Re-
lations, Textron Lycoming, Inc., Williamsport, Pennsylvania; Mer-
rill Lambert, President, UAW Local 787, Williamsport, Pennsylva-
nia; and David Squire, Vice President of Product Design and Engi-
neering, In Focus Systems, Portland, Oregon.

We are very pleased to have you gentlemen joining us here
today. We will do this left-to-right routine one more time. So we
will start out with Mr. Batkowski, who is the manager of labor re-
lations, Textron Lycoming, Inc., Williamsport, Pennsylvania.

STATEMENTS OF PAUL BATKOWSKI, MANAGER OF LABOR RELA-
TIONS, TEXTRON LYCOMING, INC., WILLIAMSPORT, PENNSYL-
VANIA; MERRILL LAMBERT, PRESIDENT, UAW LOCAL 787, WIL-
LIAMSPORT, PENNSYLVANIA; AND DAVID C. SQUIRE, CHAIR-
MAN, ROOSEVELT RENAISSANCE 2000 ADVISORY COMMITTEE
AND VICE PRESIDENT OF ENGINEERING, IN FOCUS SYSTEMS,
INC., PORTLAND, OREGON

Mr. Barkowski. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I would
like to talk about the Pennsylvania Youth Apprenticeship Program
that we have actively operating now at Textron Lycoming, Wil-
liamsport. We are the producers of small reciprocating aircraft en-
gines utilized throughout the world.

Our program originally started with the IMC, that is the Indus-
trial Modernization Center, located in Pennsylvania. It is a
member of the Commonwealth Industrial Resource Center Net-
work. That particular organization actually got the program start-
ed through the Pennsylvania school systems. With the educators
and the IMC, they confirmed the fact that a student could perform
in a youth apprenticeship program and graduate from high school
with a 3-day in-company work schedule and & 2-day schedule in
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school. The program started by Mr. VanDine, the executive direc-
tor of the IMC, contacting upper management level people at Tex-
tron in accomplishing and getting the company to say yes to a
Youth Apprenticeship Program. We, in turn, went over an arza
with the union, we notified them immediately that we were gong
to participate in a youth apprenticeship program, hoping to solve
any relationship problems with them immediately.

Upon the company and the union agreeing to back the Youth
Apprenticeship Program, we again contacted the IMC. They came
into our establishment and explained the program to both ihe
union and the company, and we continued to be extremely coopera-
tive with them. In turn, the company picked mentors to represent
students that we knew we were going to have.

We prepared a 10-segment program for the Youth Apprentice-
ship Program at our facility at Textron. The program consisted of
the metal trades primarily. That is what we do at Textron. It is a
large machine shop, and we produce approximately 80 percent of
our components to the engine in a small assembly area where we
assemble it. We have about 700 empioyees completely, but it is a
large machine shop.

We were looking primarily for the students to become toolmak-
ers, tool designers, precision machinists, and that type of individ-
ual. There are 10 different segments that it takes in our facility to
* develop a program and a student that would fall into those capac-
ities.

The IMC addressed 12 students. In interviewing the 12 students
from the IMC in the Youth Apprenticeship Program, we chose 6 of
those students. They started the 1992-year school term in our facili-
ty, in the beginning 2 days a week. They work an 8-hour shift.
They sign in, in the morning; they sign back out in the evening.
There are no bells, there are no breaks, other than the breaks that
our people get. We feel that is very important to us. The segments
are not broken up by school bells or study periods or study halls or
anything to that effect.

We also have a direct dealing with the educators who work with
the students off-site of the school. They work in the area communi-
ty college, Penn Tech, which is a subsidiary of Penn State. They go
to school off regular site at Penn College of Technology. We work
directly with the educators that have them 3 days a week, and we
have them 2. If there are technical difficulties in any of the 10 seg-
ment areas that we have the students in, we work together with
them. If it appears to us that the individual is lacking in math, sci-
ence, or any type of technology, we contact the educator immedi-
ately and he, in turn, relates to the student the problem we are
having, and we solve that problem.

We have them in the facility 8 hours a day and work directly
with them on a regular basis, both weekly with the students and
monthly with the IMC and the Youth Apprenticeship Program.
The mentors in the State must evaluate them once a month. The
segments of the program in the engineering departments, for in-
stance, would be run by salaried individuals. On the machining
floor, where they serve as machine operators and actually have
hands-on, they work with the hourly people, the UAW Local 787
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personnel. We do not have a problem with that. It has been a very
cooperative issue.

The workers are very clearly told that they are to instruct the
young lads, the apprentices, and it does take time. It does take
them away from the actual worksite. When I say that, the actual
hands-on job is turned over to the apprentice. He, in turn, is
watched by the hourly person to make sure that he is performing
the function exactly the way it should be. There is also, that has to
go along with the job, an expression of why I am doing this, why it
has to be completed, and why it has to be done right. Remember,
we build an aircraft engine; it has to be built properly. So there is
an instructional period that actually goes along with the hands-on
type definition that we are giving the individual and, as I guess
any education is, parts of it are very boring to the individual. It
gci)esg %ake time, and it takes the actual laboring person away from

8 job.

In essence, we have the individual student there with hands on,
doing the mechanics of the job and actually forming the product
under direct instructions all the time. If he is with a salaried
person in the engineering department, for instance, he completely
follows the engineer for 8 hours a day. He follows him into meet-
ings and so forth. We do not change any of the characteristics of
our plant; none at all. They come in with the laboring people and
the hourly people, and they leave with them. We change no charac-
teristics at all.

The students are allowed to participate in all extracurricular ac-
tivities at their school. As I told you, they do not attend their
school. They go to an off-site area community college, but if there
are extracurricular activities—baseball, football, basketball, track,
the band, or whatever they are interested in—we certainly allot
them time to participate in that, leave our facility at a particular
time. We are not responsible for them, either on the way or after
they leave our facility.

The students have been extremely successful for themselves. We
have been recognized by a large number of national magazines, in-
cluding Forbes which we are in this month, The students came to
us in many different aspects. We had some that we feel were B+
students. We had some very clearly that were in the process of
quitting school; there is no question about that. Our involvement
directly with parents early on in the program proved very clearly
to us that they did not expect one of the gentlemen to even finish
the program or even finish the first semester of the program with
us. I cannot say that he has turned out to be our number one A
student, but he is an awfully nice, aggressive kid with a red pony
!:ali)l who is in the picture in Forbes. So he has done is a real fine
job.
Chairman Perkins. Mr. Batkowski, if I could just interrupt you a
minute, I have to go vote. If you will just hold your remaining com-
ments, I will try to make my trip over there as quickly as possible.
I will be right back. With that, we are temporarily in recess. Thank
you. )

[Recess.]

Chairman Pzrkins. I apologize for interrupting Mr. Batkowski. If
he can remember his train of thought before that interruption, I
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would be pleased to have him continue with his very fine state-
ment.

Mr. Batkowskr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Certainly, I can. We
were discussing the success of the program, as far as the student is
concerned.

We certainly have seen 100 percent cooperation out of the stu-
dent, who actually came to us as a poor student. I am talking a D
student with a thought of actually quitting, who worked his way to
a B+ student at this time. He is very comparable to anyone in the
area in the same structured program in the 11th grade. This guy
adapts inst as well under our atmosphere as he does if he had been
in the regular school system. They are very comparable and have
been tested to that point.

We directly relate everything to the actual metal trades, his Eng-
lish is related to something that we may all know something about,
the actual booklet that we use to be a precision machinist. They
could use that book to stress English. The math that we are utiliz-
ing are related to metrology, which is the device of measuring, the
instrumentation that you use to measure, the decimals that you
use to measure. We are talking about measuring things to 20 mil-
lionths of an inch. We utilize that type of thing to express what is
needed as far as math is concerned. The sciences, certainly we can
show the individual that there is room for improvement. He can
look to the sciences, at the reasoning why we need improvements
and that type of thing.

So the student has been successful. The company as an industrial
organization, I would feel that we have taken on some of the re-
sponsibilities and certainly the costs. I think industry throughout
the country has to absorb some of the costs. We will benefit by it if
the individual comes out as a metal trades person. If we are going
to benefit somewhat. I think we are going to have to assume some
of the costs. Right at the present time, we assume all the costs in
our locality. We also pay the kid $3,200 a year or $80 a week for
attending our facility the 2 or 3 days. The first part of the program
was 2 days a week. The second half of the semester was 3 days a
week. So we do pay them.

Attendancewise, we had one student whose normal attendance
was about 45 to 50 percent last year as a sophomore in high school.
He now attends at about 95 percent at our facility and the school
facility. It is certainly complementary to the program.

The salaried people that we have working with the students have
handled it professionally and agree with the program. The hourly
people on the floor in the workforce have handled it exceptionally
well. We have not had a problem down on the floor with the hourly
people who work with them on machines, contacting them every
day. The young lads have certainly originally walked into our place
scared to death. They are very comfortable in the facility right
now, enjoy being there, enjoy working with the people, and have
grown up in an awful hurry. They know where they want to go
right now. We had one who wanted to be a disc jockey; he now
wants to be a draftsman on a CAD-CAM system. We have changed
his mind in a hurry.

The program is extremely successful, and we would certainly
accept any moneys that we could possibly get anywhere for the
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education of the individuals because it is a need throughout the
country in industry today to compete. There is no question about it.
To build a product, we need that type of person. They are not avail-
able to us. The educational systems in Pennsylvania today, and I
suspect other States, do not promote blue collar working in the
metal trades. That is the point we are trying to get across. We have
had educators, district administrators, principals, and counselors
into our facility and convinced a lot of them in central Pennsylva-
nia that we are doing the right thing. They were amazed at the in-
dustrial environment and what it can do for people. We were suc-
cessful there. We are hoping that the program is successful coun-
trywide. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Paul Batkowski follows:]
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The Pennsylvania Youth Apprenticeship Program built its
pedagogical approach on recent research in cognitive science which
indjcates that, for many young people, situated learning that
builds from problem-solving in real situations is more effective in
stimulating and challenging young minds than classroom lectures.

PYAP’s approach to learning content was also influenced by the
growing consensus that employers have begun to demand more
flexible, broadly-skilled workers with strong skills in non-
technical areas such as problem-solving, communications, teamwork,
and abstract analysis. Program content would, therefore, stress
these "new basic skills".

As initially-~-and still--conceived, curriculum development
would be perhaps the most original and ambitious element of the
whole progranm. The goal was to create 2a new, integrated,
competency-based model curriculum for a four Year program--a
curriculum that couid be adapted and used by others around the
country. curriculum was developed by an experienced group that
included outside curriculum development specialists as well as a
team of master teachers and master workers from the Pennsylvania
metalworking and education communities. The process began‘with the
definition of competencies that employers and educators would want
to see from graduates of a four~year program. Existing applied

acadenic and metalworking curricula from the U.S. and abroad was
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raviewed for relevant activities and approaches. The resulting
curriculum encompassed the workplace setting, as well as school~
based elements~-integrating core academic studies, classroom
technical instruction, and workplace learning and experiences.
QRGAN, o) :

It was agsumed from the outset that this project would be a
statewide effort with multiple sites. In each of the regions
involved in the project, and existing local organization was
selected to coordinate the design, orientation and implementation
of the project at that site. The selection of the local project
managerment organization (LPMO) was done early in the design and

developnent phase through a competitive process emphasizing

capability, management expaerience and capability, legitimacy in the

community, experience coordinating multi-sector and multi-interest
projects, and special familiarity with education and training
issues. Criteria for selection was established by the Project
Director in conjunction with the governing Board.

The local project management organization was respongible for
assembling a "stakeholders" group consisting of representatives
from employers and employer associstes, labor unions, the education
community at the secondaxy and post-secondary levels (including
administrators and teachers), local government, community-based
organizations, parents and students. This group’s role was to
troubleshoot potential problems, and keep the project moving by
maintaining open lines of negotiation and communication among the

many playere.
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QWNERSHIP AT TER Y.OCAL LEVEL:

Obviously, for & youth apprenticeship program to succeed,
there must be enough employers in a local labor market willing to
provide training opportunities to enough young peor.e to make it
worth a school district’s time and efforts to participate. And
there must be one or more school districts willing to experiment

with new ways of organizing school and work experiences for young

people. without hard commitments from schools and employers, there
is no program--no matter how committed other organizations may be
and how well designed the program appears.
Each area was to develop a local stakeholders group of
employers, school superintendents, post-secondary administrators,
and other players that would begin to take ownership of the
project. These groups were Slow to form.

complicating this effort was a key challenge that most youth
apprenticeship efforts must tackla--the realities of political and
economic geography in the United States. This challenge continues
to confront PYAP. 1In each of the four general regions identified
by PYAP as receptive, metalworking employers are sSituated in low-
density clusters. Within each region, there are a large number of
relatively small school districts. In Philadelphia and Pittsburgh,
where the school districts are large, much of the metalworking and
manufacturing bagse have left the city for tha suburbs and beyond.
Outside the large cities, the fragmentation of school districts
make it difficult to identify district with enough employers
willing to participate. As a result, it was not Iimmediately

apparent where within any given region a metalworking youth
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spprenticeship program should be placed, which school districts
should participate, and which employers would be located at a
manageable commute for participating students.

This was the point where local project staffers began to map

the fit batwean the employer base and possible scheol sponsors.

PYAP program developers understood that any effort to respond
to employer concerns about the skill levels of entry-leve. workers
must begin with the specification of what employers dc and do not
want from their new workforce entrants. Cne of the first tasks
PYAP set for itself was the definition of competencies that
enployers would want to see in a program graduate. This is part of
what PYAP staff meant when they used the texm "employer-driven".
Employars’ needs would drive the product, i.e. the skills to be
daveloped by program participants.

since it was recognized that a program would have to address
State requirements and broader educational goals, as well as
employex needs, PYAP initiated a process of "competency definition"
that brought employers and educators together to meld their wish
lists and requirements. A first meeting, held in October 1990,
brought together approximately 20 leaders from secondary and post-
secondary schools, the academic and vocational education worlds,
and large and small metalworking shops in Pennsylvania.
CURRICULUM:

Youth apprenticeship is built upon the belief that the close
integration of school and work, of academic and vocational

learning, will motivate Yyoutg people who might otherwise have
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drifted into unproductive lives. As axplained above, the model is
based upon a theory of learning and instruction that aemphasized
learning in context, learning-by-doing, group work, problem-
solving, and coaching of novices by masters. FPYAP recognized from
the outset that if its program were to differ signiticantly from
existing cooperative education and vocational programs, curriculum
was key. PYAP proposed to generate four years of new curriculax
materials and activities for an integrated, problen-based
instructional program.

The Heinz Endowment was approached for financial support of
teacher training and curriculum development. A proposal was

written and funding was granted in Fall of 1991.

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC




MAY-@1-1992 14:@2 FROM  TLW - H.R. 82022262032 P.8g

e Lycoming

Following excerpted from: Pernevlvania Youth Aoorenticeship
< I joal 3 a— X 1991

Joba for the Future, Inc., October 19891, pgs. 21-23.

VIXI. WILLIAMSPORT: A VEW SITZ EMERGES

In late 13390, as local project managers were being hired by
PYAP in Pittsburgh, York, and Philadelphia, staff of the local IRC
in williamsport, the Industrial Modernization Center of Central
Penngylvania, began to explore whether it might become the sponsor
of a new PYAP site. A unigue opportunity presented itself in
Lycoming County. For years, the region’s vocational programs,
including metalworking, had been delivered by Pennsylvania College
of Technology, a two-year technical school located in Williamsport.
Penn Codllege had recently become a campus of Fenn State Univexsity
and was expanding to a four-year program. Penn State announced
that the campus would not longer be above to deliver high school
vocational programs. A void was created that frustrated local
employexrs.

Bok VanDine, director of the IRC, a well-respected community
leader who had previously been a Vice President of Bethlehem Stcel
in Williamsport, polled a few key firms to assess thelr interest in
exploring a relationship with PYAP. When the first meating of all
the local project managers was held in January, williamsport sent
IRC employee Sharon Hoffmann as a representative. Hoffmann, who
was hired as local project manager later that month, was well-
positioned to win the trust of schools and employers: a teacher
locally for 14 yedrs, she later went to work for a local
manufacturing firm. She knew schools, firms, and the local

comnunity and worked quickly to move the effort forward.
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Beginning in late January, Hoffmann and VanDine recruited
ernployers and approached the superintendents of local school
districts. Meetings were held with tha county commissioners, the
West Branch Manufacturing Association, employere, school leaders,
guidance counselors, and other key local groups. By late February,
a stakeholders group had been formed that included representatives
of five or six local firms, the two dominate business and industry
associations, a county commissioner, a labor official, and
representatives of X-12 and post-secondary institutions in the
area. Tha group hald its first meeting in March. By early March,
commitments of between 15 and 20 apprenticeship positions had been
nagotiated.

While other PYAP sites awaited LRDC’s curriculum work,
Wwilliamspor: moved ahead on its own. & participant in PYAP
statewide meetings, but not yet officially considered one of the
program sites nor funded by PYAP for site development costs,
wWilliameport charted its own course. The faculty of the Technology
Transfer division of FPenn College drafted a set of worksite
compatencies that it would be fair to expect participants to
davelop during the program’s first two years. This list was
supplemented hy a detailed list of metalworking tasks that had been
circulated by the director of the York County Area Vocational
Technical School at PYAP’s first competency definition team
meeting. Thase materials were presented to a subgroup of employers
who constituted the Occupational Advisory Committee for the
williamsport project. The group quickly approved tha list, which

focused on broad aronr'é such as machine operation, quality control,
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blueprint reading and drafting, computer-aided design, computer,
and the management of inventory, customers and staff, was
appropriate. While the Penn College faculty had not tried to
segquence the competencies, they created a set of compatencies that
emplc 'rs could understand and react to. And the employers quickly
agreed to the basic outline.

The following structure was established. The youth
apprenticeship pregram will be the first program xun by the
Lycoming County Area Vocational-Technical School, a newly-created
legal entity representing seven local school districts that as yet
has no physical home and no staff. The AVTS will hire teachers and
rent space for classroom and labs from Penn College. Students will
attend all their classes at the college. They will spend between
2 and 3 days a week at work -- 90 days a year with the employer and
95 days a year in classroom setting. (The ration will shift in
March of the first year from 3:2 school-to-work to 3:2 work=to-
school.)

While superintendents made it clear that the program could not
cost more than the traditional vocation program, in this case
between $3,400 and $3,800, Williamsport had found some subsidies.
The County Commisc-ioners made a grant to subsidize first year
operations, which with per pupil funding for 20 participants could
not possibly support a viable teaching team. In addition, the
Williamsport Foundation has indicated it might provide supplemental
funding, if needed.

In early May, several weeks after the other PYAP sites had

decided to postpone implementation until the 1992-93 school year,
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Williamsport held a highly publicized Kiékoff event attended by
state senators, state Department c¢f Commerce and Education
officials, the local member of Congress, and represantatives of all
key institutions. The creation of the Lycoming County Youth
Apprenticeship Program was announced: the experimental site for
the Pennsylvania Youth Apprenticeship Program was slated to be up

and running in September 1991.
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Chairman PerkinNs. Thank you very much, Mr. Batkowski, for
your good testimony today.

Mr. Merrill Lambert, who is the president of UAW Local 787,
Williamsport, Pennsylvania, I guess is also involved with this par-
ticular program. We would be very pleased to hear the comments
of Mr. Lambert.

Mr. Lamsert. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the
committee. There is not much that I can add to the program, other
than what Mr. Batkowski said. I would also like to say it is a
switch, and it is a pleasure to be on the same side of the table this
time instead of across the table from him.

When the program was presented to the union membership,
there was a lot of skepticism. A lot of people do not like to discuss
it. We had just gotten over a labor dispute in October of 1999,
where temporary replacements were used while we were out on the
picket line. Needless to say, there were some great concerns within
the membership as to what are you doing. After a lot of talk to the
members, a lot of talk within the committee, and a lot of talk with
the company, reaching understandings, it turned out that we made
a wise choice by not turning our back on the whole program. It
would have been very easy to say, “Remember what happened? We
are not interested.” I am quite sure Mr. Batkowski knows that if
the membership had not gone along with the program, there would
have been no program. I am pleased to say there were a lot of open
minds about it.

There were other problems that arose that you have to take into
consideration. You have a declining workforce because of the econ-
omy, and you have union membership going out the door, getting
laid off, and saying, “What are you doing to me? This kid is in here
working, and I am outside.” These are all problems that had to be
addressed. We had to convince the people that they are not using
the kids as replacement. They are only giving these kids an oppor-
tunity to learn something which they would not be able to learn.
They just cannot learn it in school

We had a lot of talk on apprentices become full-fledged appren-
tices. I think the idea is great. My concern with the program, when
it was first presented to us, was that I did not want to get involved
in a program that was just interested in professional apprentices. I
hope a lot of them turn out to be apprentices, but I wanted a pro-
gram where, after they were done with the 2 years and their high
school was up, they would still have training to be able to go to
some industry and have some knowledge of how it worked, not that
at the end of 2 years there still was no place for them to go.

When we discussed the selection of the students, we wanted to
make sure that the students were not just the upper crust, the 85’s
and the 90’s and 95 averages, but kids who would be able to learn
something within our industry and apply it and want to continue
school. There is an awful lot of kids out there who, when it comes
to reading, writing, and arithmetic, it is boring. I will be honest, 1
was one of them. I was lucky. When I gave up on regular school,
there was a Williamsport Technical Institute. I was sent there and
I took up auto mechanics. I learned a lot there and then went on
into this type industry, but that is not available to kids in our area
any more. In a lot of areas, it is not. possible.
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When we presented a lot of this to the membership, we reminded
the membership that the union does not just stop at the gate of the
plant; it is a whole community, it is our kids, it is our neighbor’s
kids. We have to figure out a way to educate them so that when
they get out of school, when they are finished, they have something
to present to somebody. They do not have the same thing most of
us had where you went to fill out an application and they said,
“What can you do?” Well, “We had shop once a week at school for
an hour and we made a ball bat or something.” It does not work.
This way, they will have something where they can say, “This is
what I have.”

There are still problems that will have to be solved between the
union and the company. Our membership has been extremely help-
ful in the program. Ours is a voluntary thing. If one of our mem-
bers wants to do it, they can do it. If they don’t want to assist with
one of these students, they don’t have to. I don’t know of any yet
who have refused to work with one of the students; none. I am very
pleased with that. Where it goes from here, I do not know. I hope it
expands. I hope management and labor can get together, not in
just our area but other areas, and realize, like you said, Mr. Chair-
man, we have to reeducate ourselves.

We have to put down some of the swords of the past, we have to
start thinking about what we have to do to maintain an industry
in this country. To me, this is one of the things. It was a difficult
road, but once we got past who is trying to benefit the most out of
this—is the company trying to do something where they would luok
good, or is the union going to do something where they look good—
we said, “Wait a minute, guys. That is enough of this. What is im-
portant for the community?” Once we did that, then we started
making some inroads.

I, for one, am very pleased to be part of this program, and I hope
other areas in the country also start programs like this. I hope
they put down their swords, and they put down everything and say,
“We have to focus on youth. We have to build our Nation back up
to the industrial power that it was.” Other than that, until you
have questions, I want to thank you very much for inviting me
down here.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Lambert follows:]

STATEMENT OF MERRILL W. LAMBERT, PRESIDENT, UAW LOCAL 787, WILLIAMSPORT,
PENNSYLVANIA

When the Pennsylvania Youth Apprenticeship Program was first presented to our
Local Union Committee, we were asked to think about ti.e program and let Textron
and the members of PYAP know if it would work here at Textron and what it
might take to get the program started. Since we had just settled a labor dispute on
10/1/90 in which temporary replacements were used, there was naturally a lot of
concern as to how these students would be used and at the same time, with the
work picture declining, how do you lay your members off and at the same time have
students in the plant running machines and doing other jobs?

After several meetings with the company we reached an understanding on some
of the key issues that would have presented problems. First we agreed that any-
thing that was to be done concerning these students in our plant, the Union would
be notified and there would be a meeting and agreement before it was done. We felt
the Union should have a member of its plant committee as part of the PYAP com-
mittee in the plant and to attend PYAP meetings. It was agreed that the Union
would be present when the student selection was made and have a voice in the se-
lection. Once a student was selected and started in this program it was understood
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that whenever a student was to be working with a Union member on whataver job,
the student would not run in what we term a “production mode.” It was also under-
stood that a Union member working with one of the students in many cases would
not be able to maintain production and instruct the student on the job at the same
time, so there would be some loss of production. We also agreed that the students
would be taught about the labor movement, and how the Local Union functions
with Textron. We also had understandings on other issues, such as if there was a

labor dispute, the students would not enter the plant as long as they were part of
the PYAP.

Once we had some basic understandings on what was involved and how every-
thing would be tied together and the part the Local Union would play, we felt it was
a program that could be very beneficial to our community. I feel that once Textron,
and our Local put aside any ideas that one or the other was trying to take advan-
tage and concentrated on the needs of the students and on the community, it was
not hard to reach an understanding. For the membership, as in all organizations,
there are those that will never feel completely at ease with the program, but the
large majority of our members are very enthusiastic with the PYAP because they
also realize that our obligation as a Union does not stop at the plant gate, but we
must do whatever we can to improve our community so that our youth will have a
future here. We, like in many areas, don’t have a VoTec any more and therefore we
must find another way to educate our youth.

I would like to close by saying, there are still problems between labor and man-
agement, but with problems set aside in order to have a successful program such as

the PYAP, maybe it will also help us overcome some of our other labor-management
problems,

I would like to express my appreciation for the opportunity to come before this
Committee on Education and Labor and express our views.

Cnairman Perkins. Thank you very much for your comments
today, Mr. Lambert. We very much appreciate your coming.

Next is Dave Squire, who is vice president of product design and
engineering, In Focus Systems, Portland, Oregon.

Mr. SQuIRe. Thank you, Mr. Chair:nan. First, I should mention
that I am not here as a representative of In Focus Systems. I am
here as a private citizen and as the chairman of the Executive Ad-
visory Committee for the Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 project,
which is a high-school restructuring project going on in Portland,
Oregon.

Roosevelt High School, up until a year ago, was kind of the end
of the line for everybody in Portland, both teachers and students. It
had a very high turnover rate, a very high dropout rate, a very
high absentee rate, and very high everything that is bad with the
school. The administration, teachers, and the Oregon State Bureau
of Labor and Industry recognized the problem and started this pro-
gram in about 1989.

I gave you a lot of information on the project and status, so I will
not go over that. Let me just briefly say that what we are trying to
do at Roosevelt is a total restructuring of the high school in compli-
ance with some of the principles in the ‘“America’s Choice: High
Skills or Low Wages” report, with the SCANS report on skills for
the 21st century. At the State level, the Oregon legislature passed
the “Oregon Educational Act for the 21st Century,” House Biil
3565, which aims at restructuring the entire school system in
Oregon in K through 12.

The mission of the Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 project goes like
this. Roosevelt High School will provide all students with life skills
necessary for successful participation in the workplace of the 21st
century. That was probably one of the most difficult things we did,
getting all of the various players in the community together to
decide exactly what it was we were trying to do.
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Since that time, we have divided the school into six career path-
ways. We have developed a 5-year project plan. We have had teach-
ers out in industry for one summer doing internships. We have had
two freshmen forums, including men and women, where industry
people came in and did mock interviews, basically getting to know
the students. We applied for and received three grants to the tune
of $230,000 to help support our program. So far, we are 100 percent
in our grant writing.

Once I got involved in the program, I was initially pretty skepti-
cal. I got involved because a friend of mine in the Portland School
District called me up and said, “We need some help on this project.
Why don’t you come and do something?” I said, “Sure. Okay.” 1
had a lot of cynicism about the cooperation of business in education
and how it was really going to go. Once I got into the program, I
was really impressed with the kinds of things I have heard from
the people who are testifying here, how much everybody is really
committed to doing something for the students.

From the time we really got together and set our goals and objec-
tives together, we have not had any trouble getting planning and
dollar resources. I cannot think of anybody in industry or labor or
education that we have asked to support us that has not been
forthcoming with time, not necessarily money. What we are getting
is a lot of time. I probably spend maybe 10 hours a month on this,
and there are about 60 other industry people, education, and labor
people involved. The Portland State University has waived tuition
for the teachers at Roosevelt to take a curriculum-writing class. We
have cooperation from Portland Community College. We have coop-
eration from all the State agencies.

I think that there are three things that have been key to what
we have been able to do so far. One has been one-on-one involve-
ment. It is very easy to sit on an advisory committee and talk to
people about what you should do and what you should not do.
Until you actually get down in the school and down on the job and
talk to people, you just cannot appreciate the kinds of things that
are going on.

Some of the things I have been involved in personally at Roose-
velt, I spent a day teaching at Roosevelt. I went out and taught two
classes. I taught a physics class, which had the brightest students
in the school. I taught a remedial math class, which had the not-
brightest kids in the school. I liked all the kids. I found them to be
interested in learning. I found them to be caring about what they
did but largely frustrated about a lack of relevance in what they
were learning.

I also participated in a freshman men’s forum. There were about
90 freshmen men who came in, and maybe about 20 or 30 industry
people in, who did mock interviews. We told them what we did, and
they conducted the job interview, an information interview, with
us. They followed up with letters, and this is the beginning of a
mentorship program and job shadowing that they will be starting
up next year. I emphasize the involvement. I think everybody else
here has had that, too. It is involvement that is really the key. Not
involvement from afar but involvement right on the street with
people.
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I think the second key to the success of a program like this is a
clear set of objectives. My background is engineering, and I am a
project manager. I am hyper about objectives. That was one of the
things that I kept pushing when we got into the program. I think
that once you establish a clear set of objectives and something like
our mission statement, getting people to line up behind that is not
difficult at all. Everybody here has said that they are focused on
the kids, and that is the success. That is where we are focused, too.
So that is key.

We have all kinds of information to help us in setting the objec-
tives. We have the “America’s Choice,” we have the SCANS, we
have the Oregon House Bill 3565, and we have all kinds of Federal
and State programs. There is plenty of information and plenty of
money out there available, once you are committed to a clear set of
objectives.

I think the third key is good project management. That is my
role in the project. I act as the overall project manager. We also
have a full-time project coordinator at the school that coordinates
all the different committees we have working on this project.

If there is any advice that I could give to this committee on what
you should be doing to help, I think there are three things. Any-
thing you do should include heavy emphasis on community involve-
ment at all levels, getting into the schools and working with the
schools on things like mentorships for teachers and students and
getting business people and labor people into the schools to see
what it is like in the schools.

Second, encourage communication nationally on what is going on
in these types of programs. I have heard three programs here
today. There are hundreds of these kinds of programs going on.
There are hundreds of people working on these projects all across
the I tion. I think if you can do anything to encourage communi-
cation so that we can move forward with one set of objec.ives and
in one direction, that would be invaluable.

Lastly, I think you need to make sure that any objectives you set
out in any legislation that you do are consistent with and comple-
mentary to any other Federal, State, and private efforts that are
going on in this direction. One of the things I have seen, getting
involved with this—and the more I get involved, the more I find
that there are lots of people working on these things—if we ever
got all the resources that are focused on this problem going in one
direction at one time, we would be awesome. Right now, there are
a lot of people working in a lot of different directions. We are kind
of going in the same direction, but the more you can do to encour-
age a national direction I think it will help.

I have two fears about the success of what we are doing and
what could adversely affect it. The first is that we do not maintain
a consistent set of national objectives and goals long enough to sup-
port any meaningful change to our system. This is probably a 10-
year project to get it rolling, and then it is an ongoing continuous
improvement project, a little bit from total quality management.

The second thing is, if we do succeed with the students, that
there are jobs that they can have. My biggest fear is to get students
through this program, get them all pumped up, set really high ex-
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pectations, and then have them go out and not be able to find a job.
Thank you.

[The prepared statement of David Squire follows:]

STATEMENT OF DAvID C. SQUIRE, CHAIRMAN OF THE RR2000 ApvisORY COMMITTEE
AND VICE PRESIDENT OF ENGINEERING FOR IN Focus SysTems, INC.

The Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 project is a project to restructure Roosevelt High
School to create an educational system that insures that students receive a quality
education that is relevant to the world in which they will be living. The project was
started in 1989. The first classes will be held in the fall of 1992 with the first class
graduating in 1996,

The Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 program was initiated in 1989 by the administra-
tion of Roosevelt High School, led by principal George Galati, and the Oregon
Bureau of Labor and Industries led by Assistant Commissioner Mike Kaiel. The pro-
gram was started in response to an analysis of high school graduates that showed
that only 20-30 percent of them ever completed college and that those who did not
complete college were ill prepared to compete in the workplace. This original group
developed a preliminary program plan to address these issues and presented it to
the administration of the Portland Public Schools in order to gain financial and ad-
ministrative support. The proposal came to the attention of Donna Acord who had
jsucsg ltleft industry to work in the Public Relations group of the Fortland Public

00ls.

This group set sut to build an advisory committee which would have representa-
tives of all the groups necessary to make a project of this magnitude happen: teach-
ers, parents, admu._stration, State government, industry, labor, community colleges
and 4-year universities. Through their network of contacts in the local community
they were successful in creating an advisory committee that consisted of about 40-
50 people from industry, labor, government and higher education. This committee
rsnc%t ixll the fall of 1990 to hear a presentation on the situation at Roosevelt High

ool.

In December of 1990, the advisory committee met with a nationally-known con-
sultant on project management who instructed us on the development and imple-
mentation of project plans. This meeting was followed by an all-day strategic plan-
ning meeting to develop a program mission statement and the {eginnings of a
project plan. The missicn statement is:

Roosevelt High School will provide all students with the life skills necessary for
successful participation in the workplace of the 21st century.

At the same time there were movements at the State and national level that were
addressing similar problems and concerns. At the State level the Oregon legislature
passed the “Oregon Educational Act for the 21st Century” (HB 3565) and a report,
sponsored by the National Commission on Education and the Economy, was released
titled “America’s Choice: High Skills or Low Wages.” These two documents es-
poused principles and objectives that were incorporated into the objectives of Roose-
velt Renaissance 2000. A summary of the Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 project objec-
tives and plan and a summary of HB 3565 are attached.

Each type of organization recruited to work on Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 has
two roles. The first is to apply their particular skills and resources to the planning
and implementation of the required restructuring—to create the curriculum, pro-
vide work experiences for teachers and insure that high school becomes a relevant
experience for the students. The second role is to provide operational support once
the restructuring is complete and the project is rolling.

Industry’s ro’e in the planning and implementation stages is to provide project
management skills, planning skills, work experiences for teachers, input on indus-
try’s needs (used in defining Certificates of Initial and Advanced Mastery) and
inputs on trends in the workplace such as movements towards empowering workers,
increased teamwork and Total Quality Management (TQM). In the ongoing oper-
ations phase, industry will be responsible for providing work experiences for stu-
dents, mentors for students and will continue to serve on advisory boards to insure
continued relevance of the program. Finally, they will be responsible for providing
job opportunities or other support for successful graduates of the program.

The role of labor is much the same as industry. They serve on the advisory com-
mittee, provide work experiences for teachers, give inputs on skills required in the
workplace and forecast trends that need to be considered in lanning an educational
program. In the operational phase they will be responsible i?)r providing work expe-
riences for students, mentors for students, continued work experiences for teachers
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providing job opportunities for successful uates of the program.

A list of other participants in the progrgm is attached (“Contributing Resources”).
As with labor and industry each particjfant brings a particular skill or resource to
the project that will be used both for.ithplementation and ongoing operations.

There are a number of State pr¢frams that are relevant to Roosevelt Renaissance
2000 but three are most importarv"The first, HB 3565, has already been mentioned
and a summary of its provisions i attached. The RR2000 project was started before
this bill was passed but is now seén as a model for its implementation. Members of
the RR2000 project team sit on several State-level advisory boards. The second pro-
gram is an effort by the State Bureau of Labor and Industries to expand apprentice-
ship programs available to high school graduates. The head of this program sits on
the RR2000 advisory board. The third program is a new project that is sponsored by
the Oregon Economic Development Commission. This program will focus on Total
Quality Management (TQM) and how it can be applied across the State in industry
and governmental organizations. TQM is one of the foundations of the Roosevelt
Renaissance 2000 project and for it to be successful at Roosevelt it must exist in the
labor and industry groups that Roosevelt serves.

The Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 project is funded by hundreds of hours of unpaid
volunteer time from all participants, from district and State support and from four
grants from State and national sources amounting to $230,000.

In our society cooperation between education, labor and industry is often unsuc-
cessful or at best only lip service. How do we achieve cooperation on the Roosevelt
Renaissance 2000 project? First, we realize and constantly remind ourselves that we
are all in this together. We are under competitive attack from international com-
petitors and the blame for our seeming inability to compete should be equally
shared by all of us. What is at stake is our standard of living. Secondly, we all sup-
port the conclusions and recommendations in “America’s Choice: High Skills or Low
Wages.” Thirdly, we have a plan with clear objectives, a clear mission and a clear
vision. Fourthly, we are focused on the next generation with the realization that
while change must begin with this generation, the benefits can only be realized by
the next.

The Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 project is on schedule. Over the last 18 months
we have met our project milestones and the first class will be starting for freshmen
in September 1992. The full status of the project is covered in an attached speech
that was given by two members of the Portland School Board at a conference in

April 1992.
Chairman PerxiNs. Thank you, Mr. Squire. I thank all the gen-
tlemen here for their testimony today. Asking Mr. Batkowski and
Mr. Lambert, after almost a year, how would you evaluate the pro- ‘
gram that you have? What soris of problems have you experienced |
during that time period? ‘
Mr. Batkowskl. I would have to compliment the IMC, who di-
rectly stays in front of our so-called snowball that we expect to
expand. They stay directly in front of the program and have solved
a large number of problems that I think we would have had and
did not have because they expected them or they foresaw them
coming and corrected them before.
The little bit of a problem that we did have involved the picking
of the mentors. I think we still have it. If we had to do it again, 1
would change it. We picked mentors of upper management levels
to foresee that the program would be, the first year, absolutely
structured the way we wanted it. Utilizing mentors from the upper
management level, we find that yes, they know all the areas, but
they don’t have the time to go down and spend that we think
should be spent with the individuals. We, in turn, have used hourly
people, supervisory capacity people, to belp us with that. We have
not changed in the middle of the streafn, but if we were to do it
again and very well will do it again zgxt year, because we are all
set to go for next year, the mentor level W}yld be dropped down to

and they will continue to serve on advis;é“):l?pards. They also will be reponsible for

bo

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC



59

the supervisory capacity in the departments that reflect the oper-
ations that the individuals are going to perform.

Next year, the 10-segment program that we have now, the stu-
dents, before the finish of this year, will direct an area where they
are going to go. Right now, there are 10 segments. They could be a
machine operator, they could be a toolmaker, they could be a tool
designer, they could be a CAD-CAM draftsman. We have given
them a view of all of the metal trades of that sort. We expect them
to pick out an area that they want to go in, the area that they like
best. As they settle down into that area, we are going to drop the
mentorship down to the level they are going to be at.

Problemwise, we have not had any problems. We have not had a
problem with the program.

Chairman Perxins. From the union perspective, what do you
say, Mr. Lambert?

Mr. LamMperT. | think the biggest problem that the union had—I
cannot even really say it was a problem--was trying to get the
people who are involved with the students, the hourly people, to
understand exactly what they were supposed to be doing. A lot of
times, I would be called to a certain department, a certain area,
which was part of the agreement with this, that any time there
was a problem, either myself or one of the other committeemen
would go te that area if it involved a student and find out what the
problem was.

Sometimes, some of our members were a little over-enthusiastic,
and the next thing you know is, he is running this half million
dollar machine all by himself and is really pumped up on it. I'd
say, “Wait a minute, guy. Slow down. First you got to teach him.
Don’t just teach him to press a button. You got to teach him what
makes it work, why does that turn around the way it does, and
why do you use certain type pulls.” If you can call it a problem, I
guess that was it. Over-enthusiasm. They were really pumped up.
They wanted these kids to enjoy themselves, and they wanted them
to learn, but maybe a little bit too fast.

We did have understandings with the company, and sometimes it
was a little slow getting to management. When I say “the compa-
ny,” we are talking upper level compared to supervisory manage-
ment, where they did not understand how it worked. They would
have one of the students with one of our people. After they learned
a little bit, they would have the student disassemble an engine.
They would have a student over here disassembling this engine,
while his guy was over here doing this. That is a no-no.

I don’t want it to sound like we don’t want the kids doing any-
thing. We want them doing it. We want hands on, but we also want
them doing it in a way where it’s educational, and it is not replac-
ing some of our people. Guys who are being laid off are being af-
fected by the students being in there. First and foremost, as strong-
ly as I feel about this program, I also feel we have an obligation to
the people who already work there and have families and have to
support them.

We all have our bad faults. We will use students or whoever to
do jobs cheaper. We have agreements that some of the supervisors
did not understand where the students are not on what you call a
production mode. A production mode is, I run a machine and that
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machine can put out 40 pieces an hour. The kid is not to stand
there for an hour, running that machine, pumping out 40 pieces.
All he is learning that way is, you need 40 pieces an hour because
that's what the production says. We want somebody with that
person. We want somebody to tell that person what the machine is
doing, why it is doing it.

There is some loss of productivity, but from what I have seen so
far, that has been minute. It has not been a big factor. As far as
major problems, I cannot say we really have had any. Like I said in
my statement that I sent, you do have some people who, no matter
what you do, they are unhappy with the program. We had a labor
dispute, and we had people who constantly said, “You dumb you
know what. What are you doing? These guys are going to be used
for replacements.”

I looked at the whole program, the rest of the committee looked
at the whole program, and no. All we are doing is trying to work
with the community to build a system to better educate our kids.
As far as major problems within the plant, I am pleased to say no.
We are looking forward to next year and the year after that.

Chairman PEerkINs. Also, just in terms of the same situation of
the workmen’s compensation and insurance rates, how did you
handle that?

Mr. Batkowskl. We withstand the workmen’s comp.

Chairman PErkins. Do you see that as being a disincentive for
expansion of the program beyond a particular point?

Mr. Batkowski. No, I do not.

Chairman Perkins. What disincentives do you see for the expan-
sion of the program in the future, from either the management or
labor perspectives?

Mr. Batkowski. I certainly would hope that industry would be
reasonable enough to recognize the fact that they are going to ben-
efit, although there may be some costs involved in it immediately.
You may not see a benefit out of the program for a few years.

I doubt very much that there are areas that employ unionized
people throughout the country who would have the opportunity to
benefit over the individual that you have in your facility. We are
one of those. The only way we would have an opportunity to hire
one of the individuals, is if we were in a hiring mode at that
minute, and that individual would fit what we are hiring. We do
not have the option of just saying that individual will work there.

I think industry has to be made aware of the fact that they are
going to have to look out for another portion of the industry
throughout the country. We may not be able to directly profit from
what we are doing. Down the road, I am in hopes that an individ-
ual who follows suit and takes the same program, maybe in an-
other State, I can benefit from the individual I may hire that went
through his program down the road somewhere along the line.

I think there are costs. Industry is going to have to assume some
of those costs. I realize where those costs then go, and I can under-
stand that. But again, to be competitive, that is what we are going
to have to do. There is not, in our education system. the moneys
that it takes to put the machinery into the schools or the learning
experiences into the schools that are going to create the people
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that we are looking for. They covld not keep up with the materials,
they could not keep up with the changing machinery.

The NC machining that we use today against secme of the old-
style hand drill presses and things like that costs millions of dol-
lars. They change every year. If you do not change machinery, you
do not become competitive. I doubt that the school system will ever
be able to acquire the moneys to perfect the type of people we
need. So there is going to be a cost factor to us. I think industry is
going to have to assume that.

Chairman PerkIns. What about from the labor perspective?

Mr. LamBerT. The only concern that I have on where the pro-
gram will go from here—I don’t know. Maybe I am stepping out of
line. Maybe I am going to tip over a can of worms. Each program I
have heard so far discussed paying the kids: they get so much a
week, so much an hour. I guess maybe I am a little concerned with
that. In some areas, I guess the law says, in certain States, you
have to.

I am wondering whether we are trading off education by paying
the kids? Are we going to get ourselves into a situation where you
have kids that would have gone on to higher education, whether to
college or whatever, but now are teetering because they can make
$80 or $100 a week here if they start in the 11th grade and do this.
I have my concerns there.

Like I said, I love the program. I love everything about it, but
there are things in the program that I have my concerns with. I
am not sure how that is going to be addressed. There are an awful
lot of kids out there where $80 or $100 a week is a lot of money.
Will they trade off something that would be better in the future for
something like this now. I really do not know whether payment is
the right way to go.

Other than that, I do not really see any major problems. Like I
said earlier, as long as labor and industry can get together and put
down some of their weapons and say, “Let’s get off some of this
and face realities. We have to do certain things together.” The big-
gest one is trust each other; otherwise, we are going to be in an’
awful bad position in a few years to come. Other than that, no.

Chairman Perkins. Thank you, Mr. Lambert. Mr. Squire, what
problems have you all had with your program at Roosevelt?

Mr. Squire. I think there have been two problems: one is the
fear of change, and the other is the fear of not changing. We have
two groups of teacheys in this school. There are some that just do
not want to change, they do not want to accept that there is a
problem, and there is some resistance there.

We did a survey when we started the project, and 90 percent of
the teachers wanted to change. At our first strategic planning
meeting that we had on a weekend, we were supposed to do strate-
gic planning but we spent the whole day talking with teachers,
saying ‘“This is just another tool of the administration to oppress
us,” and on and on about how they did not think there was going
’go fbe any meaningful change. They had seen these programs

efore.

We have the same problem in industry with quality programs,
for example. I have been through about three quality programs at
different companies, and usually it starts out with a lot of flourish,
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you spend a lot of money, you have a lot of activity, and then it
goes away. So I think the teachers who really wanted change were
in fear of that.

It has been a year-long process of building their confidence that
things really can change. I think that is what industry and labor
and some of the outside people have brought into the schools. We
have brought in hope that we are there, we are supporting, we are
not trying to tell them how to teach, we are there to help, we are
there to cooperate and build trust. I think that has been a very im-
portant factor. Those are probably the biggest issues.

There are a lot of hidden agendas with people: the teachers want
to get rid of the administration, and the union has some things
they want to do, and the State has some things they want to do.
There is a lot of that playing around, but when we get into dis-
putes, by always getting back to what is this going to do for the
kids, like everybody else was saying here, it solves a lot of those
problems. I think that is key.

Chairman Perxins. How would you describe, Mr. Squire, the
labor/industry dynamics during this process?

Mr. SQUIRE. In terms of dynamics, if there are any conflicts, we
did not reaily have any. We are not as heavily unionized out in
Oregon as in some areas, so there is probably less conflict between
business and unions. We all participate as equal members on the
team. They put their inputs in, we put our inputs in, we discuss all
these things and work through it. I do not think there are any spe-
cial dynamics, any problems or any issues that came up that were
different than relations we had with the community college or the
university.

Chairman PERxINS. Do you see this effort in your area of the
country being expanded?

Mr. SQUIRE. I suppose it will depend on whether or not we are
successful. Again, we have taken on a rather ambitious bill in the
State of Oregon. It is a major restructuring. It has some very spe-
cific and very aggressive objectives. I think in terms of that par-
ticular program, it will depend on how it succeeds.

In terms of program to deal with a large majority of kids that do
not go to college or are not planning to go to college, I feel a
groundswell across the Nation at the grassroots level, like the pro-
grams we have been talking about here. I think it is going to
happen. There are programs geing all over the place. We are asso-
ciated with a group in Boston called ‘“Jobs for the Future” that set
up 12 test sites, doing these kinds of programs. One of our teachers
went to Europe to tour there. We visited probably four or five dif-
ferent schools in various parts of the country.

There are a lot of things going on. There are a lot of conferences
going on. I attended a conference that was put on by the Universi-
ty of Colorado that was devoted almost entirely to this subject, the
integration of vocational and academics, and how do you bring rel-
evance to schools, and how do you take care of the large percentage
that do not go on to college.

My feeling is, there is a groundswell across the Nation. It is
driven by two things: the competitiveness that we feel we are lack-
ing in the international markets and the fact that we just have too
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many kids that are not getting out of school with a meaningful
education. They work very well together.

Chairman PerkiINs. Do any of you gentiemen have any final re-
marks that you would like to make about this subject?

[No response.] )

I very much appreciate your taking the time to be with us today.
I think you have quite a bit of very interesting information in this
ongoing discussion. With my personal thanks for your appearance,
I would like to excuse you and declare this subcommittee meeting
adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 12:42 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned, sub-
ject to the call of the Chair.]

[Additional material supplied for the record follows:]
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STATEMENT OF LOLETA A. DIDRICKSON, DIRECTOR, ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOY-
MENT SECURITY; AND TrACY PARSONS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CORPORATE CHICAGO/
HiIRE THE FUTURE

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the subcomnmittee, for the opportunity
to present the view from the State of Illinois.

The Hire the Future program has been providing not only jobs, but valuable em-
ployment expearience to youths in the City of Chicagn. We believe it is a good exam-
ple of what government, in partnership with the private sector, can do to help shape
the future workforce.

The Hire the Future program is the result of efforts by business leaders and State
and local government to develop more meaningful summer employment opportuni-
ties for inner city youths. Previous summer employment programs provided jobs,
but did not really emphasize long-term self development.

The goal of Hire the Future is to offer students a window to the business world,
revealing the opportunities that skills and education make available. It attempts to
place “working” students in career-track jobs in higher level, growth-oriented envi-
roninents.

A simple set of standards was established for student applicants. Eligible students
must be at least 16 years of age, have a C average in school, with a minimum of
eighth grade level math and reading skills. They must also have a 90-percent at-
tendance record and their tardiness record cannot exceed 10 percent. School coun-
selors ensure students meet program guidelines.

The key to the program’s success has been strong support from local 2mployers,
such as IBM, Illinois Bell and the Tribune Company, in pledging jobs and from in-
dustry and business councils like Corporate Chicago. The Illinois Job Service, in co-
operation with public and private schools, matches individual students with jobs.

The Illinois Department of Employment Security commits the equivalent of eight
full-time job service staff positions to the program. The program has also received
%orporgte cash contributions of $100,000 and in-kind contributions of more than
$50,000.

In 1991, Hire the Future surpassed its placement goals, putting more than 3,700
students in summer positions. The program'’s placement numbers have grown stead-
ily, by almost 250 percent since 1988.

In the past, the Department has often found some employers reluctant to partici-
peate in summer employment programs, but many of those same employers are now
volunteering their help with respect to Hire the Future.

Based orn the program'’s success, Illinois is currently expanding it to 14 additional
Jocations in the State, with an eye toward statewide implementation in the near
future.

Clearly, Hire the Future is not a panacea for all of the challenges facing inner
city youths today. However, for many of those young people, the program offers an
important first step in the leap from studies to a significant role in modern busi-
ness. It keeps them on the right track.

Thank you again for your time and consideration.
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Roosevelt High School. 6941 N. Central, Portland, Oregon 97203, 503-280-5138 or 503-280-5260

Roosevelt Renaissance 2000

Comuaitted o providing alf Roascvell I{/gb School studeats with life skills
pecessary for successlul participation in the workplace of the 21st ceatury.

Leading the State
in Secondary
Education
Reform

Focusing on
Carecrs

Using Innovative
Approaches

Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 (RR2000) was well on its way when House Bl 3565, the Oregon
Educatonal Act for Lhe 21st Ceatury, was voted upon and mandated by the state. That bill
provides a framework for fundameantally restructuring educational systems in Oregon to
easure that studeats receive a quality education that is relevant to the world in which they live.

RR2000 does just that, and educators throughout Oregon are closely watching how we go

about unplementing changes that will achieve the goals for secondary sducation set forth 1
House Bull 3565.

Roosevelt High School is restructunag its curricuium around career pathways, each of which
represeals a series of polential careers. Studeats will select areas of interest from five
pathways, which we have.identified by determining where the biggest opportunities for jobs in
lhc 21st century will be. These pathways and the areas they include are:
Information Systems and Processiog ~— dala processing, telecommunications, computer
technology, and office skills
Health and Human Services ~ all aspects of heaith care
AManufacturiog Technology and Eggineening ~ electronics, coastruction, and metal
fabrication
Natural Scicaces apd Resources — cavironmental services, resource management, and
fisheries and wildlife
*  Professional, Public, and Commercia) Services — banking, retal, and services needed by
government and the public sector
% Trade and Tourism — imporVexport and hospitality

Students are ot constrained 1o a specific career within a pathway, and those whose interests
chaoge during high school can move into a different pathway.

At high school graduation, every student will be prepared to chose one of several direcuions:

*  Accepling an entry-level job within his or her career pathway

+  Coattouing further training in an appreaticeship or other post-secondary training program
+  Entering an associale degree program at a two-year community college

*  Going on loa four-year institution

The essence of the Roosevelt Project is three-fold, introducing innovative

lechiniques that will:

* Integrate an applied karning approach to high school academics

* Incorporate bands-op karning of job skills through cacefully structured work expenences
at local businesses

*  Evaluate studeats’ level of proficiency by actual demonstration of skills

The back of this sheet explans each of these approaches.
{over)
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Once chosen, the carcer pathway leads students through theur high school educauon, using an
mnovalive approach calied appled dcadentics. This lechmique relates studeats’ counse work 0
their chosen carcer  For instance, a language arts assignment for an aspinng manurauunng
manager might be Lo wnile an exsay on the latest methous of manufactunog,

Through all claswes, teachers will help students gain the skulls for success 1 alf aspects of Lfe,
This includes the abildy to solve problems, articulate ideas, and work wdependently as wel ag
19 groups.

Each student will partcipate 1a on-the-job work cxpenences i thew chosen carcer pathway.
This opportunity allows students to learn the skdls necded 1n the actual setiing into which they
will ultunately work  The work eapencnces will be carefully structured, with employers and
teachers working together Lo ensure that the work eaperience enables studeats to meet thew
educational needs within thewr career pathway.

Performance-based testing allows a studeot 1o demonstrate mastery of a skall by actually
performing a task requinog that skill Our business and ndustry represeatatives are helping
teachers set standardized levels of achievement for job skills, and teachers are developing
performance-based testing methods that will requure students to prove aptitude in these skills

RR2000 is 2 joint efTort involving community keaders, pareals, teachers, and Jocal business ang
industry. These volunteers have been working hand-n-hand for the past two years,
rescasching educational reform and the evolving job market.

For the first time, educators and the business community — the future employers of our studeats
~ are together designing 2 new, relevaat curriculum. Roosevell educators are looking to
Portland’s business and industry community for insight into today's and tomorrow’s working
world. Thus armed with the knowledge of what skills studeats aced to become successfully
cmployed, these educators are now delermining how (o teach these skills,

Our busigess pariners also serve as the key to integrating studeats’ classroom education with
actual on-the-job education. They have ofered their sites for students’ structured work
experiences as well as for teachers’ summer internships, which allow teachers to stay abreast of
industry developmeats.

RR2000 business partners include:

* Boeing Sisters of Providence Hospital

* E-Machines Tektronix

* Freightliner U.S. Bank

*  Good Samantan Hospital U.S. West

* In-Focus Systems Wacker Stltronics

*  Portland General Electric Waggener Edstrom Public Relations Group
*  Security Pacific Bank

The first students embarking on the RR2000 curriculum will be the Freshman class catering
Roosevelt High School in 1992 2ad gradualing in 1996. At graduation, thess students will
qualify for and be placed in meaningful, well-paying jobs with 2 future career path  — or will
embark ona path of further education and training lo prepare for such placemeat within two
to four years.

Joan Sievens-Schwenger Mafjorie Kerr Jim Wernsing

Public Information Officer Public Information Department  Project Coordinator
Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries  Portland Public Schools Roosevelt High School
229-57%7 249-2000 2565 280-5138 / 280-5260 1415
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Oregon Educational Act
for the 21st Century

“The Legislative Assembly declares that a
restructured educational system is necessary
to achieve the state’s goals of the best edu-
cated citizens in the nation by the year 2000
and a work force equal to any in the world by
the year 2010.”

Adopted HB 3565

“Oregon has taken a pioneering step, and America will be

watching and learning.”
Lamar Alexander
For further information, please contact:
Oregon Department of Education
700 Pringle Parkway SE
Salem, OR 97310-0299
Norma Paulus J. D. Hoye, Assodiate Superintendent
State Superintendent of Public Instruction Professional Technical Education
(503) 378-3573 (503) 378-2337
Joyce Reinke, Assistant Superintendent Larry Austin, Informaton Specialist
21st Century Schools Coundil Press Informaton
(503) 373-7118 (503) 378-8477
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HIGHLIGHTS
Oregon Educational Act for the 21st Century

Adopted House Bill 3565

« Declares that a restructured educational system is necessary to achieve the state’s goal of having the
best educated citizens in the nation by the year 2000 and a work force equal to any in the world by
the year 2010.

+ Requires schools to develop student skills in reading, writing, reasoning, information retrieval,
problem solving, listening, speaking, critical thinking, and working effectively alone and as partof a
group. Schools also will be required to ensure student knowledge of social studies, foreign lan-
guages, humanities, visual, performing and literary arts, advanced mathematics and sciences. Re-
quires scho)ols to organize instructional groupings as heterogeneously as possible. (This is only a
partial list.

* Sets education performance standards for all students called the Certificate of Initial Mastery (grade
10) and the Certificate of Advanced Mastery (grade 12) that are benchmarked to the highest in the
world. Common Curriculum Goals and Essential Learning Skills will be revised to reflect this

‘world class” curriculum.

« Implements ongoing performance based assessments at grades 3, 5, 8, and 10, including work
samples, portfolios, and other “authentic” assessments, to measure student mastery ard progress.
Department of Education will set the standards students must meet at grade levels leading toa
Certificate of Initial Mastery.

+ Holds schools accountable for student's satisfactory progress, including providing additional services
to attain the standard at selected grade levels, and for the Certificate of Initial and Advanced Mas-
tery.

* Makes Head Start available to all eligible children by 1998; 50 percent of eligible children by 1996.

¢ Requires the Department of Education to develop model programs and an implementation plan for
developmentally appropriate nongraded primary school for all schools. -

The plan will include strategies foer(ﬁ;evendon of failure and preventative and remedial services,

early intervention for students needing special assistance, a funding formula to reduce class size,
integration of health and social services, and parental involvement in the schoois.

¢ Requires schools to provide alternative learning environments, services, and intervention strategies
for students needing assistance in attaining the Certificate of Initial and Advanced Mastery.

* Provides all students, after receipt of the Certificate of Initial Mastery, an opportunity to branch out
into educational options to obtain a Certificate of Advanced Mastery with college preparatory or
academic professional technical endorsements, or both. The program’s design will allow students to
move between endorsements, with both endorsement options providing the ability for students to
enter a two- and/or a four-year college program.

¢ Develops comprehensive education and training programs for two- to five-year professionat techni-
cal endorserents and associate degrees.

¢ Involves business, labor, and education as partners in developing curriculum and performance
standards for school-to-work transition programs.
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* Expands school site based management committees at every school by 1995, giving a greater policy
and management role .0 teachers and parents.

¢ Creates the Early Childhood Improvement Program targeted to “at risk” children and families;
improvement in K-3rd grade curriculum and educational practices; comprehensive education, health
care, and social services.

* Requires parental involvement in establishing and implementing educational goals, and in participat-
ing in decision-making at the school site.

* Gives parents the ability to send their children to other public schools within their school district or in
cther public school districts, under certain conditions.

* Provides for integration of health and social services at or near school sites to assist students and
farnilies.

* Creates an Oregon Report Card on the state of public schools and progress made toward achieving
the goals of this Act.

» Creates Learning Centers for dropouts up to the age of 21 to assist them in achieving the Certificate of
Initial Mastery through use of teaching strategies, technology, and cwrriculum emphasizing the latest
research and teaching practices. If needed, Learning Centers will provide integration of existing
health and social services, including, but not limited to, day care, parental training, housing assis-
tance, employment, and alcohol and drug abuse counseling.

* Develops programs of research, teacher preparation, and continuing professionat development to
achieve the goals of this act. :

* Provides for the extension of the school year to 220 days by the year 2010.
* Requires that funding be provided prior to programs being implemented.

.
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Questions Most Often Asked
Regarding HB 3565

. Does school end at the 10th grade once a student has obtained a Certificate of Initial
Mastery?

Perhaps the most common misconception about HB 3565, the answer is an emphatic “no.” Once
the Certificate of Irutial Mastery has been obtained, educational opportunities will be expanded
during the final two years of high school, and beyond. Students will take professional/ technical
courses in broad career fields, often in a non-traditionai setting, and/or a college preparatory
curriculum. Built-in flexibility will permit them to move back and forth between options leading
toward college, the workplace or a combination of the two.

What does the Act mean for students receiving special education?

Students eligible for special education will continue in an Individualized Education Program
tailored to each youngster’s needs. That does not, however, preclude students with disabilities
completing a public school education in much the same manner as their peers without disabilities,
perhaps with minor modifications or adaptations.

. Critics argue that the choice option after the 10th grade amounts to a “two-track” sys-

tem that divides students according to their ability. Is that a valid argument?

No. After completing a rigoreus academic program and receiving a Certificate of Initial Mastery
(CIM) the student has the option of selecting a career path leading to a Certificate of Advanced
Mastery (CAM) with either a college preparatory and/or an academic/professional-technical
endorsement, or both. The United States is the only major industrialized country that does not
have 2 well-defined and implemented school-to-work transition. By offering new opportunities
for skilled technological training, often in non-traditional settings such as the workplace, HB 3565
reaches out to our most neglected students—the 70 percent who will NOT go on to coilege.

What will be required of school districts in the next two years?

Very little at the local level, other than to become informed and involved. Educators and commu-
nity members will participate with the Department of Education staff in research and develop-
ment over the next two years. By September 1992, one site committee, or 21st Century Council,
must be established in each district with more than one school. Membership includes teachers, a
principal, classified employees, parents and representatives from the business community. These
councils will heighten the involvement of teachers and members of the community in the decision
process.

What is the purpose of learning centers?

Learning centers will be established in communities to help students succeed in attaining a CIM.
They are designed to aid those who need special assistance or who may have dropped out of
school bz providing them with access to education programs and support services. Some districts
already have facilities and programs that will fill the need.
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What is a nongraded primary?

By the 1992 school year, the department will be responsible for recommending developmentally
appropnate nongraded primary programs for K-3. This will allow youngsters to proceed at thewr
own pace wnstead of being locked into a particular grade level. The purpose is to improve K-3

curriculum and practices consistent with current research on young children.

. What is a Certificate of Initial Mastery?

The CIM is a standard of achievernent for individual students earned at or about the 10th grade
level, or age 16. It is based on a series of performance-based assessments at grades 3, 5, 8, and 10
documenting a student’s progress in mastering academic subjects such as English, mathematics,
science, geography. history, foreign language and the arts, and critical thinking, problem-soiving
and communication skills For those students not making satisfactory progress, schools must
provide extra help.

. What part do pre-school or early intervention programs play in the restructuring of our

educational system?

Early intervention is a critical component of HB 3565. Head Start will be available for 50 percent
of eligible children by 1996, and 100 percent for all eligible children by 1998, subject to the dollars
being available. Programs that stress early intervention and family involvement vastly improvea
child’s chances of succeeding in a structured academic setting.

. Under what circumstances can a student transfer to another school?

A parent may request a transfer if the school where a student is enrolled is unable to assist that
student in achieving satisfactory academit progress and another school district agrees to enroll
the youngster. The resident district, in concurrence with the parent, will be responsible for
finding aiternate learning environments.

What is the Oregon Report Card?

It is a report issued annually by the Superintendent of Public Instruction identifying problems,
recognizing progress and measuring performance of Oregon students. This will promote ac-
countability to parents, students and the community.

Why are more days being added to the school year?

The school year will be expanded to 185 days by 1996 and 220 days by 2010 to better prepare
students to complete the more rigorous academic and professional requirements contained in HB
3565.

Where is the money coming from to support this legislation?

The legislature allocated $2 million for research and development over the next two years. No
programs under HB 3565 will be mandated without funding. Current programs that mesh with
provisions of the act received significant resources this biennium. They include a $10.7 million for
prekindergarten program, $10 million for early intervention programs, nearly $8 million for the
2020 school improvement program, and $2 million for assessment.
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Contributing Resources

Sources of Funds
and Other
Support

Portland
Community
Coll

Portland
Fublic
Schools

2020 Funds

The
kurdock
Foundation

The
Business
Youth
Exchange

Workforcs 2000 (t Grant Proposal

We have investigated and obtained sources of funds and other suppod for implementing
the RR2009 plan.

Portland State University (PSU) has contnbuted to a number of RR2000 programs®
* They have created a class specifically for RHS teachers. PSU has waives the tution
for the fifteen RHS teachers who are in the class and has given us a computer for
developing our curriculum.
* The teachers in the class will become team leaders for the appled curnculum aspect
of our curricutum reconstruction. They will lead us in creating applied coursework for
all ¢l , with sgecial emphasis on math and science.
*  PSU, through our efforts with the Washingten County Business Compact. aiso granis
coliege credis to teachers who participate in if hip
They have agreed to create and implement 3 class on cooperative-learning
techniques for ihe RHS faculty.
PSU offers aspiring teachers an extended training program to prepare teachers to
teach at-risk students. \We currently have three of these student teachers working
with teachers at Roosevelt, This close tie with PSU has benefilted:
* Students, by providing additional dedicated adults in the classroom

* Teachers, by providing direct access to current research in teaching at-risk
students

To cement the tie between Portland Community College (PCC) and RHS, and to ensure
the articutation of our programs, PCC has agreed to assign one PCC faculty member to
each of our Career Pathway Advisory Groups. The faculty member will have the
expertise in that particular pathway and therefore will heip eacn Pathway ~dvisory Group
devise curriculum for that pathway and ensure that the pathway includes avenues that
sxtend beyond the high school.

Portland Pubilic Schools (PPS) is providing resources for:
Project management personnet

Secretarial support

Meeting space

Supplies

Telephone services

Extended responsibilily for teach doing research

* % %ot % %

RR2000 was 2 recipient of 2 2020 Grant this year. We will leverage these funds for
applied curriculum research, which will drive cur etiorts for rewriting our curriculum.

The Murdock Foundation has granted funds for teacher internships, to be adminisiered
by the Washington County Business Education Compact. We will be funded for 20
Intemships, amounting to approsimately $40,000 for internship salaries, facilities,
supplies, equipment, and other such expenses.

The Porttand Business Youth Exchange has contributed staf resources to RR2000.

Upcoming contributions include training for business people becoming mentors to our
students and matching up an appropriate mentor with each student.

Contrbuting Resources

iy
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Over 50 reptesentatives from the business ard labor communily padicipate in our
Advisory Commitieo. These representatives routinely spend five hours or more 3 month,
providing resources not available through usual education channels We have used their
Input for our effods in:

% Constructing a workforce-based curnculum

% ldentitying skilis required in the workforce

% Crealing the competency benchmarks in the career pathways

These representatives are from such companies as ‘
Boeing

Bureau of Labor and Industry

Business Youth Exchange

E-Machines

Freighlliner :
Good Samaritan Hospital

in-Focus Syslems

International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers

Nationa! Electrical Contractors Association

Oregon Association of Minority Entrepreneurs

Portiand Community College

Porland General Electric

Security Pacific Bank

Sislers of Providence Hospital

Tektronix

The Waggener Edstrom Public Retations Group

U.S. Bank

U.S. West

Wacker Sittronics

*************i****i*

See the section titled Extraordinary Commitment for more informalion about our business
and labor padners.
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Oregon
%ﬁium
dor21st

Cen!uz

Pactland
Communiy
College

RR2000 is involved with three other consortiums that are applying {or Workforce 2000
funds. See the Resource Matnix on the foliowing page for mote detail.

RR2000 is part of the Portland Area Vocational/Technical Educational Consortwm, which
Is applying for funds in three areas

* 2¢2 Technica! Preparation

% Professionat Technical Curriculum Developmenl

% Surnmet internships

Roosevelt High School is a part of the Oregon Consortium for 21s1 Century Schools at
Oregon State University. Their proposal applies for furds for insesvice work and
educalion for teachers in apphed curricutum.

Partland Community College is submilling an application for funds as well. Roosevelt
High Schoal is a shareholder and padticipant in the PCC Consortium. The aspects of the
program that RHS will participate in are:

# Training for Counseling

* Teacher/Counselor Training

* Targeled lraining
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ROOSEVELT RENAISSANCE 2000

Introduction

What is Rooscvelt Renaissance 20007 In jis simplest sense, it is a program to

provide students of Portland's Roosevelt High School with the education and skills

10 succeed in the job market of the 215t centu ry. The program will do this by:

0 Identifying areas of economic growth for the 21st century and helping

students investigate careers pathways within those areas;

0 Identifying the skills that will be needed for careers in these pathways

and helping students develop them in the classroom and through on-

the-job projects.

0 Establishing standardized levels of performance for Ceruficates of

Initial and Advanced Mastery.

o Involving parents and the business community, and hroadening the

skills of the Roosevelt High School faculty.

Why are these changes being made 10 Roosevelt’s curticulum? As we are all

very much aware, America's educational system has received considerable attention.

The quality and relevance of education is often blamed for declining test scores,

high drapout rates, drug problems and America’s declining overall ecanomic

competitiveness.  The probiems at Roosevelt High School are not umque;

students are not finding the curriculum relevant to their lives and are losing interest.

During the 1989-90 schoot year Roosevelt had the highest absentee rate -- 13.4¢,

the highest dropout rate --16.1%, the highest suspension level -- 11.2% and the
highest expulsion level .- 4.16% 1n the Portland Public School District.
Nor is the curriculum relevant to the needs of students as future employees.

While the current curriculum focuses on preparing students to matriculate at a four

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



76

year iberal arts college, 81% of Roosevelt's students do not goon 10 a four-year
colleges upon graduation. They enter the work force.,

American business executives have drawn attention 10 deficiencies in basic
skills among prospective employees and the increasing need 10 re-educate those
peaple they hire. As David Kearns, the former chairman of Xerox, said “The
American work force is running out of qualified people. If current demographic and
economic trends continue, American business will have 1o hire a million new
warkers a year who cannot read, write or count.”

Recent studies also reinforce the call for a better educated, better trained

work force. For example, "America’s Choice: High Skills or Low Wages,” written

by the Commission on the Skills of the American Worker, presents an “aggressive
agenda 10 produce a better-educated, better trained work force." The Roosevelt
Renaissance 2000 program is designed to do just that and implements four of the
America’s Choice recommendations. They are:
o The integration of general studies with professional technical career
training,
A curriculum that includes a Certificate of Injtial Mastery based on
competency.
A cerriculum that will allow Roosevelt students to begin preparation
for empioyment immediately after high school graduation.
A curriculum that actively involves employers in the education and
training of students.
Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 is consistent with Oregon’s Educational Act for
the 21st century. This state-mandated legislation provides a framework for

restructuring the educational systems in Oregon. Briefly. key points of the Oregon

Educational Act are:
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All students can learn when offered appropriate opportunities, held
1o rigorous intellectual standards and expected 1o succeed.

A restructured educational system is necessary to achieve the state’s
goals of the best educated citizens in the nation by the year 2000 and a
work force equal to any in the world by 2010.

Now, I must point out that Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 preceded Oregon's
educatioral reform act by two years. Underlying both Rooseveli's program and
Oregon's act is the conviction that it will be in everyone’s best interest to re-focus
high school curricula on the skills needed to succeed in a changing society and work

environment.

How It Came About
How Did Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 Come About? It began in the Winter
of 1989. Teachers at Roosevelt committed themselves to finding solutions to their
students’ problems. To test their perceptions of the problems and what 1o do about
the m, they undertook a self study that included teacher and student surveys. They
found that:
[ Roosevelt's curriculum did not meet the needs of today's students.
] Students often did not see reievance between their class work and
their future.
Over 90% of Rouosevelt’s teachers believed that the curriculum would
better meet student needs if it had a vocational and technical thrust.
With these findings in hand, they initiated a five-phase process to restructure

the school and change the curricalum. In the remainder of this brief report, | would

like 1o describe those five phases to give you a feel for what has happened and what

will happen at Roosevelt High School.




Phase 1

In the first phase, a committee was formed to clarify the problems.
communicate them, and reach consensus on the shape of the solution. These efforts
were accomplished by the Roosevelt administration and staff with participation
from Oregon’s Department of Career and Technical Education, and the state’s
Bureau of Labor and Industry. As a result of these joint efforts, the Technical
Careers Preparation Planning Document was prepared. With in-kind contributions
from the Portland Public School District, this committee generated the Technical
Careers Preparation Planning Document, which launched Roosevelt Renaissance

2000 in March 1990.

Phase 2

The second phase occurred in December 1990 and set the stage for the rest
of the project by bringing together a group of people to direct the proj‘ccl.
Representatives from the following groups and organizations participated:

[+] Labor and industry

) Roosevelt teachers and administrators

) Bureau of Labor and Industry

0 Portland Public School District

0 Students and parents

Their meeting was organized around r\voix]or activities:

o A project planning seminar tn which a nationally known consultant
discussed project management. goal setting, and ways to generate
in..ovative ideas.

An all-day planning retreat and brainstorming session to identify goals
and objectives. During the retreat, the group elected the Advisory

Committee chairman,
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Since December 1990, people from these groups as well as Roosevelt
teachers and admuinistrators have worked together, volunteering thousands of hours
toward the common goal of restructuring Roosevelt’s curriculum.

In January of 1991 the program formed three of many teams that are

important to the success of this project:

o A restructuring team
o A teacher internship team
o A public relations team

The restructuring team concerns itself with curricular matters. It is made up
mostly of Roosevelt faculty members, but also includes employers.

The teacher internship team focuses on developing a summer internship
program that gives teachers work experiences with a variety of employers. This helps
faculty learn about carcer paths and prepares them to guide students in making
career choices. The teacher internship team is comprised of Roosevelt faculty and
industry representatives.  The public communications team has been primarily
concerned with developing a plan to educate the community about the mission of
the project and to cultivate support, internally and externally. It is led by public
relations and marketing professionals, and includes parents and teachers as well as
representatives from the community and Portland Public Schools. This team
prepared a thorough plan that was 1n place before the details of the curriculum

changes were worked out.

Phase 3
In the third phase, members of the restructuring team investigated similar
programs that had already begun. They also looked at research in the area of high

school curriculum reform. After that. they identified pathways in which careers

would be grouped. Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 sent teams of teachers to:
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o Woodland High School in California
o Mt. Edgecomb High School in Situ, Alasku
o Schenley High School in Pitisburgh
Teams also examined programs that were being started clsewhere in Oregon.
One team looked at the integration of the English curriculum with applied learning
at McKay High School in the Salem-Keiser school district. Another looked at how
students’ work experiences are linked to their course work at Hillsboro High School.
And yet another studied reports of other programs and research conducted at the
National Center for Research in Vocational Education in Berkeley, California.
Representatives from Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 have participated in numerous
conferences, seminars and workshops including:
o the Conference on Integrating Vocational and Academic Education
held in Beaver Creek, Colorado in August 1991
o the American Vocationa! Association Conference held in Los Angeles
in December, 1991
o two "Work Now and In the Future" conferences, held in Portland in

November 1990 and 1991.

Teacher Internships

Because few teachers have the opportunity to experience life in the business
sector, teacher internships were established. Last summer eight tea.hers interned in
businesses related to the Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 carcer pathways. These
teachers earned credits at Portland State University and are now training their
colleagues. By the end of next summer, teachers from each career pathway will have
interned at businesses within that pathway. Last year's teachers interned at:

0 Boeing, an aerospace company

o Providence, St. Vincent and Good Samaritan hospitals
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Metropolitan Electrical Contractor’s Association, a labor union
Portland General Electric, a utility company
‘Tektronix, In Focus Systems and Wacker Siitronics, high technology

companies.

Pathways
All this research, personal experience and input from industry gave the
Roosevelt teams insight in identifying career pathways that will provide the focus of
the new curriculum. To clarify the terminology, a pathway is an area of economic
growth in which several different career opportunities are and will be available.
During 1990-91 Roosevelt teams that included industry represematives and teachers
identified six pathways:
0 Information Systems and Processing: This includes data processing,
telecommunications, computer technology and office jobs.
Health and Human Services: This includes health care professions.
Manufacturing Technology and Engineering: This includes
electronics, construction and metal fabncation,
Natural Sciences and Resources: This includes environmental
services, resource management, fisheries and wildlife.
Professional, Public and Commercial Services: This includes banking,
retail, and services needed by government and the public sector.

Trade and Tourism: This includes import/export and hospitality.

Careers in Pathways

Let me be more specific about which careers are in these pathways. Take the

health and human services pathway. Here a number of career opportunities exist:
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nurse's aid, registered nurse, doctor, optometrist, pharmacaist, emergency medical
technician, and nutritionist, to name a few.

In manufacturing technology and engineering, carcers exist for tool and die
makers, metallurgists, welders, technicians and electricians.

In information systems and processing, carcer opportunitics include
compuler programmers, reeords technicians, bookkeepers, accountants and
auditors.

These are just a few of the carcers that will be open to Roosevelt students in

three of the pathways.

Phase 4

With the problems identificd and a consensus reached on the direction of a
solution what comes next? The fourth phase involves designing Rooscvelt’s new
curriculum. It will combine today’s academic program with the carcer-oriented,
applied learning approach just outlined. Applied lcarning will feature hands-on,
projeci-oriented assignments in which students learn the skills relevant to a career
and are assessed on the basis of their competency in the those skills.

Initially, the currictlum will seek to build a foundation of basic skills

(reading, writing, mathematical literacy) while instilling responsibility, self-csteem

and work ethic behaviors such as attendance and punctuality. Second, it will give
every student a skill set. Thinking skills such as how to understand complex
relationships, how 1o acquire and usc information, and how to understand new
technologies will be valuable no matter which career path a student selects. The
program will help each student develop interpersonal communication skills, much
sought after by today’s employers. Third but not least, Roosevelt tcachers will

provide carecr planning and guidance for all students.
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It i< interesting to note that when Roosevelt 2000 teams talked to companies
to find out which skills are most important, emplayers did not list career-specific
skills. Rather, they want employees who are responsible and flexible, and have good
communications skills. They want employees who can think through problems,
devise solutions and make decisions. Above all, they want employees who can work
in teams.

To ensure that every student learns the basic skills and is held to rigorous
intellectual standards, Roosevelt will establish a Certificate of Initial Mastery, or
CIM -- an assessment that every student must pass. This curriculum structure

implements Oregon's educational reform legislation.

rtificate of Initi
Every Roosevelt freshman beginning in September 1993 will be measured
against the standard set by the Certificate of Initial Mastery. Each freshman will
also receive an individual education plan. Because the goal of this program is to
educate students, not merely test them, students will have repeated opportunities to

earn their CIM during 9th and 10th grades.

Certificate of Advanced Mastery

The new Roosevelt curriculum will also include a Certificate of Advanced
Mastery, or CAM. In the 11th and 12th grades, students will concentrate on their
chosen career pathway, culminating in earning the CAM. This certificate will
establish rigorous standards for a higher level of performance in academic subjects
as well as competency in career-specific skills. Achieving the CAM will help
students prepare to enter the work force or further training by giving them the
foundation skills in their chosen career area, The CAM will also ensure thata

student is prepared to enter post secondary schools and colleges.

C’v'
c. .
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The shills and level of competency that must be demonstrated in order to
earn a CAM will be determined by input from the career pathway teams. These
teams include industry and labor partners, secondary and post-secondary teachers,
professional technical specialists from Oregon’s public agencies and Portland Public

Schools, parents, and students.

Phase §

The fifth and final phase of Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 is implementation.

As I have already mentioned, this begins in September 1992. Let me close by

outlining the consequences we envision.

The program will have an impact on the community:

[ Arca employers will see an influx of competent entry-level workers,
resulting in increased productivity, higher product quality, and a gain
in marketplace competitiveness.

Parents and guardians will participate with students in decision-
making at successive crossroads in students’ career pathways, leading
to a more cohesive home life.
The Roosevelt neighborhood wilt experience a resurgence of
community pride as its children graduate in higher numbers to better
futures.

The program will also affect the Roosevelt High School staff:

] The staff will become empowered as they rewrite the curriculum and
create programs, lessons, and a better school environment.

They will feel a sense of meaning as they restructure the school and

fulfill their mission as educators.
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They will form lasting pannerships with cmployers as they jointly
evatuate the affectiveness of classroom instruction, techniques, and
ways 10 improve students’ work—expe.rience oppnnunixies,

They will regularly upgrade {heir awareness of posx-secondary 1raining
programs through community colleges and private industry - and will
ensure that the Roosevelt curriculum meels the rcquiremems of such

programs.

And finatly, Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 will have an impact 0% students:

Swdents will become more excited about basi¢ academic subjects and
perform petter in work experiences a5 they leart 1he relevance of one
10 the other-

Students will be able 10 gauge how they aré progressing in their |
school-xo-work transition through feedback from on-the-job
experiences.

Every student will qualify for meaningful, well-paying jobs with 2
fuwure growih path, o7 will embark oP apath of further education and
training. .

More Roosevelt students witt graduate- And they' graduate with an

understanding of the importance of life-long education.

My colleague {name} from the portland Public school Board will provide more

£ the program‘s implemcmaxion‘
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THE ROOSEVELT RENAISSANCE 2000 CURRICULUM
The Curriculum

For students entering Roosevelt High School in September 1992 the
mulestones tn their education will be:

[ Selecting 2 career path

o Earning a Certificate of Initial Mastery

o Earning a Certificate of Advanced Mastery

But how will they spend their time on the way 10 those milestones? To put it
another way. how will the curriculum be structured?Briefly, freshman students will
spend most of their time on basic skills and part of their time on career pathway
exploration, culminating the year by choosing a carecr pathway.

During the sophomore year, half their time will be spent on basic skills. One
third of their time will be spent on applied academics, which means the integration
of basic skills with skills used in carcer pathways. The remainder of a student’s time
will be spent on skills specific to a chosen career. The year will culminate in earning
the CIM.

In the junior year, a student will have fewer courses in basic skills since most
students will have earned a CIM. There will be courses for specific career pathways
and structured work assignments will begin. Courses in basic skills will integrate
academics with pathway-related assignments. One-third of a student’s time will be
spent on basic skills, one-third on applied academics, and the remaining one-third
on carcer pathway courses and work experiences.

A senior wil be spend one-third of their time on applied academics, and the
remainder on basic skills, carcer courses, more structured work experiences, and
community college or college preparation. Seniors will probably take courses within
their career path at a community college, OR take courses to meet college

requirements. The senior year culminates in carning the Certificate of Advanced
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Mastcry. Seniors will have completed a portfolio, which includes project assessments

and recommendations from employers.

Restruciuring for Career Pathways

From the teachers’ viewpoint, one fundamental change brought by the
Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 program will be their dual status as part of a career
pathway and an academic department. A math teacher, for example, may aiso be
involved with the Information Systems and Processing pathway. We believe this
interdisciplinary status of teachers will lead 1o integrated input for each career path.
Pedagogically it will place teachers in a position 10 illustrate instrucuion of basic
skills with examples from careers and vice versa. In essence, it will make basic skill

mstruction relevant 1o students by relating to applications in careers.

Career Exploration: The First Year "Focus on Freshman” Course

Social studies courses will be used for career pathway explorations.
Freshman social studies teachers will all be team teaching the six freshman social
studies classes, partly o reinforce the value of organized work and learning.
Students also will work in teams throughout the year, and each team will be
dependent on another team for completing the project. Students will earn a half
unit of career education, which 1s required for graduation in Oregon, and 2 hzlf unit

of elective credit.

The Students’ View

From the students’ viewpoint, probably the tnost tmportant change to the

freshman year at Roosevelt will be the introduction surveys of career paths and the

teaching of essential learning skills. Students wilt investigate each pathway to

discover:
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Carecr possibilities within that pathway,

Opportunities for further education in each pathway.
Skills necessary for success in each pathway.

Current issues in each pathway.

Behavior necessary for success in the future -- team work,
adaptability, work ethic, and problem-solving.

Exploring career paths will involve six year-long projects, one for each
pathway. Each project will in turn have six steps in the form of a learning
experience. Students will participate in one step on each of the six projects, thus
being exposed 1o some aspect of each pathway. Teachers running a project will stay
with that project while students transfer from project to project. Students will also
work with all the freshman social studies teachers in a team teaching approach.

This will help students understand something about each pathway and sce
which pathway interests and motivates them most. Students will experience every
step in completing a project. Because each step will be in a different path way,
students will gain a good understanding of each career area.

Students will explore opportunities in career pathways by participating in
hands-on, task-oriented projects that will give them a chance 1o learn and practice
real world work place behaviors and skills. Activities may include visiting work sites
or inviting business people to Roosevelt to explain some aspect of their work. In the

first step of the project, for example, a business person might explain how businesses

typically start projects. Let’s 1ake an example of a project that might be in the

health and human services pathway. Let’s say the project is to survey the heaith
needs of students at Roosevelt:
) The first group of students may work on setting a goal for the project,
thus learning about the goal setting process and its value -- while

learning about the health and human services field.
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The second group of students may then investigate how to achieve
that goal, thus experiencing problem-solving and perhaps
brainstorming methods and their value. Again, this group would he
eaposed o the health and human services ficld.

The third group may develop the survey itself.

The fourth group may administer the survey and tally the resulis.

o The fifth group may analyze the results.

0 The sixth group may present the results to the student body.

Each activity in each step would impart the value of many work-related skills
such as research, organization, presentation, project management skills while
exposing every student to aspects of the field. Remember that the group of students
participating in the first step of the health and human services project would
proceed to the second step of the project in one of the cther pathways, and so forth.
This allows each student to understand something about each pathway in one
academic year.

Now that you have ar idea of what is to be done, here is what Roosevelt
High School expects 1o accomplish by this key curricular change. Students will:

o Recognize their own strengths and weaknesses and be able 10 apply

this knowledge to future life choices.
Unrderstand the skills necessary for success in a career and the work
place generally.

Select a carcer pathway.

Advocates and Mentors

In the new Rooseveli curriculum there will he advocates and mentors.

Teachers will take on the role of advocates and employers will 1ake on the role of

mentors.

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC
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livery student will have a teacher advocate starting their freshman year and
continuing throughout their four years at Roosevelt. Euch teacher will be an
advocate for three students and remain their advocate for all four high school years.
Students will mieet with their advocate twice a month for about 15 minutes. In
addition, advocates will phone parents once every other month for 10 minutes. The
purpose is to get the parents involved in their child's education as well as keeping
the advocate abreast of develepments in the home that may affect a student’s

learning.

Mentors

Every student will have an employcr mentor starting thetr sophomore year.

Once pathways are chosen, students will be matched up with employers in thcir
pathway. These one-on-one relationships will aid in learning as well as helping
students stay focused on their career goals. While employers have the skills
necessary to talk to students about careers. they may lack the skills needed to relate
1o teenagers effectively. The Business Youth Exchange has a traiming program for
mentors and has made it available 10 Roosevelt. The Business Youth Exchange will
also help match up an appropriate mentor with each student. Mentors will help
students through structured, real work experiences. In addition to mentors, work
experience aspects of the program wilt include:
o Field Trips: Each student will participate in at least two carecr
oriented field trips each year.
Job Shadows: All students will conduct job shadows throughout therr
four years of high school. “Job shadow" means following an employer
around the work place for one day.
‘Work Experiences: Each junior ard senior will participate in one

structured work experience per year, and will receive school credit for
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1. They will apply and interview for these positions, m much the same
wity they will pursue jobs ufter graduation.
Roosevelt will hire a career coordinator whose job it will be to:
[§ {dentify relevant job shadowing opportunities.
o Develop a process for matching studenis with job shadowing
opportunities.
0 Coordinate employer mentor programs.
(] Match individual students with individual mentors by January 1993.
Roosevelt’s students will be required to maintain a portfolio of seif-assessments of

job shadows, informational interviews, internships, and summer jobs.

How to Run a Project Like This

How does one get this kind of project off the ground? Primarily with an
extraordinary level of commitment from employers, parents, students, teachers, and
school administrators. The commitment we've received is evidence of the need for

change and the belief that we will succeed.

Linking Business and Education

Representatives from labor, industry and public sector employees provide a

direct link between the educational system and the employment sector. Maintaining

a large pool of such representatives is a key strategy for the success of the Roosevelt
Projeet. Why is involvement by employers crucial to the success of Roosevelt
Renaissance 20007 Because they work in the environments that the Roosevelt
project will explore. They offer a persp:  ive of the culture in which Roosevelt
students will spend most of their lives. They know the kinds of skills needed today
and how those skills will likely change in the future. Their participation is essential

to developing a realistic curriculum. With their participation, we will be able to
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graduate students with standards recognized by business and labor as well as post-
secondary apprenticeship programs. Their involvement in the new curriculum is

essential to prepare students 10 succeed in the 21st century work place.More

specifically, business people will be a key resource for implementing a number of

the Roosevelt project’s needs, including:
) On-site tours
0 On-site business experiences for teachers
Equipment for training
Jobs for students
Transportation to job sites
0 Knowledge of the changing work place and technolngical advances
(] Classroom speakers
Business volunteers at Roosevelt have included representatives from:
The International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 48
The Bureau of Labor and Industry
Waggener Edstrom Public Relations
Cellular One, a communications company
Business Youth Exchange
Portland Public Schools
Asthur Anderser & Co., a leading accounting firm
Individual consultants volunteering professional services in
organizational development, business planning consultation, team-
building and grant writing.
As a result of the joint faculty and employer efforts toward planning for
Roosevelt Renaissance 2000, there are two current programs in place and plans for
many more next year. It's important to note that some of these programs have been

unexpected outcomes, due solely to the excitement and enthusiasm created since
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Roosevelt began working with the employer community. For example, two
programs that involve employers teaching at Roosevelt have already begun:

0 The Freshman Forum. Once a month, Portland eniployers come to
Roosevelt to conduct small-group seminars on career and life skills
issues. One seminar, for example, was aimed at helping ninth-grade
girls devetop the skills needed to conduct informational job interviews
and learn how to make the contacts necessary to explore carcer
options.

Career Speakers. This year's social studies classes have included
employers talking about career planning and making good career
choices.

Roosevelt's plans for 1992-93 school yezr include:

0 Developing work place skills. As the curriculum becomes more
project-oriented and focuses on the world of work, employers will
participate in teaching work place skills.

Informational interviews. This extensive program provides numerous
opportunities for students to conduct informational interviews and

gain perspective on the world of work.

The Teams

Numerous teams have been in place to conduct the research and the
activities that have brought Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 to where it is today. Most
teams include a mix of employers, teachers, parents, students, and other community
representatives. Virtually the entire Roosevelt staff is involved in Roosevelt
Renaissance 2000:

0 Currently, 90% of the teachers are serving on at least onc teain.

57-464 0 - 92 - 4

ERIC

Praiten by ERIC




Q

ERIC

r
Full Tt Provided by ERIC.

94

© Up totwo union representatives

@ A rcprcscn\aﬂve (rom Portland Community Coliepe
o (yne career counselor

[\ Up to three parents

Up to tWo students

parentl volvement m

Akey part of Roosevelt's success is involving the parents from the entite
Roosevelt cluster From the beginring. there have been three dedicated parents
:eprcseming the parcmai community and actively involved in project acuivities.
These parents = and others who have since hecome involved -- ar¢ spearheading the
effort to involve more parents and the faculty is working with them toward this end.

Activities have inctuded:

o Researching other programs that have successfully involved parents.
o Developing 8 public relations plan that addresses parents’ concerns.
[+ Holding open forums for paremts of middle school students.

a Incorporating parents into existing teams, working with the faculty

and business represemaxives.

Plans are underway secruit more parents for the Parent nvolvement
Team. Parents must participate and believe in the Roosevell Renaissance 2000
curriculum in order for it t0 succeed. Furthermore. parents ar¢ in the best position
to instill in their children the value of cducation and the importance of learning the
necessary skills that the program will teach. We expect Mmore parents will take the
time to get involved once the program is underway.
These teams are involved in

o Developing curriculum for the pathways.

0 Determining the types of classes offered within each pathway-
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Defining staff development needs to enable teachers 10 effectively
guide students throvgh these career pathways.

Creating a Certificate of Advanced Mastery for each pathway.

The 2020 Site Commitige

This committce coordinates activities supported by Oregon House Bill 2020.
This legislation gives teachers funds to investigate and carry out school
improvement projects that give faculty members greater responsibility and
accountability. The commitice consists of teachers, a principal, classified district

employces, administrators, and parents.

Public Relations Team
The Public Communications team’s overall charter is to educate the
community about Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 and to cultivate support. The team

has laid out a comprehensive public relations program to inctease the program’s

visibility. The program calls for a variety of communications vehicles, including

presentations, written and audio-visual materials, special events, press coverage and
pubiic meetings. This committee has proactively addressed concerns that Roosevelt
Renaissance 2000 wili be a "blue collar track. ™ It has also increased awareness that

future jobs will require highly technical skills.

Key Functions in the Program’s Developmeng

To make Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 succeed, certain key functions had 1o
be filled. The first was a project manager/coordinator. This had to be a full-time
person with professional experience managing large, complex projects. It has to be
someone who can work with a wide variety of people and organizations. Someone

who has the ability to establish rapport with faculty as well as employers.
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A business liaison is nceded to mohilize business and industry involvement.
This involves recruiting and coordinating volunteers from the business community.
The liaison also solicits the active cooperation of government agencics and
resources. Portland Public Schools provided a business parinership manager to fill
that role. It also provided representatives from key departments, such as the Career
Technical Professional Department. In Roosevelt's case, this department made Carl
Perkins funds available for program research.

A strong program chairman to articulate a vision and lay out a strategy t0
move toward it is essential. This person must have the passion and strength to
motivate others through the long and arduous path of educational reform. At
Roosevelt, we were fortunat2 to find such a volunteer. Our chairman is a long-time
Oregonian and a vice president at an Oregon-based high technology company.

Representatives of post-secondary educational institutions must be involved
early in the process to ensure coordination. Community colleges can provide job
training and s‘udents can take classes there in their pathway to earn a Certificate of
Advanced Mastery. Professors and students from Portland State University's
Department of Education go to Roosevelt High School to conduct courses for
teachers in curriculum writing.

First-rate public relations professionals have made a significant contribution
to moving Roosevelt's program forward. Su :cess in implementing a major
curriculum revision requires PR professionals, particularly when the program is
leading the way in a public school district. Roosevelt High School is fortunate to
have several volunteers from both the private and public sectors.

Collaboration with a skilled grant writer is necessary to acquire funding.
Roosevelt Renaissance 2000 has received four grants amounting to $230,000 from
state, federal and private sources. The more skilled the writer, the better the odds

when competing for funds.
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Consultants to assist in team-building, project management, and
organization:d development and change are all helpful. These people will often

volunteer their time and skills, in whole or in part, as ihey have for us.

Wrap-Up: The Rooscvelt Renaissanee 2000 Vision
With the support of qualified professionals -- both paid and volunteer --
Roosevelt High School has built a solid foundation for future growth. By 1996,

Roosevelt graduates will be prepared to pursue a career of their choice -- whether

that mcar&funher technical training, a four-year college program, or an early place

in the work force. By 1996, more students will walk out Roosevelt's doors as
graduates, and fewer as dropouts. These graduates will have a better understanding
of the work place and a broader range of skills. The will face the future with

confidence. And they'il have the tools 1o continue life-long learning.
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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON STATE SCHOOL-TO-
WORK TRANSITION PROGRAMS

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 17, 1992

HoUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
-SUBCOMMITTEE 6N EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES,
COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10:10 a.m., Room
2261, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Carl C. Perkins, Chair-
man, presiding.

Members present: Representatives Perkins, Olver, and Gunder-
son.

Also present: Representative Roukema.

Staff present: Omer Waddles, counsel/staff director; John Fitzpa-
trick, clerk/legislative analyst; Mary Gardner Clagett, professional
staff member; and Jo-Marie St. Martin, education counsel.

Chairman PErkINs. At this time we would like to have the Em-
p{oyment Opportunities Subcommittee hearing come to order,
please.

As the United States prepares to enter the 21st century, we are
faced with the challenge of adapting our workforce into a highly
trained, flexible pool of workers able to adapt to the evolving needs
of industry. A revolution in how we view worker training and edu-
cation will be necessary if the 1J.S. is to remain competitive in the
global marketplace. Schooi-to-work transition programs offer the
chance to harness the abilities of our noncollege-bound youths in a
structured system leading to skill certification and ultimately a
good job in a growing field.

In our last hearing we examined four exciting programs taking
place at the local ievel. One common theme which emerged was
the importance of bringing different groups together. We heard
that the most successful programs were the ones which brought in-
dustry, labor, and education to the table early on in the discussion
and solicited input from these diverse points of view. These sepa-
rate groups operating at the local level were able to overcome the
tensions and suspicions we often see concerning these issues.

Today we will look at several of the most progressive States in
the country in this area and hear how they are establishing sys-
tems to better serve the noncollege-bound youth, the forgotten half.
We will hear from representatives from Maine, Oregon, and Wis-
consin this morning, three States from distinctly different regions
of the country. There is a great deal of diversity at the State level

(99)
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where each State is creating a system which will fit the unique
needs of its own industries, workers, and employers.

As Congress develops guidelines for school-to-work transition pro-
grams, we must look to labor for technical expertise and take ad-
vantage of their practical, hands-on experience in training young
people for the labor market. As we strive to create new systems of
youth apprenticeship, we must protect the existing apprenticeship
pregrams and try to build off and link them to the new programs
we will establish for students. High standards, accountability, and
the guarantee of a portable, certified credential upon successful
completion are the hallmarks of existing apprenticeships.

As Congress develops comprehensive legislation, we need to ex-
amine some of the legitimate concerns which have been raised
about school-to-work transition programs. We need to ensure the
health and safety of our youngsters as well as the jobs of existing
workers. The recent events in many of our Nation’s cities offer
stark evidence of what the future holds unless we can break the
cycle of hopelessness and poverty too many of our young people are
stuck in.

I applaud the efforts of my friend and colleague, Mr. Gunderson,
for his efforts in crafting legislation in this area. I am also pleased
to welcome Congressman Tim Valentine, and a little bit later on, I
think, Congressman Dave McCurdy is going to be joining us. I will
be working closely with Congressmen Gunderson, Valentine,
McCurdy, and others as I develop my own legislation that will be
introduced in the next couple of weeks.

We would also like to welcome our former colleague on the
House Education and Labor Committee, now Governor of Maine,
Jock McKernan—John—it is good to have you with us this morn-
ing.

My bill will include important pieces from their legislation and
more ideas from other members whose work on this issue precedes
my own involvement. I look forward to hearing from Bob Jones
from the Department of Labor, whom I have worked with on a va-
riety of issues as Chairman. I know the Department has been in-
volved in funding State projects in this area and recently conduct-
ed a series of public hearings on school-to-work transition as well
as currently assisting with the President’s youth apprenticeship
legislation.

As we proceed with the hearing today, I hope the witnesses will
address some specific questions. First, how do we encourage other
States to follow your lead and begin to develop their own school-to-
work transition systems? Second, having been involved at the State
level in the creation of successful ;.~ograms, how did you build a
working coalition of industry, labor, education, and the State? Fi-
nally, what mistakes did you make that we at the Federal level
might learn from? We look forward to your testimonies this morn-
ing and anticipate learning how the Federal Government can help
States develop successful school-to-work transition programs.

[The prepared statement of Chairman Perkins follows:]
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StATEMENT OF Hon. CaRL C. PERKINS, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE
StaTe oF KENTUCKY

As the United States prepares to enter the 21st century, we are faced with the
challenge of adapting our workforce into a highly trained, flexible pool of workers
able to adapt to the evolving needs of industry. A revolution in how we view worker
training and education will be necessary if the U.S. is to remain competitive in the
global marketplace. Many of us believe the transformation must begin with the way
we educate our students, especially the 50-75 percent who do not attend or complete
college. To neglect the potential of this portion of our young people is to doom our
Nation and the majority of its population to second ciass status. School-to-work
transition programs offer the chance to harness the abilities of our non-college
bound youths in a structured system leading to skill certification, and ultimately a
good job in a growing field.

In our last hearing we examined four exciting programs taking place at the local
level. One common theme which emerged was the importance of bringing different
groups together; we heard that the most successful programs were the ones vhich
brought industry, labor, and education to the table early on in the discussio' . and
solicited input from these diverse points of view. These separate groups operating at
the local level were able to overcome the tensions and suspicion we often see con-
cerning this issue.

Today we will look at several of the most progressive States in the country in this
area, and hear how they are establishing systems to better serve their non-college
bound youth, their “forgotten half.” We will hear from representatives from Maine,
Oregon, and Wisconsin this morning, three States from distinctly different regions
of the country. There is a great deal of diversity at the State level where each State
is creating a system which will fit the unique needs of its own industries, workers,
and employers.

We will hear how States on the cutting edge of school-to-work transition have
overcome the historical barriers between industry, labor, and education, and arrived
at a consensus on a statewide system to reach out to non-college bound youth.

This morning we have a representative of the building trades joining us from the
United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Joiners. As we begin to encourage the devel-
opment of school-to-work transition programs, it is my desire that Congress look for
guidance to the groups who have the longest history of operating apprenticeship
programs, the construction and building trades. Union-operated apprenticeship pro-
grams have for generations invested time and money in training non-college bound
youth for productive careers.

As Congress develops guidelines for school-to-work transition programs, we must
look to labor for technical expertise and take advantage of their practical, hands-on
experience in training young people for the labor market. As we strive to create
new systems of youth apprenticeship, we must protect the existing apprenticeship
programs, and try to build off and link them to the new programs we will establish
for students. High standards, accountability, and the guarantee of a portable, certi-
fied credential upon successful completion are the hallmarks of existing apprentice-
ships. We can develop a uniquely American brand of school-to-work transition by
not only borrowing ideas from European models, but also taking a long, hard look at
the only successful programs we have operating in our own country.

As Congress develops comprehensive legislation we need to examine some of the
legitimate concerns which have been raised about school-to-work transition pro-
grams. We need to insure the health and safety of our youngsters, as well as the
jobs of existing workers. The recent events in many of our Nation’s cities offers
stark evidence of what the future holds unless we can break the cycle of hopeless-
ness and poverty too many of our young people are stuck in.

It would be unrealistic of us in creating national legislation to not include &ll in-
terested parties in its development. I applaud the efforts of my {riend and colleague,
Mr. Gunderson for his efforts in crafting legislation in this area, and I look forward
to working with him in developing a bipartisan proposal. I am also pleased to wel-
come Congressman Valentine and Congressman McCurdy as witnesses this morn-
ing. 1 will be working closely with Congressmen Gunderson, Valentine, McCurdy
and others, as I develop my own legislation which will be introduced in the next 2
weeks. My bill will include important pieces from their legislation, as well as ideas
from other members whose work on this issue precedes my own involvement. I also
look forward to hearing from Bob Jones, from the Department of Labor, whom I
have worked with on a variety of issues as Chairman. I know the Department has
been involved in funding State projects in this area, and recently conducted a series
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of public hearings on school-to-work transition, as well as currently assisting with
the President’s Youth Apprenticeship legislation.
As we proceed with the hearing today I hope the witnesses will address some spe-
cific questions. First. how do we encourage other States to follow your lead and
begin to develop their own school-to-work transition systems? Second, baving been
involved at the State level in the creation of successful programs, how did you build
a working coalition of industry, labor, education, and the State? Finally, what mis-
takes did you make that we at the Federal level might learn from? We look forward
to your testimonies this morning, and we anticipate learning hew the Federal Gov-
ernment can help States develop successful schocl-to-work transition programs.

Mr. Gunderson, do you have an opening statement?

Mr. GunpersoN. Well, I do, Mr. Chairman, and it’s a brilliant
opening statement that I think you all will want to read. I'm going
to ask unanimous consent that it be inserted into the record be-
cause I'm aware that other members, including myself, do want to
attend the Yeltsin joint session at 11 o’clock.

So my comments are going to go into the record and allow us to
move expeditiously, but I want to join you in welcoming our former
colleague and friend, now Governor McKernan, who had enough
intelligence to leave before this political meltdown in Congress
happened to the rest of us, and I also want to pay special recogni-
tion to my colleague from Wisconsin, Mr. Billups, who is here to
tell you about one of our most progressive youth apprenticeship
programs in the country.

Thank you.

[The prepared stctement of Mr. Gunderson follows:]

STATEMENT OF HON. STEVE GUNDERSON, A REPRESENTATIVE iIN CONGRESS FROM THE
STATE OF WISCONSIN

Mr. Chairman, first I want to thank you for conducting today’s hearing on the
important issue of developing a national system of school-to-work transition and
youth apprenticeship programs. This is the second hearing that the subcommittee
has held on this issue, and I hope that it will lead to enactment of enabling legisla-
tion this year.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank those witnesses who are ap-
pearing before us this morning. We have a very distirguished group of individuals
who will be providing us with testimony here today, representing varied interests in
development of Federal legislation in the school-to-work area. We will hear from
States who have already led the Nation in development of school-to-work systems;
Members of Congress who have developed legislation with the goal of assisting
States and lecal areas to develop these programs; Assistant Secretary Bob Jones,
who will provide us with insight on the President’s “National Youth Apprenticeship
Act” legislation; and representatives of organizations who have been intricately in-
volved in development of school-to-work and youth apprenticeship model programs.

At this point, I would like to pay a very special welcome to two leaders in youth
apprenticeship from States in the forefront on these issues. First, I want to welcome
back to this committee, my good friend and former colleague, now Governor of the
State of Maine, Governor McKernan. We look forward to your testimony, providing
us with insight on Maine’s efforts to establish a youth apprenticeship program. We
also welcome your insight as Chairman of the National Governors’ Association's
Human Resources Committee, as well as an active member of numerous other com-
missions dealing with issues of the workforce, on what the role of the Federal Gov-
ernment should be to assist States in development of such programs. I also want to
take a moment to welcome Mr. LaMarr Billups, Director of Wisconsin's Apprentice-
ship Office. Through his leadership, as well as that of Governor Tommy Thompson,
State Superintendent of Schools, Bert Grover, and other key State officials, Wiscon-
sin is one of the first States in the Nation to have youth apprenticeship and school
reform laws on the books, and programs underway. I want to thank Mr. Billups for
coming today, and acknowledge from the start, that the legislation that Mr. Good-
ling and I introduced earlier this year, H.R. 4976, the ‘‘School-to-work Transition
and Youth Apprenticeship Act,” was built in large part on the Wisconsin Youth Ap-
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prenticeship model. ] am pleased to note once again, that Wisconsin is taking the
lead in the Nation on a truly important issue, that of tying school to the workplace.

As all in attendance here today are aware, the U.S. educational system does not
adequately prepare our Nation’s youth for the workplace. While only 50 percent of
U.S. youth go on to college, and only 20-25 percent of all youth complete 4-year de-
grees, U.S. schools continue to be disproportionately geared toward meeting the
needs of the college-bound. Very little attention is paid to bridging the gap between
school and work.

Today’s hearing should provide us with a great deal of information as to what
exactly is needed to develop a comprehensive and effective school-to-work transition
program in the United States. We should also determine how far we should go in
development of a national youth apprenticeship system, and relat=d to both of these
areas, the direction we should take in development of national, industry-recognized
skill standards.

I want to take a moment to recognize the President’s and the Department of
Labor’s efforts in this whole area of school-to-work transition. It has largely been
through DOL’s youth apprenticeship demonstrations, and theirs and the Education
Department’s efforts to identify the skill standards needed in today’s workplace,
that we have learned of the importance of developing a national school-to-work
system, with the attainment of applicable skill standards. The President’s “National
Youth Apprenticeship Act” legislation that we will be hearing about more from Sec-
retary Jones, is right on target. This legislation has the gogf of ensuring that high
school participants receive academic instruction, job training, and work experience,
resulting in not just a high school diploma, but also a portable certificate of compe-
tency. This sort of a program would enable youth to qualify for a postsecondary pro-
gram, a registered apprenticeship, or employment at program completion. In fact,
the bill which Mr. Goodling and I introduced earlier this year, as well as those
measures developed by the members represented here today, work to develop school-
to-work systems with very similar goals to those listed above. Enactment of such
Federal legislation would enable States and local areas to develop & svstem through-
out the country whereby both college-bound and non-college-bound youth are treat-
ed equitably in our Nation's schools. A system in which the U.S. will gain through
preparation of the Nation’s workforce, thus increasing our ability to compete in the
international marketplace.

I commend all who testify here today on the hard work that they have already
put into this effort. I look forward to hearing your testimony, and welcome your
recommendations on where we should go with Federal legislation in this area.

Chairman Perkins. Thank vou, Steve.

Congresswoman Roukema, do you have an opening statement
this morning?

Mrs. Roukema. No, I do not, but I do appreciate being here as a
guest today. I am not technically a member of this subcommittee,
but I am here because of my longstanding interest in apprentice-
ship programs, which cf course is directly related to your school-to-
work transition concepts. There is an essential linkage in my mind
between secondary education with which we deal on the full com-
mittee and apprenticeship programs.

The second reason that I am here is because of my longstanding
respect and admiration for Governor McKernan. You know, Mr.
Chairman, and the rest of the panel understands this, but I want
everyone in the audience to know, that Governor McKernan has
been a national leader—indeed, I think he is becoming an interna-
tional leader—on the subject of apprenticeship programs and has
taken an initiative in his State that is to be admired and respected
throughout the rest of the country.

I am here to listen, to learn, and to take back to the other sub-
committee the benefits of what we are hearing here today and look
forward to this as it should be, on a bipartisan basis, the leading
thrust of educational reform. I don’t know what we quite mean by
“Education 2000” or some of the other concepts. This is something
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concrete that, on a bipartisan basis, we can get a hold of now. We
cannot wait any longer. We have waited too many decades already.

Thank you, Governor McKernan, for being here today.

Chairman Perkins. Thank you, Mrs. Roukema, for your opening
statement.

At this time we would like to turn initially to our former col-
league and now Governor of the State of Maine, the Honorable
John McKernan.

John.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN R. McKERNAN, JR., GOVERNOR, STATE
OF MAINE, AUGUSTA, MAINE

Governor McKERNAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Perkins, Representative Gunderson, Representative
Roukema, let me say how much I appreciate the opportunity to tes-
tify today on what I think is probably the most critical issue that is
facing this country in terms of our competitiveness today, and I
want to congratulate all of you in Congress for having the foresight
to understand the importance of this issue and to take the steps
that this subcommittee is taking.

You have gathered the right people, in my view, for this hearing.
Bob Jones, speaking for the administration, clearly has been one of
the motivating forces in the executive branch on this issue, and the
States that you have represented here as well as Jobs For the
Future, which really can give you a good look at what is happening
around the States can give you. I think, a better idea of the kind of
experimentation and pilot programs that are going on.

I have filed with you lengthy testimony, which you will all be
pleased to know that I am not going to read, but I did want to
make that a part of the record.

Let me just summarize why I think this issue is so important
and what we are trying to do about it Maine.

The first thing to understand is that two-thirds of the jobs that
are being created in this country, whether it is in Ma.ne or most
other States, require more than a high school education. The prob-
lem with that statistic is that two-thirds to three-quarters of the
kids who are coming out of our high schools are not even graduat-
ing from our high schools and are not going on to postsecondary
education. You don’t have to be a math major to figure out that
that is a prescription for disaster.

We in Maine are trying to do some things about that. We have
now increased the number of students who are going on to postsec-
ondary education from about 48 percent to 57 percent. That still
means, however, when you figure out our dropout rate plus the
number of kids who are not going on to postsecondary education
that we have two-thirds of the kids who start in kindergarten who
are, in fact, not getting anything past high school at a time when
two-thirds of the jobs require more than a high school education.

The question is, what do we do about that?

Since I have been Governor, I have become chairman of a group
called Jobs for America’s Graduates, a school-to-work transition
program, as well as the Education Commission of the States, where
we are looking at true systemic reform in education.
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The Jobs for America’s Graduates Program really gives us an in-
sight into the importance of school-to-work transition. We are able,
through the major program that we have in that organization,
which is a 12th grade school-to-work transition program for at-risk
kids, with the toughest 20 percent of the class, we are able to
achieve through 9 months of working with these kids in their
senior year a 90 percent graduation or GED rate within 9 months
after graduation and an 80 percent successful completion rate with
ii_icsiher a job or postsecondary education or the military with these

ids.

So it shows that if we are willing as policymakers to focus on this
issue that we can make a difference, even as late as 12th grade.

What we have found, however, in the 13 years that this program
has been operating in 19 different States and 350 schools is that
the idea of a quality job has changed in that intervening 13 years
and it is no longer a prudent policy to only focus on 12th graders
and move them into the workforce because, frankly, kids need
greater skills now than they needed 13 years ago, and therefore we
are looking for ways to enhance the skills that these young people
have when they move into the workforce.

That brought us to a trip to Germany and Denmark last winter,
and we looked at the youth apprenticeship programs in those two
countries. I came away with two thoughts that I hope will drive
your thinking on Federal legislation. One is the reason that youth
apprenticeship programs work in Europe is because of a whole
change of attitude. In fact, in Europe what we would view as the
noncollege-bound kids are taking courses that are meaningful to
them, that are going to lead to something that they actually want
to do, whereas if you look at the noncollege-bound kids in tkis
country, the last 2 years, at least, in high school, if not the last 3
years, they are taking courses that, to them, are irrelevant to any-
thing that they want to do and, to most people who would hire
them after they finish high school, are irrelevant as well.

So why would any of these kids who are not in the college-bound
courses want to do well in school or even want to study? I don’t
know about the rest of you; when I was in high school, I knew I
was going to go to college; there was plenty that I didn’t want to
study that I did, because I knew some admissions officer was going
to be interested in how I did. .

Well, kids who aren’t in the college-bound courses never had that
fear of having anybody look at how they did in any of those courses
because they knew that nobody out there really cared how they did
either. So the first thing we have to do is realize that we have to
make education more meaningful for literally half of our students
because today, frankly, it is not.

The second issue that is critical to the success of youth appren-
ticeship programs in Europe is the fact that people who take that
route are respected in their community. They have status for
having achieved that apprenticeship certificate.

We came back from Europe saying how couid you do that in
America. I mean since World War II and the GI bill, we have told
everybody in this country that you ought to go to college. It is
going to be very hard now, 50 years later, to say, ‘I guess we were
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wrong; you don’t really have to go to college after all.” That is a
nonstarter as far as I'm concerned.

We have to find a way to make sure that people understand the
importance of education and of lifelong learning if they want to
have a successful career in any occupation because what used to be
low or unskilled jobs no longer exist and those are all turning into
at least semiskilled, if not more highly skilled, jobs to pay the
wages that we want to pay in this country.

So when we got back we decided that we had to design a new
program, a program that would get at the root of the success in
Europe and yet would also Americanize the youth apprenticeship
program in a way that allowed us to understand what was happen-
ing in America in terms of a changing economy.

I have furnished all of you with this brochure on a program
which we established in Maine, a Center for Youth Apprenticeship
at Southern Maine Technical College. It describes both the reason
this is important as well as sort of a little schematic on how the
program works, and 1 think that is as easy a way to understand
what we are talking about, and let me just summarize that for you,
because it does get at the Americanization of a youth apprentice-
ship program.

[The brochure follows:]
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Governor McKEerRNAN. In the 10th grade we believe that kids
ought to have to pass a test in order to get into a youth apprentice-
ship program; it ought not to be a dumping ground. We ought to
make sure that kids know how to read, write and think, and once
they can demonstrate that, then they ought to be able to move into
a pti:)gram that is going to start to prepare them for the world of
work.

We also believe, however—and this is sort of with my education
hat on—it is time that in this country we stopped testing kids to
find out who weren’t going to make it and, rather, tested them to
figure out whom we needed to give more help to so they could
make it. So that this 10th grade test is one that will be given every
year, and you can take it in 11th, 12th, 18th, 14th, 15th, 16th grade,
if you want to, and when you pass it, you can then enter this ap-
prenticeship program; you can take it as many times as it takes.
We ought to be working with kids to get their skills up if they
don’t pass it in 10th grade, so they can pass it in 11th grade.

Assuming they pass the test, we will then have an opportunity
for kids to enter a 3-year apprenticeship—3-year—11th, 12th, and
13th grade. It will be 20 weeks in school, 30 weeks working for an
employer under a 3-year contract, with the school knowing what
they are supposed to be teaching the youngster who is doing the
apprenticeship and the business knowing what it is that they are
supposed to be teaching the youngster while that youngster is an
apprentice working toward being able at the end of the 3 years to
pass a practicum, a test that is designed by people either in that
industry or that occupation group that allows an apprentice to
demonstrate that they are, in fact, able to do the work that they
are going to get a certificate that says they are able to do.

Where our program really becomes Americanized, though, is that
even though in the 11th and 12th grades they will be spending
their 20 weeks in school and if they are making satisfactory
progress they will receive a high school degree, the 13th year will
be a first year of technical college, so that, in fact, the academic
work will be done in one of our technical or community colleges
instead of in ¢the high school for that third year. At the end of the
third year, they will get not only the certificate from the industry
group but also a l-year college degree, which will be half way
toward an associate degree in that community college or technical
college or perhaps make them a second-semester freshman at the
university if they want to transfer over there, because we need to
open up new opportunities for young people, not just pigeonhole
them in different tracks.

The way we plan on funding this is to have each youngster re-
ceive at least the minimum wage. But they would not be consid-
ered employees; that money would be paid for the time that they
were working—the minimum wage times the number of hours they
were working—would be paid to the Center for Youth Apprentice-
ship. That Center would then distribute the amount of money that
they would be earning during that year over 52 weeks to the
youngster, so they would be getting somewhere around $88 to $90 a
week whether they were working or whether they were in school,
because they are now part of a program that they ought to consid-
er to be a 52-week obligation, obviously with vacation but also their

i




112

school work being just as important as their work for their employ-
er.

We will then require an increase of about a dollar an hour in the
third year. The apprentice might get 25 cents out of that dollar,
the other 75 cents going to pay for a free first year of technical col-
lege, so that the student never has to pay for any of the education
that he or she is receiving, be it in the 11th or 12th grade or in
that 13th grade year.

We are going to begin a pilot program with 60 kids this coming
fall. We will have 20 percent of our high schools participating in
1993, 50 percent in 1994, 80 percent in 1995, and 100 percent of our
high schools in the year that begins in 1996.

Let me just briefly tell you what you can do to be helpful. The
administration has been extremely helpful in giving us a grant to
begin the work of encouraging employers to participate and to help
set the standards for this program. I think that Federal legislation
could also be helpful not only to use but in replicating the model
and getting other States involved in what, as I have said earlier, 1
think is the most critical issue to our ccmpetitiveness that we face.

First, legislation should encourage flexibility in the delivery
system so that States can individualize their programs for maxi-
mum results in their particular States. Second, the Congress could
help in encouraging the development of national standards for ap-
prenticeship programs across broad occupational lines because,
after all, we want to enhance the total skill of the workforce to
make sure that we are internationally competitive. Those ought to
be national-—probably international—standards that are generally
agreed upon.

Third, we should encourage links and ﬂexibiliti between pro-
grams in both the Departments of Education and Labor. Without
those two Departments working closely together, this will never
become a widespre=2 part of our education and training efforts.

Fourth, the Congress should consider incentives for businesses to
participate in youth apprenticeship programs and encouragement
as well for workers to serve as on-site trainers.

Fifth, Congress may want to consider some changes as well and
clarifications in the child labor laws that govern safety standards
in the workplace, and particularly around hazardous occupations; I
think that needs to be addressed. .

Sixth, Congress should encourage research so that our Nation
can remain ahead of the curve in education and we can share what
we are learning in the different pilot programs.

Seventh—and I think this is an important one, perhaps as impor-
tant as any of the others—we need to avoid limiting funding for
just disadvantaged kids. This ought not to be a program for disad-
vantaged kids. A prc:fram that I chair, Jobs for America’s Gradu-
ates, does deal with disadvantaged young people, and we are going
to be looking at a ninth and 10th-grade program to get those kids’
skills up so that they can pass this 10th-grade test. This ought to be
a program that is worthy of anyone, regardless of what they might
want to do in the future but, rather, is a career option that ought
to be respected in our society, and everybody ought to be entitled to
try it, and we ought to be using other programs to get the skills of
at-risk kids up so they can qualify for this program.
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Finally, we need direct links between apprenticeships in our in-
stitutions of higher learning if we are serious about creating a soci-
ety of lifelong learners. I think that Congress can appropriately ad-
dr3ss many of these issues and give us the leadership that is going
to allow more States to start participating, which will benefit citi-
zens all across this country.

I want to just again congratulate the subcommittee for address-
ing what I think is just a very, very imporiant issue, and I com-
mend the Chairman for his leadership.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Governor McKernan follows:]
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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON STATE SCHOOL-~TO-WORK TRANSITION |PROGRAMS
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WASHINGTON, D.C.
1

Chairman Perkins, Members of the Committee, Honored Guests:

1 am John McCKeznan, Governor ¢f the State of Maine. I
serve as Chairman of the Zducation Commission of the States,
Chairman of the National Jobs for America's Graduates‘s
program, and also Chairman of the Nationa" Governors
Agsociation Committee on Human Reszources, which oversees
education policy for the governors. I also serve as a member
of the Secretary of Labor‘s National Advisory Commission on
Work-Based Learning. I would like to thank you for giving me
the opportunity to testify before you today. Allow me to begin
by commending this Committee and the Congress for working with
the States to expand opportunities for all of our youth, and
especially those who 4o not plan to go on to college.

IMPROVIRG OUR SYSTEM OF EDUCATION

Our system of education in America has for generafions been
the envy of the world. Not surprisingly, graduates from
American colleges and univergities continue to set the' standard
for educational excellence and higher learning worldwide.
Sadly, however, only a fraction of our students, about twenty
percent, actually complete college.

For many years, thet 4idn't maiter, Students who ended
their education in high school wexre able to enter a workforce
that depended on hard work but limited skills. They could
count on reporting to the mill or the factory in town, and
making a good living. And in many ways, our education system
was built on the assumption that those students who completed
college would create enough jobs to employ those who did not.
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In an increasingly compoqitive global economy, howaver, it
is clear that that assSumption is flawed. Too many students
£fail to see how what they learn in school relates to their
future. Those of us who continued our education into collage
knew that even though one of lour classes seemed unimportant,
our grades would matter to cqllege advisors and admissiong
officers. ¥or the eighty percent of students who 4o not go on
to college ~-- and especially,) for the 700,000 who drop out of
school each year ~- there wag no subtle encourageément to do
better. For themn, education;incroasinqu seas irrelevant, and
we have s3een it in the results of tests like the Maine
Educational Assessment tests,) which show a growing knowledge
gap between college~bound and non-college bound students.

I believe that for the majority of our students, our
education system can, ana muqt, do better.

i
TRAIRING A AIGH-SKILLS WORKFORCE

At the same time, our nation is facing a skills shortage of
alarming proportions, and thg jobs wita which we grew up change
before our eyes. Fifty years ago, close to half of the workers
in our country worked in manufacturing; today, manufacturing
accounts for just over 20 perxcent of our jobs. More and more
repatitive, unskilled jobs are being aviomated. There is a
quickly growing need for occupations that require technical and
8kill training simply not provi@ed in schools., Of the jobs
created in this decade, 75% will require education beyond high
school; 85% will require skills that our high schools do not
currently provide. .

And there are growing siqns that business is giving up on
our education system. The Magaziner report indicataed that 50%
of bugsinesses consider a high school diploma as an indication
of staying power and applicant reliability, not a demonstration
of skills. A survey of corporate human resource officers
indicated that only 48% of those surveyed thought their
employees could be retrained .at all. Clearly, the gap between
what our schools teach and what businesses need has grown too
wide. Too many employers begieve that young people are simply
not prepared for entry-levellor more technically skilled
occupations. .

I believe that we must 4o better at educating our
children. More young people need to be given technical skills
that can ground them in the Labor market while meeting the
needs of business. And it is clear that their skills must be
measured against specific budiness and education standards.
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i
BETTER EDUCATING AT-RISK AND DISADVANTAGED YOUNG PEOPLE

I serve as Chairman of Jébs for America's Graduates, which
for 13 years has served at-risk and disadvantaged young
people. I believe that JAG's experience with more than 100,000
students demonstrates conclusively that our naticn can do a
better job for at-risk youth. JAG currently achievex a 90
percent ¢graduation or GED rate within nine months of the
students’ normal graduation for some of our nation’'s most
disadvantaged young people. ‘We assist 80 percent of these
young people into either a job, the military. or post-secondary
training -- nearly double the rate achieved by similar youth
not in our program.

JAG accomplishes all of this at less than half the national
average cost of similar youth employment programs, most of
which do not offer our aine-months of follow-up. Our research
shows that these young people more than repay the complete
school and job placement costs of this program, about $2,500,
through taxes alone -- and without taking into considerastion
costx in welfare, juvenile delinquency and other social costs
that our society might otherWwise have incurred.

JAG's experience shows thHat we a0 not need to give up on
this generation of youth: - irntervention as late as the 12th
grade can meke a decisive difference in educational outcomas.
I believe that if we can intarvane much earlier ~~ and if we
can ensure sducational relevince for all of our ycuth -- that
we can make sure that more young people are trained in the

skills they need.

That is why ve& in Maine Have developed our youth
apprenticeship model, and why Jobs for America's graduates wiil
be testinrg our model throughout ‘the nation in its network. I
bzlieve thot youth apprenticeship is an approach that will meet
the needs cf our youny people and our nation. I believe it is
essential to the future of owr country,

DEVELOPING THE MAINE YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM

As Chairman of Jobs for Amsrica's Graduates, I travelled in
January to Europe to study the educational systems in Germany
and Denmark, Youth apprenticeship in these nations is a
central component of the educational system. When I repturned
to Maine, I asked Maine Technical College System President John
Fitzgsimmons, who accompanied me in Denmark and Germany, to work
with the Maine Department of Education and Maine Department of
Labor to design a youth apprenticeship plan for Maine that
incorporates the bast aspects of the Danish and German models.
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Our design team ultimately included President Fitzsimmons,
my Commisgionerc of Education and Labor, several of their
daputies, and representatives of the University of Maine, the
Maine State Board of Bducation, my office, and Jobs for Maine's
Graduates. We developed a model based on the Danish and German
apprenticeship systems that offer students a combination of
classroom learning and real work experisnce by integrating
employers into the school experience. Throughout the design
process, our team met and worked with leaders of industry,
snall businesses, organized labor and teachers unions to make
sure that their concerns and ‘ideas wera taken into
consideration.

our youth apprenticeship program is driven by several
principles: . .
. The program incorporates the best aspects of the
German and Danish apprenticeship systems that have
prepared students well for centuries. '
The program offers students an egual option to the
traditional, classrcom-based education -- poti as an
alternative to school. :
The program will offer a rigorous course of study
demanding a high level of academic, social and
motivational skillsy
The program will draw libarally from business
experience and busineas needs to make sure studenta
are trained for jobs that will actually exist.

ESTABLISHING THE CRNTRR FOR YOUTH APPRENTICREHIP

To administer our program, I established a Center for Youth
Apprenticeship at Southern Maine Technical College in South
Portland. The Center will be overseen by an International
Advisory Board of Governors inc¢luding state, national and
international lesders in education, business, organizeg labor
and government. Our Center will house the Maine Youth
Apprenticeship Program, and will also develop statewide
performance standards to ensure consistency among

‘apprenticeships offered by varying schools and busineasas, and

to make sure that our Certificate of Skill Mastery is
reacognized as s guarantae of exzcellence.

A Policy Advisory Board, :including representatives. of state
government, higher education, secondary schools, educators,
organized labor and others, will set standards based on
recommendations of Crafts Committees established in a wide
variety of occupational areas. 1In addition, the Center's
research division will investigate other apprenticeship
programs in the U.S. and sbroad, and recommend incorporation of
successful agpects into our program.
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OFFERING AN BQUAL OPTION TO YOUNG PROPLE

Beginning in the ninth gzade, every student will begin
genaral career exploration tqQ meke sure all students understand
the options available to them. Jobs specialists from our Jobs
for Maine's Gracduates progranm will advise students in ithe Sth
and 10th grades on occupational opportunities, and help them to
prepare for a 10th grade test on core knowledge. This test,
based on Maine’s Common Core of Learning, will assess a
student's academic and work readiness for the program.' All
students will take the test as part of the Maine Educational
ASs@ssment program. .

Although only students who successfully complete the test
will be eligible for youth apprenticeships, those who fail will
continue to bs coached until they meet our qualifications, pass
the test, and are eligible for the apprenticeship. Of course,
students who wish to remain in high school for college prep or
tech prep are able to do so. '

The Maine Youth Apprenticeship Program itself wil) bagin in
the 1lth grade. Beginning in July of the junior year,. students '
will begin 20 weeks of training at their high school o
regional vocational high school, combined with 30 wesks working
for an employer. In addition to more traditional academic
courses, students will be exposed to the world of work,
workplace safety, and worker responsibilities. On the job,
students will continue their education. The employer will
share in the role of teacher, helping the student to magter a
saries of specific and fundamental skills, '

In the second year (l2th grade) of the apprenticeship,
students will again spend 20 weeks in class and 30 weaks in the
workplace. Upon successful completion of these first iwo years
of the program, the student will receive a high school: diploms.

Throughout this program, students will “earn as they
learn®. Employers will pay at least the minimum wage for the
student s 30 weeks in the workplace. This stipend will be paid
directly to our program, which in turn will spread paymonts
over the entire 52 weeks of the year. In this way, stpdents
will be able to count on a woekly stipend, and will average
more than $3,000 in earnings ‘annually. :

This financing also will allow the unigue third year of the
youth spprenticeship -~ a “"thirteenth grade" without cost to
the student or to the state. : In the third and final year,
students will receive 16 weeks of training at a technigal
college, and will spend 34 wecks working for their empioyer.
The student will receive a raise in this final year; an
additional increase to the employer will pay for one year's
tuition at the technical collage. :
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After guccessfully completing all requirements, students
will receive a one-year certificate from the Technical College,
and a Certificate of Skill Mistery, listing the skills
possessed by the apprentice,:@ The student's skills will be
guaranteed by the secondary school and/or the technical
colleye, so that if an employer is not satisfied that a
grazduate meets the apprenticeship standards, the graduate can
return to high school or college without cost.

WEETING HIGH STANDARDE FOR FUTURE PROSPERITY f

By combining weeks of intensive workplace traininq!with an
extended-length school day, we will ensure that students meet
the high standards of all Maine high school students, while
¢raining them with a skill aﬁ well. And by offering the
advantage of one year of college without cost to the student,
we ensure that our graduates have the opportunity to continue
their education -- as a secorid year student at a technical
college, or through links with our University system. | We
restore relevance to education, by giving students the
opportunity to learn am occupational skill while continuing
their education. ;

! I
We have established a demonatration project that will begin
this £3ll in the Portland, South Portland and Westbrook
schools. We will offer these early apprenticeships in machine
tool, medical records, snd insurance customer service.; The
following year, we will brins the program statewide in six
regional centers serving about 20 perceat of Maine high
schools. We hope to offer youth apprenticeship as an option in
every high school in the state by 1997, and to offer a wide
variety of apprenticeship options based on busineszs nesds.
1
Maine has been fortunate to receive several grants' to help
us develop our program and quickly .pread the program
gtatewide. 1In March, we were awarded an implementation grant
by the Council of Chief Statd School Officers; in April, the
President included Maine as ane of six states to receive
demonstration grants under hils Job Training 2000 plan.
. \ !

ENCOURAGING COWGRESSIOWAL ACTION ON YOUTH APPRENTICESHIR '

Mr. Chairman, Maine has learned several lessons from our
youth apprenticeship design, ‘and I would like to share! them
with you today. 1I recognize while you are not preparing any
particular legislation today,, there are a number of yopth
apprenticeship initiatives before the Congress. Allow me to
offer Maine's perspective on 'a few options before you:{

DRelivery System Flexibility . I
Pirst, any legislation passed by the Congress should allow
and eéncourage flexibility in the delivery system, In Maine, we
had the luxury of devaloping an individualized system that best
moets the needs of our youth, while making use of our unified

-
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technical college system. Wq are able to maximize cur
resources by making use of this flexibility; any prescriptive
golutions legislated by tho Congress would hinder yout
apprenticeship plans in Hain? and elsewhere. .

Developing Mational Occupational Etandards
Second, I encourage you to help us in encouraging f2nd
developing national standards for apprenticeships across broad
occupational lines. We have -taken a number of steps to ensure

that skills trained in one part of Maine are acceptable in
another part of the state; we have disconraged “site-specific”
skills that are predominant in *"one-factory" towns.

1

I have also contacted each of the Governors in New England
to see what sort of regional:steps could be taken to ensure
transferability of skills under our program. A similar
national effort will allow national credentials and place our
nation in the best competitive position, without the myriad
variations individual state gtandards would require.

ing Coop ion between Ed '

Third, Maine has been successful in linking the efiforts of
our departments of education.and 12bor for youth
apprenticeship. Our programiis not just job training; it is
not just education reform. Rather, youth apprenticeship trings
real systemic change to education while better preparing our
youth. The Congress would 46 wall to encCourage cooperation
between the U.S. Departments of Labor and Education in this
regard. i |

Fourth, we should encourage incentives for businesses to
participate in youth apprenticeships and in work-based learning
generally -~ while at the same time offering encouragement to
the workers and “masters” who will lead students in the
workplace. In Germany, a system of "meisters® is trained to
work closely with apprentices and ensure that students meet
specific skills. We need to:identify ways to encourage
training with those who will work with students in this country.

Amending Child Labor Lawg !

Fifth, youth apprenticesbip will open new doors fOor many
youth, but will also require;some specific amendments /to child
labor laws that govern safety starndards for the workplace,
particularly around hazardoug occupations. The Congress should

3lso encourage rigorous or-site safety inspections to ‘ensure
student safaty. } '
|

]

With regard to existing laws, the States will need to work
with the Department of Labor to establiah consistent, 'long-term -
standards governing students in the workplsce. We need to have
written understandings of what is and what is not allowed in
the workplace, !
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Encouraging Additional Research .

One of the lessons of ouq education and training system
generally is that we must build change and 1mprovementiinto our
system. Our system nmust takq into account the changes' and
innovations taking place wor%dvido -- and rapidly incorporate
them into our own system. :

The Congress should encourage this research by establishing
or funding centers for research that will allew this mort of .
international and national input. Moreover, as interest in
youth apprenticeship grows nationally, regional research
centers will prevent wasteful Quplication of effort and funding
in setting up progrems.

Maine‘s program is designed to encourage participation by
all manner of youth -- and is not limited to any particular
class or incomé requirements. I recognize that many funds
related to youth apprenticeship and job training are governed
by Department of Labor rules -that -- rightly -- encourage
training ¢f disadvantaged young people.

For youth apprenticeship, however, we need to demonstrate
that the program is an equal loption open to young people of all
incomes and levels of intellilgance. Our program simply will
not work 1f it is labsled asja program for the poor or
disadvantaged. |

Allow me to offer a cavedt, however. I baliave that our
program will ultimately attr&ct many of the disadvantaged and
at-risk children we hope to derve -- without forcing it through
specific funding regulationsa. I hope that by keeping this
system voluntary, we can ensurs that youth apprenticeship
prospers as an equal educational opportunity.

Finally, allow me to encourage the Congress to set up
direct links between apprenticeships end our institutions of
higher learning., &ince the GI Bill and World War II, we have
told our children that the path to prosperity begins with
college. Youth apprenticeship and workplace skill trajning
offers many exciting advantages. Any national system must
encourage, like Maine's, students to continue their education
-~ to continue lifelong lesrning so that they are well-trained
for the future.

This is our plan and our experience in Maine, Mr. Chairman,
and I appreciate the opportunity to testify today. I would be
happy to answer any of your qrestions. '

Thank you.




122

Chairman PerkiNns. Thank you, Governor.

I guess at this time we would like to turn to our colleague and
good friend, and my friend on the Science, Space, and Technology
Committee who chairs the subcommittee that has some interest in
this particular matter, and that is our good friend Tim Valentine
from North Carolina.

Tim, would you like to give us your remarks this morning?

STATEMENT OF HON. TIM VALENTINE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

Mr. VALENTINE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I will tell you in the beginning, I'm pleased to have this opportu-
nity to be here in this rarified atmosphere with the Governor, and
I believe that a lot of what I have to say will parallel the state-
ments made by him and will, I hope, give some insights into what
some of us believe is the Federal Government’s responsibility in
this area.

I will attempt to shorten my remarks and ask unanimous con-
sent to insert into the record the statement.

Chairman PerkiNs. Without objection, all the statements of the
Governor, yourself, and Congressman McCurdy will be inserted
into the record.

Mr. VALENTINE. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,
as Chairman of the Subcommittee on Technology and Competitive-
ness of the Science Committee, we have conducted broad hearings
over the past year and a half into this question and have intro-
duced and the Science Committee has passed and presented to your
committee H.R. 3507, and that is what I want to talk to you briefly
about, and also the philosophy behind it.

We believe that we must begin, that it is past time that we
begin, to think in terms of an alternative formal education or
formal system to university education which is capable of providing
3lternative routes to productive careers for noncollege-bound stu-

ents.

Traditionally, when we discuss education, we talk in terms of a
pipeline. Students interested in science entering the pipeline will
become highly skilled scientists and engineers at the pipeline’s end.
Those leaving science and engineering prematurely or those not
pursuing this education or those dropping out could be referred to
as leaks in the pipeline, and we suggest that a road map approach
is a more appropriate metaphor for our education system.

Under this metaphor, there are many alternative routes to many
legitimate destinations in employment. We should encourage, we
believe, every student tc excel in science and mathematics and
many other subjects, but we shouldn’t suggest to young people that
a bachelor’s or advanced degree is the only legitimate end for that
excellence.

We need to think in terms of a formal system in which govern-
ment and industry roles are more clear. State governments need to
weave our hodge-podge of education programs and policies into co-
herent statewide systems as comprehensive and interconnected as
our best highway systems, and not those resulting in gridlock.
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I would say here parenthetically that I have said to my friends
who operate the public school system in the State of North Caroli-
na that ' believe that the best way that they can serve our State
and ourselves—one of the best ways—is to have an ongoing appara-
tus which functions and is properly financed and has sufficient per-
sonnel to find out what is going on in other parts of the country, to
be acquainted with programs that the Governor has explained to
us rather than to try in so many cases to reinvent the wheel.

Such an approach as we are talking about does not have to be
costly, but it does require reform on the part of our State govern-
ments to recognize the interconnection of education {sr workplace
preparation, labor for worker enhancement, and industrial needs
in furthering U.S. economic competitiveness.

It is for these reasons that some of us introduced H.R. 3507,
which I referred to earlier, called the American Industrial Quality
and Training Act of 1991, H.R. 3507 is designed to encourage man-
ufacturing and high technology firms to team with institutions of
higher learning to train workers in new work organization strate-
gy, total quality techniques, and technician skills.

H.R. 3507 was reported by the Committee on Science, Space, and
Technology on November 22, 1991, by unanimous vote and, as I
said, reposes here. It establishes a youth technical apprenticeship
program to provide tramning and employment in manufacturing or
technology-based firms. This apprenticeship program begins in the
junior year of high school and ends with a degree or certificate for
a community college. The industrial training is meant to expose
the. oz(alpprentice to relevant work experiences for the program
period.

In addition to encouraging statewide education network for uni-
fying technical education and workforce training programs, H.R.
3507 encourages the establishment of a total quality management
concept as embodied in the Malcolm Baldrige Award Program to
secondary and postsecondary education institutions.

America’s changing economy and the high-technology workplace
will require a higher skilled worker in years to come. That goes
without saying. That is a truism. That is at the core of our abilit
to turn the tide. “Competitiveness” and the word “quality” I thin
are interchangeable.

The U.S. must increase its investment in the workplace and the
workforce to remain competitive. The practice of quality in the
workplace determines to a large degree whether American compa-
nies are competitive. Education is absolutely crucial, of course, and
industry must realize that the education system is perhaps the
most important supplier. We need to establish a new trend of joint
partnerships among secondary education, business, and industry,
and higher education, and, in the process, try to eliminate the wall
that exists, the feeling of suspicion business entertains towards gov-
ernment and perhaps vice versa.

For too many young people we assume failure, and too many
young people fail themselves. This must begin to change and to
change now if we are to correct the problem that we have talked
about. We must ensure multiple routes from high school to higher
education, both technical and otherwise, and then on to the work-
force, and we need to give our young people a road map, as has

-
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been suggested, and I believe that the legislation which we have in-
troduced, on which I can go into more detail if you require and
which I am here tc commend to you and to ask you to consider—
we have, of course, pride in authorship, but we are more concerned
about the product, about what we have put in this legislation, what
we have crafted as a result of our hearings, that it appear some-
where in some form so that it can be presented to this body and
passed on to the States.

I thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Valentine follows:]

StaTEMENT OF HON. TiM VALENTINE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE
State oF NORTH CAROLINA

Too many high school students see no clear link between good grades and good
jobs; or at least they see no well-defined route between the two. Each year, about 50
percent of America’s high school seniors terminate their formal education with
graduation. Approximately 20 percent of all students never graduate from high
school. The dropout rate rises to nearly half the student population in many urban
and some rural areas.

Today, half of our high school students are confined to the so-called general track,
offering them neither strong academic nor work-based skills.

At best, these young people face low-skill, low-paying jobs following graduation—
often for their entire careers. At worst, they face unemployment.

The quality of tomorrow’s workforce depends on the high school students of today.
For America to remain competitive in the global marketplace, we need not only sci-
entists and engineers, but also highly trained technicians.

We must begin to think in terms of an alternative formal system to university
education which is capable of providing alternative routes to productive careers for
non-college-bound students. Traditionally, when we discuss education, we talk in
terms of a “pipeline.” Students interested in science entering the pipeline will
become highly skilled scientists and engineers at the pipeline’s end. Those leaving
science and engineering prematurely, those not pursuing higher education, and
those dropping out of high school altogether become “leaks” in the pipeline.

I suggest that a “road map” is a more appropriate metaphor for our education
system. Under this metaphor there are many alternative routes to many legitimate
destinations in employment. We should encourage every student to excel in science,
mathematics, and many other subjects, but we shouldn’t suggest to young people
that a bachelor’s or advanced degree is the only legitimate end for that excellence.

We need to think in terms of a formal system in which government and industry
roles are more clear. State governments need to weave our hodgepodge of education
programs and policies into coherent statewide systems as comprehensive and inter-
connected as our best highway systems—not those resulting in gridlock.

Such an approach does not have to be costly, but it does require reform on the
part of our State governments to recognize the interconnection of education for
worker preparation, labor for worker enhancement, and industrial needs in further-
in% U.S. economic competitiveness.

t is for these reasons that I introduced H.R. 3507, the American Industrial Qual-
ity and Training Act of 1991. H.R. 3507 is designed to encourage manufacturing and
high-technology firms to team with institutions of higher education to train workers
in new work or%anization strategy, total quality techniques, and technical and tech-
nician skills. H.R. 3507 was reported by the Committee on Science, Space, and Tech-
nology on November 22, 1991 g; unanimous vote. It has been jointly referred to the
Committee on Education and Labor.

It establishes a Youth Technical Apprenticeship Program to provide training and
emploi,;:zent in manufacturing or technology-based firms. This Apprenticeship Pro-
gram begins in the junior year of high school and ends with a degree or certificate
from a community college. The industrial training is meant to expose the apprentice
to relevant work experiences for the program period.

In addition to encouraging siatewide educational networks for unifying technical
education and workforce training programs, H.R. 3507 encourages the establishment
of a total quality management concept, as embodied in the Malcolm Baldrige
Award, to secondary and postsecondary education institutions.

America’s changing economy and the high-technology workplace will require a
hi. ' er skilled worker in the years to come. The U.S. must increase its investment in
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the workplace and workforce to remain competitive into the next century. The prac-
tice of quality in the workplace determines, to a large degree, whether American
companies are competitive in the marketplace. Education is crucial to achieving
quality in the workforce. Industry must realize that the education system is perhaps
its most important supplier. It must work with schools to ensure that the product it
receives meets its needs.

Programs should be developed that address the needs of general track students.
At most, only one-third of the money spent on formal worker training programs
each year is spent on non-college educated workers, affecting no more than 8 per-
cent of our front-line workers. Two-thirds of all organizations employing production
workers provide no formal training.

We need to establish a new trend of joint partnerships among secondary educa- -

tion, business and industry, and higher education. These partnerships must involve
shared risks, investments, and management.

For too many young people, we assume failure, and too many young people fail
themselves. This must begin to change, and change now. We must ensure multiple
routes from high school to higher education—both technical and otherwise—and
then on to the workforce. And, we need to give our young people a road map that
shows them in clear and unmistakable terms that their hard work makes a differ-
ence; that there are strong links between education and good jobs.

Chairman Pergins. I thank you for your very succinct and accu-
rate comments, Mr. Valentine.

Mr. Gunderson, do you have any questions?

Mr. GunpersoN. Thank you both very much for your statements,
and, Congressman Valentine, I think your program seems to paral-
lel very much the bill that Congressman Goodling and I intro-
duced. Hopefully when our Chairman merges all these bills we will
be able to get the kind of bipartisan consensus that will be needed
to enact this legislation.

One of the issues that we grapple with—and I will be interested,
Governor, in your comments on this—is, how do we deal at the
State level with the kind of coordination we want. I mean, very
frankly, we want the education agency at the State level involved,
we want the industry or labor organization involved, and we try to
wrestle as well with, should we give the authority to the governor
or give it to the State chief school officer. Any comments on how,
at the Federal level, we can make everybody happy as we piece
this together?

Governor McKerNaN. I have some strong feelings on that. What-
ever you do, do not give the power to make these decisions to the
chief State school officer. I will explain why.

You will recall in my remarks I said that education was a criti-
cal part of this program. What we have found as we have talked
with people all across our State about youth apprenticeship is that,
contrary to what most people think about educators, they have
been the mos: enthusiastic about this program, whether it is sec-
ondary educators in secondary high schools or secondary vocational
schools.

Our technical colleges, even our private colleges, to whom we
hope to eventually expand the program, all think that this is
needed, they think that it is critical to lifelong learning, and they
think it is critical to a new approach to educating kids that, frank-
ly, our educational system has not had to worry about for 200
years. Now, educators are realizing that they have to do a better
job, and they want to do a better job. They aren’t going to be the
problem, in my view, in making this happen.

57-464 0 - 92 - 5 39
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The people who are going to be the problem are going to be the
business community, and that is why I think it is important to
have the chief executive officer of the State have the ability to
bang some heads and get the various business groups involved in
this program.

We have on our Center the head of our AFL-CIO and somebody
from the National AFL-CIO; we have educators, all of whom think
this is a great idea and want to work with the business community
in setting the right standards so that we are getting the kind of
standards that are going to allow businesses to compete.

I see the greatest threat not just in Maine but all across this
country to having this actually work as getting businesses willing
to be involved enough to set the standards and to be insightful and
farsighted enough to set the right standards that are going to
allow them to compete internationally and nationally, and, second-
ly, to have businesses understand that it is in their best interests to
hire apprentices and to get the kind of skilled workers that they
have been complaining to us that the current educational system is
not providing, and therefore I think it is critical that we continue
to explore ways—and I don’t have the answer yet—to make sure
the business community and the various business organizations are
on board and understand the importance and are willing to urge
their members to make the initial investment, which I think will
pay great dividends down the road but which may look like it is a
costly first-year item.

Mr. GunDERsON. Well, I would like you to reflect a little bit more
on that, because I think it is fair to project that Chairman Ford
will not move a bill out of the full committee that gives the total
authority for State implementation to the governors. For better or
worse, I think that is a fact of life. And I guess my question to you
in the future is, can we mandate simply that there needs to be
joint administration at the State level between the education and
the lgbor divisions within those particular State units of govern-
ment?

Governor McKernan. I don’t think that that is going to be a
problem at all, because it isn’t going to work unless you require
that they work together. We put on our design team somebody
from our Department of Labor, our Department of Education, our
technical colleges, and our university system, and I think that
there is no problem with requiring that education as well as labor
be a major part of this. In fact, it has to be if it is going to work,
and that is the good thing about the Bush administration right
now, that both labor and education are working together on this,
and Bob Jones can talk about how that real}{y has to fit together.

My only point was, this can’t be education riven. I will give you
one more example. The head of my technical college system called
me up and said, “Well, I've got some bad news. I've been talking to
the human resource people at the hospitals where we are going to
have one of our pilot programs for youth apprenticeship, and we
have been planning on doing a lab technician apprenticeship, and a
fellow told me that we can’t do it because they don’t need any lab
technicians, so it doesn’'t make any sense to train them for that.
But, gee, you know, it's kind of a sexy thing to do, and it's some-
thing people understand, and the schools are ready to teach it.”
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And I said to him, “That’s not bad news, that's good news; that’s
the way the system is supposed to work. What are we training
more lab technicians for if, after they have finished getting this
education that we told them to get, there are no jobs?”

This has to be driven the other way around; it has to be driven
by the private sector and their needs, bringing the educators in to
make sure they can educate and train up to thoce needs, and that
is why it is important that we understand this can’t be primarily
an education program, it has to be employee organizations and
unions and businesses that are driving the standards that are
needed and the educators being there as a part of it to figure out
how they change their system so that they get people coming out of
their system with the skills that are needed.

Mr. GuNpERSON. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman PerxIns. Thank you, Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. Olver, do you have any questions for the pane} today?

Mr. OLver. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Governor McKernan, I am curious about what the system is in
Maine that you are working with. You have a technical college
system, and you also have vocational high schools—or are those the
technical colleges?—and community colleges. What is the system
here as you have it that allows you the flexibility that you bring to
your working relationships?

Governor McKerNAN. The thing that is the most unique is that
my former commissioner of labor is the president of my technical
c}oll_lege system now, which makes for a very good working relation-
ship.

Mr. OLVER. Is it community colleges?

Governor McKerNAN. They serve the same role as community
colleges, although they are more technically—we do not have com-
munity colleges. At least we don't have public community colleges.
We have some private colleges that serve the same role as commu-
nity colleges. OQur technical colleges in some areas serve as commu-
nity colleges.

We have a technical college system that has six campuses. We
have a university system that has seven campuses. The important
thing to understand is, I think there is applicability—that is in ad-
dition to a secondary vocational system of 26 different secondary
vocational schools tied to various high schools.

The important thing to understand and I think what you are get-
ting at is an important one, and that is that there is a role for all
postsecondary educational institutions, and I think that there is a
huge opportunity for cominunity colleges who ought to be able to
be a major part of these programs. We are starting with a techni-
cal college system because it is manageable and they are geo-
graphically located in the six geographic locations in Maine, so it is
easy to do.

I'am intending to expand this to the university to allow them to
offer courses as well and be a part of the apprenticeship program
as well as to our private colleges, because the key is to have the
third year of the apprenticeship program be a postsecondary expe-
rience that can then lead to either an associate degree, a 2-year
degree, or a 4-year degree either in that or some other institution.
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We just started with the technical colleges because it was manage-
able and we all believed that we have to take the same actions, so
it was easier to work with them, and they have a lot of experience
with our secondary people.

Mr. Ovver. Did I hear you say that the key is, the third year of
you‘;' apprenticeship program should be equivalent of a postsecond- .
ary?

Governor MCKERNAN. Yes.
Mr. OLveR. I thought that you were in the technical colleges in

the first place. Is the apprenticeship program started somewhere in
the high schools——

Governor MCKEE~NAN. Yes.

Mr. OLVER. [continuing] or the technical schools below your tech-
nical colleges and your universities?

Governor MCKerRNAN. Yes. The first 2 years would be either in
the student’s existing high school or in one of our vocational high
schools, where some of them are already going for those specific
courses. Probably if it were the trades it would be more in the vo-
cational high schools. If it were a service sector apprenticeship, it
would probably stay in the existing high school, and they would get
a high school degree, as they now do, as long as they were making
the right progress toward the 3-year apprenticeship. Then the third
year would be in any one of our technical colleges or ultimately in
one of the other colleges, the beauty of that being that they are
halfway toward an associate degree when they finish the 3-year ap-
prenticeship program that they can continue, if they want, to get
an actual 2-year degree, where they can move over and work
toward a 4-year degree. But even if they decide to stop, they will
have had some additional education and will have begun that proc-
ess of understanding the importance of lifelong learning and retool-
ing.

Mr. OLvER. You mentioned in your testimony that you want to
encourage incentives or we should encourage incentives for busi-
ness to participate in these. What are the incentives that ycu give
in Maine for this?

Governor McKERNAN. At this point we do not have any financial
incentives, although we are going to be proposing to our legislature
in special session in September a tax credit for a portion of the cost
of hiring an apprentice, which would be some percentage of what
would be at least the minimum wage to try to obviously reduce the
costs.

My theory on this is that the first year a business probably loses
money, the second year they probably break even in most occupa-
tions, and the third year they probably make money, although we
are requiring them to increase what they are paying the student
significantly so that we can then use that money to finance the
third year of the apprenticeship, the first year of the college experi-
ence, so that the student won't have to pay for that tuition.

Mr. OLVER. Is that apprenticeship based upon the idea that they
have a guarantee of a job in the first place?

Governor MCKERNAN. No. A 3-year contract, no obligation there-
after. A 3-year obligation under a contract to train.

Mr. OLver. During just the apprenticeship 3-year program,
which starts, I take it, at the age of 16 probably.
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Governor McK=rNAN. Or 17.

Mr. OLveR. But that person has no certainty of a job after the
apprenticeship program is over?

Governor McKerRNAN. No, but probably more likelihood of a job
than they have under the current system, given the fact that they
will have significantly higher skills than they now have in their
current educational system.

Mr. OLver. Thank you.

Chairman Perkins. Thank you, Congressman Olver, for your
questions.

We are pleased to welcome Dave McCurdy, who has been held up
at another committee hearing, and he wants to go, as do a number
of others, to the speech that is going to be on the floor in a few
minutes.

So we will let Tim and Jack go, or we are pleased to have you
stay, but we are going to have Dave give his testimony at this time,
and © ppreciate very much you both taking the time to come and
testity today. It was very, very kind of you, and we appreciate the
good things that you had to say.

Mr. VALENTINE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Governor McKEerNAN. Thank you.

Chairman PEerxkiNs. At this time, we would like to turn to Dave
McCurdy, tc “ear what his statement is.

STATEME: OF HON. DAVE McCURDY, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF OKLAHOM «

* "v. McCurpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
...ank you very much, and it is a pleasure to be before the sub-

committee, and I'm sorry to see Admiral Roukema leave. Just
“aming from the Armed Services Committee, I was trying to figure
it her rank there. But she is a good fricnd, and I wanted to tease
her in public, but she left already.

1 appreciate the opportunity to testify on school-to-work pro-
grams and specifically about youth apprenticeship programs.

Today I would like to focus on two specific proposals, H.R. 3998,
the Youth Apprenticeship Act, sponsored by Senator Sam Nunn
and myself, and a very exciting youth apprenticeship program de-
veloped in Tulsa, Oklahoma, called Craftsmanship 2000. However,
before I get into the specifics of these two programs, it is important
to discuss the necessity of youth apprenticeship for developing
quality American products for world markets and some of the com-
ponents that I believe are absolutely essential for any effective
school-to-work transition program.

According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, more than 70 per-
cent of the jobs in America will not require a college education by
the year 2000. However, the primary focus of our public education
continues to be on college-bound youth. Unlike most of ocur leading
competitor nations, we have no national system of setting high aca-
demic standards for the noncollege-bound, nor do we have any com-
prehensive secondary school program for connecting education and
training to a job.

Because America’s future competitiveness depends on the pro-
ductivity of its front-line work force. the 70 percent of those jobs

r -

.ii(




130

not requiring a college education, it is crucial that we break this
trend and establish a comprehensive national youth apprenticeship
program. I believe the youth apprenticeship program must possess
some basic elements.

First and foremost, a youth apprenticeship program must become
an integral part of our education system. It cannot be viewed as a
separate and less than equal education for dropouts or disadvan-
taged students only, it has to be an integral part.

Second, it must provide challenging academic course work in
conjunction with on-the-job training to ensure highly skilled work-
ers. The high skills gained by these workers are essential to the de-
velopment of better value-added jobs and increasing American pro-
ductivity.

Finally, a productive youth apprenticeship program requires a
partnership with industry. Employers must make a major commit-
ment to the individuals and play a key role in their academic and
skills training success.

My legislation, H.R. 3998, the Youth Apprenticeship Act, is based
on these key elements. It will establish demonstration programs.
These programs will lead to recommendations about the feasibility
of developing a nationwide systemic apprenticeship program.

To ensure that the demonstration programs encompass all the
key elements, my bill develops an independent institute for youth
apprenticeship. The institute will be administered by a 21-member
board of directors made up of education, business, labor, and civic
leaders. Each demonstration program will forge partnerships be-
tween local schools, students, businesses, labor organizations, and
the Federal Government.

To ensure that employers have a stake in the outcome of the ap-
prenticeship program, my bill requires that students apply to par-
ticipate in an apprenticeship program and interview with employ-
ers. Additionally, the bill limits the Federal share of funding to 50
percent, therefore requiring a financial investment from employ-
ers. Students in the 11th grade will be eligible to sign contracts
with employers. They will participate in the program in the 11th
and 12th grades and 1 year following high school.

High school courses will be combined with on-the-job training in
the 11th and 12th grades. In the third year, youth apprentices will
supplement work-site training with academic courses at vocational
technical schools or community colleges. When they complete the
3-year apprenticeship program and the necessary training, appren-
tices will receive a certificate of competency in their field of train-
ing to accompany their high school diploma.

There is a very basic description of my legislation, and, if you
don’t mind, Mr. Chairman, at this point, in keeping with the panel
of witnesses you have already heard, I would like to share with the
subcommittee a very exciting program from my home State which
encompasses many of the vital elements for a school-to-work transi-
tion program.

The Tulsa, Oklahoma, program is called Craftsmanship 2000 and
is a partnership between several entities in the Tulsa community.
In addition to seven companies within the Tulsa Manufacturing
Council, partners included the Tulsa Public Schools, Tulsa County
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Area Vo-Tech Schools, Tulsa Junior College, the City of Tulsa, and
the Tulsa Chamber of Commerce.

The apprenticeship proegram will be ad-year program which will
include a mix of academic, vo-tech, and work-based training. The
academic training that these students will receive will be very in-
tensive and cannot be considered inferior to the regular high school
course work. Students will attend 8hour days of academic and
skills trairing. This is an increase over the current 6-hour day. The
number of school days that the students will attend will also be in-
creased from the current 180 days to 220. Additionally, all the
teachers that have joined this program have doctorate degrees.

Terms of the Tulsa program are vary similar to those provided
by H.R. 3998. After receiving a high school diploma and at the con-
clusion of the program, participants will be awarded a certificate of
occupational skills. A special curriculum has been developed for
the program by industry representatives and by the Tulsa Public
Schools. This curriculum uses applied science and mathematics in
coordination with skills training.

Industry is significantly involved in this program. Businesses
participate in selection of apprentices and provide mentorships
during the 4-year program. Additionaliy, the companies have made
financial contributions equaling $50,000 per student.

As is evident in the longer school days, the selection process of
participants, and the qualifications of the teachers participating,
this program is aiming to produce highly skilled, highly productive
workers. 1t is also clear from the monetary investment by the com-
panies that they believe this training method can assist U.S. indus-
try in the global economy.

In the interests of time, I will limit my description of this pro-
gram and ask that a more comprehensive one be placed in the
hearing record.

Chairman Perkins. Without objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. McCurpy. Mr. Chairman, we are entering an age in which
the American manufacturing industry is drawing its most stiff
challenge. Consumers worldwide are selectively buying quality
products. If we want “Made in America” to mean quality around
the world, then we must develop a highly trained, highly skilled
workforce. By instituting a nationwide youth apprenticeship pro-
gram we take a big step in this direction.

Today the committee will hear about many State initiatives that
show the great interest among educators and industry in school-to-
work transition. It is crucial that Congress take what is learned
from these programs and demonstrate them on a larger scale.

I commend the Chairman and the subcommittee for recognizing
the vital importance these programs will have in the United
States’ ability to compete in a global economy.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. McCurdy follows:]

StateMENT oF HON. Dave McCugrpY, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE

STATE oF OKLAHOMA

Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, I would like to thank you for allow-
ing me the opportunity to testify on school-to-work transition programs and specifi-
cally about youth apprenticeship programs.
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Today, I would like to focus on two specific proposals: H.R. 3998, the Youth Ap-
prenticeship Act sponsored by Senator Sam Nunn and myself and a very exciting
ggl(.)l(‘;h apprenticeship program developed in Tulsa, Oklahoma called Craftsmanship

However, before I get into the specifics of these two programs, it is important to
discuss the necessity of youth apprenticeship for developing quality American prod-
ucts for world markets and some of the components that I believe are absolutely
essential for any effective school-to-work transition program.

According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, more than 70 percent of the jobs in
America will not require a college education by the year 2000. However, the pri-
mary focus of our public education continues to be on college-bound youth. Unlike
most of our leading competitor nations, we have no national system of setting high
academic standards for the non-college bound nor do we have any comprehensive
secondary school program for connecting education to training and training to a job.

Because America’s future competitiveness depends on the productivity of its front-
line workforce—the 70 percent of jobs not requiring a college education—it is cru-
cial that we break this trend and establish a comprehensive, national youth appren-
ticeship program. I believe that a youth apprenticeship program must possess some
basic elements.

First, and foremost, a youth apprenticeship program must become an integral
part of our educational system. It cannot be viewed as a separate and less-than-
equal education for dropouts or disadvantaged students only.

Second, it must provide challenging academic coursework in conjunction with on-
the-job training to ensure highly-skilled workers. The high skills gained by these
workers are essential to the development of better value-added jobs and increasing
American productivity.

Finally, a productive youth apprenticeship program requires a partnership with
industry. Employers must make a major commitment to the individuals and play a
key role in their academic and skills training success.

My legislation, H.R. 8998, the Youth Apprenticeship Act is based on these key ele-
ments. It will establish demonstration programs. These programs will lead to recom-
mendations about the feasibility of developing a nationwide, systemic apprentice-
ship program.

To ensure that the demonstration programs encompass all of the key elements.
my bill develops an independent Institute for Youth Apprenticeship. The Institute
will be administered by a 21-member board of directors made up of education, busi-
ness, labor and civic leaders.

Each demonstration program will forge partnerships between local schools, stu-
dents, businesses, labor organizations and the Federal Government. To ensure that
employers have a stake in the outcome of the apprenticeship program, my bill re-
quires that students apply to participate in an apprenticeship program and inter-
view with employers. Additionally, the biil limits the Federal share of funding to 50
percent, therefore requiring a financial investment from employers. Students in the
11th grade will be eligible to sign contracts with employers. They will participate in
the program in the 11th and 12th grades and 1 year following high school.

High school courses will be combined with on-the-job training in the l1lth and
12th grades. In the third year, youth apprentices will supplement worksite training
with academic courses at vocational-technical schools or community colleges.

When they complete the 3-year apprenticeship program and the necessary train-
ing, apprentices will receive a certificate of competency in their field of trainirg to
accompany their high school diploma.

That is a very basic description of my legislation. At this point, in keeping with
today’s panel of witnesses, I would like to share with the subcommittee a very excit-
ing program from my home State, which encompasses many of the vital elements
for a school-to-work transition program.

The Tulsa, Oklahoma program is called Craftsmanship 2000 and is a partnership
between several entities in the Tulsa community. In addition to seven companies
within the Tulsa Manufacturing Council, partners included, the Tulsa Public
Schools, Tulsa County Area Vo-Tech Schools, Tulsa Junior College, the City of
Tulsa, and the Tulsa Chamber of Commerce.

The apprenticeship program will be a 4-year program which will include a mix of
academic, vo-tech, and work-based training. The academic training that these stu.
dents will receive will be very intensive and cannot be considered inferior to the
regular high school coursework. Students will attend 8 hour days of academic and
skills training. This is an increase over the current 6-hour day. The number of
school days that the students attend will also be increased from the current 180
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days to 220. Additionally, all the teachers that have joined this program have doc-
torate degrees.

Terms of the Tulsa program are very similar to those provided by H.R. 3998.
After receiving a high school diploma and at the conclusion of the program, partici-
pants will be awarded a certification of occupational skills. Special curriculum has
been developed for the program by industry representatives and the Tulsa Public
Schools. This curriculum uses applied science and mathematics in coordination with
skills training. .

Industry is significantly involved in this program. Businesses participate in selec-
tion of apprentices and provide mentorships during the 4-year program. Additional-
ly, the companies have made financial contributions equaling $50,600 per student.

As is evident in the longer school days, the selectior: process of participants and
the qualifications of the teachers participating, this pregram is aiming to produce
highly-skilled, highly-productive workers. It is also clear from the monetary invest-
ment by the companies, that they believe this training method can assist U.S. indus-
try in the global economy.

In the interest of time, I will limit my description of this program and ask that a
more comprehensive one be placed in the hearing record.

Mr. Chairman, we are entering an age in which the American manufacturing in-
dustry is drawing its most stiff challenge. Consumers worldwide are selectively
buying quality products. If we want “Made in America” to mean quality around the
world, then we must develop a highly-trained, highly-skilled workforce. By institut-
ing a nationwide youth apprenticeship program, we take a big step in this direction.
Today, the committee will hear about many State initiatives that show the great
interest among educators and industry in school-to-work *ransition. It is crucial that
Congress take what is learned from these programs and demonstrate them on a
much larger scale.

I commend the Chairman and the subcommittee for recognizing the vital impor-
tance these programs will have in the United States’ ability to compete in a global
economy.

[The brochure referred to follows:]
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CRAFTSMANSHIP 2000
A WORK BASED LEARNING PROJECT IN TULSA, GKLAHOMA

PHILOSOPHY

Recognizing the need to do something to assist U.S. industry in worldwide
comretitiveness, a group of Tulsa manufacturing companies involved in
metilworking trade in 1990 determined to develop a work based learning approach
to benefit both Tulsa's youth and those companies which want to survive by the year
2000. They envisioned a partnership between industry, education, the political
system, parents, and students which would result in a long term soludon to the
problem of mismatch between level of skills of available work force and increasing
demand for higher craftsmanship.

THE PARTNERSHIP

The vision of that partnership resulted in the formation of an Oklahoma non-profit
corporation named Craftsmanship 2000, Inc. Direction of Craftsmanship 2009, Inc.
is entrusted to representatives of the following: American Airlines, Hilti, Inc.,
Public Service Company of Oklahoma, Webco Industries, Inc., Baker Oil Tosls,
Yuba Heat Transfer, T. D. Williamson, Inc,, Tulsa Public Schools, Tulsa County
Area Vo-Tech Schools, Tulsa Junior College, City of Tulsa -Office of the Mayor,
Metropolitan Tulsa Chamber of Commerce, and the Tulsa Manufacturing Council.

THE PROGRAM

Following are.key elements which represent the core of the apprenticeship program
for achieving metalworking craftsmanship:

The apprenticeship program is a systematic mix of academic, vo-tech, and
work based training which consists of a total of four years. Academic and
training days will be increased in length from 6 to 8 hours and from 180 days
to 220 days per year. High school students in their junior year are admitted to
the program based on examinations of foundation skills which will include
achievement, aptitude and interests tests.
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Participants in the apprenticeship program become the employees of
Craftsmanship 2000, Inc. They are paid an annual stipend based on 40 hour
weeks and equal to the following: $7,480 in year one; $7,920 in year two;
$13,200 in year three; $14,080 in year four. Bopuses may be earned by a
combination of academic, technical and job performances. Each of the
sponsoring industries will reimburse Crafismanship 2000. Ine. for the stpend
based on the number of apprentices each has agreed to sponsor.

Responsibilities are divided between the public schools, vo-tech, and industry
for the academic and training aspects during the first two years of the
program. All teachers, textbooks, and transportation for academic purposes
will be furnished by Tulsa Public Schools. Technical training during this
same time period will be jointly corducted by Tulsa Vo-Tech and the
sponsoring industries. In the final two years, academic responsibility will
shift to Tulsa Junior College with most training responsibility remaining with
Tulsa Vo-Tech and industry. During years one and two, all formal subjects
both academic and technmical will be taught at one location-—-Southeast
Campus of Tulsa Vo-Tech. Site location for years three and four is still
uader discussion.

The curriculum combining academic, technical, social, and learning to learn
skills in classroom, vocational workshop and company settings is currently
being developed by company engineering and technical personmel in
collaboration with curriculum writers of the educational institutions. One
full-ime curriculum specialist is currently detailing years one and two.
Another full-time writer is anticipated carly in 1992 to begin detail work on
years three and four. Based on desired learner outcomes, each student will
be graded by public school teacher and vo-tech instructor, and finally verified
by company mentors. Development of the new curriculum has been the
integrating element which is binding all parties together. The applied
technology method of teaching is now under serious consideration in the
public schools for grades 9 and 10 with an eye towards introduction to middle
school at some future dare.

All teachers, trainers, and mentors participating in the apprenticeship
program will receive extensive joint instruction and counseling during the




summer of 1992 in preparation for the class of 92-93. The Trawing
Committee of Craftsmanship 2000, Inc. is currently detailing desired learner
outcomes for this instruction. The overall desired outcome is a better
understanding by teachers of the world faced by the pupil after graduation
and a better understanding by industry of how knowledge is imparted ta a
teenager.

Housebill 1017 passed by the Oklahoma Iegislature and confirmed by a vote
of the people cssentially deregulated educauon in Oklahoma. It cocourages
local educadonal institutions to innovate. It replaces time based curriculum
with learner outcomes, and provides almost $300 million per year in
increased funding to education. This has created the atmosphere in which
the Craftsmanship 2000 pilot project was born.

SUMMARY

Craftsmanship 2000 is a pilot project in Tulsa, Oklahoma conducted by Tulsa Public
Schools, Tulsa County Area Vo-Tech, Tulsa Junior College, seven metal working
industries, and the Metropolitan Tulsa Chamber of Commerce. First classes will
begin in September 1992 for 20 smdents selected by criteria developed by

Craftsmanship 2000, Inc. Beginning phases of enrollment started in December,
1991, and was concluded in February, 1992. Successful students will be awarded a
bigh-school diploma from their sending high school after two years and up to 25
credit hours from Tulsa Junior College built into the total program. While details
are still in the planmng stages, it is the intentions of Craftsmanship 2000, Inc. that
each student be awarded a certification of occupational skills and an associates
degree fully transferable to a four year college or university at the conclusion of the
program. This may require additional individual effort.

When the model proves successful, it is the intentions of Craftsmanship 2000 to
expand the program to all of the high schools in the area, to additional metal
working industries, and to additional disciplines.
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Chairman PErxiNs. Thank you, Congressman McCurdy.

Congressman Gunderson, do you have any questions?

Mr. GunDpERsoN. Not that I can’t ask him later.

Chairman PErkins. Okay.

Mr. McCurpy. My neighbor.

Chgirman Perkins. Congressman Olver, do you have any ques-
tions?

Mr. OLver. I will follow suit.

Chairman PErxkinNs. Well, I know evervone among this group
here seems to be wanting to leave, so I will thank Congressman
McCurdy for his fine testimony today and say you are dismissed to
go wherever you so desire.

Mr. McCurpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I know we are all anx-
ious to see President Yeltsin, and that is important for our country
as well, and I will leave this for the record.

Thank you. .

Chairman PerxiNs. We would like to go on then to the next
panel. We have Robert Jones, who is Assistant Secretary, Employ-
ment and Training Administration, U.S. Department of Labor.

Mr. Jones, it is always a pleasure to have you with us, and I'm
sure you have some sterling words of wisdom for us today.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT J. JONES, ASSISTANT SECRETARY, EM-
PLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION, US. DEPART-
MENT OF LABOR, WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. Jongs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I appreciate the opportunity to be here, and I want to thank you

personally, Mr. Chairman, for your continued support of this con-
versation as well as other employment and training initiatives and
those of the members of this subcommittee—Mr. Gunderson and
others—who have taken the leadership in promoting this agenda
and beginning to broaden it into what is clearly developing as a
legislative agenda.

Clearly, the Governor and other Congressmen on both sides of
the aisle have expressed a number of bills and significant interest
and leadership on this issue as it begins to broz len.

I will ask that my testimony be submitted for the record, and I
will quickly try to focus on what I think are some salient points
that are relevant to this conversation.

Our discussion acknowledges the importance of a national com-
mitment to all young men and women to ensure that they have a
first-class training opportunity. I don’t need to tell you, Mr. Chair-
man, that education is the key to such achievements and schools
must be managed with the objective of bringing 100 percent of our
students to high standards of academic and work-related skils. I
will repeat that later a couple of times. It is the thesis of our whole
proposal, that if the assumption is in the school management
system we want to bring 100 percent of students to a level of stand-
ard of both academic achievement and workforce preparedness,
then such options as the committee is investigating become ex-
tremely relevant.

Every young person can learn, and the importance of providing
all students with this opportunity drives the administration’s con-
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viction that a youth apprenticeship system is essential to the coun-
try.

Too many of the roughly 70 percent of our young people who will
never earn a college degree leave school without skills necessary
for meaningful employment. While schools must educate to the
broader goals of citizenship and life, it is unconscionable to allow
students to graduate without the range and level of skills that
allow them rewarding employment experience. Americans without
these skills will likely find themselves unemployed and relegated
to a segment of the labor market characterized by low skills and
low wages.

As a Nation committed to educating its citizenry and one com-
peting with other economic powers, we cannot afford to waste the
potential of these people. The financial and social cost of such fail-
ure to the future of the country, but especially to the people, is to-
tally unacceptable.

Again, if we manage our schools to bring 100 percent of young
people to a standard of achievement, we must acknowledge that
young people learn and mature in different ways. With that comes
a range of learning opportunities and choices for each and every
student that is in the system. This need can be met through a
range of options, of which youth apprenticeship is a vital compo-
nent. Students should be able to choose among a number of learn-
ing alternatives. These learning alternatives can meet students’
varyving needs and bring them to their full potential by focusing on
high standards.

Although some options exist for students, we are not managing
our schools today so that the youth achieve this potential. We be-
lieve the Nation’s schools must challenge students to achieve a
higher standard of learning in order to participate.

The right to independent and rewarding lives as Americans re-
quires working together to make these alternatives possible. Equal
rights can only be secured through ensuring the education process
is based on the standards and brings all students to those stand-
ards to assure both opportunity, access, and success in the labor
market regardless of race or gender or disabilities or economic
background.

The Departments of Labor and Education have explored many
ways of linking learning and developing the workplace to successes
of students. Qur approach is based on a sequence of high quality
life learning opportunities that begins with high school. The transi-
tion to work includes workplace learning and, where necessary, as-
sistance programs that allow dislocated workers to obtain new em-
ployment.

Youth apprenticeship is an important and new part of that se-
quence. Youth apprenticeship helps students acquire those skills
needed to continue to learn and grow as they move into the world.
The administration’s proposed National Youth Apprenticeship Act
of 1992 was introduced on May 20 by Congressman Goodling and 11
other sponsors. The bill establishes a public-private partnership,
offers a blend of academic and job-related courses to prepare for
technical and advanced jobs, and it provides a unique opportunity
for Congress to make a significant impact in creating a high value
education alternative for youth.
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The program is focused on several theses, and let me make these
clear. This is an American system, it is not a replication of the
German dual system. It is not a tracking system but, in fact, fo-
cuses very much on bringing people to academic standards as well
as workplace experience. It is fundamentally an education system,
not a work training system and is a joint pact between students,
parents, schools, and employers.

The principles and features of youth apprenticeship which should
be at the heart of any youth program focus on these essential ele-
ments. We are confident that the substance of our apprenticeship
approach will provide a high level of motivation among students
and help them meet the higher standards. We are concerned that
youth apprenticeship not reflect minimal standards or resemble co-
operative education or work release programs which involve a
small proportion of students and do not fully incorporate work
with learning.

The key elements are these: first, the State involvement. Our leg-
islation provides a broad voluntary Federal-State system but essen-
tially requires the State to put a system in place, setting the stand-
ards and the structures, and ends up with the governor submitting
a plan outlining these steps for statewide support of youth appren-
ticeship in all of the schools in the State, and provides technical
assistance to local communities.

A high value learning alternative. The legislation facilitates the
development of youth apprenticeship programs offering students in
the 11th and 12th grade an alternative program of study which in-
tegrates the academic curricula, work-site learning, and paid work
experience-—all three pieces.

Our bill authorizes $50 million in funds to be used to aid States
and local communities to start up this program and to begin to de-
velop the curriculum and another $5 million Labor Department
funds for evaluations and research.

The legislation encourages reaching back into earlier grades to
ensure that students have a clear, informed picture of the full
range of career opportunities, postsecondary, and specialized op-
tions that are open to them in order to keep them focused on the
options that lie in front of them.

Academic instruction. The legislation calls for programs to set
high education standards in five academic subject areas. Achieve-
ment levels are gauged against world class standards and any vol-
untary national standards that are developed. Instruction uses
hands-on learning and contextual learning. But the key to this dis-
cussion is that, no matter how we do it, students still must be fo-
cused on maintaining achievement against those standards.

Secondly, work-based learning. Instruction is occupationally spe-
cific knowledge, skills, and abilities pegged to national standards, if
available, and a planned program of structured job training, includ-
ing tasks to be mastered. It also helps students develop sound work
habits, behaviors, and general workplace competencies. And, third-
ly, the legislation stipulates that youth apprenticeship include part-
time paid positions that develop job skills, generic workplace com-
petence, and help students achieve academic and work-based learn-
ing requirements and incorporates these together.
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The agreement. Legislation requires commitment of all part-
ners—the student, parents, employers, labor organizations, and
schools—to successfully implement the program, identify creden-
tials and available wage scale and work schedules, and to do so in a
formal agreement.

Safeguards. The bill incorporates legal safeguards to prevent the
displacement of current workers, laid-off workers, by youth appren-
tices and also contains safeguards for the welfare and safety of
each apprentice.

These are the basic pieces of our proposal. They focus very much
on achievement of education standards but relating it to a contex-
tual work world. This is a thesis, Mr. Chairman, that is a part of
every study that we have ever done that focuses on either dropouts
or students with failure rates within the school system, and if we
put those into a positive framework this is the kind of structure we
believe it would take.

As you know, the Labor Department is already encouraging this
youth apprenticeship system. We have engaged in joint efforts with
the Department of Education to cosponsor a conference in 1990
where we brought together national leaders on apprenticeship. We
have worked closely to create a coordinated program of demonstra-
tion projects for school-to-work and youth apprenticeship, and we
will soon be awarding complementary school-to-work demonstra-
tion projects for this year. We have been greatly benefited by the
guidance and support of Betsy Brand, the assistant secretary for
vocational education, and the rest of the Department of Education
in this effort.

The Labor Department is also conducting demonstrations in six
States to develop statewide youth apprenticeship systems—Califor-
nia, Jowa, Maine, Michigan, Oregon, and Wisconsin. Our legislation
proposal we will follow on with nine school-to-work demonstrations
at the local level soon to be announced this year. These projects
have tested ways to restructure high school curriculum, link class-
room training to learning with the workplace, and inform our ap-
proach on the apprenticeship system. They involve such diverse in-
du}ftry as health, finance, metalworking, public service, and many
others.

Preliminary findings indicate that curriculum changes and
changes in the way education is derived in the classroom can moti-
vate students to stay in school, retain more of what they are
taught, and reach a higher standard both for academics and the
workplace.

In conclusion, we are indeed pleased with the level of interest in
the youth apprenticeship system and the crucial school-to-work
connection both in this committee, throughout the Congress, and,
as the Governor indicates, both in the business, labor, and educa-
tion communities themselves. It is time in this country for us to
develop what is essentially the American approach to such a
system and to not allow young people to either drop out within the
school system and then not attach again until later years and lose

the years that are so essential to their earning powers and develop-
ment.
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The Act we have proposed builds a systemic solution, not a dem-
onstration, not a one-time program, but a systemic solution across
the American education system that would bring this to our focus.
We thank you again for your support and your consideration of
this legislation.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Jones follows:]




WMir, Chajrraan and Members of the Subcommittee:

It is & pleasurs 10 1estify once again before the Bmployment Opportunitios
Subcommittee. wish to commend the Subcomsnittee for holding these hearings ont
school to work transition. Our discussion acknowledges the jmportance of a national
comumitment 10 gl our young men and women to ensure that they have first-class training
Oppormniﬁu _ such as youth agpremiuthip - that can guarante® for them the skills
sequired to take advantage of high-sidib high-wage cmplayment opportunities and t0
exjoy the quality of life we all want.

This Country must have 8 strategy 1© ensure that the Armerican dream of affording
« home, supporting & ¢amily, and enjoying 8 high quality of fife can be achicved by each

and every cltizen. ldonotneedtotenyoumateduaﬁcnhthekcywmch

achievements — schools must e mansged with the phjective of bringing 100 percent of

our students 1o bigh standards of academic and work-related skills. Bvery young peson
fhe impontAnce of providing gli students with this opportunity drives the
Administration’s conviction that & youth npp:cnﬁm.h!p system 8 essenitial 10 the nation.

As President Bush hes sald: *Youth appmnﬁwhip i & passport to 8 brighter future.”
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Right now this nation has much work to do if our students are to complete their
education and obtain the skills and knowledge that permit them to succeed in the world
of work. Too many of the roughly seventy percent of our young peopie who will never
eam a college degree leave school without the skills necessary for meaningful
employment. While schools must educate to the broader goals of citizenship and life, ¢
is unconscionable to allow students to graduate without the range and level of skills that
allow atry into rewarding employment.

Americans without these skills will likely find themselves unemployed or relegated
to a segment of the labor market characterized by low skill, low wage jobs, Thus, we
must xddress the education and training needs of all young people, in every State and
local schoal system, <o that they can function effectively in today’s workplace. This
means being abls to work in teams, think on their feet, solve problems, and continue to '
learn as skill requirements and jobs themsclves change. All these skills and more will be .
increasingly needed in the modern economy. As a naticn comumifted to educating its
citizenry and one competing with other strong economic pawers, we cannot afford to
waste the potential of any group of Americans. The financial and the gocig] coats of such
a failure, to the future of this country, but especially to young people themselves and
their families, are ungcceptable.

If we want to manage our schools to bring 100 percent of youth to & high standard
of achievement, we must acknowledge that young peopls learn and mature in different
ways. With that comes a range of learning opportunities and choices for each and every
student — opportunities that include work, two- and four-yesr colleges, formal
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apprenticeship, and the basis for lifelong learning. This need can be met through a range
of options of which youth apprenticeship is & vital component, Students shculd be able
to choose among & number of learning alternatives, including traditional coilege paths,
high tech math and science programs, small highly personal schools-within-schools, Tech-
Prep, Job Corps, and youth apprenticeship. These leamning alternatives can meet
students’ varylng needs and bring students to their full potential by helping them meet
high standards,

Although some options exist for some students, we are not managing our schools
so that our youth achieve up to their full potential. We believe that the nation’s schools
must challenga students to achieve & high standard of learning so they can take their
rightful place in America’s future.

The right to independent and rewarding lives as Americans requires working
together to make alternatives available. Bqual rights can gnly be secured through
ensuring that the educational process is bused on high standards aud brings all students
1o those standards to ensure O} pJrtunity, access, and success in the labor market

regardless of race, gender, disability, ethaic or economic background,

The Departments of Labor and Education have explored many ways of linking
[t

learning and to developing workplace success for students. Our approach is based on &
sequence of high quality, lifelong learning opportunities thst begins with high school and
the transition ta work, includes workplace learning and, where necessary, assistance
programs that allow dislocated workers to retrain for new employment.  Youth
apprenticeship is an important, and new, part of the sequence of high school leamning
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and the transition to work. Youth apprenticeship helps swucants acquire the skilla
nocded to continue to leamn and grow and meet high standards in an increasingly
complex world.

T turn now to discuss the Administration’s proposed "National Youth
Apprenticeship Act of 1992" which was introduced as H.R. 5220 on May 20 by
Congressman Goodling and 11 other sponsors. ‘This bill establishes a public-private
partnership between businesses and public schools which offers & blend of academic and
job-related courses to prepare for technicatly-advanced jobs. It provides a unique
opportunity for Congress to make significant impact in creating & high value education
alternative for American youth. Our youth apprenticeship program:

o  Is an American design, not a replication of the German Dual system,

0 Is not a tracking system, but a means to bring students up to high standards which
alows them to begln work or go on to college;

o Is fundamentzl an cducation system, not a “work" system, and

©  Is & joint pact between students, parents, schools, and smployers.

The Nationa! Youth Apprenticeship Act reflects our strong belief about the
principles and features of youth apprenticeship which should be at the heart of any youth
apprenticeship program. We are confident that the substance of our youth
apprenticeship approach wiil promote a high leve! of motivation wmong students and
belp them meet high standards. We are very concerned that youth apprenticeship not
reflect minimal standards or resemable cooperative education or work relesse programs
which involve & small proportion of students and do not fully incorporste work with

D5
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learning over a sustained period of time,
The key elements of our National Youth Apprenticeship Act are:
State Involvement: The legitlation would put in place a voluntary, federal-stase~

focal structure to implement youth apprenticeship programs consistent with brosd

national criteria. These broad national criterfa provide studems with a high-value
and recognizable certificate of competency while allowing local communities the
Oexibility they need to implement youih apprenticeship programs best sufted to
local circumstances. In States that chooss to participate, the Governor must
submit a plan outlining steps for state-wide support of youth apprenticeship ané
technical assistance to local communities.

A high vaiue lsrning aiternative: The legislation facilitates the development of
voluntary youth apptenticeship programs offering students, beginning {n the 11th
grade, an alternative program of study which integrates academic curriculs, work-
site leaming and paid work experience leading to high schod! graduation
(inciuding post-secondary options) and preparation for the world of wo:k.
Authorization: The bill authorizes $50 million in Department of Labor funds to
be used to aid States and local communities to stant-up and implement youth
apprenticeship programs. Another $5 million in Labor Department funds is
authorized 10 cvaluate these programs.

Advice and guidance: The legisiation encourages reaching back into early grades
fo ensure that students have a clear and informed picture of the full range of
career, occupational, post-secondary and specialization options open to them,
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{nformation about the skilis required to meet their goals, and the knowledge that
they can change their minds.

Academic Instruction: The legislation calls for programs to set high educational
standards in the five core academic subjoct areas (Eaglish, math, sclence, history,

4 zw*ffhd X hy). Achievement levels are gauged against world class standards and
’ : national standards that are developed. The atyle of academic

{nstruction uses hands-on leamning with examples from student’s work-site
experiences to simultanecusly build skifls and excite students about learning.
‘Work-Based Learning: The legislation includes instruction in occupationally
specific knowledge, sidlls and abilities pegged to national standards, if availible,
snd & planned program of structured job training including tasks to be mastered.
It also helps students develop sound work habits, behaviors and general workplace
competencies.

Worksits Learning and Work Experience: The legisiation stipulates that youth
apprenticeship include & part-time, paid position that develops job skills and
generic workplace competencies, helps students achieve academic and work-based
learning requirements, and incorporates guidance from work-sits menators.

A Youth Apprenticeship Agresment: The legislation requires commitiment of all
partoers ~ students, parents, emplayers, labor organizations and schools ~ to the
succesaful implementation of the program and identifies credentinis available
(academic and industry\occupational), wage scale, and work schedule,

Safeguards: The biil incorporates legal safeguards to preveat the displacement of
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current workers and laid-off workers by youth apprentices. The bill also contalns

safeguards for the welfare and safety of youth apprentices.

The Department of Labor s already encouraging youth apprenticeship. We
have engaged in jolnt offorts with the Department of Education to prepare our students
for the modern workpiace. The two Departments co-sponsored @ conference on the
schocl to work connection in 1990 to share {deas and models of success and have worked
closely together to creats a coordinated program of demonstration projects for school-to-
work and youth apprenticeship. The Departments will soon award complementary
school-to-work demonstration projects. This effort has greatly benefitted from the
guidance and support of Ms. Betsy Brand, Assistant Secretary for Vocational and Adult
Education {n the Departatent of Education.

The Department of Labor is also conducting demonstrations in six States to
develop state-wide youth apprenticeship systems. These States are Californis, Jows,
Maine, Michigan, Oregon, and Wisconsin.

Qur legilntive proposal follows on nine school-to-work demonstrations that the
Department of Labor funded in September 1990. These projects bave tested ways t0
mmwtmhighwhoolcunimﬂaandﬁnkchumomlumingvﬂththeworkphcemd
informed our approach to youth spprenticeship. They involve such diverse industrics as

Nealth, finance, metatworking, and public service, Preliminary findings indicate that
mmmmwmdmummemymdmnuumedmmem-

mwmwuhm;mdmrningcemmdmuadpmjmidenﬁﬂedmmdemm
pum—unmodvmm:denuwmylnuhoolnndnuinmomotwhlttheymuught.
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Let me say in conclusion that [ am pleased with the level of interest in youth
apprenticeship and the crucial school o work connection. I look forward wo woridng with
the Committee as you expiore these issues. Tho time has come to act. Amecrica is very
good at responding to crises with silver bullets - dwelopiné programs that address one
piece of a larger problem. This Act builds a systematic solution to the problem created
by lack of school to work transition programs - the lost productivity of a generation of
young pecple who are sceking a carcer pathway and the road to success.

This concludes oiy prepared statement. At this time, I will be happy w respond
to any questions you or the other members of the Subcomumittee may have.
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Chairman PERkKINs. Thank you, Bob. I appreciate very much your
testimony today.

Do you perceive that this youth apprenticeship program is going
to be a bridge to traditional apprenticeships or pretty much a
stand-alone type program?

Mr. Jones. The trick, as we envision it, is to bring young people
through the 11th and 12th grade so they have the option to do
either still—that they either can go on then as a well prepared,
regular apprentice into the workplace, or they can return to tech-
nical, postsecondary education, or on to college. If we don’t bring
them to that standard where they have that option, then we lose
them in the process.

But it is a perfect pre-apprenticeship program, but that shouldn’t
be its only purpose. It is a learning modality that allows students
to participate differently, still meet education standards, and then
be well prepared either for apprenticeship, technical school, work,
or even to go back to college if that is what happens, and that is
probably the heart of this proposal that you won’t find in any of
the European systems or any place else. In those systems, it is a
o}r;e-time straight shot, and you are in it, you don’t ever divert from
that.

Chairman [I"=rxINS. So essentially you are viewing this as a
stand-alone program completely separate from our existing appren-
ticeship programs.

Mr. JonEgs. Yes, sir. No, we are not linking it in any way to our
formal apprenticeship program.

I might suggest that our current formal apprenticeships that
exist, the average age of our apprentices is 26 years old. They all
have bachelor’s degrees. So you right there show the difference be-
tween 1lth and 12th graders and what happens up here and the
need to bridge that gap.

Chairman PerkiNs. What about the concerns that this kind of
program is diluting the definition of apprenticeship and the exist-
ing apprenticeship system?

Mr. Jones. I think the word is a broad concept, the word “ap-
prenticeship’ is not a narrow one, and while we may have limited
ourselves in this country for the past few years to our formal ap-
prenticeship programs, most of which are in the trades. I dare say
this doesn’t dilute that in the least, but, in fact, it is the respect of
the success of that way of learning and teaching that is beginning
to broaden it.

Labor unions and others have raised many questions about using
the word. We have shared with this committee and the rest of the
Congress our main reason for using the word is that both the Gov-
ernor and several members of your subcommittee expressed this
morning: people understand it. It is very hard to communicate
words like “school to work” or “transition” or other things in
terms of systemic change, but “youth apprenticeship” is an under-
stood concept that both youth, parents, and business people under-
stand. We can all find other words, we will all use them, it is not
critical, but the communication of the concept is critical.

One lesson we should take from our European friends that the
Governor and others would point out is that those systems in those
countries are very visible. People know them, see them, understand
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them, and know exactly how they work, and that is why they are
respected, and it is why the students are respected. If it is invisible
and mushed into broader concepts, it is very difficult for people to
do that. So the name does have some value in that sense.

Chairman PErxINs. 1 think it does. However, I think there is
some legitimate concern that when you are using the same word,
apprenticeship, for what you perceive to be two separate programs,
there is going to be some confusion.

Mr. JonEes. Indeed there is.

Chairman PERkINS. What is your response, Bob, to some criti-
cisms we have heard about the President’s Youth Apprenticeship
Act being something that is a glorified tech-prep or Two-plus-Two
program?

Mr. Jongs. Two-plus-Two is a very important program and, as
you probably know, has got some growing success around the coun-
try, and, again, if you follow the thesis of our approach, our view
has been that Two-plus-Two is a very valid model for certain stu-
dents, but it requires that student to be on an academic track for
the 2 years in high school and an academic track for the 2 years
a{(ter high school. Now that is a fairly dedicated student. That is
okay.

There is a percentage of students, I think, who will benefit great-
ly from a Two-plus-Two program. I suspect, however, there are a
lot of students who won’t be able to stay in that kind of a track
uniquely. We think this program is designed precisely for those
students, and, indeed, if you will, Mr. Chairman, if we keep this
student in by this kind of an apprenticeship model at the 12th
grade, they can join Two-plus-Two in the next 2 years. It can act as
the first 2 years in a Two-plus-Two model for those students that
don’t do it in the traditional academic sense but simply in a differ-
ent mode—part work, part work training, and part school with
fewer hours in education.

Our objective here is to build a system based on those three
pieces that we know either people drop out for or that percentage
which find no relevance to the education system, are failing it, can
succeed here and then can benefit from Two-plus-Two or anything
else. It neither replaces Two-plus-Two nor is a competitor to it in
any way.

Chairman Perkins. Have you identified the funding source for
this program? Are you going to be taking it from other programs,
and, if so, which ones?

Mr. JoNEs. We haven’t identified the specific funding source for
the $50 miilion that has been proposed for the curriculum changes
here. We have built it into our budget, and you will see that
coming in both of the next couple of years as a major piece. We
don't think that is a major issue in that this is not a program that
we should be funding as a program but we should be front-loading
curriculum and design kinds of things that the States and localities
need to do. We are finding that from our demonstrations, and we
think that kind of money is going to be available in our budget.

Chairman PErkins. I certainly hope so, Bob.

We thank you very much for your presence here. As always, it is
a pleasure to have you with us, and I won't try to hold you up any
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more than we have this morning, and so I will let you go on to
listen to a speech or whatever else is on your mind today.

Mr. Jones. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and, again, we thank you
not only for this hearing but your work on the JTPA program and
every part of its aspect. We appreciate what you have brought to
this discussion. Thank you.

Chairman PErkINS. Thank you, Bob.

For our next panel, we have several on the panel. We have La
Marr Q. Billups, Dennis Scott, Andrea Dobson, and Richard Kazis.
We are very pleased to have the panel with us this morning.

Let’s start with La Marr Q. Billups, who is State Director of Ap-
prenticeship, Department of Industry, Labor, and Human Rela-
tions, in Madison, Wisconsin.

Mr. Biliups.

STATEMEN1S OF LA MARR Q. BILLUPS, STATE DIRECTOR OF AP-
PRENTICESHIP, DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRY, LABOR, AND
HUMAN RELATIONS, MADISON, WISCONSIN; DENNIS M. SCOTT,
TECHNICAL DIRECTOR OF APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS,
UNITED BROTHERHOOD OF CARPENTERS AND JOINERS OF
AMERICA, WASHINGTON, DC; ANDREA DOBSON, VICE CHAIR,
WORKFORCE QUALITY COUNCIL, SALEM, OREGON; AND RICH-
ARD KAZIS, DIRECTOR, WORK-BASED LEARNING PROGRAMS,
JOBS FOR THE FUTURE, CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS

Mr. BiLLups. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the subcom-
- mittee. )

I appreciate the opportunity to represent the State of Wisconsin
today, it's Governor Tommy Thompson, State Labor Secretary
Carol Skornicka, and our Administration Secretary James Klauser,
who chairs our Executive Cabinet for a Quality Workforce. We wel-
come your interest and commend your effort in considering legisla-
tion on this issue that is so very basic and so sorely needed to ad-
dress the future of American youth, linking education policies with
training policies with economic policies and creating what we call
in Wisconsin a seamless system of youth training and employment,
a rational system that plans the transition from school to work.

I am sure you have heard in your deliberations before that the
United States stands alone among the world’s industrialized na-
tions without a national plan to build a quality workforce. To im-
plement such a plan requires the development of a system that in-
tegrates school and work for all students in all industries. Such a
system must be developed cooperatively through genuine partner-
ships between business, labor, education, and government. This will
ensure broad access to and success in the workplace for all high
school graduates whether they choose to enter the workforce imme-
diately or choose postsecondary study.

In the spring of 1991, our Governor’s Commission for a Quality
Workforce recommended that high school curricula be redesigned
to prepare noncollege-bound students for technical careers. In re-
sponse to this recommendation and to numerous national reports,
the Wisconsin legislature passed AB91, the school-to-work initia-
tive, in July of last year. It contained four key components: a 10th
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grade gateway assessment, tech prep, youth apprenticeship, and
postsecondary enrollment options.

Later that summer, the legislature enacted what is the central
piece, the statutory founding of youth apprenticeship in Wisconsin.
Funds were provided along with this legislation to the Department
of Industry, Labor, and Human Relations to develop youth appren-
ticeship in cooperation with our Department of Public Instruction
and our State Board of Vocational, Technical, and Adult Educa-
tion. The program is designed for 11th and 12th grade students
who are interested in a career in a skilled occupational area and/
- or want technical training and job experience before and while con-
tinuing postsecondary education. The legislation also calls for the
appointment by the governor of a 12-member Youth Advisory
Council.

We know that work has become more complex. Front-line work-
ers in a technical and globally competitive economy must be highly
valued in America. We continue in America to place a high value
and high priority on preparing youth for baccalaureate programs.
Fifty-two percent of Wisconsin’s high school graduates go to college
immediately after high school. That is about 80,000 out of 60,000
students every year. But half of those that go to college don’t
finish, don’t receive a baccalaureate degree, and they are often ill
prepared to enter the workforce. Meanwhile, about 11 percent of
our high school graduates go to technical colleges to receive occu-
pationally specific education in an associate art degree program.

Wisconsin’s apprenticeship program has a long, 80-year history. I
am only the third director of apprenticeship in 80 years in the
State of Wisconsin. Apprenticeship, as a learning model, has been
used, as you probably know, for over 2,000 or 3,000 years.

Chairman PErkINS. They get them young and keep them old, I
guess.

Mr. BiLLups. I beg your pardon?

Chairman Perkins. They must get them young and keep them
old in Wisconsin.

Mr. BiLLups. Well, apparently that has been the practice in the
past.

[Laughter.] .

Mr. BiLups. The basic premise of traditional adult apprentice-
ship programs is that effective learning occurs through doing it.
The teaching is done by a skilled craftsperson or a journey worker
in an actual work situation. Wisconsin’s youth apprenticeship is de-
signed to include important features of its register program. Chief
among these is the integral involvement of labor and a continuing
partnership with business, government, and education at the State
and local level in design and implementation.

From the very beginning of our pursuit of the establishment of a
youth apprenticeship program, we engaged and involved and
walked along this path arm in arm with the AFL-CIO and UAW in
our State. The reason for this is that in the apprenticeship system
we have this sort of partnership, and even though in the State of
Wisconsin less than half, but only slightly less than half, of all the
apprenticeship programs are in union environments, the organized
labor organizations are very big players in our system, and so we
knew, quite frankly, that there was absolutely no hope, or very

Tty
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little hope, for passage of this type of legislation and successful im-
plementation if we did not engage labor, and they have been coop-
erative and supportive of our development in this area, and there
is a range of that cooperativeness, but generally it has been a coop-
erative relationship.

Features that distinguish our program, the youth apprenticeship
program, from the registered apprenticeship program but are con-
sistent with the National Youth Apprenticeship Act include these
following elements—and I'll try to quickly get through these.

Entry into the program occurs early, in the junior year of high
school, and follows the successful completion of a new, 10th-grade
Gateway Assessment, general education exam.

Youth apprentices combine academic and technical education in
a paid, work-based learning experience in a specific industry seg-
ment or occupational cluster. Both school and work operate as
learning environments.

Work-based learning follows a systematic schedule of activities
that are organized to develop skills essential to high-performance
work habits and behaviors.

Classroom instruction to attain proficiency in the five core sub-
jects of English, Math, History, Science, and Geography will be pro-
vided in addition to all students, and all of the classroom education
meets our State standards.

A signed agreement exists in which the employers, school offi-
cials, parents, and students agree to fulfill the requirements of the
program.

Employers arrange for the provision of skilled mentors in the
workplace.

The school provides the coordination between academic instruc-
tion and work-based learning and the work-site experience.

The educational and occupational credentials to be obtained are
outlined, and the wages are listed.

There are formal methods for advising the youth apprentices of
occupational and career opportunities, and the program lasts for 2
to 4 years, depending on the industry, with completion after 2
years leading to the awarding of both the high school diploma and
a certificate of achievement reflecting the occupational proficiency.

This provides the student with several options: the ability to
secure entry-level employment at a wage level above that of a
person that might walk in off the street. It also offers him the op-
portunity to continue in advanced training opportunities, advanced
placement in a traditional apprenticeship or in a postsecondary
technical program, and it also meets the admission requirements
for the University of Wisconsin system.

It is a collaborative effort. It involves school districts, labor orga-
nizations, industry, and postsecondary schools.

Let me summarize for you the next three pages with basically
what we have done so far. Qur Superintendent of Public Schools
received a grant that allowed us to involve Jobs For the Future in
the conduct of five focus groups in five communities with parents
and students all around our State. That gave us a way of soliciting
some input on design and helped us to develop some marketing
strategies.
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Our Cabinet for a Quality Workforce and then another group of
practitioners, including myself, participated in a study tour of Ger-
many, of the German youth apprenticeship system, and we have
taken elements that we felt were relevant for an American experi-
ence and, indeed, the Wisconsin experience and used them in the
design of our program.

The Printing Industries of America is also supporting the devel-
opment of industry standards and mentor certification require-
ments for our first youth apprenticeship program.

We are creating a new system of career exploration and guidance
that will give students information necessary to make responsible
choices about entering the youth apprenticeship program or others.

Our four areas that have been identified for youth apprentice-
ship development are printing, metalworking, finance, and health.
The curriculum for printing is finished, and we will have two local
projects in two areas of the State, one involving one school district,
one business, a printing business, and the vocational technical col-
lege in that area, and one involving 13 school districts in a consor-
tium in the Fox Cities with their technical college and several—
about six—different businesses in the Fox Valley including the
Banta Corporation, and these are all printing youth apprentice-
ships.

In metalworking, we will have developments in Milwaukee and
Waukesha beginning in January, and in the fall of 1993 the pro-
gram will be expanded to probably at least 50 more school districts
or school district consortia that will involve more than one school
district in the area of printing, metalworking, and finance, and we
a}x;e right now working with the utilities to develop programs with
them.

In considering the pending legislation, bear in mind these last
issues. Youth will not flock to the earning and learning associated
with you apprenticeship if those apprenticeships are based on sub-
minimum wage allowances or low-level skill training or a lack of
connection with school sponsorship credentials like a diploma.

In Europe, they highly value youth and expect all of the partners
to support the development. They know that youth are worthy of a
significant financial investment, and we must make the same sort
of investment in our youth.

States also need the opportunity to use creative methods to per-
manently invest in the training effort. Support for existing tax re-
serve mechanisms through the Federal Unemployment Tax Act,
for instance, is encouraged.

The program must coordinate planning and administration at
the Federal, State, and local levels by education, commerce, and °
labor agencies in the States. The program has to ensure collabora-
tion among employers, employees, and educators to determine the
program design and the assessments and develop standards on an
industry-wide basis through the use of labor market information.

The Congress must match the resources to be committed to the
magnitude of the task. It cannot be a demonstration or a pilot
effort, it really must support system-wide change.

ibhs
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MR, CHAIRMAN, MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE, I APPRECIATE THIS
OPPORTUNITY TO REPRESENT THE STATE OF WISCONSIN, ITS GOVERNOR ToMMY
THOMPSON., STATE LABOR SECRETARY CAROL SKORNICKA AKD ADMINISTRATION
SECRETARY JAMES KLAUSER, CHAIR OF THE EXECUTIVE CABINET FOR A QUALITY
WORKFORCE. WE WELCOME YOUR INTEREST, AND COMMEND YOUR EFFORT IN
CONSIDERING LEGISLATION ON AN ISSUE $O0 VERY BASIC AND S0 SORELY NEEDED TO
ADDRESS THE FUTURE OF AMSRICAN YOUTH BY LINKING COMPREHENSIVE
EDUCATION-TRAINING-ECONOMIC POLICIES AIMED AT CREATING A SEAMLESS SYSTEM
OF YOUTH TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT~A RATIONAL SYSTEM THAT PLANS THE
TRANSITION FROM SCHOOL TO WORK.

THE UNITED STATES STANDS ALONE AHONG THE WORLD'S INOUSTRIALIZED
NATIONS WITHOUY A NATIONAL PLAN TO BUILD A QUALITY WORKFORCE. To
IHPLEMENT SUCH A PLAN, REQUIRES THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SYSTEM THAT
REALISTICALLY INTEGRATES SCHOOL AND WORX FQR ALL STUDENTS AND ALL
INDUSTRIES. SUCH A SYSTEM MUST BE DEVELOPED COOPERTIVELY THROUGH GEXUINE
PARTNERSHIPS BETWEEN BUSINESS., LABOR, EDUCATION AND GOVERNNENT To ENSURE
BROAD ACCESS TO AND SUCCESS IN THE WORKPLACE FOR ALL HIGH SCHOOL
GRADUATES, WHETHER THEY CHOOSE TO ENTER THE WORKFORCE IMMEDIATELY, OR
POST-SECONDARY STUDY.

PRESENTLY, SEVERAL FEDERAL-STATE PROGRAMS EXIST THAT ﬂITHf\HIKOR
CHANGES CAN PLAY CRITICAL ROLES. BUT ONLY BE A PART OF AN IKTEGRATED
SCHOOL TO WORK SYSTEM INCLUDING: VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL EDUCATION. JTPA,
FAMILY SUPPORT ACT, JOBS AND OTHERS. MR. CHAIRMAN, WE ANXIOUSLY AWAIT
THE OPPORTUNITY TO JOIN YOU, THE OTHER MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE AND
COMGRESS IN THE DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE “MISSING LINK,' THAT
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CREATES A WHOLE AND NEW SYSTEM~-AN INTERACTIVE SYSTEM OF EDUCATION,
TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT FOR ALL YOQUTH.

IN THE SPRINS OF 1991 THE GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION FOR A QUALXTY
WORKFORCE RECOMMENDED THAT HIGH SCHOOL CURRICULA BE REDESIGNED TO PREPARE
NON-COLLEGE BOUND STYUDENTS FOR TECHNXCAL CAREERS. IN RESPONSE TO THIS
RECOMMENDATIDN AND TO NUMEROUS NATIONAL REPORTS THAT SCHOOLS ARE NOT
ADEQUATELY PREPARING NON-COLLEGE SOUND YOUTH FOR WORK, THE WISCONSIN
LEGISLATURE PASSED ABSL SCHOOL TO WORK INITIATIVE IN July OF 1991. THIS
INITIATIVE CONTAINED FOUR KEY COMPONENTS:

TENTH GRADE GATEWAY ASSESSMENT
TECH PREP

YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP
POSTSECONDARY ENROLLMENT OPTIONS

THE ENACTMENT OF KEY STATEWIDE LEGISLATION TO ESTABLISH WISCONSIN'S
YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP FOLLOWED IN THE SUMMER OF 1991. FuNDS WERE PROVIDED
TO THE DEPARTHMEMT OF INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS TD DEVELOP A
YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM IN COOPERATION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
INSTRUCTION AND THE STATE BOARD OF VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AXD ADULT
EDUCATION. THIS PROGRAM IS DESIGNED FOR L11TH AND 12TH GRADE STUDENTS WHO
ARE INTVERESTED IN A CAREER IN SXILLED OCCUPATIONAL AREAS AND/OX WANT
TECHNICAL TRAINING AND JOB EXPERIENCE BEFORE AND WHILE CONTINUING 1IN
POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION. A 12 MEMBER YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP ADVISORY

COUNCIL HAS BEEN APPOINTED BY THE GOVERNOR TO OVERSEE THE DEVELOPMENT OF
THE PROGRANM.
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WE KNOW THAT WORK HAS BECOME MORE COMPLEX AND KNOWLEOAZ-INTVEWSIVE:
308S WILL REQUIRE WIGHER LEVELS OF READING, QRAL COMMUNICATION,
MATHEMATICAL ANALYSIS, ANO PROBLEM-SOLVING SKILLS FROM OUR HIGH SCHOOL
GRADUATES. HOWEVER, IN THE SHRINKING POOL OF YOUNG WORKERS, THE MAJORITY
WILL COME FROM HOMES THAT ARE ECONOMICALLY ANO EOUCATIONALLY
DISADVANTAGED. AND MOST WILL NOT ACQUIRE NEEOED ACAOEMIC AND EMPLOYMENT
SKILLS UNLESS SIGNIFICANT CHANGES ARE MADE IN BOTH THE EOUCATION AND
EMPLOYMENT SYSTENMS.

FRONT~-LINE WORKERS IN A TECHNICAL AND GLOBALLY COMPETITIVE ECONONY
MUST BE MORE HIGHLY VALUEO IN AMERICA. OUR SOCIETY CONTINUES TO PLACE
HIGH PRIORITY ON PREPARING YOUTH FOR ENROLLMENT IN BACCALAUREATE COLLEGE
PROGRAMS. FIFTY-TWO PERCENT OF WISCONSIN'S HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES ENROLL
IN COLLEGE IMMECIATELY AFTER HIGH SCHOOL GRAOUATION. THAT'S 30,000 out
OF APPROXIMATELY 60,000 YOUTH. WE KNOW, HOWEVER, THAT 50 PERCENT OF
THESE COLLEGE ENTRANTS WILL NOT EARN A BACCALAUREATE DEGREE. THESE
COLLEGE DROP-OUTS ARE OFTEN ILL-PREPAREC FOR ENTRY INTO THE STATE'S
WORKFORCE. MEANWHILE, ONLY 11 PERCENT OF OUR STATE'S HIGH SCHOOL
GRADUATES 60 IMMEOIATELY TO OUR TECHNICAL COLLEGES TO RECEIVE
OCCUPATIONALLY SPECIFIC EOUCATION IN ASSOCIATE ARTS DEGREE AND CERTIFICAT
PROGRANS .

FEATURES OF WISCONSIN YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP, WHICH DISTINGUISH IT FROM
THE REGISTERED PROGRAM, AND WHICH ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE NATIONAL YOUTH
APPRENTICESHIP ACT INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:
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ENTRY INTO THE PROGRAM OCCURS COMPARATIVELY EARLY - BEGINNING IN
THE JUNIOR YEAR OF HIGH SCHOOL ~ AND FOLLOWS SUCCESSFUL
COMPLETION OF A NEW 10TH GRATE GATEWAY ASSESSHENT GENERAL
EDUCATION EXAMINATION.

YOUTH APPRENTICES ENTER A PROGRAM THAT COMBINES HIGH SCHOOL
EOUCATION WITH PAID WORK EXPERIENCE IN A JOB THAT IS FOCUSED ON A
SPECIFIC INDUSTRY SEGMENT OR OCCUPATIOWAL CLUSTER.

CLASSROOM EOUCATION IS INTEGRATED WITH WORK-BASED LEARNING, AND
SOTH S$CHOOL AND WORK OPERATE AS LEARNING ENVIRONMENTS.

WORK-BASED LEARNING WILL FOLLOW A SYSTEMATIC SCHEDULE OF WORK
ACTIVITIES THAT ARE ORGANIZED TO HELP DEVELOP SKILLS ESSENTIAL TO
HIGH PERFORMANCE WORK AND SOUND WORK HABITS AND BEHAVIORS.

CLASSROOM INSTRUCTION TO ATTAIN PROFICIENCY IN THE FIVE CORE
SUBJECTS OF ENGLISH, MATHEMATICS, HISTORY, SCIENCE AND GEOORAPHY
VILL 8E PROVIDED TO ALL STUDENTS.

ALL CLASSROOM EDUCATION WILL MEET STATE EDUCATION STANDARDS.
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SIGNED AGREEMENT IN WHICH:

THE EMPLOYERS, SCHOOL OFFICXALS, PARENTS AND STUQENT AGREE TO
FULFILL THE REQUIREHENTS OF THE PROGRAM;

THE EMPLOYERS SUPPORT AND ARRANGE FOR ALL THE REQUIRED
COMPONERTS, INCLUDING PROVIDING A SKILLED MENTOR;

THE SCHOOL COMMITS TO PROVIDE AND SUPPORT TKE YOUTH
APPRENTICESHIP COMPONENTS INCLUDING ENSURING CLOSE
COORDINATION BETWEEN ACADEMIC INSTRUCTION, WORK-BASED
LEARNING, AND WORKSITE EXPERIENCE; AND

THE EDUCATIONAL AND OCCUPATICNAL CREDENTIALS YO BE OBTAINED
ARE OUTLINED, THE WAGE RATE IS LISTED, AND OTHER PROVISIONS
AND REQUIREMENTS ARE INCLUDED.

THERE WILL BE A FORMAL METHOD FOR ADVISING THE YOUTH APPRENTICE
OF QCCUPATIONAL AND CAREER OPFORTUNITIES.

THE PROGRAM LASTS FOR TWO TO FOUR YEAR.. WITH COMPLETICN AFTER
TWO YEARS LEADING TO THE AWARDING OF A HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA, A
CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT REFLECTING OCCUPATIONAL PROFICIENCIES,
AND THE ABILITY TO SECURE EMTRY-LEVEL EMPLOYMENT AD/OR CONTINUE
IN ADVANCED TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES (E.G. ADVANCEDC PLACEMENT IN A
TRADITIONAL APPRENTICESHIP OF A POSTSECONDARY PROGRAM AT A STATE
VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE OR A STATE UNIVERSITY).

IMPLEMENTATION IS A COLLABORATIVE EFFORT INVOLVING SCHOOL DISTRICTS.
LAGOR ORGANIZATIONS, INDUSTRIES, AND POSTSECONDARY SCHOOLS. THE
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FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES KAVE TAKEN PLACE DURING THIS PLANING PERIOD:

IN AUGUST OF 1991 THE STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS RECEIVED A
GRANT FROM THE COUNCIL Of CHIEF STATE SCHOOL OFFICERS TO ASSIST
IN DESIGNING AND IMPLEMENTING WISCONSIK'S YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP
PROGRAM. WISCONSIN'S GRANT SUPPORTED A SERIES OF "FOCUS GROUPS"
WITH PARENTS AND STUDENTS AS A WAY OF SOLICITING INPUT TO PROGRAM
DESIGN AMD TO HELP DEVELOP APPROPRIATE MARKETING STRATEGIES THAT
SUPPORT THE YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP INITIATIVE. IN NOVEMBER OF 1991
FOCUS GROUP DISCUSSIONS WERE HELD WITH PARENTS AND STUDENTS IN
FIVE WISCONSIN COMMUNITIES.

MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNOR'S CABINET FOR A QUALITY WORKFORCE
PARTICIPATED IN A STUDY TOUR OF THE GERMAN APPRENTICESHIP SYSTEM
IN LATE OCTOBER 1991, SPONSORED BY THE GERMAN MARSHALL FUND OF
THE UNIYED STATES. THEIR OBSERVATIONS HAVE ALSO GUIDED THE
DESIGN OF THE WISCONSIN YOUTH APPRENTICESHI® SYSTEH, WNICH
INCORPORAYES THOSE ELEMENTS OF THE GERMAN SYSTEM WHICH ARE MOST
APPROPRIATE FOR AN AMERICAN SYSTEM OF YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP.

LATER THAT YEAR CDS INTERNATIONAL LED A SECOND STUDY TOUR OF THE
GERMAN APPRENTICESHIP SYSTEM COMPRISED OF REPRESENTATIVES OF
WISCONSIN'S TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM, LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES,
DILHR'S BUREAU OF APPRENTICESHIP STANDARDS, MILWAUKEE-AREA
BUSINESSMEN, AND STATE EDUCATION AGENCY POLICY LEADERS.

ERIC
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PRINTING INDUSTRIES OF AMERICA, UNDER A GRANT FROM THE GERMAN
MARSHALL FUND OF THE UNITEO STATES, IS SUPPORTING DEVELOPMENT OF
THE INDUSTRY STARDARDS AND MENTOR CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS TO
OPERATE THE FIRST YOUTH APPRENTICESHIPS IN PRINTING IN TKE
1992-93 $CHOOL YEAR.

IN 1892, THE STATE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOGLS RECEIVED A GRANT
FROM THE COUNCIL OF CHIEF STATE SCHOOL OFFICERS TO ENHANCE THE
IMPLEMENTATION OF A NEW STATEWIDE SYSTEM OF CAREER EXPLORATION
AND GUIDANCE DESIGNED TO GIVE STUDENTS INFORMATION NECESSARY TO
HAKE A RESPONSIBLE CHOICE ABOUT ENTERING WISCONSIN'S YOUTH
APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM.

CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT FOR THE PRINTING INDUSTRY WILL BE
COMPLETED FOR USE BY SEPTEMBER OF 1992,

FOUR OCCUPATIONAL AREAS FOR THE FIRST YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP
PROGRAMS HAVE BEEN SELECTER BY THE EXECUTIVE CABINET. THEY ARE
PRINTING, METALWORKING, FINANCE ANO HEALTH. THE PRINTING AND

METALWORKING IMPLEMENTATION GROUPS HAVE COMPLETED THE STEPS
REQUIRED TO IMPLEMENT PROGRAMS IN THESE AREAS. YOUTH
APPRENTICESHIPS IN THE FINANCE AREA ARE PLANNED FOR THE FALL OF
1993.

T¥0 YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMS ARE PLANNED TO BEGIN IN THE HE
FALL OF 1992 WHICH wILL FOCUS ON OCCUPATLIONS IN THE PRINTING
INDUSTRY.




WEST BEND HIGH SCHOOL AND SERIOGRAPH. INC. WILL ENROLL TWELYE
STUDENTS IN THE 11TH GRAOE IN THEI&X YOUTH APPRENKTICESHIP
PROGRAM. STUDENTS WILL ATTEND SCHCOL IN THE MORNINGS IN
ACADEMIC AND TECH PREP CLASSES AND SPEND AFTERNOGI!S AT
SERIGRAPH. INC. IN A WORK-BASED LEARNIKG ENVIRONMENT.
SPECIFIC CLASSES IN PRINTING MAY BE TAUQHT AT THE LOCAL
VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL COLLE®E.

THE Fox CITIES CHAMBER 05 COMMERCE IS OVERSEEING THE
DEVELOPNENT OF THE PROGRAM WITH 12 FOX VALLEY SCHOOL
DISTRICTS. IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE BANTA CORPORATION.
STUDENTS WILL ATTEND THE LOCAL VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE
FOR THREE DAYS A WEEK AND SPEND TWO DAYS A WEEK IN A
WORK-BASED LEARNING ENVIRONMENT AT PRINTING SUSINESSES IN THE
FOX VALLEY AREA. THESE STUDENTS WILL ROTATE AMONG BUSINESS
TO LEARN THE FULL RANGE OF SKILLS REQUIRED FOR PRINTING
OCCUPATIONS.

MILVAUKEE ANO WAUKESHA. ARE PLANNING TO YMPLEMENT PROGRAKS IN JANUARY

OF 1993. OTHER AREAS AROUND THE STATE ARE IN THE INITIAL PLANNING STAGES
AND WILL IMPLEMENT PROGRANS IN THE FALL OF 1993,

THESE ARE WISCONSIN'S FIRST 80LD STEPS, BUT WE CAN'T DO IT ALONE,
WE. AND OTHER STATES WELCOME FEDERAL PARTNERSHIP TO ENERGIZE

[€)
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SCHOOQL-TO-WORK INITIATIVES WITHIN THE CONTEXT OF EDUCATIONAL REFORM
EFFORTS. CONNECTING ALL STUDENTS YO THE IMPORTANCE OF WORK AND THE VALUE
OF MEANINGFUL EMPLOYHENT WITH A SOLID CAREER-WAGE PROGRESSION, HEALTH
INSURANCE. AND THE CAPACITY TO SUPPORT A FAMILY UNIT, IS VITAL TO THE
SURVIVAL OF AMERICA.

FINALLY IN CONSIDERING IMPENDING LEGISLATION, BEAR IN MIND SEVERAL
CRITICAL ISSUES:

- YOUTH WILL NOT FLOCK TO THE EARNING AND LEARRKING ASSOCIATED WITH
YOUTH APPRENTICESHIP IF SUCH APPRENTICESHIPS ARE BASED OK
SUBMINIMUM WAGE ALLOWANCES, LOW-LEVEL SKILL TRAINING, AND A LACK
OF CONNECTION WITH SCHOOL SPONSORSHIP CREDENTIALS LIKE A
DIPLOMA. OQUR EUROFEAN COMPETITORS HIGHLY VALUE YOUTH AND EXPECT
ALL PARTNERS--BUSINESS, LABOR. AND EDUCATION--TO SUPPORT
OEVELOPMENT. THEY KNOW YOUTH ARE WORTHY OF SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL
RESOURCE INVESTMENT. AMERICA MUST ALSO MAKE THIS INVESTMENT IN
ITS YOUTH.

-~  STATES NEED THE OPPORTUNITY TO USE CREATIVE METHODS TO
PERMANENTLY INVEST IN THIS EFFORT. SUPPORT FOR EXISTING TAX
(LIKE FUTA) RESERVE MECHANISMS IN STRONGLY ENCOURAGE.

-  THE PROGRAM HUST PROVIDE FOR COORDINATED ADHINISTRATION AT THE

FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LEVELS BY EDUCATION, COMHMERCE, AND LABOR
AQENCIES.

- THE PROGRAM MUST ASSURE COLLABORATION AHONG EMPLOYERS, EMPLOYEES.

lia
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AND EDUCATORS TQ DETERMINE PROGRAM DESIGN, STANDARDS AND
ASSESSMENY, IT MusT DEVELOP STANDARDS ON AN INDUSTRY-WIDE BASIS.

THE PROGRAM NUST MATCH THE RESOURCES TO BE COMNITTED TO THE
MAGNITUDE OF THE TASK oOF SERVING MILLIONS OF AMERICAN TOUTH.
THIS CANNOT BE A DEMONSTRATION OR PILOT EFFORT, BUT MUST SUPPORT
SYSTEMWIDE CHANGE,

MR. CHAIRMAN, AND HEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE, WE ARE INVOLVED IN
FUEDAMENTAL CHANGE--THE CREATION OF A NEW CHAPTER IN THE SOCIAL CONTRACT
FOR YOUTH OF EVERY RACE, EACH GENDER, ALL ECONOMIC GROUPS, RURAL ARD
URBAN. WE LOOK FORWARD To JOINING YOU TO MEET THIS UHALLENGE.

THANK YOU,
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Chairman Prrxins. Thank you, Mr. Billups.

We will now turn to Dennis M. Scott, Technical Director of Ap-
prenticeship Programs, United Brotherhood of Carpenters and
Joiners of America.

Mr. Scott.

Mr. Scorr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the sub-
committee.

1 appreciate the opportunity to address you this morning on this
very important issue of school-to-work transition. I also appreciate
the comments of those speakers who went before me. I believe that
some of those comments will be a good reference point for many of
the comments that I'm going to make this morning.

You will find a slight departure in my oral statement from that
which I supplied earlier, the written statement. I am going to be a
little bit more specific about some of the ways that we intend to
implement a school-to-work transition program in our organization.

As Technical Director of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters
and Joiners of America, which is a building trades union represent-
ing approximately 600,000 members and also about 300 joint labor-
management apprenticeship programs throughout the United
States, I appreciate the opportunity to present the United Brother-
hood of Carpenters’ views on the school-to-work transition pro-
gram.

Just for your information, our organization has apprenticeship
programs in carpentry, mill wrighting, floor cevering, pile driving,
interior systems, lathing, and so there are a number of different
trades within our organization.

In recent years, public policymakers have focused on the failure
of American schools in preparing noncollege-bound youth with the
skills and contacts needed for meaningful, productive lives and ca-
reers. Today, our Nation is overwhelmed by social and economic
problems arising from the 25 percent of our 46 million students
who do not graduate from high school and from the millions of
others who graduate inadequately prepared for the workforce.

Many now believe that the basic flaw in the U.S. school system is
its disconnection from the workplace. As a result, school-to-work
transition policies have become a national priority.

Some educators and policymakers propose to solve the problem
of school-to-work transition by creating new agencies—the Youth
Apprenticeship Institute, for example—or they propose programs
to tie high school youths directly to employers within the commu-
nity. Others focus on workplace literacy programs.

The United Brotherhood of Carpenters believes that our Nation’s
long established traditional apprenticeship programs, largely ig-
nored in the rush to create new programs, offer the best opportuni-
ty to develop and test the school-to-work transition model.

The United Brotherhood of Carpenters already established ap-
prenticeship programs overseen by joint labor-management com-
mittees which are privately funded through collective bargaining.

The crucial elements of an effective school-to-work transition are
already in place. What is needed is an interface between tradition-
al apprenticeship and public education. This interface could be fa-
cilitated by various Federal departments and agencies with funds
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which are already set aside to support school-to-work transition
programs.

The United Brotherhood of Carpenters suggests linkages to
public education be designed based on the following guidelines:

First, introduce high school students to career opportunities with
the trades of carpentry beginning in the 9th and 10th grades in
order to promote a better attitude among students about construc-
tion in general and about pursuing a career in one of the carpentry
trades in particular.

Second, develop and implement math and reading programs
based on the various carpentry trades to measurably improve the
academic performance of high school students.

Third, design and implement trade-related courses which address
genuine trade skills and competencies and focus on preparing 11th
and 12th grade students for a full-time apprenticeship after grad-
uation.

Fourth, indenture 12th grade high school students to joint labor-
management committees, thus allowing students to buy into formal
apprenticeship programs with the United Brotherhood of Carpen-
ters.

Fifth, provide mentors to train 17-year-old students on construc-
tion sites so that they can participate in limited work experience
during the summer months between 11th and 12th grades and for
up to 2 days per week during the 12th grade school year.

Sixth, establish guidelines for minimum wages to be paid to car-
pentry school-to-work students while on actual job sites.

Finally, seventh, provide graduates of the carpentry school-to-
work program direct entry to our full-time carpentry apprentice-
ship programs with 1-year credit.

To accomplish these goals, the United Brotherhood of Carpen-
ters’ Apprenticeship and Training Fund is seeking support from
the Federal Government to form an education and training consor-
gium with leading educators and vocational instructors in several

tates.

The consortium will develop, implement, and evaluate a school-
to-work transition linkages with the Carpenters National Appren-
ticeship Program and selected school districts during a 5- to 10-year
demonstration program. The linkage would include preparation of
basic skills standards for the carpentry crafts or integration into
school-to-work programs throughout the United States.

The skill standards would be built around the core competencies
and foundations of the carpentry crafts required for real jobs and
basic skills required for high school graduation.

The consortium would target school districts with high dropout
rates in several States with a goal to keep students in high school
through graduation, at which time they would transition into full-
time apprenticeship training with credit for the school-to-work ex-
perience.

The curriculum developed by the consortium would provide re-
quired high school reading, writing, math, and reasoning skills
using carpentry-related content. For example, students would ex-
plore geometry skills associated with the use and understanding of
the Pythagorean theorem through roof and stair construction.

Ley
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Reading skills could involve material safety data sheets for prod-
uct assembly instruction. The students would also gain trade-relat-
ed knowledge, skills, and safety instructions to prepare them for
entry into the trade as full-time apprentices.

The United Brotherhood of Carpenters Apprenticeship and
Training Fund has already taken the first step in identifying key
employers, labor unions, and vocational experts and educators who
will work together to formulate a school-to-work transition pro-
gram. With appropriate funding, this collaborative committee will
focus on the following issues:

One, establishing and documenting the need for a carpentry-
based school-to-work program; two, researching and developing
competency standards; three, developing trade-related curricula;
four, establishing partnerships with school districts; and, five, de-
veloping evaluation methods.

In conclusion, the proposed carpenters school-to-work transition
program would play a major role in establishing a model for trades
and industries which do not use apprenticeship but are interested
in starting programs. In addition, the proposed carpenter program
would involve education and labor in the school-to-work mission
with a special emphasis on the recruitment of women and minori-
ties.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Scott follows:]
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ATATENENT BY DENNIS M. SCOTT, TECHNICAL DIRECTOR -~ UNITRD
BROTRERHOOD OF CARPENTERS AND JOINERS OF AMERICA TO THR
S8UBCOMNITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES, U.8. HOUSE CP?
REPRESENTATIVES, IN PUBLIC HEARINGS ON S8CHOOL-TO-WORK
TRANBITION PROGRAKS

June 17, 1992
o
I appreciate this opportunity to present the United

Brotherhood of Carpenters’ views on School-to-Work Transition.

In recent years, public policy makers have focused on the
failure of American schools in preparing non-college bound youth
with the akills and contacts needed for meaningful, productive

lives and careers.(V@Oxo

Today, our nation is overwhelmed by social and economic
problems arising from the 25 percent of our 46 million students
who do not graduate from high school and from the millions of
others who graduate inadequately prepared for the workforce. ¢

Dropping out of school jis associated with lifetine

unemployment,® poverty and poor health.!” During adolescence it

is also associated with multiple social and health problems
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inoluding substance abuse, delinquency, intentional and

unintaentional injury, and unintended pregnancy.®

U.S. citizens who drop out or are poor performers in scheol
contribute less to the U.S. tax base.‘” They depend more on
social sarvices and public support than those who successfully
complete high school.¢'?’ In addition, drop-outs and poor
performers threaten our nation’s ability to compete

globally. [SREISFTE1 Y]

Many now believe that the basic flaw in the U.S. school
system is its disconnection from the workplace.(iWU$)18) ag 5
result, school-to-work transition policies have become a natiosnal

priority.¢"?

B8CHOOL~TO-NORK SOLUTIONS

Some educators and policy makers propose to solve the
problem of school-to-work transition by creating new agencies:
the Youth Apprenticeship Institute, for example.‘™® or, they

propose programs to tie high school youths directly to employers

within the community.®? others focus on "workplace literacy"

prograns .

Such programs could be valuable in all occupations,

especially those not served by traditional apprenticeship
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programs. However, most, by admission of their proponents, must
be built from the ground up. They will be axpensive. They will ba

years in development.

Meanwhile, our nation’s long-established traditional
apprenticeship programs, largely ignored in the rush to create
new programs, offer the best oppaortunity to develop and tast the
school~to-work transition model. Traditional apprenticeship is
succesaful for those it serves. Its curriculum is alraeady in
place, its workplace linkage already established, Linking
traditional apprenticeship with s$chool offers an immediate

opportunity to build and test school-to-work transition.

THE ROLE OF TRADITICNAL APPRENTICESHIP IN SCHOOL-TQ-WORX

The mission of traditional apprenticeship and training
prograns is to 2quip apprentices with marketable skills for
today’s and tomorrow’s workplaces. Most are funded by "cent~-per-
hour" contributions from employers for whom the apprentices
work.?' Such an apprenticeship program’s existence depends on
its ability to prepare workers for the jobs that contributing
enployers perform. This is the essential linkage to *real-world?
jobs which schools and other vocational institutions, not

directly funded by employers, sometimes lack.®® It explains

why existing apprent{ceshlp programs repeatedly demonstrate

effectiveness in training workers in studies of construction
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The traditional apprenticeship programs’ linkage to jobs
would benefit high school programs. Likewlse, apprenticeship
programs, and the employers that contribute to them, would
benefit from access to high school students. It is the basis for

a natural, cost~effective partnership.

Clearly, schools and traditional apprenticeship programs are
natural allies in the school-~to-work parauwigm to upgrade the
competency of America’s workforce. Together, schools and
traditional apprenticeship programs can offer a comprehensive
delivery system for transforming us into a 'nation of students"

from pre-school to retirement. This alliance would help to model

' ituxe non-traditional apprenticeship progranms.

Traditional apprenticeship programs have established joint
labor-management committees which are a valuable intermediary
between student and employer. In addition, traditional
appranticeship programs share costs of training among many
employers in order to offer a wide base of skills training and

employment opportunities at a reasonable cost.

The crucial elements of an effectivé school-to~work
transition are in place. What is needed is an interface betwsen

traditional apprenticeship and public education. This interface




could be facilitated by various Federal departmenta and agancies
with funds which are already set aside to support school-to-work
transitfion demonstration programs. Such funding should be
available for development of career awareness programs, guldance
counselor training, curriculum development and testing and

training for vocational teachers.

The results of an immediate demonstration program involving
traditional apprenticeship would guide the development of other
non-traditional school-to-work transition programs, which are now
in only their formative stage. and for those very few non-
traditional programs already undékway, a school~-to-work
transition program for traditional apprenticeship provides the
opportunity to compare the cost-effectiveness of the two types of

prograns.
TRADITIONAL APPRENTICESHIP - PAST AND PRESENT
In the past, many apprenticeship programs were criticized

for preferential selection,®’ because of father-to-son craft

traditions which, unwittingly or not, excluded minorities and

women. Today, the situation is tar.different. Traditional.

programs register apprenticeship standards which require
affirmative action plans with goals and timetables for
recruitment of minorities and women. Az much as apprenticeship

programs want to achieve these goals and timetables, in recent
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yaars thae biggest problem has been in the recruitment of
qualified applicants as apprentices to maintain a competent
workfoxce. Each year we turn away hundreds of women and minority
applicants because employers are reluctant to take "green kids,®
with poor math and reading skills. Furthermore, finding
educationally-qualified apprentices has become more and more
difficult as the range of jobs and skills performed by carpenters

has increased.

Currently, the mean age for a beginning apprentice carpenter
i 24.% This means that the average apprentice spends 6 years
wandering from job to job before developing the work skills and
employment contacts needed for productive, rewarding work. A
school~to~work transition program weculd help the Carpenters
Apprenticeship Program recruit qualified women and ninority
applicants, while helping to reduce the number of non-productive,
low-pay years between high school graduation and entry into
apprenticeship (25% of non-college bound students try traditional

apprenticeship programs at least once) .

ADVARTAGEE OF SCHOOL-TO-WORK WITH TRADITIONAL APPRENTICESHIP

First, by introducing students to the career opportunities

of carpentry heginning in the 9th and 10th grades, a school-~to~

work transition program would promote a better attitude among

students about apprenticeship.
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Second, an applied curriculum teaching math and verbal

skills based on the various carpentry trades would measurably

improve the academic performance of underachievers. Carear
education in the classroom is known to improve student school
achlievement, motivation and decisjon-making skills.®” Students
exposed to career education have better achievement racords than

comparable students without such programs.®

Third, school-to~work programs could help recruit women and
minorities, and help reduce the attrition of apprentices in
traditional apprenticeship programs. Drop out rates run as high
as 50 percent during the first two years.® <This is a waste of
time for the failed apprentice and of valuable resources for the
apprenticeship program. Introducing youth to carpentry
apprenticeship during the 1ith and 12th grades of high school
would aliow students to determine early on if it is the career

they wish to pursue.

Fourth, much of the work experience and knowledge required
to becone a successful carpenter apprentice could be developsd
during a two-year school-to-work transition program. This would
save many students the fate of wasting six to eight years after
high school before gaining access to carpentry apprenticeship
programes. Earlier entry to the craft means more years of

productive work for the apprentice and for the industxy.
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Clearly, involvement in a school-to-work transition
demonsatration project would benefit America‘’s youth and the

carpenters’ apprenticeship program.

THE UBC APPRENTICESHIP AND TRAINING FUND SCHOOL-TO-WORK PLAN

Because the benefits are so clear, the UBC Apprenticeship
and Training Fund of North America is seeking support from the
Federal Government to form an education and training consortium
with leading educators and vocational instructors in several
states. The consortium will develop, implement and evaluate a
school-to-work transition linkage with the Carpenters National
Apprenticeship Program and selected school districts during a
five to 10 year demonstration project. The linkage would include
preparation of basic skills standards for the carpentry crafte

for integrcation into high school vocational education throughout

the nation using the SCANS model.®

The skills standards would be built around the core
competencies and foundations of the carpentry crafts required fo
real jobs and basic skills required for high school graduation.
The consortium would target school districts with high drop-out
rates in several states. The goal would be to heep students in
high school through graduation, at which time they would
transition into ful.-time formal apprenticeship training with

credit for their high school experience in a school-to-work
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The modified curriculum developed by the consortium would

teach required high school reading, writing, math and reasoning

skills using carpentry-related content. For example, students
would explore geometry skills associated with use and
understanding of the Pythagorean Theorem through roof and stalr
construction; reading skills could involve MSDS’s or product
aszembly instructions. The students would also gain trade-related
knowledge, skills, and safety instruction which would prepara

them for entry into the trade as full-time apPrentices.

students entering the carpentry-related high school program
would be assessed for literacy and grade level performance using
standardized tests. Changes in skill levels would be evaluated
annually and at graduation. Graduates of the carpentry school-to-
work program would be compareéd pre~ and post-program as well as
with other comparable high school students for basic literacy and
other educational measures. Program dropout rates would be
evaluated using a matched cohtrol group that did not receiva the

carpentry-based high school progran.

EVALUATION OF UBC SCHOOL-TO-WORK PLAN

Evaluation would focus on several relevant issues: 1)

Success inp keeping students in high schools. 2) Success in
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booating traditional academic performance. 3) Success in

apprentice retention and completion, with school-to-work
transition being compared with traditional recruitment. 4) Change
in mean xzge of apprentices in ccrpentry programs in areas using
the school-to-work transition program. 5) Estimates of cost-
affectiveness vis-a-vis development of foundation and competency
skills, completion of apprenticeship, employability and earning
pover. &) Program sucCess with minority, women or other

disadvantaged youth.

Evaluation would require longitudinal comparisons within
each selected school and apprenticeship program as well as pre-
and post- cross-sectional surveys of natched pairs of
participating and non-participating schools and apprenticeship
progrars. Annual evaluations with five and 10 year study end

points are recommended.
TAKING THE FIRST STIP FOR UBC SCHOOL-TO-WORK PLAN

The UBC Apprenticeship and Training Fund of North America
haé already taken the first step by identifying key employers,
labor unions, vocational experts and educators who will work
together to formulate a school-to-vork transition program. With
appropriate funding, this collaborative committee will focus on

the following issues:
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Daveloping the approach to high school completion programs
that integrate occupationally-based knowledge and skills

into the curriculum, including:

major divisions or specialties within the carpenter’s
occupation to be covered:

ninimum hours of study needed in each division or
specialty:;

minimum tools or eguipment needed:;

special training for instructional staff.

Establishing and documenting the need for the carpentry-

basad program focusing on:

national need for carpentry skills:

transferability of carpentry skills to other
occupational settings:

the unique appeal of the carpentry trade as a vehicle
tor enhancing basic reading and math skills:

how the proposed standards-development process will
maet the needs of businesses:

the benefits to labor, business, and education.

Coordinating the development of the proposed competencies

with business, labor and educators in targeted areas.

LRI
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Selacting school digtricts to participate.

Developing the evaluation methods, including:

a. A formative evaluation to assess and improve the

accuracy of the criteria:

A sumnmative evaluation, to be conducted by an

indepandent evaluation organization.

CORCLUSION

The proposed Carpenters school-to-work transition progran
could play a major role in estaklishing a wmodel for trades and
industries which do not use apprenciceship, but are interested in
developing pregrams. Irn addition, the proposed Carpenter pregram
would involve Educaticn and Lakor i the school-to-work mission,
with a special emphasis on the recruitment of women and

minorities.
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Chairman PerkiNs. Thank you very much, Mr. Scott.

We would now like to turn to Andrea Dobson, the vice chair of
the Oregon Workforce Quality Council.

We are pleased to have you with us, Ms. Dobson. Please give us
your thoughts.

Ms. DossoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

It is a pleasure to be here this morning with this distinguished
company. Looking at your witness list, I believe I am the only
working journeyman bus mechanic on your list, and it has been
very exciting listening to the things that are going on in other
States. Even though there is a tremendous variety from State to
State on the specifics of the programs, I think we are all working
on the same assumptions, which kind of reinforces our feeling that
we are on the right track.

What I would like to present this morning in summarizing my
written testimony is not so much a detailed description of our
youth apprenticeship program which is in its infancy—and I have
to say that we appreciate the assistance of the Department of
Labor in funding us as one of the six pilot States for youth appren-
ticeship, because that has kind of jump-started our youth appren-
ticeship program which was created by the Legislature but now
gaces severe budgetary problems, as does everything else in the

tate.

But our youth apprenticeship program is part of a much bigger
picture of what has been going on in Oregon in the last few years.
The vision we have as the Workforce Quality Council is that
Oregon will have the best educated and prepared workforce in the
kI:Iat)i(c)>1n by the year 2000 and a workforce equal to any in the world

y 2010.

This mission came out of a strategic planning effort that we
started in the late 198(’s. We looked around and discovered that
our economy was diversifying away from our dependence on the
timber industry, that we were creating new jobs but that our per
capita income was going down.

There is an ancient proverb that says if we don't change our di-
rection we are liable to end up where we are headed, so we decided
we wanted to reverse that trend, and what we decided to do was to
take a high-skill, high-wage path.

Part of this process was to establish a set of benchmarks to meas-
ure our progress towards our goal, and these benchmarks fall into
three interdependent elements which are: establishing a robust
economy, improving our excellent quality of life, and creating ex-
ceptional people.

In order to reach our benchmarks for exceptional people, we
have adopted what we call a human investment strategy, and we
have.two major tools that we have created in the 1991 legislature
for working on this strategy.

The first is the Oregon Workforce Quality Council, which will
oversee our efforts to build a competitive economy for Oregon by
reforming our education and job training systems and by stimulat-
ing private sector investment in workforce development and cre-
ation of high-performance work organizations, and the second one
is the Educational Act for the Twenty-first Century, which is a
complete restructuring of jur public school system.

194
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I believe Chairman Perkins used the word “revolution” in his
opening comments. This is more than just a new program, it is a
revolution in the whole way that we think about economic develop-
ment and about the delivery of government services, and we have
had to make several changes in the way that we think about these
things.

First of all, we have tried to bring decision-making down to the
local level as much as possible. We have divided the State into 15
regions. Each region will have its own regional workforce quality
committee, and they will develop strategic plans for their own area
and give feedback to the State Council.

Second—and I was happy to hear Governor McKernan emphasiz-
ing this—the State strategy has to be private sector driven, and, as
you can see from the diagram of the membership of our Council,
the private sector members make up the majority of the Council
and they hold the leadership positions on the Council.

Third, we are beginning to assess programs based on outcomes
rather than inputs. In the past, we have evaluated the success of a
school district by how big is their tax base, what is their teacher/
student ratio, and now we are more results oriented. We are look-
ing at what skills can your students demonstrate.

Fourth, we look at economic development and social services as
two sides of the same coin, and we put the highest priority on pro-
grams that are preventive in nature. We feel that making i vest-
ments in things iike prenatal care, Head Start for all eligible chil-
dren, and support services in the schools and in the workplaces for
students and workers will enable us to reduce our future expendi-
tures on things like unemployment insurance, welfare, drug reha-
bilitation, and prisons.

Fifth, we have changed our focus from the idea of helping the
needy to investing in people and expecting to get a return on our
investment with the idea that we can't afford to waste a single citi-
zen.

Sixth, our concept of teamwork among agencies and programs is
evolving from cooperation, which meant in the past that we had to
sign off on each other’s grant proposals, through what we now call
collaboration, where we work on things together. we talk about
things together. We are moving towards the next step, which is in-
tegration, and by integration we mean literally these different pro-
grams will sit down and figure out their budgets and write them
down on the same piece of paper.

As the graphic shows, the Workforce Quality Council brings to-
gether private sector leaders with key government decision-makers
in order to help create an education, employment, and training
system that is client centered and efficient and accessible to all Or-
egonians, and I have also included two documents that go into
greater detail on our education reform:

Basically, after demonstrating mastery of basic skills in ungrad-
ed primaries and the first 10 years of school—and this demonstra-
tion would be by authentic assessments such as portfolios rather
than just tests—we will no longer pass students through grade
s%l:iool Jjust because they have been in the seat for a certain number
of days.
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Then in the last 2 years of high school, students will choose a
broad career area, such as business and finance, arts and communi-
cations, natural resources, manufacturing, and technology, and
there will be heavy emphasis on work experience and school-to-
work transition programs in those last 2 years and also an empha-
sis on flexibility.

The students will choose a career area that interests them. They
will not choose whether they are going to go to college or not when
they are in the 10th grade. We want to really avoid that type of
tracking, and this is something that has been difficult even for edu-
cators, who are supposed to be helping us work on this, to grasp.

There will no longer be a college prep track and a general track
as we have had in the past, but any student can pursue in his
chosen career area a variety of options for postsecondary education
and training, whether it be apprenticeship, community college, or
going directly into the workforce, and they can go back and forth
at any time. If you decide in the 11th grade you would really like
to be an electrician and you are working towards getting into the
electrical apprenticeship program, and in 12th grade you decide
that you are really interested in this field and you want to become
an electrical engineer and go to a 4-year coliege, then those options
should be kept open.

As I said, our youth apprenticeship is in its infancy and we do
not have a lot of details, but we have a lot of ideas about how we
want to go about that. I think input from organized labor is abso-
lutely essential, and I can give you at least three reasons why I feel
that is true.

First of all, we depend on the private sector for our labor market
information and for identifying the necessarv skills, and if you get
only business’s side of the picture you do not get a balanced pic-
ture, so you need some input from organized labor on that.

Second, as you have heard today from some of the other wit-
nesses, labor has years of experience in running successful training
programs, not only apprenticeship programs but many other pro-
grams in industrial unions as well.

Third, we need input from labor as an advocate for the interests
of young workers. We would like to make changes in the laws,
child labor and other laws, that get in the way of programs of this
type, but we also want to protect the safety and health of the stu-
dents (?nd make sure that they are getting a solid academic back-
ground.

I feel that our success so far in Oregon is based on a couple of
elements. First of all, we have a commitment from the top to make
it happen and to make sure that all the partners are involved.
From the makeup of the councils right down to when we give away
grant money, that is one of the things that they are evaluated on:
Has the school board gotten an advisory committee that includes
input from labor, business, and everyone in the community?

Second, we have done a lot of work on expanding the capacity of
each of the partners to assist in the process. We have held a major
conference in Oregon for labor on establishing labor’s agenda and
finding out what sort of training we need to enable people in the
labor movement to assist in this process.

14996
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Ray Marshall, who cochaired the Commission on the Skills of the
American Workforce, was our keynote speaker, and we thought if
we had 75 people attend this conference it would be a great suc-
cess, and we had to cut off the registration at 180 and turn people
away. It was quite successful.

We also have a standing committee in the State AFL-CIO on
worker education and training, and I would have liked to bring the
report to you, which I think is excellent, but it has not been passed
by the convention. That will happen tomorrow. Our convention is
going on right now. It was passed unanimously by the committee,
and I have every expectation that that will pass and will be avail-
able to you, if you wish.

The third thing that I would like to suggest is that you build on
established successes. Take organizations such as joint apprentice-
ship and training committees and models that we already have of
how the partners have been working together successfully, and
other people can see from a model; it is a lot easier to get a concept
from watching it happen and then spreading that through the vari-
ous networks and organizations.

That is a very brief summary of my written testimony, and I
would be happy to answer questions from the committee.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Dobson follows:]

57-464 O - 92 = 7




STATEMENT OF ANDREA DOBSON
VICE CHAIR, OREGON WORKFORCE QUALITY COUNCIL

I am Andrea Dobson, Vice-Chair of the Oregon Workforce Quality
Council. I am a Trustee of the Northwest Oregon Labor Council and
Past President of Amalgamated Transit Union Local 757. I a?prociatc
the opportunity to speak to this subcommittee about Oregon's unpre-
cedented effort to reform our education and training systems. Our
vimion is to have the best educated and prepared workforce in the
nation by the year 2000, and a workforce equal to any in the world
by 2010.

Alarming national trends show that the earning power of our work-
ers has declined 13% since 1979. For Americans without a high school
diploma, real wages have fallen 25%.

Most American businesses continue to pursue a low-wage strategy
that has resulted in a growing inequity in income distribution, At
the same time, the face of our workforce is rapidly changing. By tle
year 2000, women and minorities, who are traditionally less edu~
cated, will make up 67% of the new entrants to the job market.

If our current course is not corrected, we face a grim future,
where a small group of financially secure people will live in iso-
lation from & larger group of the unemployed, underemployed, and
undertrained. All will be struggling in a stagnant economy. Citizens
will feel hopeless about the ability of governments and communities
to assure dignity -in old age, productive and inclusive workplaces,
and a vital democracy. Oregon is taking very seriously the need to
act now based on the following challenges:

1) Wo can't continue to undereducate our youngsters and train
workers for low-skill jobs that pay low wages. Workers must be
able to adapt to changing technology. They need technical skills
and problem-solving skills. They must be able to work effectively
in teams and be culturally competent to work with each other and
with global customers and suppliers. They must have access to
higher education. Studies indicate the more years of formal educa-
tion a person has, the higher the person's income will bs, regard-
less of race or ethnic origin.

2) We can't afford to waste a single Oregonian, including women,
minorities, immigrants, the disabled, senior citizens, or any at-risk
child. We must get our unemployed--including dislocated timber
worksrs, injured workers, and welfare recipients-- back to work.

3) We must influence business to create high-skill jobg which
pay family wages. Adding value through the intelligence and skill
of workers can make family-wage jobs feasible. Business must be
clear about what it needs in skilled, trained workers, and it
must organize the workplace to take advantage of the productivity
that comes from having a skilled workforce.
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4) wWe must involve all sizes and types of businaeases in educating
and training their own workers. We need to encourage them to sce
training and education as an investment, not an expensa.Businesses
in this country use less than 138 of payroll on training; and the
training they do is focused almost entirely on professionals and
managers--not front line workers. Most of our global competitors
invest ovar 3 & of payroll on training, and the training is targeted
to the entire workforce.

S) we must recognize that social &nd economic policy are two
sides of the same coin. Our investments in pre-natal care, child
care, and other social supports for children 2re part of prepar-
ing the workforcs of tomorrow.

In order to measure our progreas toward achieving a world class
workforce, we have developed a set of Benchmarks for Exceptional
People. The 1991 Legislature adopted this set of instruments that
set 5, 10, 15, and 20 year measurable goals. They ask us, for example:

to increase the percentage of high school graduates from 73
percent today to 83 percent in 1995 and 95 percent by 2010

to increase the percentage of high school students enrolled
in vocational and technical programs from 9 percent today to
55 percent by 2010.

to increase the percentage of Oregonians with a bachelor's
degree from 23% today to 30¢ in 2010.

Ooregon's Human Investment Strategy 18 based on the need to respond
to these challenges by bringing together our social service, edu-
cation, job training, and economic development systems into a co-
ordinated effort. A human investment approach means changing our
thinking from“taking care of the needy" to “investing in people”
and expecting to get a return on our investments.

Two important components of the Human Investment Partnership
are the Workforce Quality Council and th2 Educational Act for the
218t Century, both created by the 1991 legislature.

The Workforce Quality Couruilwill take the lead in reshaping
the state's education, employmont, and training system. The Council
includes business, labor, and community representatives and key
government decision-makers--the Governor {or her designee), the
Superintandent of Public Instruction, the Community Collage Com-~
missioner, the Chancellor of Higher Education, the Labor Comnisgsioner
and the State Directors of Economic Development and Human Resources.

The Workforce Quslity Council is well-positioned to provide the
critical leadership needed to build a:world class workforce. It is
not just another sdvisory board, but s council vested with broad
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mandetes and ths authority to take bold action. It brings to the
table business, lsbor and community leaders who are deeply involved
through professional and industry networks. The key to ite succCess
will be the Council's ability to stimulate a much lerger privats
sector investment in improving Oregon's Workforce.

The Educational Act for the 21st Century will reform Oregon's
public schools., It ie a striking break with tradition, focusing on
readiness for school, early childhood education, demonstration of
attained ekills throughout the elementary grades, and the critical
achool to work transition,

The Act requires svery student by the age of 16 (or 10th grade)
to demonstrats rastery of educational knowledge and skills comp-
arable with world standards. Once mastery is demonstrated, students
will select s broad career area for further studywhich will pre-
pare them for a four-y2ar <¢ollegs, a community college, an appren-
ticeship program, or e family wage job after graduation.

ror every studeant there will be a more sophisticated curriculum
in sciencs, math and technology that allows students to apply their
knowledge, both in the classroom and at a job site. To implement
this component of the school reform legislation, Oregon educetors
will need to work hand-in-hand with employers tc develop a curric-
ulum that ensures students are work-ready when they complete their
education. The attached graphic shows how the new system is struct-
tured to achieve this goal,

Key ©elements include:

1) Site-based decision making, involving teachers, parents,stu-
dents, clessified employess, and the community

2) Outcone based assessments. Students will no longer get credit
for "seat time" but will be required to demonstrate competency
through portfolios and other "authentic" assessments.

3) Expanded Read Start and intearation of social sarvices to
insurs svery child is ready to learn.

4) Incrasas6d flexibility in post-secondary options to avoid
"tracking" of students into college prep or general track.

5) Involvement of business and labor in developing curriculum
and performance standards for school-to-work-trangition.

The focus of today's hearing is on the last key point: how do
wo involve all the partners to insurs the success of our efforts,
particularly in the critical area of school-to-work transition?
Our experience in Orsgon 80 far shows three essential elements to
our succe¢ss--although I would emphasizs that the program is in its
infancy and ws may discover more along the way!

Firet there must be a commitment from the top to make the part-
nerships happen. Governor Barbsra Roberts and former Governor Neil
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Goldschwidt recognize and support the concept that involvementof
all the partners 1es not merely politically expediont. It is essen-
tial to the success of the program, Involving Labor as well as
Business {nsures that we have a balanced picture of the work world
to offer our students. If we expect these partners to devote time
and money to supporting the protess, they must feel included from
the beginning or they will not "buy into" the program,

The key decision makers have expanded the traditional vocation-
al advisory committees. Involvement of all partners is a major
criterion for funding of pilot programs in education reform.

A second essential element is expanding the capacity of the
individual partners to assist in the process. For example, & con-
ferance was held in February,1992 to develop labor's agends for
workforce development and education reform. The conference was
co-sponsored by the Oregon AFL-CIO, the Labor Education and Re
search Center of the University of Oregon, and the Oregon Econuamic
development Department. Ray Marshall, who co-chaired the Commis-
sion on the Skills of the Ameérican Workforce, was the Keynote
speaker. In addition, the Oregon AFL-CIO convention in 1991 cre-
ated a standing committee on Worker Education and Training that
will present an extensive report on how labor can assigt in the
education process. The report is not available for release at this
date, although it was unanimously adopted by the Committee. I have
every expactation that it will be adopted by the full convention
this week, and will be available to this subcommittee at that time,

Business leaders are also working through their networks to
educate their colleagues. We are particularly concerned with get-
ting small businesses involved, as they make up a large percentage
of Oregon's economy. The inclusion of werkforce development on
the agenda of a recent national meeting of tha National Federation
of Independent Businesses 18 an encouraging sign.

The third key is building on past successes to get people work-
ing together who have traditionally worked in isolation from each
other. Joint Apprenticeship and Training Comnittees, Private Ind-
ustxy Councils, and Voc. Ed. Advisory Committees are good examples.
One technique the Workforce Quality Council uses to expand on these
models is to involve individuals who represent not only themselves
but a larger network or constituency such as a Chamber of Commerce
ox Central Labor Council.lLeaderahip from the top levels of govern-
ment has heen essential here as well. State agencies have done an
excallent jcb of modeling the use of cross-functional teams to
break down barriers to cooperation."Turf battles"are unacceptable
if we are to provide the most efficient service to clients.

Oorganized labor is generally very supportive of the concepts of
youth apprenticeship, structured work experienca, and improved
school-to-work transition. We alsoc have somae concerns. There is a
great deal of concern in the traditional apprenticaship community,,
Union apprenticeship prograns in the building trades and electrical-
mechanical trades are arguably the best job training programs in
history. We have much to qgain from the expanded use of the appren-
ticeship model in other industries. However, there is s disturbing
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tendency these days tomisuse the term apprenticeship. The succeas
of this model is based on sSeveral essential elements as outlined
in The Meaning of Apprenticeship-- When and How to Use the Term,

a policy recommendaticn by the Federal Apprenticeship Committee,
Thaee key elements include rigorous standards, training by masters
of tha craft, substantial investment on the part of the employer,
classroom as well as on-the-job training, and minimum requirements
for protecting the welfare of apprentices, among others.We must not
weaken the apprenticeship concept by using the term to apply to
any and all on-the-job training programs.

There is also a fear that these successful programs will be asked
to lower their standards, Already some programs have been length-
ened by as much as a year, primarily to do remedial work in areas
where our schools are failing to prepare students to succeed.

Labor will continue to advocate for a commitment on the part of

industry to improve the organization of work. Businesses tend to
feel threatened by the idea of worker participation, There is no
sense in training our youth to Le creative, high skilled workers
if there are no high performance work organizations to hire them.

We also have serious concerns for the rights of young workers.
We cannot allow businesses to exploit students as cheap labor or
use them to Aisplace older workers. We ingist upon strong safety
standards, high academic standards, and protection of existing
collective bargaining rights. We are concerned about the proposals
from the Department of Labor that would greatly expand the auth-
ority of the Private Industry Councils in a "one-stop-shop" app-
roach to integration of job training and support services. Labor
representation on the PICs must be substantially increased for
this approach to be successful.

We in Oregon support this Subcommittee's efforts to expand:

the youth apprenticeship and school-to-work transition concept.
We appreciate the opportunity to share with Xou our insights

and our progress in thess areas. We are proud to be on the "eut-~
ting edge" in workforce development and education reform and we
hope that other states as well as the federal government will Dbe
able to profit by our example.

The attached documents provide additional detail on the mission,
goals and membership of the Oregon Workforce Quality Councii and
the structure of the 21st Century Schools concept. We ask that
they be included in the record of today's hearing.
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OREGON WORKFORCE QUALITY COUNCIL

GOALS

1. To provide comprehensive education and training programs that
equal the highest international standards of achievement.

2, To prumote contlnuous public and private investment in improved
management practices, competitive production processes, and worker
trainiang.

3. To develop the capacity of and provide significart opportunity
for buasiness and labor to direct the development and delivery of
education and training policy, programs and standards.

4. To coordinate the delivery of all education, training, employ-
ment, apprenticeship and related programs to eliminate neodless
duplication and asgure efficlent and effgctive provision of those
services,

5. To insure the equitable distribution of quality education,
training and employment services statewide, especlally to rural
and distreas-2d areas of the state and to economically disadvant-

aged citizens.

6. To achleve the benchmarks established by the Oregon Progress
Board that relate to education and training.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

1, The state must promote innovation in curriculum and delivery
systems in our public schools.

2. The state must prepare all youth to pursus college, technical or
professional certificate programs, apprenticeships, work-based
training and school-to-work programs.

3. Greater employer investment 1is essential in ongoing training of
all workers to meet workforce needs.

4. The state must encourage Oregon businesses to improve produc-
tivity by creating high performance work organizations that re-
quire high skills and provide high wagz jobs.

5. All employment-related training, education and job placement
services and sources of funds must be coordinated and must comp-
lement Oregon's efforts on behalf of youth and adults,

6. Workforce services must be easgily accessible to youth and adults.
7. State leadership and resources must leverage local leadership
and resources and allow local determination of how programs are
delivered,

8. Yederal resources must complement and not drive Oregon's state
and local workforce strategy.

’
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HB 3565; THE EDUCATIONAL ACY FOR THE 21ST CENTURY

The legislative objectives of HB 3565 are the foundation for the
Oregon Department of Education's organization of the 2ist Century
Schoola Council and 21at Century Schools Task Forces.

The leyislative objectives include:

®* Commitment to devalop new high performance standards for students
represented by Certificates of lnitial and Advanced Mastery.

Establighment of alternative learning environments for students
who have difficulty with knowledge and skills required by the
Certificate of Initial Mastery.

Provide quality education to all ragardless of language, culture,
race, gender, capability, or location. All students can learn
when offered appropriste learning opportunities with rigorous
standards and expectationa,

Provide young children and families with services at the highest
possible standards. Head Start programs funded for 50 % of eligible
children by 1996 and all eligible children by 1998.

Establish business, labor and education partnerships to develop
standards for academic professional technical endorsements, pro-
vide on-the-job training, and apprenticeships.

Restructure the educational system to achieve workforce goals.

Put the highest priority on educational programs and strategies
that are preventive in nature,

Develop ertended school year and reach 220 day school year by 2010,

The 21st Century Schools Task Forces are:

Certificate of ilnitial Mastery Middle Level
Alternsative Learning Environments Integration of Soclal Serxvices
Non-Graded Primary Employment of Minors
Site-Based Decision Making School Choice
Certificate of Advanced Mastery Extended bay and Year

In addition, a new task force on School to Work Transition has
recently been appointed.

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC




198
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Chairman PerkiNs. Thank you very much, Ms. Dobson, for your
excellent testimony.

Mr. Richard Kazis, director, Work-Based Learning Programs,
Jobs for the Future, Cambridge, Massachusetts.

Mr. Kazis. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to
speak with you today.

As you said, I work at Jobs for the Future, which is a national
organization in Cambridge that since the mid-1980’s has been
working closely with States and communities around the country
on issues of workforce quaiity, including school-to-work transition
efforts. In 1990 we began a iong-term program to define, support,
and advance youth apprenticaship efforts in this country, and it is
as director of that effort that I am happy to be here today.

One component of Jobs for the Future’s National Youth Appren-
ticeship Initiative is our technical assistance and research work
with 10 demonstration projects around the country—these are local
sites around the country—where each project is experimenting
with youth apprenticeship as a strategy to address both employer
needs for capable entry-level workers and young people’s needs for
skills and responsibility that can prepare them for productive em-
ployment and productive citizenship.

Several of these programs have testified before this committee
and other congressional committees in recent months. Each is com-
mitted to certain essential program elements that include: one, a
part-time job and training provided by a local employer; two, the
integration of academic and vocational learning and of school and
work-based learning experiences; three, a structured link between
secondary and postsecondary institutions that are participating in
the program; and, four, the award of recognized, portable, academic
and occupational skill credentials. If you take apart each of those
four clements, you will find a lot of areas where you need State
and national level support and leadership both from the public and
private sector to actually put those pieces together.

A second central focus of our activities in this project is with
States, and Jobs for the Future has assisted several States that are
building new alliances and new systems for improving career prep-
aration and prospects for the young people in those States.

In April we convened a meeting of representatives from 12 differ-
ent States, from Maine to California, from Oregon to Arkansas,
that are working to create youth apprenticeship systems, and these
States agreed to a statement of common system design principles,
and they agreed to work together to share information and their
experiences to improve and strengthen their individual activities. I
want to come back to the statement of their design principles at
the end of my statement.

We have been impressed by the enthusiasm and the efforts of
many States, including many of the States that have spoken here
today, on this issue, and we have also seen that careful efforts from
the outset to include and not to alienate key constituencies—em-
ployers, labor, the education community, the traditional appren-
ticeship community-~those can pay off in building the kind of
working relationships and trust that are critical if any of these ef-
forts are really to progress very far.

Ry
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You have already heard about the initiative in Maine. Jobs For
the Future has worked most closely during the past 2 years with
three States—Pennsylvania, Wisconsin, and Arkansas. La Marr ex-
plained to you what is going on in Wisconsin and Jobs For the Fu-
ture’s role there, so I won’t repeat that. I want to spend a couple of
ni]loments on Pennsylvania and Arkansas and some of the activity
there.

In Pennsylvania, the Department of Commerce launched a state-
wide youth apprenticeship program initially in the metalworking
industry. Planning for this initiative involved representatives of
the industry and lead employers around the State, the National
Trade Association for Small Metalworking Shops—the NTMA—or-
ganized labor, including the two teachers unions representing
teachers in Pennsylvania, representatives of high schools, commu-
nity colleges, vo-tech schools, and relevant State agencies, includ-
ing commerce, education, and labor, and industry.

Jobs For the Future helped facilitate the initial planning process
for that program and has provided some technical assistance sup-
port during the first experimental year, and recently the Secretary
of Education in Pernsylvania has been working on a plan to intro-
duce youth apprenticeship in more industries and to take what
Ttaril;ed out as a demonstration project up to a statewide system
evel.

Arkansas was one of the first States to take a hard look at ways
that States can encourage employers to play a more significant role
in the preparation of young people for high-skill careers. In 1991
the legislature passed a bill authorizing two rounds of demonstra-
tion projects. A third of the funds in that legislation were ear-
marked for improvements of traditional apprenticeship programs,
two-thirds were earmarked to demonstration projects to create
youth apprenticeship programs in Arkansas, models that would
link employers, high schools, and postsecondary institutions.

Our role in Arkansas was to conduct some focus groups and to do
some initial feasibility research that helped in the design of their
State strategy.

What was impressive in Arkansas was, again, the conscious deci-
sion to be inclusive in the planning process. The Arkansas Appren-
ticeship Coordinating Steering Committee, whose membership in-
cludes the employers, union officials, the providers of related in-
struction, and public representatives, they played a key role in
shaping the legislative initiative that was drafted by the governor’s
office, and the early decision to be inclusive and to include employ-
ers, labor representatives, and the education community together
in that planning process meant that there was a strength there
that paid off,

Jobs For the Future applauds the subcommittee’s focus on these
issues, and I want to close my statement with a few thoughts on
what we think are important elements of a system or a Federal
effort in this area. First of all, it seems to us the ultimate goal that
we are all heading towards in different ways must be the creation
of new, recognized, and valued pathways to high-skill, high-wage
careers that do not require a 4-year baccalaureate as the entryway
in. These should be high-quality programs with high expectations
and high reward.
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As Governor McKernan emphasized, there should be flexibility
in the delivery system partly because from State to State the varia-
tion in the capacity and in the structure of the institutions is great,
and from industry to industry the variability is great, so there has
to be a flexibility built in.

We believe that there has to be a clear secondary/postsecondary
link and articulation so that youth apprenticeship provides an op-
portunity for both occupational and academic advancement for par-
ticipants. As other people have emphasized, these efforts will go no-
where unless employers and the private sector takes the lead, feels
the need, expresses that need, feels they are going to get what they
want out of the program. If you don’t have that, it will be very dif-
ficult to rescale, to come to any kind of significant impact.

Finally, while Jobs For the Future works with a lot of demon-
stration projects and believes in the importance of demonstration
projects as both a vision of the possible and a laboratory for testing
design elements. We see a critical importance in building systems
and not in creating new demonstration programs that will wither
on the vine when the funding disappears.

There is an opportunity now to help create a coherent training
system both for young people and for incumbent workers where
one doesn’t exist, and Federal efforts should be targeted in this di-
rection. The pieces of that system, or some of the pieces of that
system, have already been discussed. A critical piece is occupation-
al skill standards that employers work on, trust, and own; assess-
ment strategies, credentials that are portable; a collaborative ad-
ministration. We believe that while a lot of the design starts at the
end of 10th grade, if these programs are not linked to career educa-
tion and career exploration starts much earlier, how can partici-
pants make educated choices about what kind of a program to go
into, what kind of an option to pursue?

Safeguards along the lines of the ones Bob Jones mentioned, safe-
guards both in terms of displacement of incumbent workers and
also safeguards for the young people in the program, are critical.

One piece that has not been discussed mucg today but we see in
the implementation phase as critical is issues of staff development
and the provision of opportunities for those teachers and workplace
supervisors to actually get experience and training so that they are
able to change their ways of teaching so that they can change their
students’ ways of learning.

Finally, a research component as well needs to be built into the
system so we know what is actually happening in all of this experi-
mentation, and, as other people have stressed, anything that gets
created cannot be another layered, add-on program that just floats
out there and is marginal to education reform and workplace
reform efforts that are going on elsewhere.

I want to take one more minute and just run down the nine ele-
ments that the 12 States that were at our consortia meeting in
April agreed to as basic principles ¢f a system. They mirror some
of the things I just mentioned, but they include the creation of a
strong infrastructure that represents local and State actors, includ-
ing employers, organized labor, government, secondary schools, and
the 2- an 4-¥lear colleges and universities; a system that is indus-
try driven where employers and their representatives, or the pri-
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vate sertor interests, help set occupational skill standards, collabo-
rate on curriculum, provide paid work experience, certify mastery
of skill leading to the award of a portable credential; articulation
between the high school and postsecondary institutions; a focus on
training in a broad industry cluster rather than a narrow occupa-
tion; mastery of a narrow set of cccupational skills; a program
length that straddles high school and postsecondary and is the
bridge into postsecondary learning; structured integration between
academic and vocational learning between the workplace and the
classrcom learning; and an emphasis on the provision of and train-
ing for high quality jobs by employers who are committed to being
high performance work organizations, so that you are actually cre-
ating programs that can lead to high skill, high wage jobs; ade-
quate, effective support systems for participants; and a model that
is replicable, can reach significant scale, and is central to the edu-
cation reform strategies.

In our view, the whole term ‘‘school-to-work transition” is a bit
of a misnomer, as you have discussed as well, where the real goal is
preparation for lifelong learning and for lifelong learning and
growth so that people will be able to combine school and work
throughout their lives in increasingly valuable and satisfying ways.
This, to our mind, should be the ultimate goal of Federal policy
across all of these difficult areas that we are all struggling with,
and I commend the subcommittee and am glad to be here and will
be happy to answer questions.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Kazis follows:]




17 June 1992

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the subcomumittee, for the opportunity to
presant the experience and views of Jobs for the Future on state school-to-work injtiatives.

My nams is Richard Kazis, I am the Director of Work-based Learning Programs at Jobs for
the Future, a national organization located in Cambridge, Massachusetts, which since the
mid-1960s has worked clossly with states acroms the couniry on strategies for improving
workforce quality, induding school-so-wark transition efforts.

In199o,m' a long-term program 10 deitne, support, and advance efforts to create
youtk appeen p in this country s part of a comprehansive approach to expanding
career pathways for Amarican young people- It is as Director of this efort that I am pleased
o

with you today.

One component of Jobs for the Future’s National Youth Apprenticeship Initiative is
technical assistance and ressarch work with ten demonutration peojects around the country.

Several of these programe have testifisd before this and other Congressional comumitiess in
rmumondu.n;’: is committed to certain essential program elemanis. These include: .
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A second central focus of our activities is with states. Jobs for the Puture has assisted several
states that are building new alliances and systemns for improving the career preparation and
prospects for their young people. In Apsil, we convened a meeting of representatives from
twalve states—~from Maine to California, Oregon to Arkansas—that are working to build
youth apprenticeship systems, These states agreed to a statement of common system d:s
principles and they agreed to work together to share information and experjence that
strengthen thelr individual activides.

From our experiercs with states, we have leamned that there s significant state-level activity
on these issue and serious commitmant in many states to rationalizing and creating better
systems of services and programs 1o prepare young people for future employment. Wa have
also seen thac careful efforts not to alienate or exclude employers, labor, the education
community, the traditional apprenticeship community or other relevant interests can pay
off in in building the kind of working relagonahips and trust that are critical %o sucossséul
change strategies.

We have worked most closely during the past two years with three states—Pennsylvania,
Wisconsin, and Arkansas.

In Pennsylvania, the Department of Conunerce launched a statewide youth apprenticeship
program in the metalworking industry. Planning for this initiative involved: .
rspresantatives of industry; the national trade assaclation of the smaller metalworking
shops; organizad labor including the teachers unions; high schools; community colleges; vo-
tech achools; and relevant state agenciss. Jobe for the Future helped facilitate the initial
planning procsss and has provided technical assistance support the program’s first,
expsrimental year, Recently, the Secretary of Education has been a plan o
introduce youth apprenticsship into additional Pennsylvania industries.

In Wisconsin, the Governor and the elactad Chief State School Officer havs united bahind
nnnmbiﬁomc&ortbanhﬁmﬁfmp&mpforh&fagnﬂmhl&ﬂzmh
has enacted ton creating a apprantiosship program Departmaent
Industry, ubamu:d Human m&yg:n nngp has carefully integrated this fdtiative with other
dwﬁonuadﬁdﬂng:‘fomcﬁm,hdu&um-hmrﬁmmmmdam
yodcguhwcymtmmﬂn&mmhdmmmmhnm
identified es initial target industriss. Jobs for the Future helped Wisconsin with injtial
program design and will continus @ wozk with the state {n the {mplementation phase.

Aﬂmwxdh&:e:umh?hhi:&wmumzmtma;m
emnploysrs to & more significant z peeparstion of young peop .
mmim,iommmawmmmmmadmmm
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appeenticship programs in Arkansas. The remainder of the fiunding was dasigned (0 2eed
experimentation with youth a ticeship modaels linking amployers, high schools, and
post-sacondary institutions. J for the Puture conducted focus group and Seasibllity study
research that informaed the design of Arkansss’ stralegy.
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As in Wisconsin and Pennsylvania, what was impressive about the effort in Arkansas was
the consclous decision t0 be inclusive in the planning process. The Arkansas Apprenticeship
Coordinating Steering Comunitiee, whose membership includes employers, union officlals,
related-instruction providers and public representatives, played a key role in developing the
outlines of the legislative initiative that was drafted by the Governor’s office. An early
decision was made fo involve employers, labor raprasentatives, and the education
community. And that inclusiveness paid off.

Jobs for the Future applauds the subcomumittee’s interest in these issues. We urge you o
move forward an strategies for improving the career options available to American young
people. I want to dose my statement with a few thoughts on what Jobs for the Future
believes should be the goal of any federal effort in this area.

The ultimate goal must be the creation of multiple, flexible pathways to high skill, high
‘wage careers. Right now, four-year callege is the only effective structured route that exists in
this country, an inequitable and inefficient situation that leaves too many young people
with too few options.

We need a broader range of structured pathways to good careers. Along with this, weneed a

. much more sophisticated and accessible system of career education and exploration, so that

people can make informed career cholces.

These new pathways must not be designed as an alternative to further education, but as
high-status and promising routes to both occupational and academic advancement. They
must be designed to appeal to the large numbers of young people who cannot afford or
imagine succeeding in a four-year college program. These pathways must therefors laad to
post-sacondary credenticis as well as 0 training in the workplace.

nmcdﬁnguwmrequkeuigniﬁuntcomnﬁmmdﬁmandmowmﬁamthh
country’s employers. And they will require new relationships of trust and cooperation
among ensployers, educators, labor representatives, and government officials.

Jobs for the Future believes that demonstration projects are critically im they
provide a vision of the possible and a laboratory for testing design elements. We also believe
that fedezal efforts should move beyond demonstration projects, There is an opportunity
now to help create 2 coherent training system for young people and incumbent workers
where one does not exist. Rederal action should promote and assist efforts to build
integrated, coberent systems from our fragmented patchwork of programs and palicies at
both the state and federsl levels.

In our view, the rea! goal is not the transition from school-to-work at all, but preparation for
lifelong learning and growth, so that people will be abls to combine school and work
throughout their Lives in increasingly valuable and satisfying ways. This should be the
ultimate goal of federal poilcy.

1 will be happy to answer any questions you may have. Thank you.




206

JFF’s Consortium of Youth Apprenticeship States
On April 14, 1992, Jobs for the Puture convaned a meeting attended by policymakers
aad pract :

m&um-mmtofmmddppdndpm that include:
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Iﬂdmtrynﬂ\odﬂm—mpbymutoccupaw skill standards, collsborate
experience and workplace instructors, and
portable credential

Articulation between participating high schools and post-secondary
ihstitutions
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thoss years
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vocational learning ’
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" Adaquate, effective student support systema

A model that is replicable, can resch significant scale, and s central to
education reform strategles
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Chairman Perkins. Thank you, Mr. Kazis.

I am wondering, to the panel as a whole, how, in your individual
situations, particularly those of the States, are you dealing with
the increased cost of insurance premiums for students on job
sites—what method you are utilizing to handie that situation.

Mr. Birurs. In Wisconsin, the Executive Cabinet for a Quality
Workforce established several implementation panels. As part of
the work of cne of these panels, they were to deal with the issue of
insurance and some other issues.

First of all, the laws in the State have been interpreted so that
youth apprentices, under child labor laws, are seen as apprentices,
and therefore they enjoy a certain class, and that is, while they are
in the workplace they are students and the insurance coverage of
the school district extends to students in all educational situations.

The employers that have agreed to participate so far have felt
satisfied with that, but we are going to see some statutory change
50 that even if the school districts’ finances are in jeopardy, for in-
stance, and can't really afford an additional insurance burden or
the ext2nsion of that exposure to the workplace, that there will be
a fund, a publicly or jointly financed fund to provide insurance cov-
erage for students and environment.

Chairman Perkins. Mr. Kazis.

Mr. Kazs. In the 10 projects that we are working with, some of
which would say they are youth apprenticeship programs and some
of which are more academy programs with a workplace component
or a tech-prep program that is trying to move in that directions—so
there is a range of programs-—we don’t yet have the information,
but in the next 2 weeks we are surveying our 10 sites on both how
much of a barrier are child labor laws for them or not, how much
of a barrier is the insurance issue, what are the insurance issues
that really are the problems.

Our gut sense is that right now, because these programs are ex-
perimental and small scale, everybody just—the issues that will
come up if you were to bring a program to a large scale are just
going to be washed over, but I would say in a couple of weeks we
will have some information on at least the experience of our 10
projects.

Chairman Perkins. We would be pleased if you wouid share that
with us when you obtain it.

Mr. Kazis. Absolutely.

Chairman PerkINS. Yes, Ms. Dobson.

Ms. Dosson. I would just add on that point, one of the task forces
that is working on school reform is called the Task Force on the
Employment of Minors, and they are looking at a whole range of
issues, including that.

We have also gone through a huge overhau! of our Workers Com-
pensation system in general, and this is the first year that that has
been going on, and so no one is really sure how that is working yet
either, and it has been very controversial.

But there will be a report from that task force very soon which I
think should cover that issue, and I would be happy to get that for
you.

Chairman Perkins. Thank you.
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Mr. Scorr. Mr. Chairman, as far as the construction trades and
specifically the carpentry trades, there are Federal wage and hour
laws that permit 17-year-olds to work on construction sites as long
as they get a parent or guardian to cosign as well as being under
the apprenticeship agreement.

What we suggest is that the youth that are in these school-to-
work transition programs must be at least 17 years of age to be on
the work sites, and they are on the work sites in more of an explor-
atory capacity with a mentor who would be working with them to
expose them %o the different processes and skills.

Also, we would put a great emphasis on safety instruction before
they go to the work sites. As a matter of fact, they would have to
be certified in certain tools and certain working situations in order
to be able to work in those types of situations.

Chairman PErkINS. Mr. Scott, I'm interested. You mentioned in
your testimony the need for the Federal Government to encourage
linkage between traditional apprenticeships and schools. How can
we facilitate this type of cooperation?

Mr. Scorr. I feel that with our organization one of the benefits of
an earlier linkage with traditional apprenticeship with high
schools is that we will be able to change the attitudes of young
people at an earlier age by exposing them in exploratory ways to
the job sites.

One of the problems that we have with youth today and parents
and counselors, in fact, is that the construction industry is consid-
ered a dumping ground, and the fact of the matter is, we put a lot
of work into developing apprenticeship programs and journeyman
upgrading programs to keep abreast of changing technology, keep
our people quality minded.

We need young people who have the right attitudes about pursu-
ing a career and, in fact, have the basic skills that are needed so
that we can maintain the high standards in the trades.

I feel that the way of developing this linkage is for the tradition-
al apprenticeship programs to come up with a way of transitioning
students at an eargier age, because by thz time we get them when
they are 25, 26, 28 years of age, their attitudes are different. It is
difficult to teach an old dog new tricks, so to speak, and we just
feel it is very important to attempt to recruit young people at an
earlier age.

Also, we lose them to other industries because the attitude of
counselors and schools and parents in general is, as I mentioned
before, that the construction trades are a dumping ground.

I don’t know whether I have answered your gquestion completely.

Chairman PERkINs. What sorts of mistakes have any >f you en-
countered or made during this process that we could | wrn from?

Mr. BiLLups. Those that we want to admit, I guess.

Ms. DossoN. We are running through them all trying to figure
out which ones are acceptable to talk about.

{Laughter.]

Ms. Donson. I have a real good example. I think that one of the
things you have to watch out for with the private sector involve-
ment—we have a particular difficulty in Oregon with dislocated
workers, particularly in the timber industry, and the problem is
that everyone—politicians, businessmen, labor leaders—everybody
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wants to be the hero that saves the dislocated workers, and every-
one seems to think that there is one great answer that is going to
solve all the problems.

So we are always having—for example, the Associated General
Contractors came out with this plan that they were going to make
all the dislocated timber workers into construction workers by
sending them to community college for 20 weeks, and of course the
unions were just flabbergasted because they all had hundreds of
people on their out-of-work lists already and didn’t want to flood
the market with semi-trained people, and of course when this all
appeared in the newspapers everyone jumped in and said, “Oh, yes,
we’ll put millions of dollars into the community college construc-
tion programs,”’ because it sounded like a great idea.

I think it is really important to know that there is not one
answer that is going to fix all of our problems and that you need to
really look at the whole picture of everything before we jump in
and try not to just flood the market with somebody’s great idea for
what would make a good youth apprenticeship program.

Mr. Scorr. To answer your question on mistakes that we may
have made in the past, I would say that for building trade unions
and their apprenticeship programs—and I can only speak for our
organization—we seem to have been content with waiting for the
right person to fill our training slots. In the good old days, we had
a lot of people to choose from. The fact of the matter is, that is not
the case today. The young people coming to us are deficient in the
basic skills, and we have had the tendency of screening out appli-
cants. We had a lot to choose from; we screened out applicants, and
we took the cream of the crop. As a result, unfortunately, we are
not able to recruit minorities and, in fact, in some cases females
into our programs.

We feel very emphatically that it is important for us to get to
the high schools early on to try to do something about the young
people before they fall out of the system. We feel that this would
be an excellent way for us to turn young people on to our program
and possibly do a better job in our recruitment of areas from the
disadvantaged sector as well.

Chairman PerxINS. Yes, Mr. Kazis.

Mr. Kazis. A few things. One is, I think, as you said, it is really
important not to sell any of these ideas as silver bullets, and they
tend to be getting sold that way to some extent, and, as a result,
the expectations get higher and higher as to what segment of the
population, what industries, what size school districts are the ap-
propriate places for these things to take hold in.

I think it is important that we not jump fo setting program
design in concrete too quickly. I mean it is being made up now, and
to legislate x percentage of the time at work in year one and x per-
centage of the time in school in year two is, I think, way prema-
ture. I don’t think anyone really has a good feel for what that will
look like, and my gut is that it will differ by industry.

A couple of other things. Well, one other that is critical is, in de-
veloping a number of these programs we have seen that the effort
to bring the public sector players or the education players together
is so challenging and so all-consuming that you think, okay, now
we have finally got it, we have got education, labor, and Congress
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together, we have got the high schools and the postsecondary
people sitting down with each other, and then you look around and
you don’t have any employers, and that doesn’t work in a program
that has to be employer driven in terms of where the slots are,
tgvhere the demand is, and, in large part, whom it is being shaped
or.

Chairman Pzrkins. Yes, Mr. Billups.

Mr. BiLLups. Just to add, it is very attractive or quite tempting
to identify industries for development of youth apprenticeship or
even apprenticeship programs that sort of sound good and snund
high-techy. I think that a mistake that can be avoided is to, within
the legislation, somehow encourage the use of a vast body, existing
body, of information, commonly referred to as labor market infor-
mation, as the guide for selecting the industries in which the devel-
opment should take place. Health occupations in one State are
going to be a very rich area. In other States, that may not be the
case.

So that labor market information is State specific, and in most
cases it can even be broken down to a local labor market, a very
small area like the size of a county, and thai ought to guide the
selection of industry rather than sort of what sounds good and
sexy.

Chairman PerkiNs. Well, I appreciate very much the comments
and the answers to our questions that you have given today. I
thank this panel for being with us and for their patience, and if
they have anything at any future date that they would like to add,
feel free to contact us at any time.

Again, you have our thanks for the superb job and the contribu-
tion you have made today, and, with that, the subcommittee is dis-
missed for the day.

Thank you.

[Whereupon, at 12:19 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]

[Additional material submitted for the record follows:]




211

UNITED STATES NOUSE OY REPRESENTATIVES
NOUSE EDUCATION & LABOR COMMITTEE
SUBCONMITTEE OM EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES
PUBLIC NEARIMNGS OM
SCHOOL~TO-WORK TRAMSITIONM PROGRANS

COMMENTS OF MARVIN J. BOEDE', GRNERAL PRESIDENT
UNITED ASSOCIATION OF JOURNEYMEM AND APPRENTICES

OF THE PLUMBING AND PIPE PITTING INDUSTRY
OF THE UNITED STATES AND CAMADA, AFL~CIO

United Association of
Journeymen and Apprentices of
the Plumbing and Pipe Pitting
Industry of the United States
and Canada, AFL~CIO

301 Kassachusetts Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20001

June 1992

! Mr. Boede, General President of the United Association, is the current chair
of the AFL-CIO’s Education Committee and its ad hoc committee on apprenticeship
and workforce training legislation.

Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC



Q

E

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

RIC

VI

Vil

Vil

212

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION
OVERVIEW

A. Preserving the Integrity of Existing Programs
B. Federal Efforts Should Focus on Basic Education
C. The Value of Coilectively Bargained Training Programs

NATIONAL SKILL STANDARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS

A. Skill Standards: Quality Assurance
B. Preserving the integrity of Existing Standards

FEDERAL APPRENTICESHIP AND JOB-TRAINING PROGRAMS

A. Unnecessary Duplication and Unfair Competition
B. The Building Trades are Unsuitabie for New Programs

HIGH SKILLS TRAINING: THE NEED TO REFORM
OUR EDUCATIONAL SYSTEM

APPRENTICESHIPS V. YOUTH EMPLOYMENT TRAINING

ENCOURAGING PRIVATE INVESTMENT IN APPRENTICESHIP
AND JOB-TRAINING PROGRAMS: THE ROLE OF COLLECTIVE
BARGAINING

A. Alternative Plans for Enhancing Employee Training
B. The Value of Coliectively-Bargained Training
Programs
C. The Nexus Between Labor Policies and Worker Training
D. The Need for Labor Law Reform to Promote Training

CONCLUSION

~ N -

(<3N}

11
11
12
14

16

17

17

19

26

29




PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

I. INTRODUCTION

The following comments set forth the views of the United Association of
Journeymen and Apprentices of the Plumbing and Pipe Fitting Industry of the United
States and Canada, AFL-CI0 {"United Association*} onthe various legislative proposals
now pending in Congress which seek to establish a new national system of school-to-
work transition programs, including apprenticeship training programs. At the outset,
we would like to state that we are very grateful to have the opportunity to express our
views on this matter of vital national concern,

The United Association reprasents over 350,000 skilled craftpersons
employed in the plumbing and pipe fitting industry throughout the United States and
Canada. The United Assaciation, its affiliate focal unions and signatory concractors
now invest over $76 million per year in apprenticeship and journeyperson training
programs and administer 443 such programs, which provide a combination of on-the-
job training and related instruction. Moreover, due to our longstanding commitment
to high quality training, we take pride in having one of the most advanced and
successful systems of training in the United States today. Naturally, we have a great
interest in national policy affecting apprenticeship training.

1. QVERVIEW

As 8 mattsr of national educstion and employmant policy, the United
Association strongly supports the yse of apprenticeship training as a means of
teaching workers skilled crafts and trades that enable them to earn a fair wage and

provide a decent standard of living for themselves and their families. Qur experience

with such programs aliows us 1o especiaily appreciate the merits of such a policy, and
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we agree that apprenticaship training and othecr types of school-to-work transition
programs are essential for craating the type of high skills/high wage workforce America
nasds to compete in today’s global marketplace.

Given our deep-rooted interest in this area, the United Association has
foliowed the national debate on apprenticeship training closely for over two years now
and we nave offered our views and recommendations on every major legislative
proposal that has been introduced in Congress.2 in the following commen.3, we
would lika to addrass three major points concerning the establishment of a national
system of apprenticeship and job-training programs.

A. wﬂmmmmmw

Wae baelieve it is vital that any efforts by the federal government in this
area be carefully craftad to ensure that existing apprenticeshlp/treining programs are
not undermined in any way. The most successful training programs in the United
States today are those which have been established through collective bargaining.
This is espacially true in the buliding and construction industry, wherae the joint efforts
of the construction tradas and their signatory contractors §erve as models for training
programs worldwide and exemplify labor-management cooperation at its finest.

QOne of the most comprehensive studies in tha area of employee education

end training is a recent report antitied mmmwmmm

2 Qur general views on this matter have been set forth in 8 serigs of letters to
Congressional {feaders who have sponsored recent apprenticeship proposeis. These
latters, attached hereto as Exhibits Nos. 1-4, address the Youth Apprenticeship Act
{Ssnator Nunn), the High Skills Competitive Workforce Act (Senator Kennedy) and the
Leading Employers into Apprentice Partnership Act (Senator Breaux).

2



Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

215

issued by the Commission on the Skills on the American Workforce, a blue-ribbon
panel of representatives from government, business, labor and education. Generally,
the Commission found the levsl of training investment in America to be inadequate.
It is significant, however, that five out of six of the U.S. success stories cited by the
Commission involved training programs estabiished through collective bargaining -- two
of which were construction industry programs.

It is also important to recognize that training programs in the building and
construction industry are funded solely through private investment and have well-

proved track records for producing highly-skilled, well-educated workers. Accordingly,

it is imperative that new government-'funded programs not duplicate private training

programs. Such duplication would undercut private investment, thereby defeating the
very goals the new legisfation seeks to attain. In addition, we must ensure that any
new federal efforts to promote training do not undermine the high quality standards
utilized in existing programs.

B. Eederal Efforts Should Focus on Basic Education

Our second major concern regarding federally-sponsored school-to-work
programs is that we do not wish to see basic educational skills sacrificed for the sake
of on-the-job training. The workplace of today and tomorrow demands more, not less,
emphasis on rudimentary educational skills. Moreover, we know that our chief
competitors around the world require substantially higher academic achievernent frem
their students than we do and the gap is getting wider. In short, our entire system of

education is badly in need of whole-scale reform.
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If we wish to create a high skills/high wage workforce, our first
commitment must be to a quality system of basic education for all Americans. This
task will require a tremendous commitment of human and financial resources from all

levels of government. Further, because we believe that most apprenticeship and other

types of job-training programs can be funded through private efforts, it is our position
t

that scarce government resources should primarily be focused on improving our
national education system. A

C. The Value of Collectivelv-Bargained Training Programs

The need to concentrate federal efforts on improving education brings us
to our third and final point, which concerns the limited alternatives available for
encouraging employers to invest in worker training. Thus far, the major legisiative
proposals that have been offered in this area seek to create a high skills/high wage
workforce through basically tvvo alternatives: tax incentives and/or direct government
funding. While we recognizn the value o/ these strategies, we believe the time has
come to consider & third, and to this point largely overlooked, aiternative. Specifically,
we suggest that collective barga’ning be iooked to as a means for promoting increased
Investment in worker training.

As noted above, and as win be uiscussed further, the most successful
training programs in the United States today are programs which have been established
through collective bargaining. It also bears repeating that these programs require zero
investment from the federal government. Consider the United Association’s own

experience with high skills training: how many employers or trade associations in the
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United States or in the world invest over $76 million annually in training? The use of
collective bargaining to stimufate training investment has proven tremendously
successful. Accordingly, the impact of collective bargaining on private training
investment should be considered as a major issue in the current debate on workforce
training.

Why are there not more collectively bargained training programs? The
problem is that collective bargaining rights in this country have been severely eroded.
Representation elections can literally take years. Strikers, exercising supposedly
protected rights, are fired at will and blatant violations of our labor laws result in a
mere slap on the wrist for offending employers. As discussed below, it is also plain
to see that virtually all of our leading competitors have labor policies that are more
effective in promoting employee representation and collective bargaining. it should
therefore e no surprise that these same countries enjoy substantially higher rates of
private training investment, as well as the higher skills and wages that naturally foliow.
Thus, if we wish to attain a high skilis/high wage workforce, we must recognize that
our national labor policies play a key role, both directly and indirectly, in allocating
private training investment.

We should not forget that the most prosperous period in American
history, in terms of the standard of living and economic opportunities for the entire
nation was the 1940s to 1960s. [t is not mere coincidence that this was also the era
‘when collective bargaining in this country was at its zenith. If we are truly serious

about creating a productive workforce and addressing the needs of America’s

<
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middle class, we should focus not only on job-training policies and programs, but also

on the state of our labor policies.

We are not suggesting that collective bargaining is the be-all and end-all
solution to the economic crisis we are now confronting and we recognize that
government-sponsored training programs may be necessary for some industries. We
are also not requesting that Congress grant organized labor any special advantages or
favors. Howaever, the fact is that when it comes to America’s tabor policies, there is
no longer a level playing field. This not only undermines collective bargaining and the
private investment it can direct to training, but it severely undercuts the skil! leve! and
earning potential of our entire workforce. If our labor faws were fair, if there was a
leve! playing field, employees could compel, through collective bargaining, greater
investments in training -- investments which would be in the best long-run interest of
employers, employees and the economy as & whole.

As we did at the height of the Great Depression, America needs to make
a pact with its workers by establishing a level playing field for labor relations and
restoring real collective bargaining rights. In turn, in order to increase their standard
of living and protect future job security, workers and their representatives must use
these rights to demand substantial training investments from their empioyers. This
strategy has two key advantages. First, it would help provide our workforce with the
high skills needed for t.S. employers to successfully compete in the global
marketplace. Secord, it would increase the purchasing power of America’s working

class, thereby providing the fuel needed to recharge our domestic economy.
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SKILL ¢ Al IFCATI
The leading apprenticeship and job-training bilis now pending in Congress
call for the creation of a voluntary system of skill standards and occupational
certifications as part of a national training strategy. One key acpect of this plan is that

the trades, occupations and skills selected for development and certification today will

be the areas for which federal education and training funds will be made available

tomorrow. We support the establishment of skill standards and certifications and
agree that they are necessary components for a successful national training system.
We baelieve it is equally important, however, that the high quality standards of existing
training programs be maintained.

A. $kill Standards: Quality Assurance

Voluntary national standards and certifications for employee skills provide
multiple advantages for employers and employees alike. In a phrase, skill certification
means quality assurance. By formulating uniform industry standards to which
employeses can be trained, tested and certified, you ensure quality. Quality assurance
enhances the value of the employer’'s product or service, which in turn bolsters
competitiveness. For the employee, quality assurance provides greater bargaining
power and makes proven skills more marketable. The net result is that the economic
marketplace can be tremendously more efficient.

This theory will only be successful, however, if the skill standards

established are sufficiently demanding to guarantee a high guality product or service.

Likewise, the process of testing and certifying skilis must be sufficiently rigorous to

qualify only those who demonstrate true competency in the craft, trade or occupation
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tested. Indeed, if the standards and certifications do not ensure high guality, this

entire theory could back-fire. This would be especially true if existing skill standards

were to be lowered or in any way undermined by new national standards that establish

goals and specifications below those currently utilized in established programs. The

'building and construction industry is one such industry where the creation of new

nationalized standards could have such adverse effects.
B. Preserving the Integrity of Existing Standards

For virtuaily every skilled craft in the construction industry there are

_existing training and apprenticeship programs already in piace. These programs, which

have been approved by and registered with the Department of Labor, Bureau of

Apprenticeship Training ("BAT"), or appropriate state apprenticeship agencies and
ganerally use the highest quality standards in the industry. For this reason,
apprenticeship and training programs ceveloped in the construction industry are
regarded as models of excellence world-wide. Indeed, in the United States, the
construction industry is one of the few industries which provides the level and type of
worker training the new apprenticeship legisiation seeks to attain.?

These achievements have not been won easily. Training programs for the
skilled construction trades have been developed over a full century and have required
a continuous and substantial investment of both human and financial resources. At

present, construction trade unions channelfiterally hundreds of mitlions of dollars each

3 ges U.S. General Accounting Office Report, Apprenticeshio Training:
Administration, Use and Egual Qoportunity, GAO/HRD-92-43 (March, 1392){Report

shows the constructior: industry as one of the few industries which has made a serious
commitment to providing quality apprenticeship training programs).

8




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

221

ygear into training programs for both apprentices and skilled journeypersons.* The rate
or amount of contributions invested in these programs is established through coflective
bargaining and the training contributions represent amounts employees forego from
wages. In addition, almost all training in the construction industry, is provided through
multi-employer funds, a critical advantage for employers because it allows for the
pooiing of training resources.

The key to the success of these pragrams lies not only in financial
investment, but aiso, and perhaps more so, in an unfaitering commitment to gquality.
The skill standards utilized in these programs have been thoroughly tasted and proven
and are the highest of any such standards in the construction industry. Carefully
designed to ensure performance, not only in competency, but also in quality,
proficiency and safety, these programs and the standards they apply easily meet and
often surpass applicable federal and state requirements.

The training facilities used by the construction trades employ state of the
art equipment and the training itself is administered by experienced cartifiad
instructors. Most established apprenticeship programs in the construction industry
require up to five years or 10,000 hours of on-the-job training and a minimum of 1,000
hours of related class-room instruction. In addition, every apprentice who goes
through one of these programs is required to demonstrate, under strict testing

procedures, that he or she can perform the tested craft or skill in accordance with

* Generally, the funding for such programs is provided through employer
contributions te labor/management training/apprenticeship trust funds, which

administer the programs as independent entities. Sge Section 302 of the Taft-Hartley
Act, 29 U.S.C. § 186.
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established industry standards. Advanced training programs are also available which
allow skilled journeypersons, who must stay abreast of changing technology, to
develop and maintain their expertise in master and specialty crafts. For many of the
construction trades, and for many crafts or specialties within particular trades, skill
testing and formai certification or licensing is required after a basic apprenticeship
program has been completed.®

Thus, i the building and construction industry, national skill standards
and occupational certification programs aiready exist. Development in this area is
therefore not needed. Moreover, for the reasons discussed above, it is imperative that
the high quality of existing standards in this industry be preserved. If anything, the
standards now used in construction training programs should be viewed as the national
standards for the industry.

Generally, we recommend that the standards and requirements of the DOL
Bureau of Appranticeship Training ("BAT") be strengthened and more aggressively
enforced. Any new training/apprenticeship program should be required to obtain BAT
approval and should receive such approval only after demonstrating full compliance
with established BAT standards. Furthermore, we reacommend that the skill standards
used in training programs be designed in accordance with the highest industry

standards, a goal which requires open lines of communication between training

® For example, the United Association and its affiliated local unions currently
administer, or are in the process of developing, severa! types of master and speciaity
craft programs which involve advanced training and formal testing and certification in
certain specialty fields. These programs cover such areas as Welding and Brazing,
Nuclear Power, Pneumatic Control Systems, Back-Flow Prevention Devices, Industrial
Valve Repair, Medical Gas Technology and Hazardous Materials.

10
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providers and the industries they serve. Application of these requirements and
standards wiil demonstrate a serious commitment to worker training and skill
development and will help produce the type of highly skilled and well educated
workforce envisioned by the new apprenticeship legisiation.®
IV. FEDERAL APPRENTICESHIP AND JOB-TRAINING PROGRAMS

As stated at the outset, it is critical that any federal efforts used to
establish national school-to-work transition programs not be permitted to undermine
existing apprenticeship/training srograms. Thus, in selecting the particular trades or
skills 1~ he developed, we urge that extreme caution be exercised to maximize scarce
govurnment resources and avoid unfair consequences. Spacifically, we strongly urge
that any new federal training programs established by Congress should exclude the
building and construction industry. Several sound policy reasons support this position.

A. necessary Duplication and Unfair Competition

Ce.itively-bargained training and apprenticeship progré ns are the
ba- bone and life blood of organized labor. This is especially true with respect to the
construction industry. As noted above, construction trade unions and contractors

sest tremendous resources in these programs. Indeed, the United Association alone

oversees the investment of over $76 million annually in worker education and training.

Accordingly, we submit that it would be grossly unfair for the federal government to

8 The general success of the apprenticeship systems in the construction industry
has been noted by the Dspartment of Labor, which has also emphasized that the high
standards utmzed in these programs must be preserved. See Work-Based Learning:

ri f , U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training
Administration pp. 11-12 (1989;.

11
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fund or otherwise sponsor paralle! training programs for non-union employers in the
construction industry.

This would in fact constitute a blatant form of unfair competition since
organized labor has already invested substantial time and resources in developing
apprenticeship programs in the construction industry. Moreover, a review of the
training and apprenticeship programs currently registered with the Bureau of
Apprenticeship Training and state agencies shows there aiready is a sufficient number
of viable existing programs in this area. The creation of federally-sponsored training
programs in the construction industry would therefore result in unnecessary duplication
and, consequently, a waste of scarce government resources.

Thus, uniike other industries, federal action is not needed in this industry
to stimulate the creation of new training programs. In fact, federal funding would
effectively discourage private investment in this area and undermine the single most
successful system of apprenticeship training in this country today and defeat the very
goals the new legislation seeks to attain.

B. The Building Trades are Unsuitable for New Programs

An additional factor that counsels against federal investment in
construction industry training programs is the current unemployment rate in the this
industry. Despite the success of the union trades and their training programs, they

cannot be insulated from the harsh realities of the deepening recession. In March

1992, it was reported that the unemployment rate in the construction industry was

17.4% -- more than twice the amount of the overall unemployment rate of 7.4%.”

7 See Construction Labor Report, Vol. 38, No. 1871, March 11, 1992.
12
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in more human terms, this figure translates into over 1 miilion unemploved

ryction rkers. It is, therefore, not surprising that many union apprenticeship
programs now report that they reguiarly have at least 10 applicants for every available
position. A related problem here is that the hiring of student-workers, who could
potentially be employed at a sub-minimum wage, will jnevitably resuit in the
displacement of currently employed workers, thus exacerbating unemployment in this
industry.

The construction industry is also unsuitable for the types of national
apprenticeship/training programs now being considered insofar as these programs are
largely targeted at high-school age youth. Given the transient and temporary nature
of the work, this industry is simply not conducive to the types of apprenticeships or

school-to-work transition programs envisioned by pending proposals. Furthermore, it

is common knowledge that construction projects are inherently dangerous places to
work.? The statistics for this industry also show that minors working at construction

sites are especially vulnerable to accidents and work-related injuries.® This reason

® See e.g,, AFL-CIO Legislative Fact Sheet No. 102-6, March 20, 1991. In this
report, which calls for major OSHA reform, it was noted that in the last 20 years
47,500 construction workers lost their lives on the job and another 5,000,000 were
seriously injured.

° See e.g,, Protecting Children in the Workplace, December 12, 1990 (This report,
issued by the Washington State Department of Labor and industries after an intensive
study, reveals that the construction industry has one of the highest rates of work-
related |n]ur|es for mlnors) See glso, U.S. Government Accountmg Office Report,

hit r Violations Thr h
Siates, GAO/HRD-90- 116 (April 1990}(Among other issues, thxs study examines
eleven incidents of work-related fatalities of minors, four of which occurred on
construction projects}.

13
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alone is sufficient to exempt the construction industry from new federa! apprenticeship

and training programs.

An additional issue that should be considered here is the ‘zct that
employment training programs in the construction industry would likely be subject to
abuse and exploitation oy employers since student-workers could easily be hired under
the guise of apprenticeship, but then used only for unskilled fabor. It must be
remembered that the purpose of new programs is to assist our nation’s youth in
obtaining meaningful education and work experience. These programs chould not be
made available to employers as a means for obtaining cheap unskiiled lebor. We are
greatly concerned that the construction industry, in particular, would be subject to
such abuse.

For ail the above reasons, we submit that the creation of apprenticeship
or other job-training programs in the building and construction industry would not be
prudent public policy.

V. HIGH SKILLS TRAINING: THE NEED TQO REFORM QUR EDUCATIONAL SYSTEM

As a general policy matter, we are greatly concerned about any youth
employment programs which reduce the amount of time students spend in school.
Specifically, we are concerned that new federal programs in this area will not be
sufficiently demanding in terms of academic performance of student participants and

that basic educational skills will be sacrificed for the sake of on-the-job training.
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Virtually all commentators on U.S. Education Pelicy concur that the
system of education in this country is in dire straits.'® This crisis is compounded by
continued advances in modern technology and the type of high job skills required by
such changes. The bottom fine is that we must have both more and better training in
basic educational skills if today’s students are going to be prepared for the demands
of tomorrow’s workplace. indeed, we are becoming increasingly aware that a highly
educated workforce is vital to the success of an industrialized market economy.

The United Association’s own experience in high skills training confirms
the present failures of this country’s education system. We too find that the typical
high school student needs more, not less, education in basic rudimentary skills, such
as reading comprehension, mathematics, reason and logic and interpersonal

communication.!* As in most industries today, many of the skills and work

processes used in our industry are becomingincreasingly more sophisticated, high-tech

and computer-oriented. Itis no wonder that our major international competitors invest
substantially more in basic academic training and demand more from their students

than we do in terms of time spent in school and academic achievement. Finally, we

© 5ee @.g,,Achieving Work Force Competitiveness, Career College Association
(1991); America’s Choice. High Skills or Low Wages, The Commission on the Skiils
of the American Workforce, National Center on Education and the Economy (June,
1990); Bureau of National Affairs, BNA Daily Labor Report (3/30/91}{recently released
Harris poll reports that only 33 percent of recent high schooi graduates "have the
ability to read and understand written and verbal instructions,” while only 25 percent
of recent graduates were "capable of doing arithmetic functions.”)

M £or example, we are finding that our apprentices are often in need of greater
basic academic education in order to cope with the high skill demands of our trade,
especially with respect to new areas involving major technological advances (g.g..
nuclear power, pneumatic temperature controls and hazardous materials).
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should all be aware that serious questions have been recently raised regarding the
overall negative effects on students working while still in high schoot.?

Notwithstanding these facts, most of the *High Skills" apprenticeship bills
now pending in Congress would incredibly aliow high school students to spend
substantially legs time {g.g., up to a full year) in schoo!, thus forfeiting time allotted for
basic academics. This would be a tragic and costly mistake. We should not aliow our
students to sacrifice academic training for on-the-job-training when all the evidence
indicates that we should bolster traditional educational skills. We believe that the best
approach to the education and employment problems we face today would be to
commit available federal and state resources to reforming ang revitalizing our basic
educational system. We further maintain that this can be made possible by leaving
apprenticeship and job-training primarily to the private sector.'®
VI. APPRENTICESHIP v, YOUTH EMPLOYMENT TRAINING

On somewhat of a technical note, we would like to express certain

reservations we have regarding the use of the term "apprenticeship” for new youth

2 See e.9., Too Much Work, Not Enough Schoo! A Bad Mix, Chicago Tribune,
(February 18 1992), Surv gy QI] e Social Science Literature: Suyat, S., Negative
rs, National Safe Workplace Institute {"NSW!I"}
(1992), Stemberg, L., Dornbushc, S.M. (1991), iv rrel f Part-Time
mpl i A i Repli n | ration, Developmental
Psychology, 27: 304-313 (It is significant that among other negative effects, the
NSW! report emphasizes that the high school drop-out rate increases for students
working too much during schoot.)

'3 This position is even more compelling when we consider the fact that, unilike
private apprenticeship programs, federal employment training programs, such as the
Comprehensive Employment and Training Act and the Job Training Partnership Act,
have had at the very most only limited success. See g.g., U.S. General Accountmg
Office Report, Job Training Partnership Act: Inadeguate Qver rsight Leaves Proara
Vulnerable to Waste, Abuse, and Mismanagement, GAO/HRD-91-97 {July, 1991)

16
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employment and school-to-work transition programs. While this may seem a minor
point to some, it is an important issue to us. The term apprentice or apprenticeship,
especially when used in the construction trades, has a distinct and specific meaning.
Typically, the term refers to a prolonged, structured and intensive work-based
education process, involving on-the-job training and related instruction -- usually for a
highly skilled craft. Upon completion of a bona fide apprenticeship, which is based on
a legal contract between the apprentice and employer, the apprentice obtains an
official certificate of completion and is granted full journeyperson status.

The problem with using the term apprenticeship for the types of youth
training programs now being considered is that the status of existing programs would
be undermined to the extent new programs do not contain the same rigorous standards
used by established programs. At this point, the programs envisioned by pending
legislation clearly do not meet such standards. In view of these facts, we believe that
the term "apprenticeship” should not be used for programs developed under new

training legisiation and that other appropriate language should be adopted.™

1. ENCOURAGING PRIVATE INVESTMENT IN APPRENTICESHIP AND JOB-TRAINING
PROGRAMS: THE ROLE OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

A. Alternative Plans for Enhancing Emplovee Training
Everyone agrees that increased education and training for America’s

waorkforce are the twin keys to economic recovery and international competitiveness.

" The omportance of this issue is fully discussed in "The Meaning of

, a policy recommendation prepared

by the Federal Committee on Apprenticeship, Department of Labor, Employment and

Training Administration, Office of Work-Based Learning Bureau of Apprenticeship and
Training.

17
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The next question, of course, is how do we provide, or encourage employers to
provide the level of training needed to elevate and transform the U.S. workforce into
the type of high skills/high wage workforce capable of competing in today’s global
economy. The answer, which now has been offered in one form or another by both
major political parties and every presidential candidate, is that the federal government
needs to promote employee training and apprenticeship on a national scale.

Thus far, the nationa! debate on workforce training has focused on
essantially two alternatives. First, we could create a new national system of employee
training and apprenticeship programs administered by a governmenta! or quasi-
governmental agency and funded by direct taxes on employers. Second, we could
reform federal tax law and attempt to persuade employers to invest more in private
training programs by offering major tax incentives. Either of these plans will obviously
resuit in tremendous cost to the government, thus exacerbating the already crisis state
of the federa! budget deficit. Moreover, neither of these approaches guarantees
success and, in fact, past experience with government programs suggests otherwise.

There is, however, a third alternative which -- not only has a proven track

record -- but also requires zero direct cost for the government. The alternative is for

the federal government to promote collective bargaining. When training programs are

provided through collective bargaining the government incurs no cost. In addition,
collectively-bargained programs, such as those in the construction industry, have been
tremendously successful. So, why reinvent the wheel? If the most successful
systems of training and apprerticeship in this country are those which have resuited

from collective bargaining, why not promote collective bargaining?
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We submit that the need for revitalizing our workforce should compel us
to re:examine the state of our national labor policy and recognize that labor law
reforms are necessary to re-establish a level playing field for collective bargaining. As
the experiences of other countries show, fair labor policies present a pragmatic
approach to revitalizing America’s workforce and restoring its economic strength.

B. The Valye of Collectively-Bargained Training Programs

In a recent edition of Financial World, a leading business magazine, Editor-

in-Chief Geoffrey N. Smith wrote a report in his editor’s column entitled "Stronger

Unions?™ In the article Smith pointedly suggests that stronger unions may, in fact, be
smart economics for U.S. businesses. Similarly, the Economic Policy Institute, a
Washington-based think tank, recently released a study which compares U.S. firms
with international competitors and concludes that any modern industrialized nation
seriously interested in econcmic recovery should -- in the words of Charles Craypo of
the University of Notre Dame -- embrace unions and collective bargaining as "essential
ingredients for industrial revitalization.”

In America’s Choice: High Skills or Low Waqges, discussed previously,
great emphasis was placed on the lessons the U.S. could learn from abroad, especially
European countries such as Germany, Denmark and Sweden. In this regard, the report
emphasized the impact that labor policies have on a country’s ability to provide high
quality training and explained the pragmatic reasons for adopting such policies.

Foreign managers do not adopt new forms of work organization because

they are more altruistic or more far-sighted than American firms. Most

foreign companies choose high productivity models in response to a
variety of external and labor market pressures.
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ional fuli I nt polici ight labor mark vernment labor
reguiations, strong union movements, high wages and a highly skilled
workforce alt provide incentives for foreign employers to choose the high
productivity path.
{p. 63, emphasis added). Furthermore, the report exptained that "thligh wage ievsls,
due in part to union pressure and national income policies . . . force companies to
achieve high levels of productivity either through increased training or new forms of
work organization.” (p. 64).

The findings of America’s Choice show that the success of training
programs abroad is due in large part to the nature and strength of our competitors’
labor policies. These findings clearly show a direct relationship between the strength
of a nation’s lzbor laws and the success of its employment, education and training
policies. Thus, it is not surprising that the very countries which are looked upon as
leaders in workforce training gll have stronger and more progressive labor policies than
those which currently exist in the United States.

Consider, for example, the fact that none our leading competitors,

including Germany, Sweden and Japan, permit employers to terminate striking workers

and hire permanent replacements.’® It is also not surprising that the very

competitors we seek to emulate all have unionization rates at least two or three times
higher than in America -- a result which is due in no small part to the strength of their

labor laws and policies.'®

'* Rehiring Strikers at the End of a Strike: What Other Countries Do, Fariborz
Nozari, Law Library of Congress, LL90-34, at i, April 1990.

'® See Unions and Economic Competitiveness, Mishel, L. and Voos, P., Economic
Policy Institute, at p. 19, (1992) ¢iting Bureau of Labor Statistics, 1989 and Freeman,
1988. (West Germany: 42%; Sweden: 83%; Japan: 32%; Canada: 36%).
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There is no question that the success of our competitors’ training systems
is due to the involvement and participation of organized labor -- and the labor policies
which encourage such involvement. As noted above, the report, America’s Choice,
fully supports this contention. Other reports on workforce training have aiso
emphasized the importance of strong labor policies. For example, when Canada sent
a joint business/labor delegation to Europe (Britain, Germany and Holland} to study
apprenticeship training, the delegation 1eported that one of the major keys to the
success of European programs was the fact that they are administered with a high
regard for employee representation and involvement, with most systems being
administered by tri-partite boards, consisting of government, union and business
representatives.'’ Similarly, a "European Study Mission," sponsored by the Chamber
of Commerce of Seattle, Washington to evaluate international training programs,
explained that: "[tihe key lesson for us . . . is how well they get labor and
management to work together.”'® With respect to the German system in particular,
which likely has the most successful national system of training in the world -- as well
as the most highly skilled and highest paid workforce -- it has often been stressed that

"{tlhe German system is built on cooperation among government, ‘industry and

unions.™"®

7 Ottawa_Job Training Plans, The Toronto Star, p. A-25, November 22, 1990,

{Discussing the report of the Canadian Labor Market and Productivity Centre, a private
joint labor/management organization).

'8 The Lessons of Europe, Seattle Times, May 17, 1992, p. A17, quoting Leslie
Eliason, University of Washington’s Graduate School of Public Affairs and member of
the European Study Mission.

% A Good Idea From Germany, The Star Tribune, p. 25A, September 19, 1991.
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The lessons we have learned at home in America likewise reveal that the

most successful apprenticeship and training programs are those which have been
established tirough collective bargaining in industries that have the highest rates oi
employee representation -- specifically, the construction and automobile industries.
Indeed, as is noted above, five out of six of the "success stories”™ cited in America’'s
Choice are stories about collectively bargained training programs. {pp. 169-115}.

C. The Nexus Between Labor Policies and Worker Training

The various studies and reports cited above attest to the fact that there
is a vital link between the strength of our federal labor laws and our commitment to
worker training. The link is obvious. Stronger labor laws lead to greater employee
organization. Increased employee organization in turn gives workers the ability to
bargain for better terms and conditions of employment, including training and
education. Indeed, the issue of training is likely to be the most fertile ground for "win-
win" bargaining since it is the area in which employers and employees have the most
substantial interests in common.

Moreover, there are several important advantages of collectively
bargained-for training programs. First, of course, is the fact that they are privately
funded with only minimal tax advantages for contributing employers.”
Consequently, unlike the programs envisioned by the new legisiation, neither massive

tederal spending, nor super tax benefits are required. The second advantage is that

2 Employers contributing to private training/apprenticeship programs, whether
union or open-shop, are entitled to deduct their contributions as a reasonable and
necessary business deduction. The training programs themselves, which are almost
always separate independent entities, are entitied to tax exempt status.
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uniike many government-sponsored employee training programs, collectively bargained
programs have impressive success records. One of the main reasons for this is that
such programs tend to have a high degree of participation by the employees
themselves and their olected representatives.

Employee participation in training is a critical feature because it means
ihat the training program is designed and administered as a joint employee/employer
operation, an approach which is often more successful than employer-dominated

1

programs.?' Indeed, experts believe that, in terms of developing and administering

employee training programs, worker participation is vital for success. Thus, in recent

testimony before the Senate Labor Committee an recent apprenticeship proposals,

representatives of both business and education stressed that "a union, or some kind
of worker association, is essential to apprenticeship and training programs."?? Of
course, employee participation is only one of the reasons that make collectively
bargained programs successful. As discussed above, these programs are aiso effective
because employee representatives are able to negotiate a substantial tevel of training
investment and the programs themselves are designed to adhere to the highest quality

standards.

2 This point was emphasized by the Department of Labor which noted that "[a)
strength of the current apprenticeship system lies in the joint apprenticeship committee
which includes both employer and employee representatives.” Work-Based Learning:
Training America’s Workers, supra, p. 20.

22 BNA Daily Report for Executives, Apprenticeships for Youth are One Way tg Stop
Declining Wages, (May 21, 1992)(Quoting testimony of Hans Decker, Vice Chairman
of Germany-based Siemens Corp. and Professor Paul Osterman, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, Sloan School of Management).
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The third advantage of collectively-bargained training programs is that the
level of investment is determined through the give-and-take of negotiation, rather than
by government mandate.?® Consequently, when training investments are collectively
bargained, the final investment represents a more realistic level of what employers or
employer groups can and cannot afford. This approach also allows employzses to
trade-off such items as increases in wages or fringe benefits for increased training
contributions, thereby empowering workers with a certain degree of control over their
future.?* The advantages to employees from such bargaining include better future
wages and increased job security. Employers, on the other hand, invest in their own

long-term interest and boister their productivity and competitiveness.

£

It should also be emphasized that the combination of collective bargaining
and employee training produces various other economic benefits. First, it is well
documented that, due in large part to high quality training programs, union firms and
union workers are often found to be more productive than their non-union

counterparts.® In this regard, it must be stressed that higher productivity rates of

% This approach s likely to be attractive to many employers, who could be required
under current |egislative proposals to pay as much as a flat 1% tax on their entire
payroll to fund federa! training and apprenticeship programs.

24 Also, urder this approach, employees will be reluctant to push too hard insofar
as they will defeat their purpose if the employer is forced out of business; on the other
hand collective bargaining is the best way to determine the maximum amount of
training investment any given employer can afford.

* See g.g., Unions and Economic Competitiveness, Mishel, L. and Voos, P.,

Economic Policy Institute (1892} and numerov ~ studies cited therein.
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union labor more than offset higher wages won through collective bargaining. 1d.%®
A second major advantage of a unionized workforce is its effect on the overall work
process. Thus, it is becoming increasingly clear that high performance work
organizations are more likely to be found in union firms. The critical point here is that
employee participation in the work process is maximized when there is a more
balanced sharing of power between labor and management.?’” Moreover, when
employ.us are represented, increases in productivity -- brought about by increased
training and greater empioyee participation -- are much more likely to result in rewards
for the emplovees, as well as management and stockholders. in other words, where
employees are represented, higher skills are more likely to guarantee higher wages.
In view of all of the above facts and findings, it is indeed troublesome that
the policy recommendations advocated by the renowned report, America’s Choice,
include no recommendations calling for the strengthening of America‘s iabor laws. The
unspoken conclusion, however, is inescapable, stronger labor policies -- or at least a
roughly level playing field for coliective bargaining, will yield increased private
investment in worker training and assist economic recovery. As our competitors’ have

learned, strong labor policies are smart economics.

2% A related factor which contributes to the higher productivity of union workers
is the permanency of their employment. Higher wages and other benefits brought
about by collective bargaining limit employee turnover and, therefore, enhance the

value of an employer’s training investment. See e.g., What Unions Qo, Freeman, R.
New York, Basic Books (1984).

¥ See e.g., BNA, Daily Labor Report, Remarks of Professor Charles J. Morris gn
empiovee Involvement, DLR No. 4.8, p. E-i, March 4, 1992 (Noting that "{e}jmpirical
data seem to indicate that for worker-participation programs to yield significant
productivity gains, a unionized environment may be required.}
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D. The Need for Labor Law Reform to Promote Training

In view of the above, we submit that serious attention should be given
to strengthening our federat labor policies as a means to re-vitalizing our workforce and
meeting America’s training needs. The changes which need to be considered in this
regard are neither numerous nor complex. However, they will require a certain amount
of political courage and a serious commitment to our nation's long-term interests.

First, the process of obtaining employee representation elections must be
expedited to assure swift and fair elections. It is absolutely outrageous that an NLRB
election can take not only months, but literally years. Second, the penaities available
for unfair labor practices must be increased to the extent necessary to make the law

a substantial and effective deterrent, rather than just a mere slap on the wrist. In this

regard, it should be questioned why victims of discrimination based on race, sex, age

and disability are entitled to substantial punitive damage awards, plus attorney fees,
when victims who ar2 discriminated against for taking part in supposedly protected
labor activities usually receive little or no meaningful compensation. Third, the
fundamental right of employees to strike, which has been rendered a sham by che
Supreme Court, should be protected.

Furthermore, we submit that these reforms would not only serve to
bolster private training investment, but would also generally assist the long-term
economic recovery the new apprenticeship/training legislation seeks to attain. As a
recentcommentary in a Canadian newspaper aptly described, union representation and
collective bargaining have various positive effects on a market economy:

In addition to their humanitarian objectives, trade unions perform an
economic function. They enhance purchasing power, stimulate
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companies to be more efficient, channe! workptace discontent and help
make workers more skilled and therefore more pruductive.

indeed, "fhlistory shows . . . that market economies are successful only 'when

accompanied by progressive legislation and strong and effective labor unions.
Otherwise, what resuits are the extremes of wealth and poverty . . . .*%®

In the United States today we are fast approaching extremes of wealth
and poverty. In fact, "between 1977 and 1989, the real income of families in the top
1 percent [of the U.S. population] more than doubled."® Conversely, this same
period witnessed a substantial decline in the real income for most working Americans
and a dramatic increase in the number of individuals working below poverty-level
wages.*® This growing economic disparity is not only the result of a workforce
lacking in education and job skills; it is also due 10 the decline in union representation.
$d. In this regard, it should be emphasized that education and job-training will not be
enough to guarantee fair wages, stable labor relations and economic recovery. Rather,
part of the solution must be greater employee organization, representation and
participation in the work process and this will only come about with major labor law
reform.

As noted at the outset, no one disputes the fact that Ameri&a is in serious

economic trouble, or that high skills training is the best strategy for economic

* The Qttawa Citizen, Letter of the Dav, Gorden DiGidComo, By-Line, p. A-12,
June 11, 1992.

*? lanorance and ineavality, U.S. News & World Report, p. 48, June 1, 1992 ¢iting,
a recent studies of the Congressional Budget Office.

0 Y Raise? The Lot of th ing Poor Worsened in th
80s. Industry Week, p. 69, June 15, 1991,
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recovery. What is at issue in the debate we face today, however, is the means by
which we will provide training. As another leading study on this issue reported:

[tlhere is general agreement that a global business competition requires

new worker skills. But is yet to be shown whether the American

business community will restructure itself to provide large numbers of
high skill jobs.

Economists and advocates of skills training, however, are banking on this

change. “Either we have substantial measure of high-performance

workplaces or we don’t need to worry about public education because

this country will be on the road to economic serfdom."?'
We do not dispute that the American business community must restructure itself and
adopt a new approach to training. It is unlikely, however, that the business
community will do this voluntarily. For the reasons set forth above, we submit that
collective bargaining can help bring about the changes needed. Moreover, restoring
basic collective bargaining rights is not only an effective alternative for increasing
private training investment, but it is one sure way to guarantee the success of our
training programs and the workers they produce.

In sum, we believe that with the appropriate changes in federal labor law,
as recommended above, U.S. employers will begin to make the level of training
investment necessary for America to successfully compete in the global marketplace.
While we do not profess to think that labor law reform will solve all of our education
and training problems, we do think this approach couid have a significant positive

impact on revitalizing America’s workforce and restoring its position as a world

economic leader.

%' The National Journal, The Forgotten Half, Vol. 24, No. 18, p. 1049, May 2,
1992, quoting former Labor Secretary Bill Brock.
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Vil CONCLUSION

The over-arching goal of the legislative proposals seeking to estabiish a
national training system is to create a high skills/high wage workforce capabie of
competing in today’s global marketplace. Thus, it is generally agreed that the
promotion of employee education and training, especially high skill training, is one of
the most important policy objectives facing the U.S. today,

In order for this strategy to work, we have made three specific
recommendations: {1) successful existing training programs shouid be looked upon as
models to emuiate and the private investment made in these programs, as well as their
high-quality standards, should not be undermined by any new policies: (2} the federal
government shouid concentrate its limited available resources primanly on reforming
our national education system and basic academic training should not be sacrificed in
the name of on-the-job training; and {3) our nation’s labor policies should be reformed

to provide a level playing fieid for collective bargaining and encourage increased private

investmaent in employee skili training and development.

The United Association stands ready to do everything in its power to help
3¢# that these goals are realized. Finally. we would again like to express our sincere
appreciation for being given the opportunity to comment on this matter of great
national concern.

Respectfully submitted,

Marvin J. Boede, General President
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March 3, 1992

The Honorable John Breaux
United States Senate
Washington, DC 20510-1803

Dear Senator Breaux:

It has recently come to our attention that you may seek to
introduce as an amendment to the Tax bill before your committee,
legislation entitlied "Leading Lmployerec 1nto Apprentice
Partnerships Act.® The purpose of this Legislation is to amend
the Internal Revenue Code to =stimulate private investment in
apprentica trailning programs.

While the goal of encouraging the astablishment of new
apprenticeship training programs ic cartainly laudable, we have
some serious concerns regarding the use of this particular Bill
a8 the vechicle for achieving this goatl. Tn this regard, we first
note that we believe the issue of lcdaral sponsorship of youth
training and appranticaeship pragrams <hould be considered in its
entirety and fully debatcd batore the House and Scnate.

As you may know, within the last year oc v, Senators
Kennedy and Nunn have introduccd major lcg:slative proposals,
with companion bills in the House, seekinq to provide Federal
funding to estublish new national pgrogranmy in the field of
apprenticesnip training. Thus, we believe that consideration of
tax incentives should be deferzed and the matter should be
reviewed within the context ot a national debate on the entire
issue of apprenticaship truining and the federal government‘ e
involvenent in thie area.

Assuring that your A{1ll 13 taken under advicement by the
Committee, howevar, we rcepactrully request that. you consider the
faoliowing points. lnitially, we -~um+ streus that, in its present
form, this legislation poses a serious, and indeed potentlally
fatal throat to existing union apy:enticeship programs. In
brief, under the terms of the Act. exiatji~qg union apprentice
programs would not gualify for %Ax exenpt status--which means the
survival of literally thousands of union apprenticeship programs
nationwide would be jeopardized.
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The problem here is that the cnly araanisattons which
qualify for tax exempt sStatus andet the Bi1i 1te only tLhost whivh
have representativee of government and cducation on their board
of directors, in addition to laber and\or husiness
representatives. (See Bill, p.2. Scction (n) (1) (8). Howaver,
union programs arc not structurad this way, and indeed, are
likely to be prohibited lrom ke'ny struutuzed in Lhis manner by
exi1cting lederal labor law.

Specificatly, union apprentiveship programs must be
establisned in accordance with Scctien 1092 of the Labor-
Managemant. Relationa Act of 1947 (Tatt-Hartley), 29 U.$.C. § 1116,
which requires that any union apgrearice or osfhar training
programs bhe jointly administered by a laft-ilarcley trust fund, .
consisting of rcpresentatives of ggual number fror lahor and
management.

We should further note that apprentice programs have
traditionally been granted tax exempt status under Sectlons S0l
{c)(3) and/or (%) of the Internal Revenae Code, 26 U.S.C. § 50°
(3) and (%) (i.c., as either "education” or "!abor"
organizations). However, since cxintirq programs weuld nQr
qualify under the Brecaux Bill--and since this 8i1) creates a new
specific exempt category just for apprenticeshlp programs, the
current tax exempt status of exiating programs could potentially

be revoked Lf this Bill is enacted in :ts present (orm,

Revoking the tax sxsmpt status of possibly thousands of
existing apprenticeshlp programs wodld bew o terrib'e mistake and
we do not believe anyone wants this rewnull. tror years, Congress

6 strongly supported and encouraged thas devalopment of private-
sector apprenticeship programs anu we 4o not think it would look
favorably upon legislation which threatens to terminate ’ vast
network of viable and productive apprentice programs. Indeecd,
this would be counter-productive tou the furdamental goal of the
Beraux Bill, since it would have tue eoffact of discouraging
private invesatment in this arca.

Of course, due to the inherent complexlty of our federal lax
code, wa understand that the potertial consequences of thin
legislation may not have been rcad:iy apparant to {t« drafters.
The Bill’s failure to Include existirg apprenticeship programe
can be eaglly corracted ang we have taken the liberly of
attaching a draft provision which would accompiish this.
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(Language undaracored is the lang.aye we added). A3 you will
see, this provision also requires that 1n order for & program to
qualify for the tax benefits provided by the Act, 1t miat be
reqgistered with the Burcau of Apprenticeship Training ("BAT") of
the U.S. NRepartment of Labor. By requiring that new programs
comply with the minimum standards cstablished by BAT, thils
provision will help unsure that only bana fule prograns receive
the tax henefits provided by the Act.

Thank you for your time and considceration in this matter.

I'raternally yours,

Mo J. Hefdde

Gararal Pr dent
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For purposes of paragraph (1) and (2), the term
raining and education program' does not
h establishes, operates, maintains or

raining program for any trade, skill

‘qualified youth skills t
struction industry.

include any program whic
assists a course cf study or t
craft or occupation in the building and con
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Goneras oiliss Foow Roleceace MAC (LN g
January 21, 1992

The Honorable Sam Nunn
Dirksen Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510

Re: The Youth Apprenticeship Act (S.2059)

Dear Senator Nunn:

Thank you for inviting our comments on the revised
Youth Apprenticeship Act (S.2059) you recently reintroduced in
the 102nd Congress. As you know, the issue of apprenticeship
training is of utmost importance to the United Association, as it
is to other labor unions, especially those in the building and
construction industry. We were therefore grateful to see you
acknowledge the interests of the building tradee in your opening
remarks reintroducing this legislation.

Initially, we would like to reiterate that we fully
support your efforts to increase the sducation and employment
opportunities of our nation’s youth. Unfortunately, the future
our young people face is not very promising. The effects of

fierce global competition abroad and relentlese receeeion at home
are particularly devastating for those who, due to their aconomic

status or ability, have limited opportunity for a decent
education.

Clearly, the type of program envisioned by the Youth
Apprenticeship Act -~ which emphasizes high skills training and
enhanced education =-- ie an idea whose time hae come. Ve
therefore applaud your afforts in this regard and sincerely wish
you every success. In addition, please be advised that the
United Association stands ready to assist the federal government
in developing new high skills education and training programe.
We take great pride in being recognized as one of the front-line
leaders in the field of apprenticeship training and believe our
assistance could be valuable.

Ae to the recent revisions in the Act, we would like to
note that we are happy to see the new provision requiring ths
payment of at leaet a minimum training wage to etudent trainees
and the new section recognizing the application of OSHA to
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prograns astablished under ths Act. We also appreciate that the
law now specifically requirss that reprssentatives of labor
groups be appointed to ths Board of the Apprenticsship Institute.
Input from the labor community could prove to be tremsndously
helpful in developing and svaluating nev training prograss.

Notwithstanding our general support for the Bill, there
are several concerns we would like to raisa with you at this
time. As we previocusly stated, ve believa the Act’s
nonduplication provision needs to be stronger. Labor
organizations, particularly in the building and construction
industry, have invested literally billions of dollars in
appranticeship training programs. Indeed, the United Association
and its signatory contractors alone spend approximately $80
aillion per year on various training programs for over 300,000
journeyman and apprentices.

Given this level of private-sector investment, it is
imperative that programs funded by the Act not be permitted to
duplicate -~ in any manner -- existing apprsnticeship prograns.
Such a result would not only be a waste of scarce government
funds, but would also be extremely unfair to established training
programs, which have been developed solely with private funds.

In a phrase, any such result, would be a blatant form of unfair
competition. .

Moreover, if federal funds vere permitted to subsidize
duplicative programs, private investment in training would surely
be discoursged. We do not think that anyone who supports the
legislation wants these results. It is our positici, however,
that tha language in the bill’s nonduplication provision is
simply too vague and ambiguous to ba affective. We have
therefore drafted an alternative provision (attached hsreto) for
your consideration.

With respect to the enforcement scheme of the Act, ws
would like to express our support for the use of private
arbitration tc resolve disputes arising under the Act. We
request, however, that parties be given the eaxpress right to
challenge arbitration decisions in court. While arbitration has
its advantages, it has been our experience that the right of
Judicial review is necsssary for those instances where an
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arbitrator’s decision is arbitrary, ©T othervise inconsistent
with the lavw.

on a general policy level, we also have concerns that
the programs created undar the Act will not be sutficiently
demanding on the student participantl and that basic sducational
skills may be sacriticed in the name of on-the~job training. In
this regard, we note that in some of the programs which will be
created under the Act, students may actually end up epanding lass

tine (even up to one year less) on traditional acadenic studies,
than they do now.

in light of our own experience with training prograns
¢or highly skilled occupetions we £ind the typical nigh school
student needs more, not lass, concentration on rudimentary
skills, such as reading conprohonﬂion and pathematics. In fact,
given the continued advances in modern technology. and the type
of job skills required by such changes, there nust be both more
and better training in pasic educational skills if students are

going to be adequately proptrod for the demands of today’s
workplace.

For these reasons, we recomaend that the Act be revised
to require that any time spent by gtudents in job—training
prograns pe over and above the normal four year nigh school
curriculum. If this means that a student who aspires to a
technical career will be required to spend five years in high
school, 3s opposed to tour, so be jt. Furthermore, we suggest
that students be required to maintain a certain average (@.G.s 2
B or C averags) in their acadenic studies pefore they are
p-rnittod to enroll or continue in a job-traininq progranm.

such an approach will help ensure that the students who
enroll in the nev job-ttaininq prograns are gerious, and thus,
that these prograns will not becone just an easy way for kids to
cut class and get paid for ijt. Indeed, to avoid wasting precious
federal resourcss, and to protect the reputation and integrity of
the new prograns, we view such safeguards as essential.

finelly, we have certain reservations regarding the use
of the term “apprenticoship" in the Act. While this may seem a
minor or technical point to some, it is an important jssue to us.
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The term apprentice or apprenticeship, especially when used in
the construction trades, hae a very distinct and specific
meaning, one which typically refers to prolonged on the.job
training with corresponding related claseroom educaticn. During
this process the apprentice is entirely committed to learning an
established and highly skilled craft and upon the completion of
which, the apprentice becomes a full-fledged master sechanic or
journeyman.

For example, the United Association’s apprenticeship
program consiste of over 10,000 houre of on-the-job training,
plus a minimum of 1,080 hours of related classrcom instruction.
Although the training programs called for by the Act seek to
create programe that are somewhat eimilar in nature, they will
surely not compare in scope or intensity tc traditional craft
apprenticeship programs. Moreover, by entitling such programs
“apprenticeships," there could be an adverse, albeit unintended,
conseguence insofar as the status of true craft apprenticeships
would be underained.

For these reasons, we would greatly appreciate it if an
alternative name for the Act could be considered, such ae the
Youth Employment Skills Act (YES), a title which was suggested
last term by a xember of the Senator’e staff. Thank you for your
time and consideration in this matter. With best wiehes, I am

Sincerely youre,

Mo | PBorede
Marvin J. de

General P ident
vlj

bc: George Bliss, United Association
Allyn Parmenter, United Association
Luckie McClintock, United Aseociation
Jay Power, AFL-CIO Legielative Dept.
Calvin Johnson, AXL-CIO Legislative Dept.
Dorothy Shields, AFL-CIO Education Dept.
Leo Zeferetti, AFL-CIO Building Trades Dept.
Gerry Waites, O’Donoghue & 0’Donoghue




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

250

OF TER PLUMBING AMD PIPR FITTING

ALTERNATIVE NONDUPLICATION CLAUSE
FOR IHX YOUTK ARPRENTICRSNIP ACT

Section 11 Nonduplication and Nondisplacement

(a) Nonduplication: Assistance provided under this Act
shall not be used to establish a program in any
Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area where there is
an existing apprenticeship program registered with the
U.S. Department of Labor‘’s Bureau of Apprenticeship
Training or a State Apprenticeship Council for the saxe
or similar trade, occupation or field. It is further
provided, however, that the terms of this subsection
shall not prohibit an organization which has a duly
registered apprenticeship program from applying for
assistance under the Act.
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EXKINIT 3
100 YEARS
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UNITED ASSOCIATION
1 Journeymren and Apprenticss
of the Plumbing and Pipe Fitting Industry
of the United States and Canads
Office of the Geseral Prevdeat—Marmn ). Boede ﬁ

Gewernl Office File Referesce. 18801980

October 8, 1991

Mr. Calvin Johnson

Legislative Representative AFL-CIO
815 16th Street NW

washington, DC 2006

Re: High Skills, Competitive Workforce Act of 1991

Dear Mr. Johnson:

This letter sets forth the position of the United
Associaticn of Journeymen and Apprentices of the Plumbing and Pipe
Fitting Industry of the United States and Canada regarding the
above-referenced bill, which was recently introduced in Congress by
Senator Kennedy. Pleased be advised, however, that the concerns and
issues raised herein constitute our preliminary views on this matter
and that we may wish to submit further comments after we have had
the opportunity to give the bill further study.

I. Querview

No one can deny that the goals set fcrth in the High
Skills, Competitive Workforce Act are laudable. The stated purpose
of the Act is to "ensure the success of American products and
services in international competiticn and to improve the standard
of living for all Americans.” The Act seeks to achieve these ends
by establishing a system of federally-sponsored educational and
training programs intended to revitalize America’s workforce. The
Act also calls for the establishment of national, albeit voluntary,
occupational certification standards for each industry, craft or
trade.

Trade unions, especially those in the building and
constructiom industry, have invested literally billions of dollars
in apprenticeship programs. These investments are made to ensure
that union craftsmen attain the highest level of skill and knowledge
in their trade. It is this type of compitment that has enabled

:ion workers to deliver a quality of service matched by none.
Moreover, it is this type of foresight and planning which allows
union contractors to remain successful in an increasingly
competitive world. BRBecause of this commitment, it is vital the AFL-
CIO persuade Congress to take appropriate action in revising the
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Workforce Act so as to ensure the fair treatment and adequate
protection of established union apprenticeship programs.

II. Rev i itive W orce Act

A. Statutory Protection £ am

In order to ensure that existing union apprenticeship
programs receive fair treatment under the law, two specific
provisions need to be added to the Workforce Act:

Firet, the Act should contain a specific exemption for
the building and construction industry. (See Attachment A, Draft
Proposal).

Second, a provision should be included to prohibit the
use of federal funds for any programs which would undermine existing
apprentice programs duly registered with the Department of Labor,

Bureau of Apprenticeship Training. (See Attachment B, Draft
Proposal).

The proposed changes are clearly justified. If existing
programs are not adequately protected, private inveetment in these
programs will be severely diecouraged. More importantly, federal
funding should not be used to provide non-union contractors with an
unfair competitive advantage -- which is exactly what will happen

if the proposed legielation is not substantially modified.

Given the wideepread use of union apprenticeehip programs
in the building and conetruction industry, virtuelly any type of
federal inveetment in this area is going to be unfair. Furthermore,
unlike other areas, it ie obvioue that federal action is not needed
to etimulate the creation of new training programe in thie industry.

Accordingly, a construction induetry exemption ie warranted. (See
Attachment A).

It ie egually as important to prohibit unnecessary
duplicaties and/or the same type of unfair advantage in occupations
and tradee not in the conetruction industry. The moet likely way
to achieve thie would be to include language in the etatute that
clearly states that federal funding shall not be used to eetablish
Programs in any occupation or trade for which regietered
apprenticeehip programs already exist, and to explicitly outlaw

programs that would otherwise serve to undermine exieting programe.
(See Attachment B).
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Furthermore, these restrictions must be incorporated at
the appropriate place in the statute, namely in Section 102, in
order that they apply to all types of program funding made available
by the Act. (In the original bill, funding restrictions apply
to Title III programs -- a result totally unacceptable since federal
fundirg is provided under the other Titles as well.) As discussed
below, these provisions must also be backed-up by viable enforcement
mechanisms which permit interested parties to effectively challenge
programs when necessary.

B. Statutorvy Enforcement Mechanisms

In its present form, the proposed statute fails to provide
any type of enforcement mechanism with which to challenge a new
program, or to otherwise pursue violations of the Act. Accordingly,
an entire enforcement scheme needs to be added to the statute. We

suggest that such an enforcement scheme should include the following
basic features.

1. Specific Criteria for Proposed Proqrams: Reguests
for federal funding under the Act, i.e., program proposals or
applications, should be required to meet specific established
criteria to ensure that only legitimate and bona fide programs
receive federal assistance.

At the very least, prcposed training programs should be
required to meet the criteria and standards set forth in applicable
DOL apprenticeship regulations. gSee 29 C.P.R. 29.5 ("Standards

of Apprenticeship®).

These regulations list the specific criteria required
of apprenticeship programs registered with, and approved by, the
Department of Labor’s Bureau of Apprenticeship Training ("BAT"),
such as requirements regarding job safety instruction, the minimum
number of hours for which an apprentice must train, and so forth.

2. Program Applications Should Obtain Prior BAT Approval:
Each program proposal which involves any type of job training should
be required not only to meet specific criteria, but also to obtain

BAT approval and certification prior to being considered for funding
by the federal or local authorities issuing the program grants.

This process would allow BAT to review a proposed

program to ensure that it complies with all statutory and regulatory
requirements, including restrictions regarding duplication and

Q
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infringement of existing programs, as well as specific program
criteria.

Once this review process is completa and BAT ascertains
that the proposal adequately complies with the law, BAT can issue
a certification to this effect and the program application can
proceed to the funding stage, providing no challenges are pending.

3. Public Notice of Program Proposals: At the time a
program proposal and application is filed with BAT, public notice
should be immediately posted in the Federal Register, identifying
the name of the employer, the type of program proposed, the
occupation or trade slated for training and other such information.

Following iho issuance of the public notice, interested
parties should be given a reasonable period to review the proposal,
..Z. 30 or 60 days, befors BAT completes its review process. At
thia

stage, copies of all rslevant documents should be made
available upcn request.

4. The Right to Challenge Program Proposals: Any
interested party should be afforded the right to challenge a
proposed program on the ground that it does not meet required

standards or otherwise fails to comply the statute or applicable
requlations.

The details for establishing an administrative process
to handel such challengee could be worked out after an agreement ig
reached recognizing that interested parties should be given the
right to challenge legally deficient programs.

For any such scheme to be effective, however, certain
basic features are essential.

~~ Pirst, when a challenge is raised, but denied by BaT
(or the Secretary), the challenging party should be entitled to a

full administrative hearing (i.e., full due process rights under the
Administrative Proceduree Act).

-- Second, the party should have the explicit right to
appeal the decision of the administrative tribunal to a court of
appropriate jurisdiction (e.g. a U.S. Court of hppeals).

== Third, if it prevails on the merits, the challenging
party should be entitled to an injunction prohibiting the funding
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and establishment of the propossd program and should be awarded
attorney fees and costs.

~~ Pinally, it is vital that these various requirements
be explicitly rscognizsd in the Act itself and not entrustsd to the
implementing regulations.

c. ation

Section 203 of the Act seeks to establish e "voluntary
system of occupational certification . . . a system of industry-
based, occupational proficiency standards and certifications of
mastery" for verious occupations and trades. These occupational
certification standards will then be used for training and testing
participants in the new programs created under the Act.

In seeking to ensure fairness to exieting apprenticeship
programs, the Act requires that certification standards will be
encouraged for only thoee occupations "for which no recognized
standards currently exist.® Section 203(a). The statute further
provides that occupational etandards developed under the Act "shall
not dilute standards applicable to existing apprenticeship
programe.” Section 203{g)(2)(B).

While these measures are likely to be adequate in
protecting existing union standards, two additional points should
be considered in thie area. First, if certification standards are
developad for a particular occupation -- which are lower than those
used by union apprenticeship programs for the same or similar trade
or occupation -- affected partice (e.g., unions and contractors)
should have the right to challenge such standarde, either in court
or through appropriate administrative channele. It ehould ba noted
that although the national etandarde diecuesed in the Act are said
to be voluntary, they become significant with respect to other
provisione of the etatute, namely the criteria which proposed

programs will be required to meet in order to qualify for federal
funding.

The other point that should be noted regarding
occupational certification standards ie that the Act seeks to
involve varioue elements of the private sector, including labor
unions, in the developmant of these standards. See 9.g,, Sections
203(b) (1) and (g). It may be worthwhile to censider whether it
would be feaeible to demand that the Act provide for even greater
input from organized labor in thie process (for example, by having
the etatute epecify the number of labor representatives required

5
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on the national boerd or industry committees). After all, organized
labor is recognized es an expert in the field of apprentice training

and therefore e greater role for labor unions in this process is
justified.

It should be exphasized that apprentice treining standards
for union programs, especielly in the construction industry, are
well known for developing high quality skills and safe working
practices. Thus, every effort must be made to protect and promote
these standards and, at the very least, any federal action in the
area of apprenticeship stendards should be closely monitored.

D. Emplover Assessment Imposed by the aAct

Section 423 of the Act imposes a one per cent payroll tax
on employers in order to create a source of funding for the new
programs envisioned by the statute. Although this assessment may
be offset by the amount an employer contributes to a qualified
training or education program, it is still too burdensome. Many
union apprenticeship programe ere funded by amounts substantially
less than what is required by the statute. This is most likely due
to the fact that. adainistrative costs are kept at a minimum dne to
the fact that Apprentice Programs are locali.ud and administered
soley by lLocel Apprenticeship Committees. In fact, in many cases
the cost may be less than one-half of one per cent of the employer’s
payroll., Moreover, the existing programs are largely successful,

a point which shows that the proposed tax is neither fair nor
reasonable.

Another important point which counsels against this
approach is the fact that these programs are the product of free
arms-length collective bargaining between union and employer and
therefore should not be disturbed. 1Indeed, verious provisions in
federal labor law and employee benefit law are based on the distinct
notion that these typas of terms and conditions of employment should
be determined opnly by collective bargaining. Any forced action to
the contrary by the federal government would undermine this long-
settled tenet of national labor policy.

If the proposed exemption set forth above for the building
and construction trade were to be adopted, union employers in this
industry would be protected. Unless the employer tax is defeated
in its entirety, however, additional action would be needed to
ensure that other union employers are also be exempted from the tax.
One way to accomplish this would be for the Act to simply exempt
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employers which contribute to existing BAT certified apprenticeship
programs.

III. Conclusion

As noted at the outset, the comments set forth here
contain our preliminary views regarding the proposed legislation.
Given the importance of the Act, we feel that further study is
warranted and additional comments may therefore be necessary. We
are glad to have had the opportunity to present these issues and
concerns to you. If you would like, we would of course be happy to
meet with you to discuss our proposals or other aspects of the
statute.

Fraternally yours,

Meikoot 2 Cottend
Michael A. Collins

Director of Political and
Legislative Affairs
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A. Bullding & Construction Industrv Exemption

Insert at p. 8, line 18 of Draft Bill; as new subsection
(d} to Section 102, Purpose and National Policy Declarations:

(d) construction Industry Exemption: None of the amounts
appropriated under this Act (or the amendanent nmade by this Act)
shall be used to establish, naintain or assist any type of
apprenticeship or training program for any trade, skill, craft or
occupation in the building and construction industry. It is further
provided that the employer assessaent imposed by Section 423 of this
Act shall not apply to any emplcyer, which, as of the date of the
enactment of this etatute, is a participant in a bona fide
apprenticeship program duly registered with the U.S. Department of
Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship Training.
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Ingert at p. 8, line 18 of Draft Bill; as new subsection
(e) to Section 102, Purpose and National Policy Declarations:

B. Nopn-Duplication Provision

Insert at p. 8, line 18 of Draft Bill; as new subsaction
(d) to Section 102: Purpose and Nationsl Policy Declarations):

(d) Non-duplication: None of the amounts appropriated
under this Act (or the amendment vade by this Act) shall be used to
establish, maintain or assist any type of apprenticeship or training
proyiaa for any trade, skill, craft or occupation for which there
is an existing apprenticeship or training program duly registered
with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship Training
for the same or similar trade, skill, craft or occupation. It is
further provided that no amounts appropriated under this Act (or the
amendment made by this Act) ihall be used to establish, maintain or
assist any type of apprenticeship or training program which would
undermine occupational standards and the general effectiveness of
any existing apprenticeship or training program, duly registered
uit? ij. U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship
Training.
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EXEIBIT 4
UNITED ASSOCIATION
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of the Plumbing and Pipe Fitung [ndustry
* the Umurd States snd Canads
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July 11, 1991

The Honorzble Charles Rangel
2252 Rayburn House Office Building
washington, DC 20315

Re: Grandy Apprenticeship Bill: "Laading Employers Into
Apprenticeship Partnerships Act" (H.R.2550).

Dear Congressmzan Rangel:

It has come to our attention that Congressman Fred Grandy
recently introduced new lagislation in the House of
Representatives concerning apprenticeship education programs. I
refer here to H.R.2550, known as the "Leading Employers Into
Apprenticeship Partnerships Act® It is our understanding that
you are one of tha co-sponsors of this Bill, which is ncw pending
before the House Ways and Means Committeas.

We would like you to know that we have serious concerns and
reservations about this legislation. 1In brief, we bhelieve that
if this Bill is enacted in its present form, it will have
dramatic and substantial adverse effects on organized labor. Not
only does this law offer unfair tax advantages to non-union
enployers, but it threatens the very existence of union
apprenticeship programs. Of course, due to the complexity of our
federal tax code, we understand the potential consequences of
this legislation may not have been readily apparent to its
drafters. We submit, hovever, that the threat of harm posed by
this legislation is very real.

As you know, the proposed statute seeks to encourage the
development of apprenticeship programs through various tax
incentivas-~specifically, tax cradits for participating employers
and a special tax exempt status for the organization which
operates the apprentice ptogram. While the policy goal of this
legislation aay be laudable, the izplementing prograsm is
inherently unfair and discriminatory. To begin vith, the statute
is drafted in such a way that it, in effect, excludes virtually
every union apprenticeship program which exists in the nation
today.
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In almost all cases, union apprantice programs are operated
by joint labor-management trust funds establiehed pursuant to
Section 102 of the Taft-Hartley Act. Indead, federal labor law
requires that these organizations be equally represented and
aduinistered by labor and managezent trustees.

Under the Grandy Bill, the only organizations eligible for
tax benefits would be those which are dominated by nmanagement.
In this regard, the statute spscifically provides that to
qualify, the organization’s board of directors must have a
majority of business representatives. Sea Section 2(n) (1) (A)(4i).
Thus, by definition, hundreds of existing union apprentice
programs are axcluded from the proposed leglelation and the
substantial tax credits it offsrs. We do not bslieve that
Congress should accept or tolerate such blatant and unfair
discrimination.

Furthermore, the proposaed statute not only seeks to award
unfair advantages to non-union businesses, but it also undermines
existing union programs by thrsatening to revoke their tax exempt
status. Traditionally, apprenticeship programs have been awarded
tax exempt status under Sections 501(c) (1) and/or (5) of the
Internal Ravenue Code. Sga 26 U.S.C. § 501 (3) and (5) (which
pernit apprenticeship organizations to ba recogniied as either
"educational® or "labor" organizations). These sections of the
Code havae long baen recognized by the IRS as appropriate vehicles
for granting tax exempt status to apprsntice organizations since,
under current law, theére is no specific catagory or definition
for apprsnticeship programs.

The Grandy Bill seeks to ravise the Internal Revenue Code to
provide a specific and distinct definition for apprentice
prograas, i.e., a definition which recognizes employer-dominated
programs only. Therefore, under this scheme, the IRS would have
full autherity to deny tax exampt status to hundreds of union
apprenticeship programs--while granting this benefit solely to
nev employer-~dominated programs.

Revoking the tax exempt status of existing union programs
wvould be a potsntially lethal blow. We do not believe anyone
wvants thie result. Indeed, since Congress hae always supported
and encouraged the development of apprentice training, we do not
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think it would look favorably upon legislation which threatens to
terninate a vast network of viable and productive agprentics
programs~~ programs which are the life blood of organized labor
in this country.

for the above stated reasons we hopes that the Ways and Means
Committee takes careful rsview of H.R.2550 as proposed by
Congressman. Grandy.

Due to the inherent unfairness that would result from the
legislation we ask that the Committee take the appropriate action
to see that the Bill, as written, is either drastically amended
and, if not, that H.R.2550 not ba processed through the
Committee. -

Wa, of coursa, would be glad to meet with you or your staff
to discuss this matter further. Thank You for your time and
consideration.

Sincngcly yours,

Merce, v Boeke.

Marvin J.(Jlocede
General President

57-464 O - 92 (266)
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